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PART I
Item 1.

Business

We are a holding company that is a provider, through our subsidiaries, of title insurance, specialty insurance, claims management services, and information services. We are the
nation’s largest title insurance company through our title insurance underwriters — Fidelity National Title, Chicago Title, Commonwealth Land Title, Lawyers Title, Ticor Title, Security
Union Title, and Alamo Title — which collectively issued more title insurance policies in 2008 than any other title insurance company in the United States. We also provide flood insurance,
personal lines insurance and home warranty insurance through our specialty insurance subsidiaries. We are a leading provider of outsourced claims management services to large corporate
and public sector entities through our minority-owned affiliate, Sedgwick CMS Holdings (“Sedgwick”) and a provider of information services in the human resources, retail, and
transportation markets through another minority-owned affiliate, Ceridian Corporation (“Ceridian”).
On December 22, 2008, we completed the acquisition of LandAmerica Financial Group, Inc.’s (“LFG”) two principal title insurance underwriters, Commonwealth Land
Title Insurance Company (“Commonwealth”) and Lawyers Title Insurance Corporation (“Lawyers”), as well as United Capital Title Insurance Company (“United”) (collectively, the “LFG
Underwriters”). The results of operations of the LFG Underwriters acquired are included in our results of operations from December 22, 2008 forward. For more information on this
acquisition, see note B of Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
Prior to October 24, 2006, we were known as Fidelity National Title Group, Inc. (“FNT”) and were a majority-owned subsidiary of another publicly traded company, also called
Fidelity National Financial, Inc. (“Old FNF”). On October 24, 2006, Old FNF transferred certain assets to us in return for the issuance of 45,265,956 shares of our common stock to Old FNF.
Old FNF then distributed to its shareholders all of its shares of our common stock, making FNT a standalone public company (the “2006 Distribution”). On November 9, 2006, Old FNF was
then merged with and into another of its subsidiaries, Fidelity National Information Services, Inc. (“FIS”), after which we changed our name to Fidelity National Financial, Inc. (“FNF”). On
November 10, 2006, our common stock began trading on the New York Stock Exchange under the trading symbol “FNF.”
We currently have three reporting segments as follows:
•

Fidelity National Title Group. This segment consists of the operations of our title insurance underwriters and related businesses. This segment provides core title insurance and
escrow and other title-related services including collection and trust activities, trustee’s sales guarantees, recordings and reconveyances.

•

Specialty Insurance. This segment consists of certain subsidiaries that issue flood, home warranty, homeowners’, automobile and other personal lines insurance policies.

•

Corporate and Other. This segment consists of the operations of the parent holding company, certain other unallocated corporate overhead expenses, other smaller operations,
and our share in the operations of certain equity method investments, including Sedgwick, Ceridian, and Remy International, Inc. (“Remy”).

Competitive Strengths
We believe that our competitive strengths include the following:
Leading title insurance company. We are the largest title insurance company in the United States and a leading provider of title insurance and escrow and other title-related services
for real estate transactions. During 2008, our insurance companies, which include the LFG Underwriters, had a 45.7% share of the U.S. title insurance market, according to the Demotech
Performance of Title Insurance Companies 2009 Edition, an annual compilation of financial information from the title insurance industry that is published by Demotech Inc., an independent
firm (“Demotech”).
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Established relationships with our customers. We have strong relationships with the customers who use our title services. Our distribution network, which includes over 1,600 direct
residential title offices and almost 7,500 agents, is among the largest in the United States. We also benefit from strong brand recognition in our seven title brands that allows us to access a
broader client base than if we operated under a single consolidated brand and provides our customers with a choice among brands.
Strong value proposition for our customers. We provide our customers with title insurance and escrow and other title-related services that support their ability to effectively close real
estate transactions. We help make the real estate closing more efficient for our customers by offering a single point of access to a broad platform of title-related products and resources
necessary to close real estate transactions.
Proven management team. The managers of our operating businesses have successfully built our title business over an extended period of time, resulting in our business attaining the
size, scope and presence in the industry that it has today. Our managers have demonstrated their leadership ability during numerous acquisitions through which we have grown and
throughout a number of business cycles and significant periods of industry change.
Competitive cost structure. We have been able to maintain competitive operating margins in part by monitoring our businesses in a disciplined manner through continual evaluation
and management of our cost structure. When compared to our industry competitors, we also believe that our structure has fewer layers of management which allows us to operate with lower
overhead costs.
Commercial title insurance. While residential title insurance comprises the majority of our business, we believe that we are the largest provider of commercial real estate title
insurance in the United States. Our network of agents, attorneys, underwriters and closers that service the commercial real estate markets is one of the largest in the industry. Our commercial
network combined with our financial strength makes our title insurance operations attractive to large national lenders that require the underwriting and issuing of larger commercial title
policies.
Corporate principles. A cornerstone of our management philosophy and operating success is the six fundamental precepts upon which we were founded, which include:
•

Autonomy and entrepreneurship;

•

Bias for action;

•

Customer-oriented and motivated;

•

Minimize bureaucracy;

•

Employee ownership; and

•

Highest standard of conduct.

These six precepts are emphasized to our employees from the first day of employment and are integral to many of our strategies described below.
We believe that our competitive strengths position us well to take advantage of any improvements in the real estate market in future years.
Strategy
Fidelity National Title Group
Our strategy in the title insurance business is to maximize operating profits by increasing our market share and managing operating expenses throughout the real estate business cycle.
To accomplish our goals, we intend to:
•

Continue to operate multiple title brands independently. We believe that in order to maintain and strengthen our title insurance customer base, we must operate our strongest
brands in a given marketplace independently of each other. Our national and regional brands include Fidelity National
2
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Title, Chicago Title, Commonwealth Land Title, Lawyers Title, Ticor Title, Security Union Title and Alamo Title. In most of our largest markets, we operate two, and in a few
cases as many as five brands, including the brands acquired with the LFG Underwriters. This approach allows us to continue to attract customers who identify with one brand
over another and allows us to utilize a broader base of local agents and local operations than we would have with a single consolidated brand.
•

Consistently deliver superior customer service. We believe customer service and consistent product delivery are the most important factors in attracting and retaining customers.
Our ability to provide superior customer service and provide consistent product delivery requires continued focus on providing high quality service and products at competitive
prices. Our goal is to continue to improve the experience of our customers, in all aspects of our business.

•

Manage our operations successfully through business cycles. We operate in a cyclical business and our ability to diversify our revenue base within our core title insurance
business and manage the duration of our investments may allow us to better operate in this cyclical business. Maintaining a broad geographic revenue base, utilizing both direct
and independent agency operations and pursuing both residential and commercial title insurance business help diversify our title insurance revenues. We continue to monitor,
evaluate and execute upon the consolidation of administrative functions, legal entity structure, and office consolidation, as necessary, to respond to the continually changing
marketplace. We maintain shorter durations on our investment portfolio to mitigate our interest rate risk and, in a rising interest rate environment, to increase our investment
revenue, which may offset some of the decline in premiums and service revenues we would expect in such an environment. A more detailed discussion of our investment
strategies is included in “Investment Policies and Investment Portfolio.”

•

Continue to improve our products and technology. As a national provider of real estate transaction products and services, we participate in an industry that is subject to significant
change, frequent new product and service introductions and evolving industry standards. We believe that our future success will depend in part on our ability to anticipate industry
changes and offer products and services that meet evolving industry standards. In connection with our service offerings, we are continuing to deploy new information system
technologies to our direct and agency operations. We expect to improve the process of ordering title and escrow services and improve the delivery of our products to our
customers.

•

Maintain values supporting our strategy. We believe that our continued focus on and support of our long-established corporate culture will reinforce and support our business
strategy. Our goal is to foster and support a corporate culture where our employees and agents seek to operate independently and profitably at the local level while forming close
customer relationships by meeting customer needs and improving customer service. Utilizing a relatively flat managerial structure and providing our employees with a sense of
individual ownership supports this goal.

•

Effectively manage costs based on economic factors. We believe that our focus on our operating margins is essential to our continued success in the title insurance business.
Regardless of the business cycle in which we may be operating, we seek to continue to evaluate and manage our cost structure and make appropriate adjustments where economic
conditions dictate. This continual focus on our cost structure helps us to better maintain our operating margins.

Specialty Insurance
Our strategy in the specialty insurance business is to provide an efficient and effective delivery mechanism for property and casualty insurance policies placed directly and through
independent agents. We are positioned to be a low expense provider, while continuing to strictly adhere to pricing and underwriting disciplines to maintain our underwriting profitability.
•

We offer coverage under the U.S. National Flood Insurance Program (“NFIP”) through our three underwriters, Fidelity National Insurance Company, Fidelity National Property
and Casualty Insurance Company and Fidelity National Indemnity Insurance Company, which provide flood insurance in all
3
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50 states. We are the largest provider of NFIP flood insurance in the U.S. through our independent agent network.
•

We provide an efficient methodology for obtaining insurance on newly acquired homes, whether new construction or upon resale. We have an easy to use fully integrated website,
which our agents use as a completely paperless and fully automated quoting and policy delivery system. This system is in use for all of our property and casualty products.

•

Our underwriting practice is conservative. Catastrophe exposure is closely managed on a real time basis. We also purchase reinsurance to assist in maintaining our profitability
and protecting our surplus.

Possible Acquisitions, Dispositions, Minority Owned Operating Subsidiaries and Financings
With assistance from our advisors, on an ongoing basis we actively evaluate possible strategic transactions, such as acquisitions and dispositions of business units and operating assets
and business combination transactions, as well as possible means of financing the growth and operations of our business units or raising funds, through securities offerings or otherwise, for
debt repayment or other purposes. In the current economic environment, we may seek to sell certain investments or other assets to increase our liquidity. Further, our management has stated
that we may make acquisitions in lines of business that are not directly tied to or synergistic with our core operating segments. There can be no assurance, however, that any suitable
opportunities will arise or that any particular transaction will be completed.
Acquisitions
Strategic acquisitions have been an important part of our growth strategy. We made a number of acquisitions over the past three years to strengthen and expand our service offerings
and customer base in our various businesses, to expand into other businesses or where we otherwise saw value.
Acquisition of the LFG Underwriters. On December 22, 2008, we completed the acquisition of the LFG Underwriters. The total purchase price was $258.9 million, net of cash
acquired of $5.9 million, and was comprised of $153.9 million paid by two of our title insurance underwriters, Fidelity National Title Insurance Company and Chicago Title Insurance
Company, a $50 million subordinated note due in 2013 (see note I of Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements), $50 million in FNF common stock (3,176,620 shares valued at $15.74 per
share at the time of closing), and $5 million in transaction costs.
Acquisition of Equity Interest in Ceridian. On November 9, 2007, we and Thomas H. Lee Partners, L.P. (“THL”), along with certain co-investors, completed the acquisition of
Ceridian for $36 in cash per share of common stock, or approximately $5.3 billion. We contributed approximately $527 million of the total $1.6 billion equity funding for the acquisition of
Ceridian, resulting in a 33% ownership interest by us, which we account for using the equity method of accounting for financial statement purposes. Ceridian is an information services
company, servicing the human resources, transportation, and retail industries. Specifically, Ceridian offers a range of human resources outsourcing solutions and is a payment processor and
issuer of credit, debit, and stored-value cards.
Property Insight, LLC. On August 31, 2007, we completed the acquisition of Property Insight, LLC (“Property Insight”), a former FIS subsidiary, from FIS for $95 million in cash.
Property Insight is a leading provider of title plant services for us, as well as various national and regional underwriters. Property Insight primarily manages, maintains, and updates the title
plants that are owned by us. Additionally, Property Insight manages title plant construction activities for us.
ATM Holdings, Inc. On August 13, 2007, we completed the acquisition of ATM Holdings, Inc. (“ATM”), a provider of nationwide mortgage vendor management services to the loan
origination industry, for $100 million in cash. ATM’s primary subsidiary is a licensed title insurance agency which provides centralized valuation and appraisal services, as well as, title and
closing services to residential mortgage originators, banks, and institutional mortgage lenders throughout the United States.
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Equity Interest in Remy. We held an investment in Remy’s Senior Subordinated Notes (the “Notes”) with a total fair value of $139.9 million until December 6, 2007, at which time
Remy implemented a pre-packaged plan of bankruptcy under Chapter 11 of the Bankruptcy Code. Pursuant to the plan of bankruptcy, the Notes were converted into 4,935,065 shares of
Remy common stock and rights to buy 19,909 shares of Remy Series B preferred stock. Upon execution of the plan of bankruptcy, we purchased all 19,909 shares of the preferred stock for
$1,000 per share, or a total of $19.9 million, and then on the same date sold 1,000 of those shares to William P. Foley, II, our Chairman of the Board, for $1,000 per share, or a total of
$1.0 million. As of December 31, 2009, we held a 46% ownership interest in Remy, made up of 4,935,065 shares of Remy common stock with a cost basis of $64.3 million and 18,909 shares
of Remy Series B preferred stock with a cost basis of $19.5 million. We account for our investment in Remy using the equity method of accounting for financial statement purposes. As a
result of the exchange of the Notes for the shares of common and preferred stock, we reversed the unrealized gain of $75.0 million that had previously been recorded in accumulated other
comprehensive earnings in relation to the Notes. Remy, headquartered in Anderson, Indiana, is a leading manufacturer, remanufacturer and distributor of Delco Remy brand heavy-duty
systems and Remy brand starters and alternators, locomotive products and hybrid power technology.
Title Insurance
Market for title insurance. While we have seen declines from 2007 to 2009 in the title insurance market in the United States, the market remains large and grew significantly from
1995 until 2005. Demotech Inc. (“Demotech”), an independent firm providing services to the insurance industry, publishes an annual compilation of financial information from the title
insurance industry called Demotech Performance of Title Insurance Companies. According to this publication, total operating income for the entire U.S. title insurance industry grew from
$4.8 billion in 1995 to $17.8 billion in 2005 and then decreased to $17.6 billion in 2006, $15.2 billion in 2007, and to $11.3 billion in 2008. Growth in the industry is closely tied to various
macroeconomic factors, including, but not limited to, growth in the gross domestic product, inflation, unemployment, the availability of credit, consumer confidence, interest rates and sales
of and prices for new and existing homes, as well as the volume of refinancing of previously issued mortgages.
Most real estate transactions consummated in the U.S. require the use of title insurance by a lending institution before the transaction can be completed. Generally, revenues from title
insurance policies are directly correlated with the value of the property underlying the title policy, and appreciation in the overall value of the real estate market helps drive growth in total
industry revenues. Industry revenues are also driven by factors affecting the volume of residential real estate closings, such as the state of the economy, the availability of mortgage funding,
and changes in interest rates, which affect demand for new mortgage loans and refinancing transactions. Both the volume and the average price of residential real estate transactions have
experienced significant declines in many parts of the country, and it is uncertain how long these trends will continue. In 2008 and 2009, the sharply rising mortgage delinquency and default
rates caused negative operating results at a number of banks and financial institutions and, as a result, have significantly reduced the level of lending activity. Multiple banks have failed
during this time and others may fail in the future, further reducing the capacity of the mortgage industry to make loans. Our revenues in future periods will continue to be subject to these and
other factors which are beyond our control and, as a result, are likely to fluctuate.
The U.S. title insurance industry is concentrated among a handful of industry participants. According to Demotech the top four title insurance companies accounted for 92.1% of net
premiums written in 2008. Over 30 independent title insurance companies accounted for the remaining 7.9% of net premiums written in 2008. Over the years, the title insurance industry has
been consolidating, beginning with the merger of Lawyers and Commonwealth in 1998 to create LFG, followed by our acquisition of Chicago Title in March 2000. Then, in December 2008,
we acquired LFG’s two principal title insurance underwriters, Commonwealth and Lawyers, as well as United. Consolidation has created opportunities for increased financial and operating
efficiencies for the industry’s largest participants and should continue to drive profitability and market share in the industry.
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Title Insurance Policies. Generally, real estate buyers and mortgage lenders purchase title insurance to insure good and marketable title to real estate and priority of lien. A brief
generalized description of the process of issuing a title insurance policy is as follows:
•

The customer, typically a real estate salesperson or broker, escrow agent, attorney or lender, places an order for a title policy.

•

Company personnel note the specifics of the title policy order and place a request with the title company or its agents for a preliminary report or commitment.

•

After the relevant historical data on the property is compiled, the title officer prepares a preliminary report that documents the current status of title to the property, any exclusions,
exceptions and/or limitations that the title company might include in the policy, and specific issues that need to be addressed and resolved by the parties to the transaction before
the title policy will be issued.

•

The preliminary report is circulated to all the parties for satisfaction of any specific issues.

•

After the specific issues identified in the preliminary report are satisfied, an escrow agent closes the transaction in accordance with the instructions of the parties and the title
company’s conditions.

•

Once the transaction is closed and all monies have been released, the title company issues a title insurance policy.

In a real estate transaction financed with a mortgage, virtually all real property mortgage lenders require their borrowers to obtain a title insurance policy at the time a mortgage loan
is made. This lender’s policy insures the lender against any defect affecting the priority of the mortgage in an amount equal to the outstanding balance of the related mortgage loan. An
owner’s policy is typically also issued, insuring the buyer against defects in title in an amount equal to the purchase price. In a refinancing transaction, only a lender’s policy is generally
purchased because ownership of the property has not changed. In the case of an all-cash real estate purchase, no lender’s policy is issued but typically an owner’s title policy is issued.
Title insurance premiums paid in connection with a title insurance policy are based on (and typically a percentage of) either the amount of the mortgage loan or the purchase price of
the property insured. Applicable state insurance regulations or regulatory practices may limit the maximum, or in some cases the minimum, premium that can be charged on a policy. Title
insurance premiums are due in full at the closing of the real estate transaction. The lender’s policy generally terminates upon the refinancing or resale of the property.
The amount of the insured risk or “face amount” of insurance under a title insurance policy is generally equal to either the amount of the loan secured by the property or the purchase
price of the property. The title insurer is also responsible for the cost of defending the insured title against covered claims. The insurer’s actual exposure at any given time, however, generally
is less than the total face amount of policies outstanding because the coverage of a lender’s policy is reduced and eventually terminated as a result of payment of the mortgage loan. A title
insurer also generally does not know when a property has been sold or refinanced except when it issues the replacement coverage. Because of these factors, the total liability of a title
underwriter on outstanding policies cannot be precisely determined.
Title insurance companies typically issue title insurance policies directly through branch offices or through title agencies which are subsidiaries of the title insurance company, or
indirectly through independent third party agencies unaffiliated with the title insurance company. Where the policy is issued through a branch or wholly-owned subsidiary agency operation,
the title insurance company typically performs or directs the title search, and the premiums collected are retained by the title company. Where the policy is issued through an independent
agent, the agent generally performs the title search (in some areas searches are performed by approved attorneys), examines the title, collects the premium and retains a majority of the
premium. The remainder of the premium is remitted to the title insurance company as compensation, part of which is for bearing the risk of loss in the event a claim is made under the policy.
The percentage of the premium retained by an agent varies from region to region and is sometimes regulated by the states. The title insurance company
6
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is obligated to pay title claims in accordance with the terms of its policies, regardless of whether the title insurance company issues policies through its direct operations or through
independent agents.
Prior to issuing policies, title insurers and their agents attempt to reduce the risk of future claim losses by accurately performing title searches and examinations. A title insurance
company’s predominant expense relates to such searches and examinations, the preparation of preliminary title reports, policies or commitments, the maintenance of title “plants,” which are
indexed compilations of public records, maps and other relevant historical documents, and the facilitation and closing of real estate transactions. Claim losses generally result from errors
made in the title search and examination process, from hidden defects such as fraud, forgery, incapacity, or missing heirs of the property, and from closing related errors.
Residential real estate business results from the construction, sale, resale and refinancing of residential properties, while commercial real estate business results from similar activities
with respect to properties with a business or commercial use. Commercial real estate title insurance policies insure title to commercial real property, and generally involve higher coverage
amounts and yield higher premiums. Residential real estate transaction volume is primarily affected by macroeconomic and seasonal factors while commercial real estate transaction volume
is affected primarily by fluctuations in local supply and demand conditions for commercial space.
Direct and Agency Operations. We provide title insurance services through our direct operations and through independent title insurance agents who issue title policies on behalf of
our title insurance companies. Our title insurance companies determine the terms and conditions upon which they will insure title to the real property according to their underwriting
standards, policies and procedures.
Direct Operations. In our direct operations, the title insurer issues the title insurance policy and retains the entire premium paid in connection with the transaction. Our direct
operations provide the following benefits:
•

higher margins because we retain the entire premium from each transaction instead of paying a commission to an independent agent;

•

continuity of service levels to a broad range of customers; and

•

additional sources of income through escrow and closing services.

We have over 1,600 offices throughout the U.S. primarily providing residential real estate title insurance, including approximately 400 offices which were added with the acquisition
of the LFG Underwriters on December 22, 2008. During 2009 and 2008, as title insurance activity has slowed, we closed and consolidated a number of our offices. We continuously monitor
the number of direct offices to be in line with our Company strategy and the current economic environment. Our commercial real estate title insurance business is operated almost exclusively
through our direct operations. We maintain direct operations for our commercial title insurance business in all the major real estate markets including New York, Los Angeles, Chicago,
Atlanta, Dallas, Philadelphia, Phoenix, Seattle and Houston.
Agency Operations. In our agency operations, the search and examination function is performed by an independent agent or the agent may purchase the search and examination from
us. In either case, the agent is responsible to ensure that the search and examination is completed. The agent thus retains the majority of the title premium collected, with the balance remitted
to the title underwriter for bearing the risk of loss in the event that a claim is made under the title insurance policy. Independent agents may select among several title underwriters based upon
their relationship with the underwriter, the amount of the premium “split” offered by the underwriter, the overall terms and conditions of the agency agreement and the scope of services
offered to the agent. Premium splits vary by geographic region, and in some states are fixed by insurance regulatory requirements. Our relationship with each agent is governed by an agency
agreement defining how the agent issues a title insurance policy on our behalf. The agency agreement also sets forth the agent’s liability to us for policy losses attributable to the agent’s
errors. An agency agreement is usually terminable without cause upon 30 days notice or immediately for cause. In determining whether to engage or retain an independent agent, we consider
the agent’s experience, financial condition and loss history. For each agent with whom we
7
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enter into an agency agreement, we maintain financial and loss experience records. We also conduct periodic audits of our agents and periodically decrease the number of agents with which
we transact business in an effort to reduce future expenses and manage risks. We transact business with approximately 7,500 agents, including approximately 3,000 which were added with
the acquisition of the LFG Underwriters.
Fees and Premiums. One method of analyzing our business is to examine the level of premiums generated by direct and agency operations.
The following table presents the percentages of our title insurance premiums generated by direct and agency operations:
Year Ended December 31,
2008
Amount
%
(Dollars in millions)

2009
Amount

Direct
Agency
Total title insurance premiums

$
$

%(a)

1,475.3
2,452.3
3,927.6

37.6%
62.4
100.0%

$
$

1,140.3
1,554.7
2,695.0

42.3%
57.7
100.0%

2007
Amount

$
$

%

1,601.8
2,198.7
3,800.5

42.1%
57.9
100.0%

(a) The mix of agency premiums as a percentage of total title insurance premiums increased in 2009 due to the acquisition of the LFG Underwriters in December 2008, which historically
had a higher agency business.
The premium for title insurance is due in full when the real estate transaction is closed. We recognize title insurance premium revenues from direct operations upon the closing of the
transaction, whereas premium revenues from agency operations include an accrual based on estimates of the volume of transactions that have closed in a particular period for which
premiums have not yet been reported to us. The accrual for agency premiums is necessary because of the lag between the closing of these transactions and the reporting of these policies to us
by the agent, and is based on estimates utilizing historical information.
Geographic Operations. Our direct operations are divided into approximately 180 profit centers, which include 35 added with the acquisition of the LFG Underwriters. Each profit
center processes title insurance transactions within its geographical area, which is usually identified by a county, a group of counties forming a region, or a state, depending on the
management structure in that part of the country. We also transact title insurance business through a network of approximately 7,500 agents, primarily in those areas in which agents are the
more prevalent title insurance provider. This includes approximately 3,000 agents which were added with the acquisition of the LFG Underwriters.
The following table sets forth the approximate dollar and percentage volumes of our title insurance premium revenue by state.
Year Ended December 31,
2008
Amount
%
(Dollars in millions)

2009
Amount

California
Texas
Florida
New York
Illinois
All others
Totals

$

$

691.3
406.1
224.7
272.5
114.0
2,219.0
3,927.6

%

17.6%
10.3
5.7
6.9
2.9
56.6
100.0%

$

$

473.8
337.9
208.4
199.2
118.5
1,357.2
2,695.0

17.6%
12.5
7.7
7.4
4.4
50.4
100.0%

2007
Amount

$

$

626.0
480.0
412.3
305.2
161.9
1,815.1
3,800.5

%

16.5%
12.6
10.8
8.0
4.3
47.8
100.0%

Escrow, Title-Related and Other Fees. In addition to fees for underwriting title insurance policies, we derive a significant amount of our revenues from escrow, title-related and other
services, including closing
8
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services. The escrow and other services provided by us include all of those typically required in connection with residential and commercial real estate purchases and, refinance activities and
default and appraisal services. Escrow, title-related and other fees represented approximately 23.2%, 25.2%, and 19.7% of our revenues in 2009, 2008, and 2007, respectively.
Specialty Insurance
We issue various insurance policies and contracts, which include the following:
•

Flood insurance. We issue new and renewal flood insurance policies in conjunction with the NFIP. The NFIP bears all insurance risk related to these policies.

•

Home warranty. We issue one-year, renewable contracts that protect homeowners against defects in household systems and appliances.

•

Personal lines insurance. We offer and underwrite homeowners’ insurance in all 50 states. Automobile insurance is currently underwritten in 31 states. We may expand into a
limited number of additional states in 2010 where favorable underwriting potential exists. In addition, we underwrite personal umbrella, inland marine (boat and recreational
watercraft), and other personal lines niche products in selected markets.

Sales and Marketing
Our sales and marketing efforts are primarily organized around our lines of business.
Fidelity National Title Group
We market and distribute our title and escrow products and services to customers in the residential and commercial market sectors of the real estate industry through customer
solicitation by sales personnel. Although in many instances the individual homeowner is the beneficiary of a title insurance policy, we do not focus our marketing efforts on the homeowner.
We actively encourage our sales personnel to develop new business relationships with persons in the real estate community, such as real estate sales agents and brokers, financial institutions,
independent escrow companies and title agents, real estate developers, mortgage brokers and attorneys who order title insurance policies for their clients. While our smaller, local clients
remain important, large customers, such as national residential mortgage lenders, real estate investment trusts and developers have become an increasingly important part of our business. The
buying criteria of locally based clients differ from those of large, geographically diverse customers in that the former tend to emphasize personal relationships and ease of transaction
execution, while the latter generally place more emphasis on consistent product delivery across diverse geographical regions and the ability of service providers to meet their information
systems requirements for electronic product delivery.
Specialty Insurance
Specialty insurance is marketed through three distinct channels. We market our program through our in-house agency via direct mail to customers of our affiliated operations. This
direct channel constituted approximately 13% of our non-flood premium writings in 2009 and 15% in 2008 and 2007. The second distribution channel is through independent agents and
brokers nationwide. Approximately 86%, 83%, and 79% of our non-flood premium and the vast majority of our flood business was placed through this channel in 2009, 2008, and 2007,
respectively. We currently have in excess of 19,000 independent agencies nationwide actively producing business on our behalf. The third distribution channel is through independent agents
in California who represent only FNF (“captive independent agents”). This channel, comprised of 12 captive independent agents at the end of 2009, accounted for 1%, 2%, and 6% of the
non-flood premium volume in 2009, 2008, and 2007, respectively.
9
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Claims
An important part of our operations is the handling of title and escrow claims. We employ a staff of over 500 employees in our claims department, over 200 of which are attorneys.
We also use the services of outside attorneys. Our claims processing centers are located in Irvine, California, Omaha, Nebraska, and Jacksonville, Florida. We also have a clearance center
located in Texas, which is responsible for handling minor, technical defects. In-house claims counsels who handle larger claims are also located in other parts of the country.
Claims result from a wide range of causes. These causes generally include, but are not limited to, forgeries, misrepresentations, incorrect legal descriptions, signature and notary
errors, unrecorded liens, mechanics’ liens, the failure to pay off existing liens, mortgage lending fraud, mishandling or theft of settlement funds (including independent agency defalcations),
mistakes in the escrow process, issuance by title agencies of unauthorized coverage, violations of creditors’ rights (such as claims of preference and fraudulent conveyance in bankruptcy
proceedings) and defending insureds when covered claims are filed against their interest in the property. Some claimants seek damages in excess of policy limits. Those claims are based on
various legal theories, including in some cases allegations of negligence or an intentional tort. We occasionally incur losses in excess of policy limits. Experience shows that most policy
claims and claim payments are made in the first six years after the policy has been issued, although claims are also incurred and paid many years later.
Title losses due to independent agency defalcations typically occur when the independent agency misappropriates funds from escrow accounts under its control. Such losses are
usually discovered when the independent agency fails to pay off an outstanding mortgage loan at closing (or immediately thereafter) from the proceeds of the new loan. Once the previous
lender determines that its loan has not been paid off timely, it will file a claim against the title insurer.
Claims are sometimes complex, vary greatly in dollar amounts and are affected by economic and market conditions and the legal environment existing at the time claims are
processed. In our commercial title business, we often issue polices with face amounts well in excess of $100 million, and from time to time claims are submitted with respect to large
policies. We believe we are appropriately reserved with respect to all claims (large and small) that we currently face. However, occasionally we experience large losses from title policies that
have been issued or our escrow operations, or overall worsening loss payment experience, which require us to increase our title loss reserves. These events are unpredictable and adversely
affect our earnings. Claims often result in litigation in which we may represent our insured and/or ourselves. We consider this type of litigation to be an ordinary course aspect of the conduct
of our business.
We have taken several steps intended to address issues that contributed to increases in each of 2007 and 2008 in our provisioning rate for losses occurring under policies written in
prior years. Starting in the fourth quarter of 2008, we began to revise certain aspects of our approach to processing claims. Key changes implemented include a greater effort to collect
contributions from third parties that bear responsibility for losses, more stringent enforcement of documentation requirements for proof of claims, a more efficient process for dealing with
minor, technical claim matters, and a greater focus on hiring legal counsel with lower billing rates. Notwithstanding the negative effects of real estate markets, our title claims paid in 2009
declined to $388.6 million compared to $504.5 million in 2008 on a pro forma basis. We are not able to predict the extent to which this decline will be sustained over time. We also
continued, in 2008 and 2009, reducing our total number of agents, with a focus in part on agents producing higher claims ratios.
Reinsurance and Coinsurance
We limit our maximum loss exposure by reinsuring risks with other insurers under excess of loss and case-by-case (“facultative”) reinsurance agreements. Reinsurance agreements
provide generally that the reinsurer is liable for loss and loss adjustment expense payments exceeding the amount retained by the ceding company. However, the ceding company remains
primarily liable in the event the reinsurer does not meet its contractual obligations. Facultative reinsurance agreements are entered into with other title insurers when the transaction to be
insured will exceed state statutory limits. Excess of loss reinsurance protects us from a loss from a single occurrence. For 2010, our excess of loss coverage is split into two tiers. The first tier
applies to
10

Table of Contents

losses in excess of a $10 million retention up to an aggregate of $100 million in loss from a single occurrence. Above a $100 million total loss, the second tier of our current excess of loss
reinsurance program provides additional coverage above the first $100 million of loss from any occurrence up to $600 million per occurrence, with the Company participating at 38% from
$100 million to $200 million, and at 67% from $200 million to $600 million.
In addition to reinsurance, we carry errors and omissions insurance and fidelity bond coverage, each of which can provide protection to us in the event of certain types of losses that
can occur in our businesses.
Our policy is to be selective in choosing our reinsurers, seeking only those companies that we consider to be financially stable and adequately capitalized. In an effort to minimize
exposure to the insolvency of a reinsurer, we review the financial condition of our reinsurers.
We also use coinsurance in our commercial title business to provide coverage in amounts greater than we would be willing or able to provide individually. In coinsurance transactions,
each individual underwriting company issues a separate policy and assumes a portion of the overall total risk. As a coinsurer we are only liable for the portion of the risk we assume.
We also earn a small amount of additional income, which is reflected in our direct premiums, by assuming reinsurance for certain risks of other title insurers.
In our property and casualty lines of business, we purchase catastrophic reinsurance coverage in the amount of $110 million in excess of a $10 million retention. In addition, we are
required to participate in the Florida Hurricane Catastrophe Fund resulting in coverage of $11 million in excess of $3 million retention. We also have a quota share agreement where we cede
80% of risks that exceed a coverage value of $750 thousand and a quota share agreement where we cede 50% of our umbrella business.
Patents, Trademarks and Other Intellectual Property
We rely on a combination of contractual restrictions, internal security practices, and copyright and trade secret law to establish and protect our software, technology, and expertise.
Further, we have developed a number of brands that have accumulated substantial goodwill in the marketplace, and we rely on trademark law to protect our rights in that area. We intend to
continue our policy of taking all measures we deem necessary to protect our copyright, trade secret, and trademark rights. These legal protections and arrangements afford only limited
protection of our proprietary rights, and there is no assurance that our competitors will not independently develop or license products, services, or capabilities that are substantially equivalent
or superior to ours.
Technology and Research and Development
As a national provider of real estate transaction products and services, we participate in a dynamic industry that is subject to significant regulatory requirements, frequent new product
and service introductions, and evolving industry standards. We believe that our future success will depend in part on our ability to anticipate industry changes and offer products and services
that meet evolving industry standards. In connection with our service offerings, we are continuing to deploy new information system technologies to our direct and agency operations. We
expect to improve the process of ordering title and escrow services and improve the delivery of our products to our customers. In order to meet new regulatory requirements, we also continue
to improve our data collection and reporting abilities.
Competition
Fidelity National Title Group
Competition in the title insurance industry is based primarily on expertise, service and price. In addition, the financial strength of the insurer has become an increasingly important
factor in decisions relating to the purchase of title insurance, particularly in multi-state transactions and in situations involving real estate-related investment vehicles such as real estate
investment trusts and real estate mortgage investment conduits. The
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number and size of competing companies varies in the different geographic areas in which we conduct our business. In our principal markets, competitors include other major title
underwriters such as The First American Corporation, Old Republic International Corporation and Stewart Information Services Corporation, as well as numerous smaller title insurance
companies, underwritten title companies and independent agency operations at the regional and local level. Independent agency operations account for over 60% of our total title insurance
revenue. Several of the smaller competitors have closed their operations in the past few years as a result of the significant decrease in activity in the residential real estate market. Also, the
removal of regulatory barriers might result in new competitors entering the title insurance business, and those new competitors may include diversified financial services companies that have
greater financial resources than we do and possess other competitive advantages. Competition among the major title insurance companies, expansion by smaller regional companies and any
new entrants with alternative products could affect our business operations and financial condition.
Specialty Insurance
In our specialty insurance segment, we compete with the national, regional and local insurance carriers. Depending on geographic location, various personal lines carriers, such as
State Farm, Allstate, Farmers, Travelers, Hartford, Nationwide and numerous other companies compete for this personal lines business. In our home warranty business, our competitors
include American Home Shield and The First American Corporation. In addition to price, service and convenience are competitive factors. We strive to compete primarily through providing
an efficient and streamlined product delivery platform.
Regulation
Our insurance subsidiaries, including title insurers, property and casualty insurers, underwritten title companies and insurance agencies, are subject to extensive regulation under
applicable state laws. Each of the insurers is subject to a holding company act in its state of domicile, which regulates, among other matters, the ability to pay dividends and enter into
transactions with affiliates. The laws of most states in which we transact business establish supervisory agencies with broad administrative powers relating to issuing and revoking licenses to
transact business, regulating trade practices, licensing agents, approving policy forms, accounting practices, financial practices, establishing reserve and capital and surplus as regards
policyholders (“capital and surplus”) requirements, defining suitable investments for reserves and capital and surplus and approving rate schedules. The process of state regulation of changes
in rates ranges from states which set rates, to states where individual companies or associations of companies prepare rate filings which are submitted for approval, to a few states in which
rate changes do not need to be filed for approval.
Since we are governed by both state and federal governments and the applicable insurance laws and regulations are constantly subject to change, it is not possible to predict the
potential effects on our insurance operations, particularly our Fidelity National Title Group segment, of any laws or regulations that may become more restrictive in the future or if new
restrictive laws will be enacted.
Pursuant to statutory accounting requirements of the various states in which our title insurers are domiciled, these insurers must defer a portion of premiums as an unearned premium
reserve for the protection of policyholders (in addition to their reserves for known claims) and must maintain qualified assets in an amount equal to the statutory requirements. The level of
unearned premium reserve required to be maintained at any time is determined by statutory formula based upon either the age, number of policies, and dollar amount of policy liabilities
underwritten, or the age and dollar amount of statutory premiums written. As of December 31, 2009, the combined statutory unearned premium reserve required and reported for our title
insurers was $1,978.3 million. In addition to statutory unearned premium reserves and reserves for known claims, each of our insurers maintains surplus funds for policyholder protection and
business operations.
Each of our insurance subsidiaries is regulated by the insurance regulatory authority in its respective state of domicile, as well as that of each state in which it is licensed. The
insurance commissioners of their respective states of domicile are the primary regulators of our insurance subsidiaries. Each of the insurers is subject to periodic regulatory financial
examination by regulatory authorities, and certain of these examinations are currently ongoing.
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Under the statutes governing insurance holding companies in most states, insurers may not enter into certain transactions, including sales, reinsurance agreements and service or
management contracts, with their affiliates unless the regulatory authority of the insurer’s state of domicile has received notice at least 30 days prior to the intended effective date of such
transaction and has not objected to, or has approved, the transaction within the 30-day period.
As a holding company with no significant business operations of our own, we depend on dividends or other distributions from our subsidiaries as the principal source of cash to meet
our obligations, including the payment of interest on and repayment of principal of any debt obligations, and to pay any dividends to our stockholders. The payment of dividends or other
distributions to us by our insurers is regulated by the insurance laws and regulations of their respective states of domicile. In general, an insurance company subsidiary may not pay an
“extraordinary” dividend or distribution unless the applicable insurance regulator has received notice of the intended payment at least 30 days prior to payment and has not objected to or has
approved the payment within the 30-day period. In general, an “extraordinary” dividend or distribution is statutorily defined as a dividend or distribution that, together with other dividends
and distributions made within the preceding 12 months, exceeds the greater of:
•

10% of the insurer’s statutory surplus as of the immediately prior year end; or

•

the statutory net income of the insurer during the prior calendar year.

The laws and regulations of some jurisdictions also prohibit an insurer from declaring or paying a dividend except out of its earned surplus or require the insurer to obtain prior
regulatory approval. During 2010, our directly owned title insurers can pay dividends or make distributions to us of approximately $289.4 million without prior regulatory approval; however,
insurance regulators have the authority to prohibit the payment of ordinary dividends or other payments by our title insurers to us (such as a payment under a tax sharing agreement or for
employee or other services) if they determine that such payment could be adverse to our policyholders.
The combined statutory capital and surplus of our title insurers was $860.9 million and $634.9 million as of December 31, 2009 and 2008, respectively. The combined statutory
earnings (loss) of our title insurers were $270.4 million, $(170.5) million, and $204.8 million for the years ended December 31, 2009, 2008, and 2007, respectively.
As a condition to continued authority to underwrite policies in the states in which our insurers conduct their business, they are required to pay certain fees and file information
regarding their officers, directors and financial condition.
Pursuant to statutory requirements of the various states in which our insurers are domiciled, they must maintain certain levels of minimum capital and surplus. Each of our insurers
has complied with the minimum statutory requirements as of December 31, 2009.
Our underwritten title companies are also subject to certain regulation by insurance regulatory or banking authorities, primarily relating to minimum net worth. Minimum net worth
requirements for each underwritten title company are as follows: $7.5 million for Fidelity National Title Company, $2.5 million for Fidelity National Title Company of California,
$3.0 million for Chicago Title Company, and $0.4 million for Ticor Title Company of California, Commonwealth Land Title Company, and Lawyers Title Company. These companies were
in compliance with their respective minimum net worth requirements at December 31, 2009.
We receive inquiries and requests for information from state insurance departments, attorneys general and other regulatory agencies from time to time about various matters relating
to our business. Sometimes these take the form of civil investigative subpoenas. We attempt to cooperate with all such inquiries. From time to time, we are assessed fines for violations of
regulations or other matters or enter into settlements with such authorities which require us to pay money or take other actions. For a discussion of certain pending matters, see Item 3, Legal
Proceedings.
Before a person can acquire control of a U.S. insurance company, prior written approval must be obtained from the insurance commissioner of the state in which the insurer is
domiciled. Prior to granting approval of
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an application to acquire control of a domestic insurer, the state insurance commissioner will consider such factors as the financial strength of the applicant, the integrity and management of
the applicant’s Board of Directors and executive officers, the acquirer’s plans for the insurer’s Board of Directors and executive officers, the acquirer’s plans for the future operations of the
domestic insurer and any anti-competitive results that may arise from the consummation of the acquisition of control. Generally, state statutes provide that control over a domestic insurer is
presumed to exist if any person, directly or indirectly, owns, controls, holds with the power to vote, or holds proxies representing 10% or more of the voting securities of the domestic insurer.
(In the state of Florida, where one of our title insurers is commercially domiciled, control may be presumed to exist upon acquisition of 5% or more of the insurer’s voting securities.)
Because a person acquiring 10% or more of our common shares would indirectly control the same percentage of the stock of our insurers, the insurance change of control laws would likely
apply to such a transaction (and any acquisition of 5% or more would require filing a disclaimer of control with, or obtaining a change of control approval from, the State of Florida).
The National Association of Insurance Commissioners (“NAIC”) has adopted an instruction requiring an annual certification of reserve adequacy by a qualified actuary. Because all
of the states in which our title insurers are domiciled require adherence to NAIC filing procedures, each such insurer, unless it qualifies for an exemption, must file an actuarial opinion with
respect to the adequacy of its reserves.
Ratings
Our title insurance underwriters are regularly assigned ratings by independent agencies designed to indicate their financial condition and/or claims paying ability. The rating agencies
determine ratings by quantitatively and qualitatively analyzing financial data and other information. Our title subsidiaries include Alamo Title, Chicago Title, Commonwealth Land Title,
Fidelity National Title, Lawyers Title, Continental Title Insurance Company (previously LandAmerica Title of New Jersey), Security Union Title, Ticor Title, and United Capital Title.
Standard & Poor’s Ratings Group (“S&P”), Moody’s Investors Service (“Moody’s”), and A. M. Best Company (“A.M. Best”) provide ratings for the entire FNF family of companies as a
whole as follows:
FNF family of companies

S&P(1)

Moody’s

A.M. Best

A-

A3

A-

(1) S&P has also assigned a rating of BBB+ to the LFG Underwriters.
Demotech provides financial strength/stability ratings for each of our principal title insurance underwriters individually, as follows:
Alamo Title Insurance
Chicago Title Insurance Co.
Chicago Title Insurance Co. of Oregon
Commonwealth Land Title Insurance Co.
Fidelity National Title Insurance Co.
Lawyers Title Insurance Corporation
LandAmerica NJ Title Insurance Company
Nations Title Insurance of New York, Inc.
Security Union Title Insurance Co.
Ticor Title Insurance Co.
Ticor Title Insurance Co. of Florida
United Capital Title Insurance Co.

A’
A”
A’
A
A’
A
A’
A
A’
A’
A
A

The ratings of S&P, Moody’s, A.M. Best, and Demotech described above are not designed to be, and do not serve as, measures of protection or valuation offered to investors. These
financial strength ratings should not be relied on with respect to making an investment in our securities. See “Item 1A. Risk Factors — If the rating agencies downgrade our Company, our
results of operations and competitive position in the title insurance industry may suffer” for further information.
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Investment Policies and Investment Portfolio
Our investment policy is designed to maximize total return through investment income and capital appreciation consistent with moderate risk of principal, while providing adequate
liquidity. The various states in which we operate regulate the types of assets that qualify for purposes of capital, surplus, and statutory unearned premium reserves. Our investment policy
specifically limits duration and non-investment grade allocations in the core fixed-income portfolio. Maintaining shorter durations on the investment portfolio allows for the mitigation of
interest rate risk. Equity securities are utilized to take advantage of perceived value or for strategic purposes. Due to the magnitude of the investment portfolio in relation to our claims loss
reserves, durations of investments are not specifically matched to the cash outflows required to pay claims.
As of December 31, 2009 and 2008, the carrying amount, which approximates the fair value, of total investments, excluding investments in unconsolidated affiliates, was $4.1 billion
and $3.7 billion, respectively.
We purchase investment grade fixed maturity securities, selected non-investment grade fixed maturity securities and equity securities. The securities in our portfolio are subject to
economic conditions and normal market risks and uncertainties. Our fixed maturities include auction rate securities at December 31, 2009 with a par value of $69.7 million and fair value of
$45.2 million and at December 31, 2008, a par value of $88.8 million and fair value of $32.0 million, which were included in the assets of the LFG Underwriters that we acquired on
December 22, 2008. Our cost basis at December 31, 2009 was $26.4 million, which represents the fair value at the acquisition date. These auction rate securities make up approximately one
percent of our total portfolio. Fair values for auction rate securities are provided by a third-party pricing service.
The following table presents certain information regarding the investment ratings of our fixed maturity portfolio at December 31, 2009 and 2008.
December 31,
2009
Rating(1)

AAA/Aaa
AA/Aa
A
BBB/Baa
B
Other

Amortized
Cost

$

$

1,154.1
868.1
930.2
329.5
22.4
50.3
3,354.6

2008

% of
Total

34.4%
25.9
27.7
9.8
0.7
1.5
100.0%

$

$

Fair
Value

% of
Amortized
Total
Cost
(Dollars in millions)

% of
Total

1,195.8
898.2
985.5
341.8
51.1
51.8
3,524.2

33.9%
25.5
28.0
9.7
1.5
1.4
100.0%

40.7%
21.9
27.5
8.2
0.2
1.5
100.0%

$

$

1,154.9
621.4
778.5
231.9
5.1
42.4
2,834.2

$

$

Fair
Value

% of
Total

1,194.0
627.7
761.0
223.3
4.4
43.4
2,853.8

41.8%
22.0
26.7
7.8
0.2
1.5
100.0%

(1) Ratings as assigned by Standard & Poor’s Ratings Group or Moody’s Investors Services if a Standard & Poor’s rating is unavailable.
The following table presents certain information regarding contractual maturities of our fixed maturity securities:
Amortized
Cost

Maturity

One year or less
After one year through five years
After five years through ten years
After ten years
Mortgage-backed/asset-backed securities

$

$

15

250.9
1,645.4
942.6
217.2
298.5
3,354.6

December 31, 2009
% of
Fair
Total
Value
(Dollars in millions)

% of
Total

7.5%
49.0
28.1
6.5
8.9
100.0%

7.2%
49.4
27.6
6.9
8.9
100.0%

$

$

254.1
1,739.2
974.1
244.3
312.5
3,524.2
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The majority of our mortgage-backed and asset-backed securities were acquired as a result of the acquisition of the LFG Underwriters on December 22, 2008. At December 31, 2009
all of our mortgage-backed and asset-backed securities are rated AAA. The mortgage-backed and asset-backed securities are made up of $177.9 million of agency mortgage-backed
securities, $79.6 million of collateralized mortgage obligations, $15.2 million of commercial mortgage-backed securities, and $39.8 million in asset-backed securities.
Expected maturities may differ from contractual maturities because certain borrowers have the right to call or prepay obligations with or without call or prepayment penalties.
Because of the potential for prepayment on mortgage-backed and asset-backed securities, they are not categorized by contractual maturity. Fixed maturity securities with an amortized cost of
$575.6 million and a fair value of $593.8 million were callable at December 31, 2009.
Our equity securities at December 31, 2009 and 2008 consisted of investments at a cost basis of $64.6 million and $79.8 million, respectively, and fair value of $92.5 million and
$71.5 million, respectively. The balance of equity securities at December 31, 2009 is primarily composed of an investment in FIS stock of $50.0 million, which we purchased on October 1,
2009, pursuant to an investment agreement between us and FIS dated March 31, 2009 in connection with a merger between FIS and Metavante Technologies, Inc. We are required to hold
this investment for a period of at least 6 months from the date of purchase in accordance with Securities and Exchange Commission Rule 144. The fair value of the FIS stock was
$75.4 million as of December 31, 2009. There were no significant investments in banks, trust or insurance companies at December 31, 2009 or 2008.
At December 31, 2009 and 2008, we also held $617.1 million and $644.5 million, respectively, in investments that are accounted for using the equity method of accounting,
principally our ownership interests in Sedgwick, Ceridian, and Remy (see note D of Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements).
Other long-term investments consist primarily of fixed-maturity structured notes as well as investments accounted for using the cost method of accounting. As of December 31, 2009,
other long-term investments included structured notes at a cost basis of $75 million and a fair value of $78.7 million at December 31, 2009, which we purchased in the third quarter of 2009.
Also included in other long-term investments were investments accounted for using the cost method of accounting of $24.8 million and $18.3 million, as of December 31, 2009 and 2008,
respectively.
Short-term investments, which consist primarily of securities purchased under agreements to resell, commercial paper and money market instruments which have an original maturity
of one year or less, are carried at amortized cost, which approximates fair value. As of December 31, 2009 and 2008, short-term investments amounted to $348.1 million and $788.4 million,
respectively.
Our investment results for the years ended December 31, 2009, 2008 and 2007 were as follows:

Net investment income(1)
Average invested assets
Effective return on average invested assets

2009

December 31,
2008
(Dollars in millions)

2007

$ 188.1
$4,288.8
4.4%

$ 153.8
$3,545.5
4.3%

$ 219.8
$4,415.0
5.0%

(1) Net investment income as reported in our Consolidated Statements of Operations has been adjusted in the presentation above to provide the tax equivalent yield on tax exempt
investments.
Loss Reserves
For information about our loss reserves, see Item 7. Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations — Critical Accounting Policies.
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Employees
As of January 31, 2010, we had approximately 17,200 full-time equivalent employees. From 2006 to 2008, we actively sought to reduce our head count as activity in our Fidelity
National Title Group segment declined. As the economic environment and order counts began to stabilize in 2009, we curtailed efforts to reduce staffing levels in our legacy title operations,
but aggressively reduced staff in the acquired LFG Underwriters to meet our intended profitability standards. We continue to monitor our staffing levels based on current economic activity.
We believe that our relations with employees are generally good. None of our employees are subject to collective bargaining agreements.
Statement Regarding Forward-Looking Information
The statements contained in this Form 10-K or in our other documents or in oral presentations or other statements made by our management that are not purely historical are forwardlooking statements within the meaning of Section 27A of the Securities Act of 1933 and Section 21E of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, including statements regarding our
expectations, hopes, intentions, or strategies regarding the future. These statements relate to, among other things, future financial and operating results of Fidelity. In many cases, you can
identify forward-looking statements by terminology such as “may,” “will,” “should,” “expect,” “plan,” “anticipate,” “believe,” “estimate,” “predict,” “potential,” or “continue,” or the
negative of these terms and other comparable terminology. Actual results could differ materially from those anticipated in these statements as a result of a number of factors, including, but
not limited to:
•

changes in general economic, business, and political conditions, including changes in the financial markets;

•

continued weakness or adverse changes in the level of real estate activity, which may be caused by, among other things, high or increasing interest rates, a limited supply of
mortgage funding, or a weak U.S. economy;

•

our potential inability to find suitable acquisition candidates, as well as the risks associated with acquisitions in lines of business that will not necessarily be limited to our
traditional areas of focus, or difficulties integrating acquisitions;

•

our dependence on distributions from our title insurance underwriters as our main source of cash flow;

•

significant competition that our operating subsidiaries face;

•

compliance with extensive government regulation of our operating subsidiaries and adverse changes in applicable laws or regulations or in their application by regulators;

•

regulatory investigations of the title insurance industry;

•

our business concentration in the State of California, the source of approximately 17.6% of our title insurance premiums; and

•

other risks detailed elsewhere in this document and in our other filings with the SEC.

We are not under any obligation (and expressly disclaim any such obligation) to update or alter our forward-looking statements, whether as a result of new information, future events
or otherwise. You should carefully consider the possibility that actual results may differ materially from our forward-looking statements.
Additional Information
Our website address is www.fnf.com. We make available free of charge on or through our website our Annual Report on Form 10-K, Quarterly Reports on Form 10-Q, Current
Reports on Form 8-K and all amendments to those reports filed or furnished pursuant to Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, as soon as reasonably
practicable after such material is electronically filed with or furnished to the Securities and Exchange Commission. However, the information found on our website is not part of this or any
other report.
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Item 1A.

Risk Factors

In addition to the normal risks of business, we are subject to significant risks and uncertainties, including those listed below and others described elsewhere in this Annual Report on
Form 10-K. Any of the risks described herein could result in a significant or material adverse effect on our results of operations or financial condition.
General
If adverse changes in the levels of real estate activity occur, our revenues may decline.
Title insurance revenue is closely related to the level of real estate activity which includes sales, mortgage financing and mortgage refinancing. The levels of real estate activity are
primarily affected by the average price of real estate sales, the availability of funds to finance purchases and mortgage interest rates. Both the volume and the average price of residential real
estate transactions have experienced declines in many parts of the country over the past 3 years, and these trends appear likely to continue. The volume of refinancing transactions in
particular and mortgage originations in general declined over the past four years from 2005 and prior levels, resulting in a reduction of revenues in our businesses.
We have found that residential real estate activity generally decreases in the following situations:
•

when mortgage interest rates are high or increasing;

•

when the mortgage funding supply is limited; and

•

when the United States economy is weak.

Declines in the level of real estate activity or the average price of real estate sales are likely to adversely affect our title insurance revenues. In 2009, the continued mortgage
delinquency and default rates caused negative operating results at a number of banks and financial institutions and, as a result, continue to suppress the level of lending activity. The MBA’s
Mortgage Finance Forecast currently estimates an approximately $1.3 trillion mortgage origination market for 2010, which would be a decrease of 39.5% from 2009. The MBA forecasts that
the 39.5% decrease will result almost entirely from decreased refinance activity. Our revenues in future periods will continue to be subject to these and other factors which are beyond our
control and, as a result, are likely to fluctuate.
We have recorded goodwill as a result of prior acquisitions, and a continued economic downturn could cause these balances to become impaired, requiring write-downs that would
reduce our operating income.
Goodwill aggregated approximately $1,455.2 million, or 18.3% of our total assets, as of December 31, 2009. Current accounting rules require that goodwill be assessed for
impairment at least annually or whenever changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable from estimated future cash flows. Factors that may be
considered a change in circumstance indicating the carrying value of our intangible assets, including goodwill, may not be recoverable include, but are not limited to, significant
underperformance relative to historical or projected future operating results, a significant decline in our stock price and market capitalization, and negative industry or economic trends. No
goodwill impairment charge was recorded in 2009. However, if there is a continued economic downturn, the carrying amount of our goodwill may no longer be recoverable, and we may be
required to record an impairment charge, which would have a negative impact on our results of operations and financial condition. We will continue to monitor our market capitalization and
the impact of a continued economic downturn on our business to determine if there is an impairment of goodwill in future periods.
If economic and credit market conditions further deteriorate, it could have a material adverse impact on our investment portfolio.
Our investment portfolio is exposed to economic and financial market risks, including changes in interest rates, credit markets and prices of marketable equity and fixed-income
securities. Our investment policy is designed to maximize total return through investment income and capital appreciation consistent with moderate risk of principal, while providing
adequate liquidity and complying with internal and regulatory guidelines. To achieve this objective, our marketable debt investments are primarily investment grade, liquid,
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fixed-income securities and money market instruments denominated in U.S. dollars. We also make investments in certain equity securities in order to take advantage of perceived value and
for strategic purposes. In the past, economic and credit market conditions have adversely affected the ability of some issuers of investment securities to repay their obligations and have
affected the values of investment securities. If the carrying value of our investments exceeds the fair value, and the decline in fair value is deemed to be other-than-temporary, we will be
required to write down the value of our investments, which could have a material negative impact on our results of operations and financial condition.
If we experience changes in the rate or severity of title insurance claims, it may be necessary for us to record additional charges to our claim loss reserve. This may result in lower
net earnings and the potential for earnings volatility.
By their nature, claims are often complex, vary greatly in dollar amounts and are affected by economic and market conditions and the legal environment existing at the time of
settlement of the claims. Estimating future title loss payments is difficult because of the complex nature of title claims, the long periods of time over which claims are paid, significantly
varying dollar amounts of individual claims and other factors. From time to time, we experience large losses or an overall worsening of our loss payment experience in regard to the
frequency or severity of claims that makes us record additional charges to our claims loss reserve. There are currently pending several large claims which we believe can be defended
successfully without material loss payments. However, if unanticipated material payments are required to settle these claims, it could result in or contribute to additional charges to our claim
loss reserves. These loss events are unpredictable and adversely affect our earnings.
At each quarter end, our recorded reserve for claim losses is initially the result of taking the prior recorded reserve for claim losses, adding the current provision to that balance and
subtracting actual paid claims from that balance, resulting in an amount that management then compares to the actuarial point estimate provided in the actuarial calculation. Due to the
uncertainty and judgment used by both management and our actuary, our ultimate liability may be greater or less than our current reserves and/or our actuary’s calculation. If the recorded
amount is within a reasonable range of the actuary’s point estimate, but not at the point estimate, management assesses other factors in order to determine our best estimate. These factors,
which are more qualitative than quantitative, can change from period to period and include items such as current trends in the real estate industry (which management can assess, but for
which there is a time lag in the development of the data used by our actuary), any adjustments from the actuarial estimates needed for the effects of unusually large or small claims,
improvements in our claims management processes, and other cost saving measures. Depending upon our assessment of these factors, we may or may not adjust the recorded reserve. If the
recorded amount is not within a reasonable range of the actuary’s point estimate, we would record a charge or credit and reassess the provision rate on a go forward basis.
As a result of favorable claim loss development on prior policy years, we recorded a credit in 2009 of $74.4 million ($47.1 million net of income taxes) to our provision for claim
losses. As a result of adverse claim loss development on prior policy years, we recorded charges in 2008 totaling $261.6 million ($157.0 million net of income taxes), in our provision for
claim losses. These amounts were recorded in addition to our average provision for claim losses of 7.25% and 8.5%, in 2009 and 2008, respectively, of title premiums. We will reassess the
provision to be recorded in future periods consistent with this methodology and can make no assurance that we will not need to record additional charges in the future to increase reserves in
respect of prior periods.
Our insurance subsidiaries must comply with extensive regulations. These regulations may increase our costs or impede or impose burdensome conditions on actions that we might
seek to take to increase the revenues of those subsidiaries.
Our insurance businesses are subject to extensive regulation by state insurance authorities in each state in which they operate. These agencies have broad administrative and
supervisory power relating to the following, among other matters:
•

licensing requirements;

•

trade and marketing practices;
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•

accounting and financing practices;

•

capital and surplus requirements;

•

the amount of dividends and other payments made by insurance subsidiaries;

•

investment practices;

•

rate schedules;

•

deposits of securities for the benefit of policyholders;

•

establishing reserves; and

•

regulation of reinsurance.

Most states also regulate insurance holding companies like us with respect to acquisitions, changes of control and the terms of transactions with our affiliates. State regulations may
impede or impose burdensome conditions on our ability to increase or maintain rate levels or on other actions that we may want to take to enhance our operating results. In addition, we may
incur significant costs in the course of complying with regulatory requirements. Further, at least one state legislature (New York) has recently proposed taking over the title industry in that
state and making it a state-run agency, as a means to increase state government revenues. Although we think any such takeover is unlikely, if one or more such takeovers were to occur they
could adversely affect our business. We cannot be assured that future legislative or regulatory changes will not adversely affect our business operations. See “Item 1. Business
— Regulation.”
State regulation of the rates we charge for title insurance could adversely affect our results of operations.
Our title insurance subsidiaries are subject to extensive rate regulation by the applicable state agencies in the jurisdictions in which they operate. Title insurance rates are regulated
differently in the various states, with some states requiring the subsidiaries to file and receive approval of rates before such rates become effective and some states promulgating the rates that
can be charged. In almost all states in which our title subsidiaries operate, our rates must not be excessive, inadequate or unfairly discriminatory. See also the risk factor below relating to
regulatory conditions in California.
Regulatory investigations of the insurance industry may lead to fines, settlements, new regulation or legal uncertainty, which could negatively affect our results of operations.
We receive inquiries and requests for information from state insurance departments, attorneys general and other regulatory agencies from time to time about various matters relating
to our business. Sometimes these take the form of civil investigative subpoenas. We attempt to cooperate with all such inquiries. From time to time, we are assessed fines for violations of
regulations or other matters or enter into settlements with such authorities which require us to pay money or take other actions. These fines may be significant and actions we are required to
take may adversely affect our business.
Because we are dependent upon California for approximately 17.6 percent of our title insurance premiums, our business may be adversely affected by regulatory conditions in
California.
California is the largest source of revenue for the title insurance industry and, in 2009, California-based premiums accounted for 25% of premiums earned by our direct operations
and 6% of our agency premium revenues. In the aggregate, California accounted for approximately 17.6% of our total title insurance premiums for 2009. A significant part of our revenues
and profitability are therefore subject to our operations in California and to the prevailing regulatory conditions in California. Adverse regulatory developments in California, which could
include reductions in the maximum rates permitted to be charged, inadequate rate increases or more fundamental changes in the design or implementation of the California title insurance
regulatory framework, could have a material adverse effect on our results of operations and financial condition.
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If the rating agencies downgrade our Company, our results of operations and competitive position in the title insurance industry may suffer.
Ratings have always been an important factor in establishing the competitive position of insurance companies. Our title insurance subsidiaries are rated by S&P, Moody’s, A.M. Best,
and Demotech. Ratings reflect the opinion of a rating agency with regard to an insurance company’s or insurance holding company’s financial strength, operating performance and ability to
meet its obligations to policyholders and are not evaluations directed to investors. Our ratings are subject to continued periodic review by rating agencies and the continued retention of those
ratings cannot be assured. If our ratings are reduced from their current levels by those entities, our results of operations could be adversely affected.
Our management has articulated a willingness to seek growth through acquisitions in lines of business that will not necessarily be limited to our traditional areas of focus or
geographic areas. This expansion of our business subjects us to associated risks, such as the diversion of management’s attention and lack of experience in operating such
businesses, and may affect our credit and ability to repay our debt.
Our management has stated that we may make acquisitions in lines of business that are not directly tied to or synergistic with our core operating segments. Accordingly, we have in
the past acquired, and may in the future acquire, businesses in industries or geographic areas with which management is less familiar than we are with our core businesses. These activities
involve risks that could adversely affect our operating results, such as diversion of management’s attention and lack of substantial experience in operating such businesses. There can be no
guarantee that we will not enter into transactions or make acquisitions that will cause us to incur additional debt, increase our exposure to market and other risks and cause our credit or
financial strength ratings to decline.
We are a holding company and depend on distributions from our subsidiaries for cash.
We are a holding company whose primary assets are the securities of our operating subsidiaries. Our ability to pay interest on our outstanding debt and our other obligations and to
pay dividends is dependent on the ability of our subsidiaries to pay dividends or make other distributions or payments to us. If our operating subsidiaries are not able to pay dividends to us,
we may not be able to meet our obligations or pay dividends on our common stock.
Our title insurance and specialty insurance subsidiaries must comply with state laws which require them to maintain minimum amounts of working capital, surplus and reserves, and
place restrictions on the amount of dividends that they can distribute to us. Compliance with these laws will limit the amounts our regulated subsidiaries can dividend to us. During 2010, our
title insurers will be able to pay dividends or make distributions to us without prior regulatory approval of approximately $289.4 million.
The maximum dividend permitted by law is not necessarily indicative of an insurer’s actual ability to pay dividends, which may be constrained by business and regulatory
considerations, such as the impact of dividends on surplus, which could affect an insurer’s ratings or competitive position, the amount of premiums that can be written and the ability to pay
future dividends. Further, depending on business and regulatory conditions, we may in the future need to retain cash in our underwriters or even contribute cash to one or more of them in
order to maintain their ratings or their statutory capital position. Such a requirement could be the result of investment losses, reserve charges, adverse operating conditions in the current
economic environment or changes in interpretation of statutory accounting requirements by regulators.
Our specialty insurance segment is a smaller operation; and as a result, it is unlikely to be a significant source of dividends to us in 2010.
We could have conflicts with FIS, and our chairman of our Board of Directors and other officers and directors could have conflicts of interest due to their relationships with FIS.
FIS and FNF were under common ownership by another publicly traded company, also called Fidelity National Financial, Inc. (“Old FNF”) until October 2006, when Old FNF
distributed all of its FNF shares to the stockholders of Old FNF. In November 2006, Old FNF then merged into FIS.
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Conflicts may arise between us and FIS as a result of our ongoing agreements and the nature of our respective businesses. We are party to a number of agreements with FIS, and we
may enter into further agreements with FIS. Certain of our executive officers and directors could be subject to conflicts of interest with respect to such agreements and other matters due to
their relationships with FIS.
Some of our executive officers and directors own substantial amounts of FIS stock and stock options. Such ownership could create or appear to create potential conflicts of interest
when our directors and officers are faced with decisions that involve FIS or any of its subsidiaries.
William P. Foley, II, is the chairman of our Board of Directors and the executive Chairman of the Board of FIS. As a result of these roles, he has obligations to us and FIS and may
have conflicts of interest with respect to matters potentially or actually involving or affecting our and FIS’s respective businesses. In addition, Mr. Foley may also have conflicts of time with
respect to his multiple responsibilities. If his duties to either of these companies require more time than Mr. Foley is able to allot, then his oversight of that company’s activities could be
diminished. Finally, FIS and FNF have overlapping directors and officers.
Matters that could give rise to conflicts between us and FIS include, among other things:
•

our ongoing and future relationships with FIS, including related party agreements and other arrangements with respect to the information technology support services,
administrative corporate support and cost sharing services, indemnification, and other matters; and

•

the quality and pricing of services that we have agreed to provide to FIS or that it has agreed to provide to us.

We seek to manage these potential conflicts through dispute resolution and other provisions of our agreements with FIS and through oversight by independent members of our Board
of Directors. However, there can be no assurance that such measures will be effective or that we will be able to resolve all potential conflicts with FIS, or that the resolution of any such
conflicts will be no less favorable to us than if we were dealing with a third party.
Item 1B.

Unresolved Staff Comments

During the first quarter of 2010, we received a comment from the SEC on our periodic disclosure filings requesting information as to our determination that realization of an
insurance recoverable balance that was written off at September 30, 2009 was recoverable as of the end of prior periods. The amount written off during the quarter ended September 30, 2009
was $63.2 million. We are in the process of responding to the SEC’s comment.
Item 2.

Properties

We have our corporate headquarters on our campus in Jacksonville, Florida, which we lease from our former affiliate, Lender Processing Services (“LPS”). The majority of our
branch offices are leased from third parties (see note L to Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements). Our subsidiaries conduct their business operations primarily in leased office space in
43 states, Washington, DC, Puerto Rico, Canada, and Mexico.
Item 3.

Legal Proceedings

In the ordinary course of business, we are involved in various pending and threatened litigation matters related to our operations, some of which include claims for punitive or
exemplary damages. This customary litigation includes but is not limited to a wide variety of cases arising out of or related to title and escrow claims, for which we make provisions through
our loss reserves. We believe that no actions, other than those listed below, depart from customary litigation incidental to our business. As background to the disclosure below, please note the
following:
•

These matters raise difficult and complicated factual and legal issues and are subject to many uncertainties and complexities, including but not limited to the underlying facts of
each matter, novel legal issues, variations between jurisdictions in which matters are being litigated, differences in
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applicable laws and judicial interpretations, the length of time before many of these matters might be resolved by settlement or through litigation and, in some cases, the timing of
their resolutions relative to other similar cases brought against other companies, the fact that many of these matters are putative class actions in which a class has not been
certified and in which the purported class may not be clearly defined, the fact that many of these matters involve multi-state class actions in which the applicable law for the
claims at issue is in dispute and therefore unclear, and the current challenging legal environment faced by large corporations and insurance companies.
•

In these matters, plaintiffs seek a variety of remedies including equitable relief in the form of injunctive and other remedies and monetary relief in the form of compensatory
damages. In most cases, the monetary damages sought include punitive or treble damages. Often more specific information beyond the type of relief sought is not available
because plaintiffs have not requested more specific relief in their court pleadings. In addition, the dollar amount of damages sought is frequently not stated with specificity. In
those cases where plaintiffs have made a statement with regard to monetary damages, they often specify damages either just above or below a jurisdictional limit regardless of the
facts of the case. These limits represent either the jurisdictional threshold for bringing a case in federal court or the maximum they can seek without risking removal from state
court to federal court. In our experience, monetary demands in plaintiffs’ court pleadings bear little relation to the ultimate loss, if any, that we may experience. None of the cases
described below includes a statement as to the dollar amount of damages demanded. Instead, each of the cases includes a demand in an amount to be proved at trial.

•

For the reasons specified above, it is not possible to make meaningful estimates of the amount or range of loss that could result from these matters at this time. We review these
matters on an ongoing basis when making accrual and disclosure decisions. When assessing reasonably possible and probable outcomes, management bases its decision on its
assessment of the ultimate outcome following all appeals.

•

We intend to vigorously defend each of these matters. In the opinion of our management, while some of these matters may be material to our operating results for any particular
period if an unfavorable outcome results, none will have a material adverse effect on our overall financial condition.

There are class actions pending against several title insurance companies, including Security Union Title Insurance Company, Fidelity National Title Insurance Company, Chicago
Title Insurance Company, Ticor Title Insurance Company of Florida, Commonwealth Land Title Insurance Company, Lawyers Title Insurance Corporation, and Ticor Title Insurance
Company, alleging improper premiums were charged for title insurance. These cases allege that the named defendant companies failed to provide notice of premium discounts to consumers
refinancing their mortgages, and/or failed to give discounts in refinancing transactions in violation of the filed rates. These cases include:
Arizona
•

Ramirez v. Fidelity National Title Insurance Company, filed on March 27, 2009, in Pima County Superior Court, State of Arizona

Connecticut
•

Mahon v. Chicago Title Insurance Company, Ticor Title Insurance Company, and Ticor Title Insurance Company of Florida, filed on April 28, 2009, in the U.S. District Court for
the District of Connecticut

•

Bleich v. Chicago Title Insurance Company, filed on June 5, 2007, in the Circuit Court for Miami Dade County, State of Florida

•

Chereskin v. Fidelity National Title Insurance Company of New York, filed on September 21, 2004, in the Circuit Court for Nassau County, State of Florida

Florida
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•

Figueroa v. Fidelity National Title Insurance Company, filed on April 20, 2004, in the Circuit Court for Miami Dade County, State of Florida

•

Grosso v. Fidelity National Title Insurance Company of New York, filed on August 24, 2004, in the Circuit Court for Broward County, State of Florida

•

Higgins v. Commonwealth Land Title Insurance Company, filed on September 20, 2004, in the Circuit Court of Nassau County, State of Florida

•

Turner v. Chicago Title Insurance Company, filed on November 10, 2004, in the Circuit Court for Nassau County, State of Florida

Kentucky
•

Tenhundfeld v. Chicago Title Insurance Company, filed on February 15, 2007, in the United States District Court for the Eastern District of Kentucky

Michigan
•

Corwin v. Lawyers Title Insurance Corporation, filed October 2, 2009, in the U.S. District Court for the Eastern District of Michigan

•

Hoving v. Transnation Title Insurance Company, filed December 13, 2007, in the U.S. District Court for the Eastern District of Michigan

New Hampshire
•

Carberry v. Commonwealth Land Title Insurance Company, filed April 10, 2008, in the Stafford County Superior Court, State of New Hampshire

•

Fitzpatrick v. Chicago Title Insurance Company, filed July 23, 2009, in the Hillsborough County Superior Court, State of New Hampshire

New Jersey
•

Charles v. Lawyers Title Insurance Corporation, filed May 24, 2006, in the U.S. District Court for the District of New Jersey

New Mexico
•

Woodard v. Fidelity National Financial, filed December 7, 2006, in the U.S. District Court for the District of New Mexico

New York
•

Partell v. Lawyers Title Insurance Corporation, filed February 26, 2008, in the U.S. District Court for the Western District of New York

•

Dubin v. Security Union Title Insurance Company, filed on March 12, 2003, in the Court of Common Pleas, Cuyahoga County, Ohio

•

Macula v. Lawyers Title Insurance Corporation, filed May 25, 2007, in the U.S. District Court for the Northern District of Ohio, Eastern District

•

Randleman v. Fidelity National Title Insurance Company, filed on February 15, 2006 in the U.S. District Court for the Northern District of Ohio, Western Division

Ohio
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Pennsylvania
•

Alberton v. Commonwealth Land Title Insurance Company filed on July 24, 2006 in the United States District Court of the Eastern District of Pennsylvania

•

Cahall v. Fidelity National Title Insurance Company and Fidelity National Title Insurance Company of New York, filed on January 2, 2008, in the U.S. District Court for the
Eastern District of Pennsylvania

•

Cohen v. Chicago Title Insurance Company, filed on January 27, 2006 in the Court of Common Pleas of Philadelphia County, Pennsylvania

•

Coleman v. Commonwealth Land Title Insurance Company, filed February 18, 2009, in the U.S. District Court for the Eastern District of Pennsylvania

•

DeCooman v. Lawyers Title Insurance Corporation, filed on August 12, 2005 in the Court of Common Pleas of Allegheny County, Pennsylvania

•

Guizarri v. Ticor Title Insurance Company, filed on October 17, 2006 in the U.S. District Court for the Eastern District of Pennsylvania

•

O’Day v. Ticor Title Insurance Company of Florida, filed on October 18, 2006 in the U.S. District Court for the Eastern District of Pennsylvania

•

Patterson v. Fidelity National Title Insurance Company of New York, filed on October 27, 2003 in the Court of Common Pleas of Allegheny County, Pennsylvania

•

Schwartz v. Lawyers Title Insurance Company, filed February 26, 2009, in the U.S. District Court for the Eastern District of Pennsylvania

•

Hancock v. Chicago Title Insurance Company, filed on August 22, 2007; filed in the United States District Court for the Northern District of Texas

•

Chapman v. Commonwealth Land Title Insurance Company, filed on January 29, 2009; filed in the United States District Court for the Northern District of Texas

•

Patino v. Lawyers Title Insurance Corporation, filed August 16, 2006, in the U.S. District Court for the Northern District of Texas, Dallas Division

•

Walker v. Fidelity National Title Insurance Company, filed October 21, 2009, in the U.S. District Court for the Northern District of Texas, Dallas Division

Texas

In February 2008, thirteen putative class actions were commenced against several title insurance companies, including Fidelity National Title Insurance Company, Chicago
Title Insurance Company, Security Union Title Insurance Company, Alamo Title Insurance Company, Ticor Title Insurance Company of Florida, Commonwealth Land Title Insurance
Company, LandAmerica New Jersey Title Insurance Company (now Continental Title Insurance Company), Lawyers Title Insurance Corporation, Transnation Title Insurance Company
(which has merged into Lawyers Title Insurance Corporation), and Ticor Title Insurance Company (collectively, the “Fidelity Affiliates”). The complaints also name Fidelity National
Financial, Inc. (together with the Fidelity Affiliates, the “Fidelity Defendants”) as a defendant based on its ownership of the Fidelity Affiliates. The complaints, which are brought on behalf
of a putative class of consumers who purchased title insurance in New York, allege that the defendants conspired to inflate rates for title insurance through the Title Insurance Rate Service
Association, Inc. (“TIRSA”), a New York State-approved rate service organization which is also named as a defendant. Each of the complaints asserts a cause of action under the Sherman
Act and several of the complaints include claims under the Real Estate Settlement Procedures Act as well as New York State statutory and common law claims. The complaints seek
monetary damages, including treble damages, as well as injunctive relief. Subsequently, similar complaints were filed in many federal courts. There are numerous complaints pending
alleging that the Fidelity Defendants conspired with their competitors to unlawfully inflate rates for title insurance in every major market in the United States. A motion was filed
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before the Multidistrict Litigation Panel to consolidate and/or coordinate these actions in the United States District Court in the Southern District of New York. However, that motion was
denied. Where there are multiple cases in one state they have been consolidated before one district court judge in each state and scheduled for the filing of consolidated complaints and
motion practice. In 2009, the complaints filed in Texas and New York were dismissed with prejudice, but the plaintiffs have appealed. On February 11, 2010, the Second Circuit Court of
Appeals in a summary opinion affirmed the dismissal of the complaint in so far as it alleged antitrust violations. A count of the complaint alleging RESPA violations remains, however the
Company believes it is meritless and will be dismissed on motion. The complaints in Arkansas and Washington were dismissed with leave to amend, but the plaintiffs have not amended. The
complaint in California was dismissed with leave to amend, the plaintiffs have amended, and the companies have moved to dismiss the amended complaint and the court denied the motion.
The case will proceed on a state consumer protection cause of action. The complaint in Delaware was dismissed, but the plaintiffs were permitted to amend to state a claim for injunctive
relief. The plaintiffs amended, and the defendants have moved to dismiss the amended complaint. The damage claims in the Pennsylvania cases were dismissed, but the plaintiffs were
permitted to pursue injunctive relief. The plaintiffs were permitted limited discovery and a schedule for summary judgment briefing after the first of the year has been set. The magistrate has
recommended that the Ohio complaint be dismissed. On December 17, 2009 the District Court judge heard motions on the recommendation, and permitted the filing of additional briefs on
January 25, 2010. On February 2, 2010, the District Court judge recused himself, and the matter has been transferred to a new judge. In New Jersey, the Company’s motion to dismiss the
amended complaint remains under submission. In West Virginia, the case has been placed on the inactive list pending the resolution of the LandAmerica bankruptcy. The complaints filed in
Florida and Massachusetts were all voluntarily dismissed. These cases include:
Arkansas
•

Classic Homes and Development, LLC v. Fidelity National Title Insurance Company, filed on March 19, 2008, in the Eastern District of Arkansas

California
•

In re California Title Insurance Litigation, filed on March 10, 2008, in the Northern District of California

Delaware
•

McCray, et al. v. Fidelity National Title Insurance Company, et al., filed on October 15, 2008, in the District of Delaware

New Jersey
•

In re New Jersey Title Insurance Litigation, filed on March 19, 2008, in the District of New Jersey

New York
•

Dolan, et al. v. Fidelity National Title Insurance Company, et al. (consolidated New York Actions), filed on February 1, 2008, in the Eastern District of New York

•

In re Title Insurance Antitrust Cases, filed March 18, 2008, in the Northern District of Ohio

Ohio

Pennsylvania
•

In re Pennsylvania Title Insurance Antitrust Litigation (consolidated), filed on August 22, 2008, in the Eastern District of Pennsylvania
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Texas
•

Winn, et al. v. Alamo Title Insurance Company, et al., filed on April 3, 2008, in the Eastern District of Texas

Washington
•

In re Washington Title Insurance Price Fixing Litigation, filed on March 10, 2008, in the Western District of Washington

West Virginia
•

Backel, et al. v. Fidelity National Title Insurance Company, et al., filed on March 20, 2008, in the Southern District of West Virginia

On September 24, 2007 a third party complaint was filed in the In Re Ameriquest Mortgage Lending Practices Litigation in the United States District Court for the Northern District
of Illinois by Ameriquest Mortgage Company (“Ameriquest”) and Argent Mortgage Company (“Argent”) against numerous title insurers and agents (the “Title Insurer Defendants”),
including Chicago Title Company, Fidelity National Title Company, Fidelity National Title Insurance Company, American Pioneer Title Insurance Company (now known as Ticor
Title Insurance Company of Florida), Chicago Title of Michigan, Fidelity National Title Insurance Company of New York, Transnation Title Insurance Company (now known as Lawyers
Title Insurance Corporation), Commonwealth Land Title Insurance Company, Commonwealth Land Title Company, Lawyers Title Insurance Corporation, Chicago Title Insurance Company,
Alamo Title Company, and Ticor Title Insurance Company (collectively, the “FNF Affiliates”). The third party complaint alleges that Ameriquest and Argent have been sued by a class of
borrowers (and by numerous persons who have preemptively opted out of any class that may be certified) alleging that the two lenders violated the Truth in Lending Act (“TILA”) by failing
to comply with the notice of right to cancel provisions and making misrepresentations in lending to the borrowers, who now seek money damages. In the third party complaint, Ameriquest
and Argent each alleges that the FNF Affiliates contracted and warranted to close these loans in conformity with the lender’s instructions which correctly followed the requirements of TILA
and contained no misrepresentations; therefore, if Ameriquest and Argent are liable to the class or to the opt-out plaintiffs, then the FNF Affiliates are liable to them for failing to close the
lending transactions as agreed. Ameriquest and Argent seek to recover the cost of resolving the class action and other cases against them including their attorney’s fees and costs in the
action. The Title Insurer Defendants organized to form a defense group and, as requested by the court, are exploring the possibility of filing a single collective response. The Seventh Circuit,
in which circuit these matters are pending, ruled in a separate case that TILA violations as alleged in these complaints could not be the subject of a class action seeking rescission, though the
plaintiffs in the case against Ameriquest and Argent have not yet sought class certification and so the court in their case has not yet ruled on the applicability of the Court of Appeals’
decision (which, in any event, would not affect the cases of individual plaintiffs). Ameriquest filed its fifth amended third party complaint against the defendants, and the Title Insurer
Defendants moved to dismiss. On January 19, 2010 the court granted the motion as to the negligence claims, but denied the motion as to the contract claims and negligent misrepresentation
claims. The Title Insurer Defendants will answer the Fifth Amended complaint.
There are class actions pending against Fidelity National Financial, Inc., Fidelity National Title Group and several title insurance companies, including Fidelity National
Title Insurance Company, Chicago Title Insurance Company, Lawyers Title Insurance Corporation, Transnation Title Insurance Company (which has merged into Lawyers Title Insurance
Corporation), United Title Company, Inc., and Ticor Title Insurance Company, alleging overcharges for government recording fees. These cases allege that the named defendant companies
charged fees in excess of the fees charged by government entities in closing transactions and charged for documents releasing encumbrances that were never recorded by us. These suits seek
various remedies including compensatory damages, prejudgment interest, punitive damages and attorney’s fees. One case filed in Missouri (Hartis) in the summer of 2008 but removed to the
Federal District Court in Missouri, seeks to certify a national class against Chicago Title Insurance Company. Although the Federal District Court
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in Kansas refused to certify a national class previously filed by the same plaintiff’s attorneys, this suit seeks to overcome that Court’s objections to certification. In September 2009, we filed
a motion to deny class certification. And, although similar cases filed in Indiana were decertified by the appellate court and trial court, the Missouri courts have refused to decertify a case
now pending, which has been assigned to a judge and set for trial on March 1, 2010. On January 26, 2009, a recording fee class action was filed in New Jersey. On January 30, 2009, the
court granted the named defendants’ motion for summary judgment in the recording fee class action in the Federal District Court in Texas, which alleged recording fee overcharges in five
states. The plaintiff has appealed this decision and oral argument was heard in the Fifth Circuit Court of Appeals on November 2, 2009. On January 15, 2010, the Fifth Circuit Court of
Appeals affirmed the Federal District Court’s decision to grant the named defendants’ motion for summary judgment (Arevalo). These cases include:
Colorado
•

Halpin v. United Title Company, Inc., filed on January 25, 2008, in the Boulder County District Court, Colorado

Missouri
•

Hartis v. Chicago Title Insurance Company, filed on August 21, 2008, in the U.S. District Court for the Western District of Missouri

•

Krause v. Chicago Title Insurance Company, filed on September 2, 2005, in the Circuit Court of Jackson County, Kansas City, Missouri

New Jersey
•

Chassen v. Fidelity National Financial, et al. filed in the U.S. District Court for the District of New Jersey

•

Arevalo v. Chicago Title Insurance Company and Ticor Title Insurance Company, filed on March 24, 2006, in the U.S. District Court for the Western District of Texas,
San Antonio Division

Texas

There are class actions pending against Fidelity National Title Company, Fidelity National Title Company of Washington, Inc., and Chicago Title Insurance Company, alleging that
the named defendants in each case charged unnecessary reconveyance fees without performing any separate service for those fees which was not already included as a service for the “escrow
fee.” Additionally, the Cornelius case alleges that the named defendants wrongfully earned interest or other benefits on escrowed funds from the time funds were deposited into escrow until
any disbursement checks cleared the account. Motions for class certification were filed in both of these cases, and the Company then moved for summary judgment in both cases and to
continue the briefing of the class certification motions until the summary judgment motions were determined. Both courts granted the motions to continue class certification briefing until the
summary judgment motions were determined and those motions are now fully briefed and submitted. These cases are:
•

Bushbeck, et al. v. Chicago Title Insurance Company, filed on May 14, 2008, in the U.S. District Court for the Western District of Washington

•

Cornelius, et al. v. Fidelity National Title Insurance Company, filed on May 14, 2008, in the U.S. District Court for the Western District of Washington

A class action has been filed in state court in Hawaii against Fidelity National Title and Escrow of Hawaii, Inc. alleging the Company wrongfully released funds from escrow thereby
engaging in unfair or deceptive trade practices in violation of state statute. The suit seeks damages, treble damages, prejudgment interest, attorney’s fees and costs. We answered the
complaint and are investigating the allegations informally and through discovery. The case filed is Cynthia A. Smith Berg, et al. v. Fidelity National Title and Escrow of Hawaii, Inc. filed
December 1, 2009 in the Circuit Court of the Fifth Circuit, State of Hawaii.
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A class action filed in District Court in Nevada has been amended to allege a cause of action for breach of fiduciary duty in handling escrows against Commonwealth Land
Title Insurance Company and Fidelity National Title Agency of Nevada, Inc. The complaint seeks compensatory and punitive damages and attorney’s fees. We are investigating the
allegations and have moved for a more definite statement of the allegations against it, which was opposed by plaintiffs and is now fully briefed and submitted. The case filed is Frank Taddeo,
et al. v. American Invsco Corporation, Second Amended Complaint filed October 15, 2009 in the United States District Court, District of Nevada.
On December 3, 2007, a former title officer in California filed a putative class action suit against Lawyers Title Company, and LandAmerica Financial Group, Inc (collectively, the
“Defendants”). The lawsuits were later amended to include Commonwealth Land Title Company and Commonwealth Land Title Insurance Company as defendants in the Superior Court of
California for Los Angeles County. A similar putative class action was filed against the Defendants by former escrow officers in California, in the same court on December 12, 2007. The
plaintiffs’ complaints in both lawsuits allege failure to pay overtime and other related violations of the California Labor Code, as well as unfair business practices under the California
Business and Professions Code § 17200 on behalf of all current and former California title and escrow officers. The underlying basis for both lawsuits is an alleged misclassification of title
and escrow officers as “exempt” employees for purposes of the California Labor Code, which resulted in a failure to pay overtime and provide for required meal and rest breaks. Although
such employees were reclassified as “non-exempt” beginning on January 1, 2006, the complaints allege similar violations of the California Labor Code even after that date for alleged
“off-the-clock” work. The plaintiffs’ complaints in both cases demand an unspecified amount of back wages, statutory penalties, declaratory and injunctive relief, punitive damages, interest,
and attorneys’ fees and costs. The plaintiffs have yet to file a motion for class certification, as the parties have agreed to mediation. A mediation date has not yet been set. Should further
litigation prove necessary following the mediation, the Defendants believe that they have meritorious defenses both to class certification and to liability. These cases are:
•

Chaffin v. Lawyers Title Company and LandAmerica Financial Group, Inc., filed on December 3, 2007 in the Superior Court for Los Angeles County

•

Hay v. Lawyers Title Company and LandAmerica Financial Group, Inc., filed on December 12, 2007 in the Superior Court for Los Angeles County

The Georgia Insurance Commissioner and the Company are engaged in discussions regarding market conduct matters involving rates, closing protection letters and the licensing of
agents. Closing protection letters are standardized indemnity agreements given to individually named lenders and specify conditions under, and the extent to which, a title insurer will accept
liability for the acts or omissions of its agents connected with the closing of insured real estate transactions. These discussions are in the early stage and we do not know the impact the
outcome thereof will have on the Company, if any.
Various governmental entities are studying the title insurance product, market, pricing, business practices, and potential regulatory and legislative changes. We receive inquiries and
requests for information from state insurance departments, attorneys general and other regulatory agencies from time to time about various matters relating to our business. Sometimes these
take the form of civil investigative subpoenas or market conduct examinations. We attempt to cooperate with all such inquiries. From time to time, we are assessed fines for violations of
regulations or other matters or enter into settlements with such authorities which require us to pay money or take other actions.
Item 4.

Submission of Matters to a Vote of Security Holders
None.
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PART II
Item 5.

Market for Registrant’s Common Equity, Related Stockholder Matters and Issuer Purchases of Equity Securities

Our common stock is traded on the New York Stock Exchange under the symbol “FNF”. The following table shows, for the periods indicated, the high and low sales prices of our
common stock, as reported by the New York Stock Exchange, and the amounts of dividends per share declared on our common stock.
Cash Dividends
Declared

High

Low

Year ended December 31, 2009
First quarter
Second quarter
Third quarter
Fourth quarter

$20.51
22.85
16.76
17.00

$14.20
11.97
12.45
13.11

$0.15
0.15
0.15
0.15

Year ended December 31, 2008
First quarter
Second quarter
Third quarter
Fourth quarter

$20.96
19.17
18.19
18.51

$12.60
12.56
11.93
6.66

$0.30
0.30
0.30
0.15
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PERFORMANCE GRAPH
Set forth below is a graph comparing cumulative total stockholder return on our common stock against the cumulative total return on the S & P 500 Index and against the cumulative
total return of a peer group index consisting of certain companies in the primary industry in which we compete (SIC code 6361 — Title Insurance) for the period ending December 31, 2009.
This peer group consists of the following companies: First American Corporation and Stewart Information Services Corp. The peer group comparison has been weighted based on our stock
market capitalization. The graph assumes an initial investment of $100.00 on October 18, 2005, with dividends reinvested over the periods indicated.
Comparison of 5 Year Cumulative Total Returns
Among Fidelity National Financial, Inc., the S&P 500 Index
and a Peer Group

ASSUMES $100 INVESTED ON OCTOBER 18, 2005
ASSUMES DIVIDENDS REINVESTED
FISCAL YEAR ENDING DECEMBER 31, 2009
On February 1, 2010 the last reported sale price of our common stock on the New York Stock Exchange was $12.80 per share. As of January 31, 2010, we had approximately 5,995
stockholders of record.
On February 3, 2010, our Board of Directors formally declared a $0.15 per share cash dividend that is payable on March 31, 2010 to stockholders of record as of March 17, 2010.
Our current dividend policy anticipates the payment of quarterly dividends in the future. The declaration and payment of dividends will be at the discretion of our Board of Directors
and will be dependent upon our future earnings, financial condition and capital requirements. Our ability to declare dividends is subject to restrictions under our existing credit agreement. We
do not believe the restrictions contained in our credit agreement will, in the foreseeable future, adversely affect our ability to pay cash dividends at the current dividend rate.
Since we are a holding company, our ability to pay dividends will depend largely on the ability of our subsidiaries to pay dividends to us, and the ability of our title insurance
subsidiaries to do so is subject to, among other factors, their compliance with applicable insurance regulations. As of December 31, 2009, $2,435.3 million of our net assets are restricted
from dividend payments without prior approval from the Departments of Insurance in the States where our title insurance subsidiaries are domiciled. During 2010, our directly owned title
insurance subsidiaries can pay dividends or make distributions to us of approximately
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$289.4 million without prior approval. The limits placed on such subsidiaries’ abilities to pay dividends affect our ability to pay dividends.
On October 25, 2006, our Board of Directors approved a three-year stock repurchase program under which we can repurchase up to 25 million shares of our common stock. On
July 21, 2009, our Board of Directors approved a new three-year stock repurchase program under which we can repurchase up to 15 million shares through July 31, 2012. We may make
repurchases from time to time in the open market, in block purchases or in privately negotiated transactions, depending on market conditions and other factors. Since the original
commencement of the plan adopted in October 2006, and through September 2009, we repurchased a total of 17,161,120 shares for $286.2 million, or an average of $16.68 per share. In
October 2009, we began repurchasing shares under the program approved July 21, 2009, and, through December 31, 2009, we had repurchased a total of 1,294,400 shares for $17.9 million,
or an average of $13.83 per share. For more information, see “Liquidity and Capital Resources” in Item 7 of this Form 10-K.
Item 6.

Selected Financial Data

The information set forth below should be read in conjunction with the consolidated financial statements and related notes and “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial
Condition and Results of Operations” included elsewhere in this Form 10-K. Certain reclassifications have been made to the prior year amounts to conform with the 2009 presentation.
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Acquisitions among entities under common control such as Old FNF’s 2006 contribution of assets to us in connection with the 2006 Distribution are not considered business
combinations and are to be accounted for at historical cost in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles on exchanges of ownership interests between enterprises under
common control. Furthermore, the substance of that asset contribution, the 2006 Distribution and the Old FNF-FIS merger is effectively a reverse spin-off of FIS by Old FNF in accordance
with the FASB’s guidance on accounting for reverse spinoffs. Accordingly, the historical financial statements of Old FNF became those of FNF. As a result, the data shown below for periods
or dates prior to October 24, 2006, the date the 2006 Distribution was completed, are the data of Old FNF, including the results of both FIS and us as subsidiaries of Old FNF. Following
completion of the 2006 Distribution, however, the criteria to account for FIS as discontinued operations as prescribed by the FASB’s guidance on accounting for the impairment or disposal
of long-lived assets were not met. This is primarily due to our continuing involvement with and significant influence over FIS subsequent to the merger of Old FNF and FIS through common
board members, common senior management and continuing business relationships. As a result, for periods prior to October 24, 2006, FIS continues to be included in our consolidated
financial statements.
2009(1)

Operating Data:
Revenue
Expenses:
Personnel costs
Other operating expenses
Agent commissions
Depreciation and Amortization
Provision for claim losses
Interest expense
Earnings (loss) before income taxes, equity in (loss) earnings of
unconsolidated affiliates, and noncontrolling interest
Income tax expense (benefit)
Earnings (loss) before equity in (loss) earnings of unconsolidated affiliates
Equity in (loss) earnings of unconsolidated affiliates
Earnings (loss) from continuing operations, net of tax
Net loss from discontinued operations, net of tax
Net earnings (loss)
Less: net earnings (loss) attributable to noncontrolling interests
Net earnings (loss) attributable to FNF common shareholders

$

2008(2)

5,828.4

$

1,649.8
1,343.5
1,951.7
109.2
392.6
36.7
5,483.5

$

344.9
106.8
238.1
(11.7)
226.4
(1.9)
224.5
2.2
222.3
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Year Ended December 31,
2007(3)
(Dollars in millions, except per share)

4,251.2

$

1,322.0
1,179.8
1,218.0
122.1
630.4
58.6
4,530.9

$

(279.7)
(119.9)
(159.8)
(13.4)
(173.2)
(10.0)
(183.2)
(4.2)
(179.0)

5,465.6

$

1,668.6
1,078.8
1,698.2
127.9
653.9
52.9
5,280.3

$

185.3
50.3
135.0
0.8
135.8
(6.0)
129.8
—
129.8

$

2006(4)

9,434.4

2005(5)

$

9,654.2

3,225.3
2,075.0
2,035.4
460.8
486.3
210.0
8,492.8

3,224.7
1,702.3
2,060.5
406.3
480.6
172.3
8,046.7

941.6
350.9
590.7
1.7
592.4
—
592.4
154.6
437.8

1,607.5
573.4
1,034.1
0.4
1,034.5
—
1,034.5
70.4
964.1

$
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2009(1)

Per Share Data(6):
Basic net earnings (loss) per share attributable to FNF common shareholders
Weighted average shares outstanding, basic basis(7)
Diluted net earnings (loss) per share attributable to FNF common
shareholders
Weighted average shares outstanding, diluted basis(7)
Dividends declared per share
Balance Sheet Data:
Investments(8)
Cash and cash equivalents(9)
Total assets
Notes payable
Reserve for claim losses(10)
Equity
Book value per share(11)
Other Data:
Orders opened by direct title operations
Orders closed by direct title operations
Provision for title insurance claim losses as a percent of title insurance
premiums(10)
Title related revenue(12):
Percentage direct operations
Percentage agency operations

$

2008(2)

0.99

$

224.7
$

0.97

$

228.5
0.60

$

$

4,685.4
202.1
7,934.4
861.9
2,541.4
3,344.9
14.53
2,611,400
1,792,000

Year Ended December 31,
2007(3)
(Dollars in millions, except per share)

(0.85)

$

210.0
$

(0.85)

$

210.0
1.05

$

$

4,376.5
315.3
8,368.2
1,350.8
2,738.6
2,856.8
13.29
1,860,400
1,121,200

0.60

$

216.6
$

0.59

$

220.0
1.20

$

$

4,101.8
569.6
7,587.9
1,167.7
1,419.9
3,298.0
15.48
2,259,800
1,434,800

2006(4)

2005(5)

2.40

$

182.0
$

2.39

$

182.9
1.17

$

$

4,121.8
676.4
7,259.6
491.2
1,220.6
3,530.4
15.94
3,146,200
2,051,500

5.56
173.5

$

5.55

$

173.6
0.25

$

4,564.2
513.4
11,104.6
3,217.0
1,113.5
3,916.1
22.47
3,615,400
2,487,000

5.1%

18.2%

13.2%

7.5%

7.2%

53.6%
46.4%

58.7%
41.3%

54.9%
45.1%

53.7%
46.3%

56.4%
43.6%

(1) Our financial results for the year ended December 31, 2009, include a decrease to our provision for claim losses of $74.4 million ($47.1 million net of income taxes) as a result of
favorable claim loss development on prior policy years, offset by an increase to the provision for claim losses of $63.2 million ($40.0 million net of income taxes) as a result of
unfavorable developments in the third quarter on a previously recorded insurance receivable.
(2) Our financial results for the year ended December 31, 2008, include a charge to our provision for claim losses of $261.6 million ($157.0 million net of income taxes) which we
recorded as a result of adverse claim loss development on prior policy years and the results of various entities acquired on various dates during 2008.
(3) Our financial results for the year ended December 31, 2007, include charges to our provision for claim losses totaling $217.2 million ($159.5 million net of income taxes) which we
recorded as a result of adverse claim loss development on prior policy years and the results of various entities acquired on various dates during 2007.
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(4) Beginning October 24, 2006, the date on which the 2006 Distribution was completed, our financial results no longer include the results of FIS. The operations of FIS continue to be
included in our results for periods prior to October 24, 2006. In addition, FIS’s financial results for 2006 include the results of operations of Certegy Inc. (“Certegy”) since
February 1, 2006, the date on which Certegy was acquired by FIS.
(5) Our financial results for the year ended December 31, 2005 include in revenue and net earnings a $318.2 million gain on sale relating to the issuance of subsidiary stock,
approximately $100.0 million in additional income tax expense relating to the distribution to our shareholders of a 17.5% interest of FNT and additional noncontrolling interest
related to the noncontrolling interests issued in FNT and FIS.
(6) Our historical basic and diluted earnings per share for 2006 and 2005 have been calculated using FNT’s basic and diluted weighted average shares outstanding.
(7) Weighted average shares outstanding as of December 31, 2009 includes 18,170,000 shares that were issued as part of an equity offering by the Company on April 20, 2009.
(8) Investments as of December 31, 2009, 2008, 2007, 2006, and 2005, include securities pledged to secure trust deposits of $288.7 million, $382.5 million, $513.8 million,
$696.8 million, and $656.0 million, respectively. Investments as of December 31, 2009, 2008, 2007, 2006, and 2005 include securities pledged relating to our securities lending
program of $25.6 million, $103.6 million, $264.2 million, $305.3 million and $138.7 million, respectively.
(9) Cash and cash equivalents as of December 31, 2009, 2008, 2007, 2006, and 2005 include cash pledged to secure trust deposits of $96.8 million, $109.6 million, $193.5 million,
$228.5 million, and $234.7 million, respectively. Cash and cash equivalents as of December 31, 2009, 2008, 2007, 2006 and 2005 include cash pledged relating to our securities
lending program of $26.5 million, $107.6 million, $271.8 million, $316.0 million, and $143.4 million, respectively.
(10) As a result of favorable title insurance claim loss development on prior policy years, we recorded a credit in 2009 totaling $74.4 million, or $47.1 million net of income taxes, to our
provision for claims losses. As a result of adverse title insurance claim loss development on prior policy years, we recorded charges in 2008 totaling $261.6 million, or $157.0 million
net of income taxes, and in 2007 totaling $217.2 million, or $159.5 million net of income taxes, to our provision for claim losses. These credits/charges were recorded in addition to
our average provision for claim losses of 7.25%, 8.5% and 7.5% for the years ended December 31, 2009, 2008 and 2007, respectively.
(11) Book value per share is calculated as equity at December 31 of each year presented divided by actual shares outstanding at December 31 of each year presented.
(12) Includes title insurance premiums and escrow, title-related and other fees.
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Selected Quarterly Financial Data (Unaudited)
Selected quarterly financial data is as follows:

2009
Revenue
Earnings (loss) from continuing operations before income taxes, equity in income of
unconsolidated affiliates, and noncontrolling interest
Net earnings (loss) attributable to Fidelity National Financial, Inc. common
shareholders
Basic earnings (loss) per share attributable to Fidelity National Financial, Inc. common
shareholders
Diluted earnings (loss) per share attributable to Fidelity National Financial, Inc.
common shareholders
Dividends paid per share
2008
Revenue
Earnings (loss) from continuing operations before income taxes, equity in income of
unconsolidated affiliates, and noncontrolling interest
Net earnings (loss) attributable to Fidelity National Financial, Inc. common
shareholders
Basic earnings (loss) per share attributable to Fidelity National Financial, Inc. common
shareholders
Diluted earnings (loss) per share attributable to Fidelity National Financial, Inc.
common shareholders
Dividends paid per share

Quarter Ended
September 30,(1)
(In millions, except per share data)

March 31,

June 30,

December 31,

$1,346.5

$1,559.5

$1,467.1

$1,455.3

(1.1)

131.7

108.3

106.0

(12.4)

92.0

73.4

69.3

(0.06)

0.40

0.32

0.30

(0.06)
0.15

0.40
0.15

0.32
0.15

0.30
0.15

$1,120.2

$1,162.4

$ 969.8

$ 998.8

42.0

16.5

(317.2)

(21.0)

27.2

7.0

(198.3)

(14.9)

0.13

0.03

(0.95)

(0.07)

0.13
0.30

0.03
0.30

(0.95)
0.30

(0.07)
0.15

(1) Includes a reduction of the loss provision of $74.4 million, or $47.1 million net of income taxes, and a loss provision charge of $63.2 million, $40.0 million net of income taxes, in
2009. Includes a loss provision charge of $261.6 million, or $157.0 million net of income taxes, in 2008.
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Item 7.

Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations

The following discussion should be read in conjunction with the Consolidated Financial Statements and the Notes thereto and Selected Financial Data included elsewhere in this
Form 10-K.
Premium revenues from agency operations and agency commissions include an accrual based on estimates using historical information of the volume of transactions that have closed
in a particular period for which premiums have not yet been reported to us. The accrual for agency premiums is necessary because of the lag between the closing of these transactions and the
reporting of these policies to us by the agent. During the third quarter of 2008, we re-evaluated and refined the method that we use to estimate this accrual, which resulted in a reduction in
revenue from agency title insurance premiums of $138.5 million compared to the revenues that would have been accrued under our prior method. The impact of this adjustment was a
decrease of $11.8 million in pre-tax earnings and $7.6 million in net income, or approximately $0.04 per share, compared to the amounts that would have been recorded under our prior
method. We believe that this adjustment is properly reflected as a change in accounting estimate in the third quarter of 2008.
Overview
We are a holding company that is a provider, through our subsidiaries, of title insurance, specialty insurance, claims management services, and information services. We are the
nation’s largest title insurance company through our title insurance underwriters — Fidelity National Title, Chicago Title, Commonwealth Land Title, Lawyers Title, Ticor Title, Security
Union Title, and Alamo Title — which collectively issued more title insurance policies in 2008 than any other title company in the United States. We also provide flood insurance, personal
lines insurance and home warranty insurance through our specialty insurance subsidiaries. We are a leading provider of outsourced claims management services to large corporate and public
sector entities through our minority-owned affiliate, Sedgwick CMS Holdings (“Sedgwick”) and a provider of information services in the human resources, retail, and transportation markets
through another minority-owned affiliate, Ceridian Corporation (“Ceridian”).
Prior to October 24, 2006, we were known as Fidelity National Title Group, Inc. (“FNT”) and were a majority-owned subsidiary of another publicly traded company, also called
Fidelity National Financial, Inc. (“Old FNF”). On October 24, 2006, Old FNF transferred certain assets to us in return for the issuance of 45,265,956 shares of our common stock to Old FNF.
Old FNF then distributed to its shareholders all of its shares of our common stock, making FNT a standalone public company (the “2006 Distribution”). On November 9, 2006, Old FNF was
then merged with and into another of its subsidiaries, Fidelity National Information Services, Inc. (“FIS”), after which we changed our name to Fidelity National Financial, Inc. (“we” or
“FNF”). On November 10, 2006, our common stock began trading on the New York Stock Exchange under the trading symbol “FNF.”
We currently have three reporting segments as follows:
•

Fidelity National Title Group. This segment consists of the operation of our title insurance underwriters and related businesses. This segment provides core title insurance and
escrow and other title-related services including collection and trust activities, trustee’s sales guarantees, recordings and reconveyances.

•

Specialty Insurance. This segment consists of certain subsidiaries that issue flood, home warranty, homeowners’, automobile and other personal lines insurance policies.

•

Corporate and Other. This segment consists of the operations of the parent holding company, certain other unallocated corporate overhead expenses, other smaller operations,
and our share in the operations of certain equity method investments, including Sedgwick, Ceridian and Remy International, Inc. (“Remy”).
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Discontinued Operations
On September 25, 2009, we closed on the sale of Fidelity National Capital, Inc. (“FN Capital”), a financing and leasing subsidiary, to Winthrop Resources Corporation. Accordingly,
the sale and results of FN Capital prior to the sale are reflected in the financial statements as discontinued operations for all periods presented. We received net proceeds of $49.2 million
from the sale of FN Capital and recorded a pre-tax loss on the sale of $3.4 million ($2.2 million after tax).
In February 2009, we transferred our ownership interest in FNRES Holdings, Inc. (“FNRES”) to Lender Processing Services, Inc., a related party at the time, in exchange for all of
the outstanding shares of Investment Property Exchange Services, Inc. (“IPEX”), a company that facilitates real estate exchanges under Section 1031 of the Internal Revenue Code.
Accordingly, the sale and results of FNRES prior to the exchange are reflected in the financial statements as discontinued operations for all periods presented. We received net proceeds of
approximately $43 million from the exchange. There was no gain or loss recognized on the transaction.
Related Party Transactions
Our financial statements reflect transactions with FIS, which is a related party, and with LPS through March 15, 2009, which was a related party until that date. See note A of the
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
Business Trends and Conditions
Fidelity National Title Group
Title insurance revenue is closely related to the level of real estate activity which includes sales, mortgage financing and mortgage refinancing. The levels of real estate activity are
primarily affected by the average price of real estate sales, the availability of funds to finance purchases and mortgage interest rates. Both the volume and the average price of residential real
estate transactions have recently experienced declines in many parts of the country, and these trends appear likely to continue. Declines in the level of real estate activity or the average price
of real estate sales are likely to adversely affect our title insurance revenues. The volume of refinancing transactions in particular and mortgage originations in general declined over the past
four years from 2005 and prior levels, resulting in reduction of revenues in some of our businesses.
We have found that residential real estate activity generally decreases in the following situations:
•

when mortgage interest rates are high or increasing;

•

when the mortgage funding supply is limited; and

•

when the United States economy is weak.

Because these factors can change dramatically, revenue levels in the title insurance industry can also change dramatically. For example, from January 2001 through June 2004, the
Federal Reserve decreased interest rates by a total of 550 basis points, bringing interest rates down to a low level and increasing the volume of residential real estate purchases and refinance
activity. From June 2004 through September 2007, the Federal Reserve increased interest rates by a total of 425 basis points. In 2007, as interest rates on adjustable rate mortgages reset to
higher rates, foreclosures on subprime mortgage loans increased to record levels. This resulted in a significant decrease in levels of available mortgage funding as investors became wary of
the risk associated with investing in subprime mortgage loans. In addition, tighter lending standards and a bearish outlook on the real estate environment caused potential home buyers to
become reluctant to purchase homes. In 2008, the increase in foreclosure activity, which had previously been limited to the subprime mortgage market, became more widespread as
borrowers encountered difficulties in attempting to refinance their adjustable rate mortgages. In 2008 and 2009, the sharply rising mortgage delinquency and default rates caused negative
operating results at a number of banks and financial institutions and, as a result, significantly reduced the level of lending activity. Multiple banks have failed over the past three years and
others may fail in the future, further reducing the capacity of the mortgage industry to make loans. As a result of these factors,
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although orders and revenues increased in 2009, our title insurance order counts and revenues have decreased substantially over the past three years, as compared to levels prior to 2007.
In response to concerns about the economy, the Federal Reserve reduced interest rates throughout 2008, most recently in December 2008 to 0.0%-0.25% compared to 4.25% in
December 2007, and has kept rates consistent since that time. This reduction in interest rates, along with other government programs designed to increase liquidity in the mortgage markets,
resulted in a significant increase in our refinance order volumes in December 2008 and continued to positively affect our revenues through the first nine months of 2009. Mortgage interest
rates remained consistent throughout 2009 and into the beginning of 2010. According to the Mortgage Bankers Association (“MBA”), U.S. mortgage originations (including refinancings)
were approximately $2.1 trillion, $1.5 trillion and $2.3 trillion in 2009, 2008 and 2007, respectively. The MBA’s Mortgage Finance Forecast currently estimates an approximately $1.3 trillion
mortgage origination market for 2010, which would be a decrease of 39.5% from 2009. The MBA forecasts that the 39.5% decrease will result almost entirely from decreased refinance
activity.
Several pieces of legislation have been enacted to address the struggling mortgage market and the current economic and financial environment, including the Emergency Economic
Stabilization Act of 2008, which provides broad discretion to the Secretary of the Department of the Treasury to implement a program for the purchase of up to $700 billion in troubled assets
from banks and financial institutions called the Troubled Asset Relief Program (“TARP”). On February 17, 2009, Congress also passed the American Recovery and Reinvestment Act of
2009 (“ARRA”), a $787 billion stimulus package, that provides an array of types of relief for homebuyers, such as an $8,000 tax credit that would be available to first-time homebuyers for
the purchase of a principal residence on or after January 1, 2009 and before December 1, 2009. Management believes that these measures have had a positive effect on our results of
operations in 2009. On November 6, 2009, the President signed into law an extension of the first-time homebuyer credit to persons who sign a purchase contract by April 30, 2010 and close
the purchase by June 30, 2010. This extension also expands the program to provide a $6,500 credit for buyers who have owned and lived in their current home for at least five of the past
eight years.
In addition, other steps taken by the U.S. government to relieve the current economic situation may have a positive effect on our sales of title insurance. Under the Obama
administration’s Homeowner Affordability and Stability Plan, a $75 billion program, homeowners with a solid payment history on an existing mortgage owned by Fannie Mae or Freddie
Mac, who would otherwise be unable to get a refinancing loan because of a loss in home value increasing their loan-to-value ratio above 80%, would be able to get a refinancing loan. The
program provides the opportunity for up to 4 to 5 million homeowners who fit this description to refinance their loans.
On March 18, 2009, the Federal Reserve announced plans to provide greater support to mortgage lending and housing markets by buying up to $750 billion in mortgage-backed
securities issued by agencies like Fannie Mae and Freddie Mac, bringing its total proposed purchases of these securities to a total of up to $1.25 trillion in 2009, and to increase its purchases
of other agency debt in 2009 by up to $100 billion to a total of up to $200 billion. The Federal Reserve also announced that it will gradually slow the pace of its purchases of both agency
debt and agency mortgage-backed securities, anticipating that these transactions will be executed by the end of the first quarter of 2010. Moreover, to help improve conditions in private
credit markets, the Federal Reserve decided to purchase up to $300 billion of longer-term Treasury securities, which purchases were completed in October 2009.
On February 10, 2009, the Treasury Department introduced its Financial Stability Plan (“FSA”) that, together with the ARRA, is designed to restart the flow of credit, clean up and
strengthen banks, and provide support to homeowners and small businesses. On March 23, 2009, as part of the FSA, the Treasury Department, together with the Federal Deposit Insurance
Corporation (“FDIC”) and the Federal Reserve, unveiled the Public-Private Investment Program (“PPIP”) to remove many troubled assets from banks’ books, representing one of the largest
efforts by the U.S. government so far to address the ongoing financial crisis. Using $75 to $100 billion in TARP capital, capital from private investors and the funds from loans from the
Federal Reserve’s Term Asset Lending Facility (“TALF”), the PPIP is intended to generate $500 billion in
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purchasing power to buy toxic assets backed by mortgages and other loans, with the potential to expand to $1 trillion over time. The government expected this program, consisting of the
Legacy Loans Program and the Legacy Securities Program, to help cleanse the balance sheets of many of the nation’s largest banks and to help get credit flowing again. The Legacy
Securities Program, designed to attract private capital to purchase eligible mortgage-backed and asset-backed securities through the provision of debt financing by the Federal Reserve under
the TALF, was implemented in the summer of 2009. The Legacy Loans Program, designed to attract private capital to purchase eligible loans from participating banks through the provision
of debt guarantees by the FDIC and equity co-investment by the Treasury Department, is being tested by the FDIC. Through the end of 2009, we are uncertain to what degree these programs
have affected, or may in the future affect, our business.
In the fourth quarter of 2008, we began to make changes in certain aspects of our approach to handling claims. Key changes implemented include a greater effort to collect
contributions from agents that bear responsibility for losses, more stringent enforcement of documentation requirements for proof of claims, a more efficient process for dealing with minor,
technical claim matters, and a greater focus on hiring counsel with lower rates. Our claims paid, since this initiative, have declined. We have also continued, in 2009, a process of reducing
our total number of agents, with a focus in part on cancelling agents that have higher claims ratios and/or low remittances. These measures are collectively designed to reduce our claims
expenses. We have taken similar measures with respect to the LFG Underwriters we recently acquired.
Our revenues in future periods will continue to be subject to these and other factors which are beyond our control and, as a result, are likely to fluctuate.
In October 2008, we announced our plans to begin the process of reviewing and increasing our title insurance rates across the country. Through January 2010, we have instituted
revised rates that are now effective in 24 states, including California, for certain of our underwriters. The pricing increases have been generally in the range of 5-10%. Additional rate
revisions are pending in a number of other states.
Because commercial real estate transactions tend to be driven more by supply and demand for commercial space and occupancy rates in a particular area rather than by
macroeconomic events, our commercial real estate title insurance business can generate revenues which are not dependent on the industry cycles discussed above. However, we have
experienced a significant decrease in our commercial fee per file, which we believe is due, in part, to a decrease in the number of closings of larger deals that generally have a higher fee per
file resulting from difficulties or delays in obtaining financing. In addition, we believe that many banks have significant commercial loans which are coming due and in danger of default
which may further negatively impact the availability of financing to commercial transactions.
Historically, real estate transactions have produced seasonal revenue levels for title insurers. The first calendar quarter is typically the weakest quarter in terms of revenue due to the
generally low volume of home sales during January and February. The third calendar quarter has been typically the strongest in terms of revenue primarily due to a higher volume of home
sales in the summer months and the fourth quarter is usually also strong due to commercial entities desiring to complete transactions by year-end. In 2007 through 2009, we have seen a
divergence from these historical trends. We believe tighter lending standards, including a significant reduction in the availability of mortgage lending, combined with rising default levels and
a bearish outlook on the real estate environment have caused potential home buyers to be more reluctant to buy homes and apart from the first nine months of 2009, have generally
suppressed refinance activity.
Specialty Insurance
Our specialty insurance business participates in the NFIP. We earn fees under that program for settling flood claims and administering the program. We serve as administrator and
processor in our flood insurance business, and bear none of the underwriting or claims risk. The U.S. federal government is guarantor of flood insurance coverage written under NFIP and
bears the underwriting risk. Revenues from our flood insurance business are impacted by the volume and magnitude of claims processed as well as the volume and rates for policies written.
For example, when a large number of claims are processed as a result of a natural disaster, such as a hurricane, we experience an increase in the fees that we receive for settling the claims.
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Revenues from our personal lines insurance and home warranty businesses are impacted by the level of residential real estate purchase activity in the U.S. and the general state of the
economy as well as our market share. Recently, revenues from our homeowners’ insurance business have decreased as a result of efforts to tighten our underwriting standards and eliminate
unprofitable agents and territories, a strategy which we believe will benefit us in the long term.
Critical Accounting Estimates
The accounting estimates described below are those we consider critical in preparing our Consolidated Financial Statements. Management is required to make estimates and
assumptions that can affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosures with respect to contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the Consolidated Financial Statements
and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual amounts could differ from those estimates. See note A of Notes to the Consolidated Financial
Statements for a more detailed description of the significant accounting policies that have been followed in preparing our Consolidated Financial Statements.
Reserve for Claim Losses. Title companies issue two types of policies, owner’s and lender’s policies, since both the new owner and the lender in real estate transactions want to know
that their interest in the property is insured against certain title defects outlined in the policy. An owner’s policy insures the buyer against such defects for as long as he or she owns the
property (as well as against warranty claims arising out of the sale of the property by such owner). A lender’s policy insures the priority of the lender’s security interest over the claims that
other parties may have in the property. The maximum amount of liability under a title insurance policy is generally the face amount of the policy plus the cost of defending the insured’s title
against an adverse claim; however, from time to time, we do incur losses in excess of policy limits. While most non-title forms of insurance, including property and casualty, provide for the
assumption of risk of loss arising out of unforeseen future events, title insurance serves to protect the policyholder from risk of loss from events that predate the issuance of the policy.
Unlike many other forms of insurance, title insurance requires only a one-time premium for continuous coverage until another policy is warranted due to changes in property
circumstances arising from refinance, resale, additional liens, or other events. Unless we issue the subsequent policy, we receive no notice that our exposure under our policy has ended and,
as a result, we are unable to track the actual terminations of our exposures.
Our reserve for claim losses includes reserves for known claims (“PLR”) as well as for losses that have been incurred but not yet reported to us (“IBNR”), net of recoupments. We
reserve for each known claim based on our review of the estimated amount of the claim and the costs required to settle the claim. Reserves for IBNR claims are estimates that are established
at the time the premium revenue is recognized and are based upon historical experience and other factors, including industry trends, claim loss history, legal environment, geographic
considerations, and the types of policies written. We also reserve for losses arising from escrow, closing and disbursement functions due to fraud or operational error.
The table below summarizes our reserves for known claims and incurred but not reported claims related to title insurance.
As of
December 31,
2009

As of
December 31,
2008

%

%

(In millions)

PLR
IBNR
Total Reserve

$
$

358.5
2,130.3
2,488.8

14.4%
85.6%
100.0%

$
$

344.9
2,334.1
2,679.0

12.9%
87.1%
100.0%

Although most claims against title insurance policies are reported relatively soon after the policy has been issued, claims may be reported many years later. By their nature, claims are
often complex, vary greatly in dollar amounts and are affected by economic and market conditions, as well as the legal environment existing
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at the time of settlement of the claims. Estimating future title loss payments is difficult because of the complex nature of title claims, the long periods of time over which claims are paid,
significantly varying dollar amounts of individual claims and other factors.
Our process for recording our reserves for claim losses begins with analysis of our loss provision rate. We forecast ultimate losses for each policy year based upon examination of
historical policy year loss emergence (development) and adjustment of the emergence patterns to reflect policy year differences in the effects of various influences on the timing, frequency
and severity of claims. We also use a technique that relies on historical loss emergence and on a premium-based exposure measurement. The latter technique is particularly applicable to the
most recent policy years, which have few reported claims relative to an expected ultimate claim volume. After considering historical claim losses, reporting patterns and current market
information, and analyzing quantitative and qualitative data provided by our legal, claims and underwriting departments, we determine a loss provision rate, which is recorded as a
percentage of current premiums. This loss provision rate is set to provide for losses on current year policies. We have been recording our loss provision at an average of 7.25% and 8.5% of
premiums during 2009 and 2008, respectively. At each quarter end, our recorded reserve for claim losses is initially the result of taking the prior recorded reserve for claim losses, adding the
current provision to that balance and subtracting actual paid claims from that balance, resulting in an amount that management then compares to the actuarial point estimate provided in the
actuarial calculation.
Due to the uncertainty inherent in the process and to the judgment used by both management and our actuary, our ultimate liability may be greater or less than our current reserves
and/or our actuary’s calculation. If the recorded amount is within a reasonable range of the actuary’s point estimate, but not at the point estimate, we assess other factors in order to determine
our best estimate. These factors, which are more qualitative than quantitative, can change from period to period, and include items such as current trends in the real estate industry (which we
can assess, but for which there is a time lag in the development of the data used by our internal actuary), any adjustments from the actuarial estimates needed for the effects of unusually large
or small claims, improvements in our claims management processes, improvements in our claims management processes, and other cost saving measures. If the recorded amount is not
within a reasonable range of our internal actuary’s point estimate, we would record a charge or credit and reassess the loss provision rate on a go forward basis. We will continue to reassess
the provision to be recorded in future periods consistent with this methodology.
As of September 30, 2009, our recorded reserve for title insurance claims losses was $2.644 billion, $74.4 million higher than our internal actuary’s point estimate of $2.570 billion.
As a result, at September 30, 2009, management determined that our initial recorded amount was outside of a reasonable range from our internal actuary’s point estimate and released $74.4
million of excess reserves in addition to recording our 7.0% provision for claims losses. This resulting balance of $2.570 billion in our title insurance claim loss reserve was in agreement
with our actuary’s point estimate at September 30, 2009. The release of excess reserves during the quarter ended September 30, 2009, was due to analysis of our reserve position in light of
consistently lower claim payments since the third quarter of 2008. As of December 31, 2009, our reserve for title claim losses was $2.5 billion, which we believe is adequate as of
December 31, 2009.
As of September 30, 2008, our initial recorded reserve for title insurance claim losses was $1.303 billion, $261.6 million lower than our internal actuary’s point estimate of
$1.565 billion. As a result, at September 30, 2008, management determined that our initial recorded amount was outside of a reasonable range from our internal actuary’s estimate and we
recorded a charge of $261.6 million in addition to our 8.5% provision for claim losses. This charge resulted in a balance of $1.565 billion in our title insurance claim loss reserve, which was
in agreement with our actuary’s point estimate at September 30, 2008. The significant development during the quarter ended September 30, 2008, was due to changes in our actuarial model
resulting, in part, from adverse claim loss development on prior policy years. Because of continued adverse reported and paid claim trends over the previous six quarters, our actuarial model
in the third quarter of 2008 was modified to more heavily weight the three most recent full years’ data on loss experience and to incorporate that data into the assumptions and factors that
determine ultimate expected loss experience for all prior calendar years. At December 31, 2008, our initial reserve for claim losses, excluding the reserve for claim losses included in the net
assets that we purchased from LFG, was $1.563 billion, which was $16.1 million, or 1.0%, higher than our
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internal actuary’s point estimate of $1.547 billion. We believe our recorded position was adequate as of December 31, 2008.
In connection with the acquisition of the LFG Underwriters on December 22, 2008, we recorded a reserve for claim losses of $1,115.8 billion. The acquired reserves were computed
by performing an actuarial analysis which utilized a process similar to FNF’s process described above and then applying an adjustment to the actuarial balance to record the acquired reserves
at their estimated fair value as of December 31, 2008. The fair value adjustments were calculated by taking the estimated payment stream of the actuarial reserves and discounting them
utilizing the U.S. Treasury Yield Curve. We then applied a discounted risk and profit load to the discounted reserves to estimate the fair value of the claim loss reserves at December 31,
2008. During 2009 we completed our evaluation of the fair value of this claims reserve as of the acquisition date and reduced the balance by $3.1 million to reflect our best estimate and the
results of third party evaluations of the fair value of the liability.
The table below presents our title insurance loss development experience for the past three years.
2009

Beginning balance
Reserve assumed/(transferred)(a)
Claims loss provision related to:
Current year
Prior years
Total claims loss provision
Claims paid, net of recoupments related to:
Current year
Prior years
Total claims paid, net of recoupments
Ending balance

$

Title premiums

2,679.0
(3.1)

$

2007

1,354.1
1,115.8

286.7
(85.2)
201.5

$

1,154.9
—

229.1
261.9
491.0

285.1
217.2
502.3

$

(17.0)
(286.1)
(303.1)
1,354.1

$

3,800.5

$

(9.7)
(378.9)
(388.6)
2,488.8

$

(12.9)
(269.0)
(281.9)
2,679.0

$

3,927.6

$

2,695.0

Provision for claim losses as a percentage of title insurance premiums:
Current year
Prior years
Total provision
(a)

2008
(In millions)

2009

2008

2007

7.3%
(2.2)%
5.1%

8.5%
9.7%
18.2%

7.5%
5.7%
13.2%

Reserves assumed relate to the purchase of the LFG Underwriters.

An approximate $39.3 million increase (decrease) in our annualized provision for title claim losses would occur if our loss provision rate were 1% higher (lower), based on 2009 title
premiums of $3,927.6 million. A 5% increase (decrease) in our estimate of the reserve for claim losses would result in an increase (decrease) in our provision for title claim losses of
approximately $196.4 million.
For our specialty insurance businesses, we had claims reserves of $52.6 million and $59.6 million as of December 31, 2009 and 2008.
Valuation of Investments. We regularly review our investment portfolio for factors that may indicate that a decline in fair value of an investment is other-than-temporary. Some
factors considered in evaluating whether or not a decline in fair value is other-than-temporary include: (i) our intent and need to sell the investment prior to a period of time sufficient to allow
for a recovery in value; (ii) the duration and extent to which the fair value has been less than cost; and (iii) the financial condition and prospects of the issuer. Such reviews
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are inherently uncertain and the value of the investment may not fully recover or may decline in future periods resulting in a realized loss. Investments are selected for analysis whenever an
unrealized loss is greater than a certain threshold that we determine based on the size of our portfolio. Fixed maturity investments that have unrealized losses caused by interest rate
movements are not at risk as we do not anticipate having the need or intent to sell prior to maturity. Unrealized losses on investments in equity securities and fixed maturity instruments that
are susceptible to credit related declines are evaluated based on the aforementioned factors. Currently available market data is considered and estimates are made as to the duration and
prospects for recovery, and the ability to retain the investment until such recovery takes place. These estimates are revisited quarterly and any material degradation in the prospect for
recovery will be considered in the other-than-temporary impairment analysis. We believe that our monitoring and analysis has allowed for the proper recognition of other-than-temporary
impairments over the past three-year period. Any change in estimate in this area will have an impact on the results of operations of the period in which a charge is taken. Our investment
portfolio exposure to sub-prime mortgage-backed securities is immaterial.
In 2006, the FASB issued a standard on measuring fair value which defined fair value, established a framework for measuring fair value, and expanded required disclosures about fair
value measurements by establishing a fair value hierarchy based on the quality of inputs used to measure fair value. The standard on fair value did not require any new fair value
measurements, but applied under other accounting pronouncements that require or permit fair value measurements. In accordance with the requirements of the standard on fair value, we
adopted the standard for financial assets and financial liabilities that are re-measured for fair value on a recurring basis as of January 1, 2008. The standard was adopted for nonfinancial
assets and nonfinancial liabilities for which fair value measurements are determined on a non-recurring basis only when there is an indication of potential impairment, as of January 1, 2009,
as required by the standard.
The fair value hierarchy established by the standard on fair value includes three levels, which are based on the priority of the inputs to the valuation technique. The fair value
hierarchy gives the highest priority to quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities (Level 1) and the lowest priority to unobservable inputs (Level 3). If the inputs used to
measure the financial instruments fall within different levels of the hierarchy, the categorization is based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement of the
instrument. In accordance with the standard on fair value, our financial assets and liabilities that are recorded in the Consolidated Balance Sheets are categorized based on the inputs to the
valuation techniques as follows:
Level 1. Financial assets and liabilities whose values are based on unadjusted quoted prices for identical assets or liabilities in an active market that we have the ability to
access.
Level 2. Financial assets and liabilities whose values are based on quoted prices in markets that are not active or model inputs that are observable either directly or indirectly
for substantially the full term of the asset or liability.
Level 3. Financial assets and liabilities whose values are based on model inputs that are unobservable.
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The following table presents our fair value hierarchy for those assets and liabilities measured at fair value on a recurring basis as of December 31, 2009 and 2008, respectively:
December 31, 2009
Level 2
Level 3
(In millions)

Level 1

Fixed-maturity securities available for sale:
U.S. government and agencies
State and political subdivisions
Corporate debt securities
Foreign government bonds
Mortgage-backed/asset-backed securities
Other fixed-maturity
Equity securities available for sale
Other long-term investments
Total

$

$

—
—
—
—
—
—
92.5
—
92.5

$

$

$

$

—
—
—
—
—
—
71.5
71.5

$

$

—
—
—
—
—
45.2
—
78.7
123.9

$

$

December 31, 2008
Level 2
Level 3
(In millions)

Level 1

Fixed-maturity securities available for sale:
U.S. government and agencies
State and political subdivisions
Corporate debt securities
Foreign government bonds
Mortgage-backed/asset-backed securities
Other fixed-maturity
Equity securities available for sale
Total

409.2
1,339.4
1,379.1
38.8
312.5
—
—
—
3,479.0

Total

$

$

558.7
1,049.1
875.0
43.5
293.2
2.3
—
2,821.8

$

$

—
—
—
—
—
32.0
—
32.0

409.2
1,339.4
1,379.1
38.8
312.5
45.2
92.5
78.7
3,695.4

Total

$

$

558.7
1,049.1
875.0
43.5
293.2
34.3
71.5
2,925.3

Our Level 2 fair value measures for fixed-maturities available for sale are provided by third-party pricing services. We utilize one firm for our taxable bond portfolio and another for
our municipal bond portfolio. These pricing services are leading global providers of financial market data, analytics and related services to financial institutions. We only rely on one price for
each instrument to determine the carrying amount of the assets on our balance sheet. The inputs utilized in these pricing methodologies include observable measures such as benchmark
yields, reported trades, broker dealer quotes, issuer spreads, two sided markets, benchmark securities, bids, offers and reference data including market research publications. We believe that
these investments are in actively traded markets. We review the pricing methodologies for all of our Level 2 securities to ensure that we are comfortable with them and compare the resulting
prices to other publicly available measures of fair value.
Our investments classified as Level 3 consist of auction rate securities which were included in the assets of the LFG Underwriters that were acquired on December 22, 2008, and
structured notes that we purchased in the third quarter of 2009. There is no active market for the auction rate securities and they are valued using models with significant non-observable
inputs. Fair values for these securities are provided by a third-party pricing service using a proprietary valuation model which considers factors such as time to maturity, interest rates, creditworthiness of the issuer, trading characteristics, and available market data for similar securities. These securities represent less than one percent of our total investment portfolio. The
structured notes are classified as other long-term investments and are measured in their entirety at fair value with changes in fair value recognized in earnings. The fair value of these
instruments represents exit prices obtained from a broker-dealer. These exit prices are the product of a proprietary valuation model utilized by the trading desk of the
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broker-dealer and contain assumptions relating to volatility, the level of interest rates, and the underlying value of the indexes, exchange-traded funds, and foreign currencies. The structured
notes represent less than two percent of our total investment portfolio.
During 2009, 2008, and 2007, we recorded other-than-temporary impairments totaling $6.9 million, $59.0 million, and $3.1 million, respectively. Impairment charges in 2009 related
to equity securities that were deemed other-than-temporarily impaired. Impairment charges in 2008 included $25.4 million related to our fixed maturity securities, $30.1 million related to our
equity securities, and $3.5 million related to other investments that were deemed other-than-temporarily impaired. The impairment charges relating to the fixed maturity securities were
primarily the result of our conclusion that the credit risk relating to the holdings was too high to not impair the assets and record the loss through earnings. The impairment charges relating to
the equity securities were primarily the result of the duration of the unrealized loss and inability to predict the time to recover if the investment continued to be held.
Goodwill. We have made acquisitions in the past that have resulted in a significant amount of goodwill. As of December 31, 2009 and 2008, goodwill aggregated $1,455.2 million
and $1,581.7 million, respectively. The majority of our goodwill as of December 31, 2009 and 2008 relates to goodwill recorded in connection with the Chicago Title merger in 2000. The
decrease of $126.5 million for the year ended December 31, 2009, relates primarily to fair value adjustments to the goodwill acquired in the acquisition of the LFG Underwriters and the
disposal of FN Capital and FNRES during the year. The process of determining whether or not an asset, such as goodwill, is impaired or recoverable relies on projections of future cash
flows, operating results and market conditions. Future cash flow estimates are based partly on projections of market conditions such as the volume and mix of refinance and purchase
transactions and interest rates, which are beyond our control and are likely to fluctuate. While we believe that our estimates of future cash flows are reasonable, these estimates are not
guarantees of future performance and are subject to risks and uncertainties that may cause actual results to differ from what is assumed in our impairment tests. In evaluating the
recoverability of goodwill, we perform an annual goodwill impairment test based on an analysis of the discounted future cash flows generated by the underlying assets. We have completed
our annual goodwill impairment tests in each of the past three years and as a result, no impairment charges were recorded to goodwill in 2009, 2008, or 2007. As of December 31, 2009, we
have determined that we have a fair value which substantially exceeds our carrying value. Such analyses are particularly sensitive to changes in estimates of future cash flows and discount
rates. Changes to these estimates might result in material changes in fair value and determination of the recoverability of goodwill, which may result in charges against earnings and a
reduction in the carrying value of our goodwill.
Other Intangible Assets. We have significant intangible assets that were acquired through business acquisitions. These assets consist of purchased customer relationships, contracts,
and the excess of purchase price over the fair value of identifiable net assets acquired (goodwill), discussed above. The determination of estimated useful lives and the allocation of the
purchase price to the fair values of the intangible assets requires significant judgment and may affect the amount of future amortization on intangible assets other than goodwill.
The valuation of intangible assets such as software, purchased customer relationships and contracts involves significant estimates and assumptions concerning matters such as
customer retention, future cash flows and discount rates. If any of these assumptions change, it could affect the carrying value of these assets. Purchased customer relationships are amortized
over their estimated useful lives using an accelerated method which takes into consideration expected customer attrition rates over a ten-year period. Contractual relationships are generally
amortized using the straight-line method over their contractual life. In 2008 we determined that the carrying value of certain of our intangible assets may not be recoverable and recorded an
impairment charge of $4.0 million relating to the write-off of these assets. These impairments were recorded as other operating expense in our Consolidated Statement of Operations. There
were no impairment charges recorded relating to intangible assets during 2009 or 2007.
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Revenue Recognition. The following describes our revenue recognition policies as they pertain to each of our segments:
Fidelity National Title Group. Our direct title insurance premiums and escrow, title-related and other fees are recognized as revenue at the time of closing of the related transaction as
the earnings process is then considered complete, whereas premium revenues from agency operations and agency commissions include an accrual based on estimates using historical
information of the volume of transactions that have closed in a particular period for which premiums have not yet been reported to us. The accrual for agency premiums is necessary because
of the lag between the closing of these transactions and the reporting of these policies to us by the agent. During the second half of 2008, we re-evaluated and refined the method that we use
to estimate this accrual, which resulted in a reduction in 2008 revenue from agency title insurance premiums of $138.5 million compared to the revenues that would have been accrued under
our prior method. The impact of this adjustment was a decrease of $11.8 million in 2008 pre-tax earnings and $7.6 million in 2008 net income, or approximately $0.04 per share, compared to
the amounts that would have been recorded under our prior method. We believe that this adjustment is properly reflected as a change in accounting estimate in 2008. We may have changes in
our accrual for agency revenue in the future if additional relevant information becomes available.
Specialty Insurance Segment. Revenues from home warranty and personal lines insurance policies are recognized over the life of the policy, which is one year. The unrecognized
portion is recorded as deferred revenue. Revenues and commissions related to the sale of flood insurance are recognized when the policy is reported.
Accounting for Income Taxes. As part of the process of preparing the consolidated financial statements, we are required to determine income taxes in each of the jurisdictions in
which we operate. This process involves estimating actual current tax expense together with assessing temporary differences resulting from differing recognition of items for income tax and
accounting purposes. These differences result in deferred income tax assets and liabilities, which are included within the Consolidated Balance Sheets. We must then assess the likelihood
that deferred income tax assets will be recovered from future taxable income and, to the extent we believe that recovery is not likely, establish a valuation allowance. To the extent we
establish a valuation allowance or increase this allowance in a period, we must reflect this increase as an expense within income tax expense in the Consolidated Statement of Operations.
Determination of the income tax expense requires estimates and can involve complex issues that may require an extended period to resolve. Further, the estimated level of annual pre-tax
income can cause the overall effective income tax rate to vary from period to period. We believe that our tax positions comply with applicable tax law and that we adequately provide for any
known tax contingencies. We believe the estimates and assumptions used to support our evaluation of tax benefit realization are reasonable. However, final determination of prior-year tax
liabilities, either by settlement with tax authorities or expiration of statutes of limitations, could be materially different than estimates reflected in assets and liabilities and historical income
tax provisions. The outcome of these final determinations could have a material effect on our income tax provision, net income or cash flows in the period that determination is made.
Certain Factors Affecting Comparability
Year ended December 31, 2009. For the year ending December 31, 2009, our Consolidated Statement of Operations includes the results of the LFG Underwriters, acquired
December 22, 2008 (see note B of the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements). As a result of favorable claim loss development on our prior policy years, we released excess reserves of
$74.4 million, or $47.1 million net of income taxes, to our provision for claim losses. In addition, we recorded an average 7.25% provision for claims losses. Also, as a result of recent court
rulings, we reversed an insurance receivable by $63.2 million, or $40.0 million, net of income taxes, as an increase to our provision for claim losses.
Year ended December 31, 2008. As a result of a change in our actuarial model resulting, in part, from adverse claim loss development on prior policy years, we recorded a charge in
2008 of $261.6 million, or
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$157.0 million net of income taxes, to our provision for claim losses. This charge was recorded in addition to our 8.5% provision for claim losses.
Year ended December 31, 2007. As a result of adverse claim loss development on prior policy years, we recorded charges in 2007 totaling $217.2 million, or $159.5 million net of
income taxes, to our provision for claim losses. These charges were recorded in addition to our 7.5% provision for claim losses.
Results of Operations
Consolidated Results of Operations
Net earnings (loss). The following table presents certain financial data for the years indicated:
Year Ended December 31,
2008
(Dollars in millions)

2009

Revenue:
Direct title insurance premiums
Agency title insurance premiums
Escrow, title-related and other fees
Specialty insurance
Interest and investment income
Realized gains and losses, net
Total revenue
Expenses:
Personnel costs
Other operating expenses
Agent commissions
Depreciation and amortization
Provision for claim losses
Interest expense
Total expenses
Earnings (loss) from continuing operations before income taxes and equity in earnings (loss) of unconsolidated
affiliates
Income tax expense (benefit)
Equity in (loss) earnings of unconsolidated affiliates
Net earnings (loss) from continuing operations
Orders opened by direct title operations
Orders closed by direct title operations

$

1,475.3
2,452.3
1,352.9
366.0
154.5
27.4
5,828.4

$

1,649.8
1,343.5
1,951.7
109.2
392.6
36.7
5,483.5

$

344.9
106.8
(11.7)
226.4
2,611,400
1,792,000

1,140.3
1,554.7
1,071.3
373.4
134.0
(22.5)
4,251.2

2007

$

1,322.0
1,179.8
1,218.0
122.1
630.4
58.6
4,530.9

$

(279.7)
(119.9)
(13.4)
(173.2)
1,860,400
1,121,200

1,601.8
2,198.7
1,076.0
386.4
184.2
18.5
5,465.6
1,668.6
1,078.8
1,698.2
127.9
653.9
52.9
5,280.3

$

185.3
50.3
0.8
135.8
2,259,800
1,434,800

Revenues.
Total revenue in 2009 increased $1,577.2 million compared to 2008, reflecting increases in the Fidelity National Title Group and corporate and other segments, partially offset by a
decrease in the specialty insurance segment. Total revenue in 2008 decreased $1,214.4 million compared to 2007, reflecting decreases across all business segments.
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The following table presents the percentages of title insurance premiums generated by our direct and agency operations:
Year Ended December 31,
2008
Amount
%
(Dollars in millions)

2009
Amount

Direct
Agency
Total title insurance premiums

$
$

1,475.3
2,452.3
3,927.6

%

37.6%
62.4
100.0%

$
$

1,140.3
1,554.7
2,695.0

42.3%
57.7
100.0%

2007
Amount

$
$

1,601.8
2,198.7
3,800.5

%

42.1%
57.9
100.0%

In 2009, the proportion of agency premiums to direct premiums increased, with agency premiums comprising 62.4% of total premiums in 2009, compared with 57.7% in 2008. The
mix of agency premiums as a percentage of total title insurance premiums increased in 2009 due to the acquisition of the LFG Underwriters in December 2008, which historically had a
higher percentage of agency business. In 2008 and 2007, our mix of direct and agency title premiums stayed relatively consistent, with agency premiums comprising 57.7% of total premiums
in 2008, compared with 57.9% in 2007.
The increase in title premiums from direct operations in 2009 compared to 2008 was due to our acquisition of the LFG Underwriters and increases in closed order volumes, which
were partially offset by decreases in average fee per file. Excluding the operations of the LFG Underwriters in 2009, direct title premiums increased $78.1 million, or 6.8%, in 2009
compared to 2008. Direct title premiums decreased $461.5 million, or 28.8%, in 2008 compared to 2007. The decreased level of direct title premiums in 2008 is the result of decreases in
closed order volumes and fee per file. Excluding the operations of LFG Underwriters in 2009, closed order volumes in our direct operations were approximately 1,507,800 in 2009,
1,121,200 in 2008, and 1,434,800 in 2007. Increases in 2009 reflect increases in refinance transactions as mortgage rates remained at historic lows during the year. Mortgage interest rates in
2009 were significantly lower than in 2008 due to the introduction of government programs designed to provide liquidity to the home mortgage market. Decreases in 2008 reflect declines in
the purchase and refinance markets, which were partially offset by some strengthening in the refinance market very close to the end of 2008. These declines can be attributed to the lack of
liquidity in the mortgage market as mortgage default levels continued to increase, and to falling home prices, which caused potential buyers to defer purchase decisions. Average mortgage
interest rates in the year ended December 31, 2008, were slightly lower than rates in the year ended December 31, 2007 and decreased substantially at the end of 2008 as the government
introduced programs intended to increase liquidity in the mortgage markets. In September 2007, the Federal Reserve began decreasing interest rates to infuse money into the economy,
decreasing rates by a total of 100 basis points during 2007. During 2008, the Federal Reserve continued to decrease the federal funds rate by a total of 425 basis points. The federal funds rate
is now 0.0%-0.25% compared to 4.25% in December 2007. The average fee per file in our direct operations, excluding the operations of the LFG Underwriters in 2009, was $1,236, $1,503,
and $1,635 for the years ended December 31, 2009, 2008, and 2007, respectively. The decreases in 2009 and 2008 reflect a decline in home values, a slow commercial market, and an
increase in refinance transactions relative to purchase transactions. The fee per file tends to change as the mix of refinance and purchase transactions changes, because purchase transactions
generally involve the issuance of both a lender’s policy and an owner’s policy, resulting in higher fees, whereas refinance transactions typically only require a lender’s policy, resulting in
lower fees. Including the operations of the LFG Underwriters, closed order volumes and fee per file were 1,792,000 and $1,248 respectively, for the year ending December 31, 2009.
The increase in agency premiums was primarily due to our acquisition of the LFG Underwriters and high remittances compared to prior years. Excluding the title premiums generated
by the LFG Underwriters in 2009, agency title premiums increased $144.5 million, or 9.3%, in 2009 compared to 2008 and decreased $644.0 million, or 29%, in 2008 compared to 2007. The
increase in 2009 was primarily due to increased remittances and accrued agency premiums that were consistent with the increases in direct title premiums, partially offset by reductions in
agency relationships. The decrease in 2008 was primarily due to decreases in accrued agency premiums that were relatively consistent with the decreases in direct title premiums. The
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decrease in 2008 also includes a change in accounting estimate related to an accrual that is included in agency premium revenues and commissions. The accrual is based on estimates using
historical information of the volume of transactions that have closed in a particular period for which premiums have not yet been reported to us. The accrual for agency premiums is
necessary because of the lag between the closing of these transactions and the reporting of these policies to us by the agent. During 2008, we re-evaluated and refined the method that we use
to estimate this accrual, which resulted in a reduction in revenue from agency title insurance premiums of $138.5 million compared to the revenues that would have been accrued under our
prior method. The impact of this adjustment was a decrease of $11.8 million in pre-tax earnings and $7.6 million in net income, or approximately $0.04 per share, compared to the amounts
that would have been recorded under our prior method. We believe that this adjustment is properly reflected as a change in accounting estimate in 2008.
Escrow, title-related and other fees increased $281.6 million, or 26.3%, in 2009 compared to 2008 and increased $4.7 million, or less than 1% in 2008 compared to 2007. The increase
in 2009 is primarily due to the acquisition of the LFG Underwriters. Excluding the LFG Underwriters, escrow, title-related and other fees increased $116.5 million, or 11.3% in 2009
compared to 2008. Escrow fees are more directly related to our direct operations and fluctuate in a pattern generally consistent with the fluctuation in direct title insurance premiums and
order counts. Excluding the LFG Underwriters, escrow fees, increased $78.1, or 7.6% in 2009 compared to 2008. The percentage increase in escrow fees was greater than the percentage
increase in direct premiums primarily as a result of an increase in residential direct title premiums, for which escrow fees are proportionately higher, and a decrease in commercial direct title
premiums, for which escrow fees are proportionately lower. Other fees increased $38.4 million or 3.7% for the year ended December 31, 2009 due to an increase in the division of our
business that manages real estate owned by financial institutions as well as recent acquisitions.
Interest and investment income levels are primarily a function of securities markets, interest rates and the amount of cash available for investment. Interest and investment income
was $154.5 million, $134.0 million, and $184.2 million for the years ended December 31, 2009, 2008, and 2007, respectively. Average invested assets were $4,288.8 million,
$3,545.5 million, and $4,415.0 million for the years ended December 31, 2009, 2008, and 2007, respectively. The tax equivalent yield, excluding realized gains and losses, was 4.4%, 4.3%,
and 5.0% for the years ended December 31, 2009, 2008, and 2007, respectively.
Net realized gains (losses) were $27.4, $(22.5) million, and $18.5 million for the years ended December 31, 2009, 2008, and 2007, respectively. The net realized gain for the year
ended December 31, 2009, included impairment charges totaling $6.9 million on equity securities that were deemed to be other-than-temporarily impaired, net realized gains on sales of
investments of $22.8 million, and net gains on sales of other assets of $4.6 million. The net realized loss for the year ended December 31, 2008, included impairment charges totaling
$59.0 million on fixed maturity and equity securities and other investments that were deemed to be other-than-temporarily impaired, net realized gains on sales of investments of
$4.4 million, net gains on sales of other assets of $7.3 million, and a gain of $24.8 million on the sale of 20% of our interest in Sedgwick. During the year ended December 31, 2007, we
recorded impairment charges on equity security investments that we considered to be other-than-temporarily impaired of $3.1 million with the remainder of net realized gains each made up
of a number of gains and losses on various transactions, none of which were individually significant.
Expenses.
Our operating expenses consist primarily of personnel costs, other operating expenses, which in our title insurance business are incurred as orders are received and processed, and
agent commissions, which are incurred as revenue is recognized. Title insurance premiums, escrow and other title-related fees are generally recognized as income at the time the underlying
transaction closes. As a result, direct title operations revenue lags approximately 45-60 days behind expenses and therefore gross margins may fluctuate. The changes in the market
environment, mix of business between direct and agency operations and the contributions from our various business units have impacted margins and net earnings. We have implemented
programs and have
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taken necessary actions to maintain expense levels consistent with revenue streams. However, a short time lag exists in reducing variable costs, and certain fixed costs are incurred regardless
of revenue levels.
Personnel costs include base salaries, commissions, benefits, stock-based compensation and bonuses paid to employees, and are one of our most significant operating expenses.
Personnel costs totaled $1,649.8 million, $1,322.0 million, and $1,668.6 million for the years ended December 31, 2009, 2008 and 2007, respectively. Personnel costs as a percentage of total
revenues were 28.3%, 31.1%, and 30.5% for the years ended December 31, 2009, 2008, and 2007, respectively. The increase in personnel costs in 2009 was primarily due to the acquisition
of the LFG Underwriters and an increase in order volumes. The increase included a $23.9 million synergy bonus earned in 2009 by certain executives upon realizing the Company’s synergy
goals with respect to the acquisition of the LFG Underwriters. The decrease in personnel costs in 2008 was primarily due to employee reductions in the Fidelity National Title Group and
corporate and other business segments, partially offset by an increase in the specialty insurance segment. On a consolidated basis, we reduced our full-time equivalent employees by about
2,100 during 2008 and 3,100 during 2007. Included in personnel costs is stock-based compensation expense of $33.7 million, $32.7 million, and $29.9 million for the years ended
December 31, 2009, 2008, and 2007, respectively.
Other operating expenses consist primarily of facilities expenses, title plant maintenance, premium taxes (which insurance underwriters are required to pay on title premiums in lieu
of franchise and other state taxes), postage and courier services, computer services, professional services, travel expenses, general insurance, and trade and notes receivable allowances. Other
operating expenses were $1,343.5 million, $1,179.8 million, and $1,078.8 million for the years ended December 31, 2009, 2008, and 2007, respectively, with an increase of $176.4 million in
the Fidelity National Title Group segment due to the acquisition of the LFG Underwriters, less than $0.1 million change in the specialty insurance segment, and a decrease of $12.8 million in
the corporate and other segment.
Agent commissions represent the portion of premiums retained by agents pursuant to the terms of their respective agency contracts. Agent commissions and the resulting percentage
of agent premiums we retain vary according to regional differences in real estate closing practices and state regulations.
The following table illustrates the relationship of agent title premiums and agent commissions:
Year Ended December 31,
2008
Amount
%
(Dollars in millions)

2009
Amount

Agent title premiums
Agent commissions
Net

$
$

2,452.3
1,951.7
500.6

%

100.0%
79.6
20.4%

$
$

1,554.7
1,218.0
336.7

100.0%
78.3
21.7%

2007
Amount

$
$

2,198.7
1,698.2
500.5

%

100.0%
77.2
22.8%

Net margin from agency title insurance premiums we retain as a percentage of total agency premiums decreased from 21.7% in 2008 to 20.4% in 2009. This is primarily due to the
acquisition of the agency relationships associated with the LFG Underwriters, for which the agent retained commission was consistently higher than that of legacy FNF agency relationships.
Net margin from agency title insurance premiums we retain as a percentage of total agency premiums remained relatively consistent from 2007 to 2008.
Depreciation and amortization expense was $109.2 million, $122.1 million, and $127.9 million for the years ended December 31, 2009, 2008, and 2007, respectively. The decrease in
2009 reflects a decrease in the Fidelity National Title Group segment by $14.5 million offset by increases in the specialty insurance segment by $0.2 million and $1.4 million in the corporate
and other segment. The decrease in 2008 reflects decreases in the Fidelity National Title Group and specialty insurance segments, partially offset by increases in the corporate and other
segment. The increases in the corporate and other segment in 2009 and in 2008 reflect recent acquisitions.
The provision for claim losses includes an estimate of anticipated title and title-related claims, escrow losses and claims relating to our specialty insurance segment. We monitor our
claims loss experience on a
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continual basis and adjust the provision for claim losses accordingly as new information becomes known, new loss patterns emerge, or as other contributing factors are considered and
incorporated into the analysis of the reserve for claim losses. The provision for claim loss for the years ended December 31, 2009, 2008, and 2007, was comprised of $264.7 million,
$491.0 million, and $502.3 million, respectively, from the Fidelity National Title Group segment and $127.9 million, $139.4 million, and $151.6 million, respectively, from the specialty
insurance segment. The provision for claim losses is discussed in further detail at the segment level below.
Interest expense for the years ended December 31, 2009, 2008, and 2007 was $36.7 million, $58.6 million, and $52.9 million, respectively. The decrease in 2009 was primarily due to
a decrease in interest rates on our floating rate debt and repurchase of several bonds during the year. The increase in 2008 was primarily due to increased borrowings resulting from our
investment in Ceridian during the fourth quarter of 2007 and 2008 borrowings used for general corporate purposes.
Income tax expense (benefit) was $106.8 million, $(119.9) million, and $50.3 million for the years ended December 31, 2009, 2008, and 2007, respectively. Income tax expense
(benefit) as a percentage of earnings (loss) before income taxes for the years ended December 31, 2009, 2008, and 2007 was 31.0%, 42.9%, and 27.1%, respectively. The fluctuation in
income tax expense (benefit) as a percentage of earnings (loss) before income taxes is attributable to our estimate of ultimate income tax liability, and changes in the characteristics of net
earnings (loss) year to year, such as the weighting of operating income versus investment income. Income tax benefit as a percentage of loss before income taxes was higher than normal for
the year ended December 31, 2008, due to the fact that, in periods when a net loss is recognized, the effect of tax-exempt interest income is reversed. Generally, when pretax income is
recognized, tax-exempt income has the effect of lowering the effective tax rate whereas, when a pretax loss is recognized, tax-exempt income has the effect of increasing the effective tax
rate.
Equity in (losses) earnings of unconsolidated affiliates was $(11.7) million, $(13.4) million, and $0.8 million for the years ended December 31, 2009, 2008, and 2007, and primarily
consisted of our equity in the net (losses) earnings of Ceridian, Remy, and Sedgwick.
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Segment Results of Operations
Fidelity National Title Group
The following table presents certain financial data for the years indicated:
2009

Revenues:
Direct title insurance premiums
Agency title insurance premiums
Escrow, title-related and other fees
Interest and investment income
Realized gains and losses, net
Total revenue
Expenses:
Personnel costs
Other operating expenses
Agent commissions
Depreciation and amortization
Provision for claim losses
Interest expense
Total expenses
Earnings (loss) before income taxes and equity in (loss) earnings of unconsolidated affiliates

$

$

1,475.3
2,452.3
1,300.6
138.4
27.0
5,393.6
1,565.3
1,140.6
1,951.7
100.5
264.7
0.8
5,023.6
370.0

Year Ended December 31,
2008
(Dollars in millions)

$

$

1,140.3
1,554.7
1,034.3
120.2
(32.9)
3,816.6
1,253.6
964.3
1,218.0
115.0
491.0
5.7
4,047.6
(231.0)

2007

$

$

1,601.8
2,198.7
1,034.5
164.9
5.1
5,005.0
1,594.5
891.8
1,698.1
120.2
502.3
14.6
4,821.5
183.5

Total revenues in 2009 increased $1,577.0 million, an increase of 41.3% compared to 2008. Total revenues in 2008 decreased $1,188.4 million to $3,816.6 million, a decrease of
23.7% compared to 2007. For an analysis of this segment’s revenues, see the analysis of direct and agency title insurance premiums and escrow and other title-related fees under
“Consolidated Results of Operations.”
Interest and investment income levels are primarily a function of securities markets, interest rates and the amount of cash available for investment. Interest and investment income for
the years ended December 31, 2009, 2008 and 2007, was $138.4 million, $120.2 million, and $164.9 million, respectively. The increase in 2009 compared to 2008 was primarily the result of
an increased investment portfolio resulting from the acquisition of the LFG Underwriters, partially offset by declines in short-term interest rates and a decrease in interest income attributable
to the securities lending program. The decrease in 2008 compared to 2007 was the result of decreases in both average invested assets and a decrease in interest rates. For the years ended
December 31, 2009, 2008, and 2007, average invested assets were $3,864.6 million, $3,104.7 million, and $3,791.4 million, respectively, and the tax equivalent yield, excluding realized
gains and losses, was 4.8%, 4.4%, and 5.3%, respectively.
Net realized gains and losses for the years ended December 31, 2009, 2008, and 2007 were $27.0 million, $(32.9) million, and $5.1 million, respectively. Net realized gains and losses
recorded in the year ended December 31, 2009, included impairment charges of $6.9 million, net realized gains on investments of $24.6 million, and net gains from sales of other assets of
$2.4 million. Net realized gains and losses recorded in the year ended December 31, 2008, included impairment charges of $48.8 million on fixed maturity and equity securities and other
investments that were deemed other-than-temporarily impaired, net realized gains on investments of $15.0 million, and net gains from sales of other assets of $0.9 million. The impairment
charges relating to the fixed maturity securities primarily related to our conclusion that the credit risk relating to the holdings was high and thus the assets are likely permanently impaired.
The impairment charges relating
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to the equity securities were based on the duration of the unrealized loss and inability to predict the time to recover if the investment continued to be held. For the year ended December 31,
2007, realized gains and losses were each made up of a number of gains and losses on various transactions, none of which were individually significant.
Personnel costs include base salaries, commissions, benefits and bonuses paid to employees, and are one of our most significant operating expenses. Personnel costs totaled
$1,565.3 million, $1,253.6 million, and $1,594.5 million for the years ended December 31, 2009, 2008, and 2007, respectively. The increase in 2009 resulted from the acquisition of the LFG
Underwriters and an increase in order volumes. The decreases in 2008 resulted from decreases in the number of personnel implemented in response to the decline in order volumes and from
decreases in average annualized personnel costs per employee. Personnel costs, as a percentage of direct title insurance premiums and escrow, title-related and other fees, were 56.4% in
2009, 57.6% in 2008, and 60.5% in 2007. Average employee count increased to 14,661 in 2009 from 13,957 in 2008 primarily due to the addition of the LFG Underwriters. Average
employee count decreased in 2008 from 16,416 in 2007 primarily due to headcount reduction initiatives in 2008.
Other operating expenses consist primarily of facilities expenses, title plant maintenance, premium taxes (which insurance underwriters are required to pay on title premiums in lieu
of franchise and other state taxes), postage and courier services, computer services, professional services, advertising expenses, general insurance, and trade and notes receivable allowances.
Other operating expenses totaled $1,140.6 million, $964.3 million, and $891.8 million for the years ended December 31, 2009, 2008 and 2007, respectively. Other operating expenses as a
percentage of direct title insurance premiums and escrow, title-related and other fees were 41.1% in 2009, 44.3% in 2008, and 33.8% in 2007. Other operating expenses for the years ended
December 31, 2009, 2008 and 2007, included $5.3 million, $23.4 million and $13.0 million, respectively, in abandoned lease charges relating to office closures. The increase in other
operating expenses in 2009 is primarily the result of the acquisition of the LFG Underwriters. The increase in other operating expenses in 2008 included a decrease of $101.4 million in
benefits related to our escrow balances, which are reflected as an offset to other operating expenses, equal increases in revenues and expenses of $75.7 million associated with a division of
our business that manages real estate owned by financial institutions, and recent acquisitions. These increases were partially offset by operating expense reductions in our core title operations
as we continue to cut costs in response to the decrease in title insurance and other title-related activity. As a result of holding customers’ assets in escrow, we have ongoing programs for
realizing economic benefits. Those economic benefits related to escrow balances decreased in 2009 and 2008 due to decreases in escrow balances, decreases in short-term interest rates and
increases in the portion of those benefits derived from tax exempt income.
Agent commissions represent the portion of premiums retained by agents pursuant to the terms of their respective agency contracts. Agent commissions and the resulting percentage
of agent premiums we retain vary according to regional differences in real estate closing practices and state regulations.
The provision for claim losses includes an estimate of anticipated title and title-related claims and escrow losses. The estimate of anticipated title and title-related claims is accrued as
a percentage of title premium revenue based on our historical loss experience and other relevant factors. We monitor our claims loss experience on a continual basis and adjust the provision
for claim losses accordingly as new information becomes known, new loss patterns emerge, or as other contributing factors are considered and incorporated into the analysis of the reserve
for claim losses. The claim loss provision for title insurance was $201.5 million, $491.0 million, and $502.3 million for the years ended December 31, 2009, 2008, and 2007, respectively.
These amounts reflected average claim loss provision rates of 7.25%, 8.5%, and 7.5% of title premiums for the years ended December 31, 2009, 2008, and 2007, respectively, and also
included additional credits/charges as follows:
For the year ended December 31, 2009, a credit of $74.4 million was recorded due to favorable claim loss development on prior policy years. During September and October 2009,
there were developments, including two court rulings, relating to coverages under certain insurance policies that caused us to reevaluate our position on maintaining a recorded insurance
recoverable. The fact that we received an adverse ruling in our case against the insurer on our Comprehensive General Liability policy together with a reevaluation of our
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position by new legal counsel, caused us to reverse $63.2 million of the receivable, recorded as a charge to the provision for claim losses, during the quarter ended September 30, 2009. We
also received a favorable summary judgment relating to an insurance providers’ duty to defend the Company under our Miscellaneous Professional Liability policy. In light of these
developments, we did not believe it appropriate to carry more than the anticipated $20 million recovery for compensatory damages on the Miscellaneous Professional Liability policy as a
receivable as of September 30, 2009. During the quarter ended December 31, 2009, the Company paid an additional $8.8 million in respect of these claims and received payments of
$11.8 million relating to the Miscellaneous Professional Liability Policy and continued to negotiate with the carrier who had been found to act in bad faith under the terms of that policy. As
of December 31, 2009, we carried an $8.2 million receivable related to these coverages. Subsequent to December 31, 2009, we reached a settlement agreement with the same carrier for an
additional $16.2 million, representing the remaining $8.2 million receivable and $8 million in compensatory damages. The $16.2 million settlement amount was received in February 2010.
Our claim loss provision as a percentage of total title premiums was 5.1%, 18.2%, and 13.2% for the years ended December 31, 2009, 2008, and 2007, respectively. For the year
ended December 31, 2009, in response to lower than anticipated claims experience, we decreased our claim loss provision rate from 8.5% to 7.0% at year-end, with an average claim loss
provision rate of 7.25% for the year. For the year ended December 31, 2008, in response to greater than anticipated claims experience, we increased our claim loss provision rate from 7.5%
to 8.5% of total title premiums. In addition, for the year ended December 31, 2008, an additional charge of $261.6 million was recorded due to a change in our actuarial model which
resulted, in part, from adverse claim loss development on prior policy years, and, for the year ended December 31, 2007, additional charges totaling $217.2 million resulted from adverse
claim loss development on prior policy years. See “Critical Accounting Estimates” for further discussion relating to our reserve for claim losses and the related charges. Our 2009 reserve
release in relation to prior policy year reserves was due in large part to changes in certain aspects of our approach to handling claims that we began to make in the fourth quarter of 2008. Key
changes implemented include a greater effort to collect contributions from agents that bear responsibility for losses, more stringent enforcement of documentation requirements for proof of
claims, a more efficient process for dealing with minor, technical claim matters, and a greater focus on hiring counsel with lower rates. Our claims paid, since this initiative, have declined.
We have also continued, in 2009, a process of reducing our total number of agents, with a focus in part on cancelling agents that have higher claims ratios and/or low remittances. These
measures are collectively designed to reduce our claims expenses. We have taken similar measures with respect to the LFG Underwriters we recently acquired.
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Specialty Insurance Segment
The following table presents certain financial data for the years indicated:
2009

Revenues:
Premium Revenue
Interest and investment income
Realized gains and losses, net
Total revenue
Expenses:
Personnel costs
Other operating expenses
Depreciation and amortization
Provision for claim losses
Interest expense
Total expenses
Earnings before income taxes and equity in earnings of unconsolidated affiliates

$

$

366.0
12.3
1.9
380.2
45.3
158.3
5.1
127.9
—
336.6
43.6

Year Ended December 31,
2008
(Dollars in millions)

$

$

373.4
12.9
(3.0)
383.3
45.2
158.2
4.9
139.5
0.5
348.3
35.0

2007

$

$

386.4
16.2
—
402.6
45.5
145.0
6.0
151.6
1.5
349.6
53.0

Revenues from specialty insurance include revenues from the issuance of flood, homeowners’, automobile, and other personal lines insurance policies and home warranty policies. In
our flood insurance business, we provide coverage under the National Flood Insurance Program, which is the U.S. federal flood insurance program, and receive fees for selling policies and
for assistance in settling claims. Specialty insurance revenues were $380.2 million, $383.3 million, and $402.6 million for the years ended December 31, 2009, 2008, and 2007, respectively.
The decrease in revenues in 2009 compared to 2008 was due to a decrease in the homeowners’ and flood insurance lines of business partially offset by an increase in the home warranty line
of business. The decrease in revenues in 2008 compared to 2007 was due to decreases in revenues from the homeowners’ and automobile insurance and home warranty lines of business and
to a decrease in interest and investment income, partially offset by an increase in flood revenues.
Flood revenues decreased $2.8 million, or 1.8%, in 2009 compared to 2008, due to the inclusion of claims processing revenue related to the 2008 hurricane season in 2008. Flood
revenues increased $11.9 million, or 8.2%, in 2008 compared to 2007, reflecting volume and rate increases, and claims processing revenues related to the 2008 hurricane season, partially
offset by a decrease in the annual marketing incentive bonus received from the Federal Emergency Management Agency.
Revenues from the homeowners’ and automobile insurance lines of business decreased $9.5 million, or 6.4%, in 2009 compared to 2008, due to tighter underwriting standards, the
elimination of certain unprofitable agents and territories, and a lower real estate market overall. Revenues from the homeowners’ and automobile insurance lines of business decreased
$20.1 million, or 11.9%, in 2008 compared to 2007, reflecting a declining housing market and a decrease in volume as we have undergone efforts to tighten our underwriting standards and
eliminate unprofitable agents and territories.
Revenues from the home warranty line of business increased $5.0 million, or 7.6%, in 2009 due to increased market share in California and Arizona. The home warranty line of
business decreased $4.9 million, or 6.9%, in 2008 compared to 2007, primarily due to the decrease in real estate transaction volumes.
Personnel costs were $45.3 million, $45.2 million, and $45.5 million for the years ended December 31, 2009, 2008, and 2007, respectively. As a percentage of total specialty
insurance revenues, personnel costs were 11.9% in 2009, 11.8% in 2008, and 11.3% in 2007.
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Other operating expenses in the specialty insurance segment were $158.3 million, $158.2 million, and $145.0 million for the years ended December 31, 2009, 2008, and 2007,
respectively. Other operating expenses were 41.6% of specialty revenue in 2009. Other operating expenses in 2007 were impacted by the results of an internal review of our treatment of
certain costs relating to insurance policies issued by our specialty insurance segment, in the course of which we determined that certain costs should be deferred and amortized over the life of
the policy consistent with the recognition of the premiums. We recorded an adjustment as of March 31, 2007, increasing prepaid and other assets and reducing other operating expenses by
$12.2 million, representing amounts that should have been deferred as of March 31, 2007 on policies issued over the prior twelve months. This adjustment is not material to our financial
position or results of operations for any previously reported annual periods. Excluding this adjustment, other operating expenses as a percentage of revenues was 41.3% in 2008 and 36.0% in
2007, with the increase in 2008 primarily due to increases in premium tax expense and commission expense in the homeowners’ and flood insurance businesses.
The provision for claim loss expense was $127.9 million, $139.4 million, and $151.6 million for the years ended December 31, 2009, 2008, and 2007, respectively. The decrease in
2009 reflects the decreased homeowners’ and automobile insurance business. The decrease in 2008 reflects the decreased business in the homeowners’ and automobile insurance and home
warranty businesses. As a percentage of premiums earned, the claim loss provision was 60.7% in 2009, 64.8% in 2008, and 63.9% in 2007.
A summary of the reserve for claim losses is as follows:
2009

Beginning balance
Claim loss provision related to:
Current year
Prior years
Total claim loss provision
Claims paid, net of recoupments related to:
Current year
Prior years
Total claims paid, net of recoupments
Ending balance

$

$

59.6

Year Ended December 31,
2008
(Dollars in millions)

$

65.8

2007

$

65.8

136.3
(8.4)
127.9

148.8
(9.4)
139.4

165.6
(14.0)
151.6

(99.9)
(35.0)
(134.9)
52.6

(106.5)
(39.1)
(145.6)
59.6

(115.7)
(35.9)
(151.6)
65.8

$

$

Corporate and Other Segment
The corporate and other segment is primarily comprised of the operations of our parent holding company and smaller entities not included in our operating segments. It generated
pretax losses of $68.7 million, $83.7 million, and $51.2 million for the years ended December 31, 2009, 2008, and 2007, respectively. During 2008, we sold 20% of our interest in Sedgwick
(reducing our interest in Sedgwick from 40% to 32%) for proceeds of $53.9 million, resulting in a gain of $24.8 million in the corporate and other segment. Interest expense in this segment
was $35.9 million, $52.4 million, and $36.8 million for the years ended December 31, 2009, 2008, and 2007, respectively. The decrease in 2009 was primarily due to a decrease in interest
rates on our floating rate debt and repurchase of several bonds during 2009. The increase in 2008 was primarily due to increased borrowings resulting from our investment in Ceridian during
the fourth quarter of 2007 and 2008 borrowings used for general corporate purposes. Additionally, during 2008, we recorded $4.0 million in impairment charges to intangible assets in the
corporate and other segment.
Liquidity and Capital Resources
Cash Requirements. Our current cash requirements include operating expenses, taxes, payments of interest and principal on our debt, capital expenditures, business acquisitions,
dividends on our common stock,
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and the repurchase of shares of our common stock. Our Board of Directors reduced our quarterly dividend from $0.30 per share to $0.15 per share, or approximately $33.8 million per
quarter, effective in the fourth quarter of 2008. We continually assess our capital allocation strategy, including decisions relating to the amount of our dividend, reducing debt, repurchasing
our stock, and/or conserving cash. The declaration of any future dividends is at the discretion of our Board of Directors. We believe that all anticipated cash requirements for current
operations will be met from internally generated funds, through cash dividends from subsidiaries, cash generated by investment securities, potential sales of non-strategic assets, borrowings
on existing credit facilities, and possible issuances of debt, equity, or hybrid securities under our existing universal shelf registration statement. Our short-term and long-term liquidity
requirements are monitored regularly to ensure that we can meet our cash requirements. We forecast the needs of all of our subsidiaries and periodically review their short-term and long-term
projected sources and uses of funds, as well as the asset, liability, investment and cash flow assumptions underlying such forecasts.
Our insurance subsidiaries generate cash from premiums earned and their respective investment portfolios and these funds are adequate to satisfy the payments of claims and other
liabilities. Due to the magnitude of our investment portfolio in relation to our claims loss reserves, we do not specifically match durations of our investments to the cash outflows required to
pay claims, but do manage outflows on a shorter time frame.
Our two significant sources of internally generated funds are dividends and other payments from our subsidiaries. As a holding company, we receive cash from our subsidiaries in the
form of dividends and as reimbursement for operating and other administrative expenses we incur. The reimbursements are paid within the guidelines of management agreements among us
and our subsidiaries. Our insurance subsidiaries are restricted by state regulation in their ability to pay dividends and make distributions. Each state of domicile regulates the extent to which
our title underwriters can pay dividends or make distributions. As of December 31, 2009, $2,435.3 billion of our net assets were restricted from dividend payments without prior approval
from the relevant departments of insurance. During 2010, our first tier title insurance subsidiaries can pay or make distributions to us of approximately $289.4 million without prior
regulatory approval. Our underwritten title companies and non-title insurance subsidiaries collect revenue and pay operating expenses. However, they are not regulated to the same extent as
our insurance subsidiaries.
The maximum dividend permitted by law is not necessarily indicative of an insurer’s actual ability to pay dividends, which may be constrained by business and regulatory
considerations, such as the impact of dividends on surplus, which could affect an insurer’s ratings or competitive position, the amount of premiums that can be written and the ability to pay
future dividends. Further, depending on business and regulatory conditions, we may in the future need to retain cash in our underwriters or even contribute cash to one or more of them in
order to maintain their ratings or their statutory capital position. Such a requirement could be the result of investment losses, reserve charges, adverse operating conditions in the current
economic environment or changes in interpretation of statutory accounting requirements by regulators.
We are focused on evaluating our non-core assets and investments as potential vehicles for creating liquidity. Our intent is to use that liquidity for general corporate purposes,
including payment of dividends as declared by the Board of Directors and potentially reducing debt, repurchasing shares of our stock, and/or conserving cash.
Our cash flows provided by operations for the years ended December 31, 2009, 2008, and 2007 were $380.3 million, $4.6 million, and $341.1 million, respectively. Cash provided by
(used in) operations in the year ended December 31, 2009, 2008, and 2007 included $1.1 million, $(54.9) million, and $(36.4) million of payments net of recoupments from insurers to settle
a group of related claims for third party losses. Beginning in 2007, we began making payments on a group of related claims alleging negligence and fraud related to issuing title insurance
policies and closing escrow transactions. We believed that we had the ability to recoup all of these payments, subject to a $10 million retention, from various insurance policies. Through
December 31, 2007, we had paid approximately $51.9 million in claims, had received cash recoupment from insurance carriers of approximately $15.5 million and had an insurance
recoverable of $31.4 million included in the Consolidated Balance Sheet. Through March 31, 2008, we had paid an additional $79.3 million in claims, had received an additional
$27.5 million in cash recoupment from insurance carriers and had an
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insurance recoverable of $78.2 million included in the Consolidated Balance Sheet. During the remainder of 2008 and through the third quarter of 2009 there were approximately
$8.2 million in claims payments and approximately $3.2 million in insurance recoveries resulting in an $83.2 million insurance recoverable included in the Consolidated Balance Sheet at that
time. During September and October 2009, there were developments, including two court rulings, relating to coverages under certain insurance policies that caused us to reevaluate our
position on maintaining a recorded insurance recoverable. The fact that we received an adverse ruling in our case against the insurer on our Comprehensive General Liability policy together
with a reevaluation of our position by new legal counsel, caused us to reverse $63.2 million of the receivable, recorded as a charge to the provision for claim losses, during the quarter ended
September 30, 2009. We also received a favorable summary judgment relating to an insurance providers’ duty to defend the Company under our Miscellaneous Professional Liability policy.
In light of these developments, we did not believe it appropriate to carry more than the anticipated $20 million recovery for compensatory damages on the Miscellaneous Professional
Liability policy as a receivable as of September 30, 2009. During the quarter ended December 31, 2009, the Company paid an additional $8.8 million in respect of these claims and received
payments of $11.8 million relating to the Miscellaneous Professional Liability Policy and continued to negotiate with the carrier who had been found to act in bad faith under the terms of that
policy. As of December 31, 2009, we carried an $8.2 million receivable related to these coverages. Subsequent to December 31, 2009, we reached a settlement agreement with the same
carrier for an additional $16.2 million, representing the remaining $8.2 million receivable and $8 million in compensatory damages. The $16.2 million settlement amount was received in
February 2010.
Capital Expenditures. Total capital expenditures for property and equipment were $50.8 million, $84.2 million, and $83.9 million for the years ended December 31, 2009, 2008, and
2007, respectively. For the years ended December 31, 2009, 2008 and 2007, capital expenditures included $21.0 million, $60.6 million and $36.8 million, respectively, for the purchase of
assets leased to others, including FIS. The decrease from 2008 to 2009 is due to the sale of FN Capital in 2009, at which the majority of these asset purchases leased to others were related.
Total capital expenditures for software were $7.1 million, $17.1 million, and $29.3 million in 2009, 2008, and 2007, respectively.
Financing. Effective October 24, 2006, we entered into a credit agreement (the “Credit Agreement”) with Bank of America, N.A. as Administrative Agent and Swing Line Lender,
and the other financial institutions party thereto (“the Lenders”). Effective October 11, 2007, we exercised an option to increase the size of the credit facility by an additional $300 million.
The Credit Agreement, which replaced our previous credit agreement, provides for a $1.1 billion unsecured revolving credit facility, including the $300 million increase, maturing on the fifth
anniversary of the closing date. Amounts under the revolving credit facility may be borrowed, repaid and reborrowed from time to time until the maturity of the revolving credit facility.
Voluntary prepayment of the revolving credit facility under the Credit Agreement is permitted at any time without fee upon proper notice and subject to a minimum dollar requirement.
Revolving loans under the credit facility bear interest at a variable rate based on either (i) the higher of (a) a rate per annum equal to one-half of one percent in excess of the Federal Reserve’s
Federal Funds rate, or (b) Bank of America’s “prime rate” or (ii) a rate per annum equal to the British Bankers Association London Interbank Offered Rate (“LIBOR”) plus a margin of
between 0.23%-0.675%, depending on our then current senior unsecured long-term debt rating from the rating agencies. In addition, we pay a commitment fee between 0.07%-0.175% on the
entire facility, also depending on our senior unsecured long-term debt rating. During 2009, we repaid $185 million on the credit facility. As of December 31, 2009, we had outstanding debt
with a principal amount of $400 million under the Credit Agreement, bearing interest at 0.73%.
Subsequent to year-end, we entered into negotiations with the Lenders to amend and extend the maturity of our $1.1 billion unsecured revolving credit facility that was scheduled to
mature in October 2011. We expect to finalize these negotiations during March of 2010. The total size of the credit facility is expected to be reduced to $900 million, with an option to
increase the size of the credit facility to $1.1 billion and the maturity date is expected to be extended to March 2013. Pricing under the credit facility is expected to be increased to an
applicable margin between 110 basis points to 190 basis points, depending on the senior debt rating of FNF. At the current Moody’s and Standard & Poor’s senior debt ratings of Baa3 and
BBB-,
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respectively, the applicable margin is 150 basis points. The applicable margin will increase by 50 basis points at the previous maturity date of October 24, 2011. Other significant terms of the
original credit agreement are expected to remain consistent.
The Credit Agreement contains affirmative, negative and financial covenants customary for financings of this type, including, among other things, limits on the creation of liens, sales
of assets, the incurrence of indebtedness, restricted payments, transactions with affiliates, and certain amendments. The Credit Agreement prohibits us from paying dividends to our
stockholders if an event of default has occurred and is continuing or would result therefrom. The Credit Agreement requires us to maintain certain financial ratios and levels of capitalization.
The Credit Agreement includes customary events of default for facilities of this type (with customary grace periods, as applicable). These events of default include a cross-default provision
that, subject to limited exceptions, permits the lenders to declare the Credit Agreement in default if: (i) (A) we fail to make any payment after the applicable grace period under any
indebtedness with a principal amount (including undrawn committed amounts) in excess of 3% of our net worth, as defined in the Credit Agreement, or (B) we fail to perform any other term
under any such indebtedness, or any other event occurs, as a result of which the holders thereof may cause it to become due and payable prior to its maturity; or (ii) certain termination events
occur under significant interest rate, equity or other swap contracts. The Credit Agreement provides that, upon the occurrence of an event of default, the interest rate on all outstanding
obligations will be increased and payments of all outstanding loans may be accelerated and/or the lenders’ commitments may be terminated. In addition, upon the occurrence of certain
insolvency or bankruptcy related events of default, all amounts payable under the Credit Agreement shall automatically become immediately due and payable, and the lenders’ commitments
will automatically terminate.
On December 22, 2008, in connection with the acquisition of the LFG Underwriters, we entered into a $50 million subordinated note payable to LFG, due December 2013. This note
bears interest at 2.36%, payable annually. Subsequent to year end, on March 1, 2010, we paid approximately $49 million to the LFG Liquidation Trust in full satisfaction of this obligation.
Our outstanding debt also includes $165.5 million aggregate principal amount of our 7.30% notes due 2011 and $245.2 million aggregate principal amount of our 5.25% notes due
2013. These notes contain customary covenants and events of default for investment grade public debt.
We lend fixed maturity and equity securities to financial institutions in short-term security lending transactions. Our security lending policy requires that the cash received as
collateral be 102% or more of the fair value of the loaned securities. At December 31, 2009, we had security loans outstanding with fair values totaling of $25.6 million. Securities loaned
under such transactions may be sold or re-pledged by the transferee. We were liable for cash collateral under our control of $26.5 million at December 31, 2009, which has been included in
cash and in accounts payable and accrued liabilities.
Seasonality. Historically, real estate transactions have produced seasonal revenue levels for title insurers. The first calendar quarter is typically the weakest quarter in terms of
revenue due to the generally low volume of home sales during January and February. The third calendar quarter has been typically the strongest in terms of revenue primarily due to a higher
volume of home sales in the summer months and the fourth calendar quarter is usually also strong due to commercial entities desiring to complete transactions by year-end. In the past three
years, we have seen a divergence from these historical trends as tighter lending standards, including a significant reduction in the availability of mortgage lending, combined with rising
default levels and a bearish outlook on the real estate environment have caused potential home buyers to be more reluctant to buy homes and have suppressed refinance activity.
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Contractual Obligations. Our long term contractual obligations generally include our loss reserves, our credit agreements and other debt facilities and operating lease payments on
certain of our premises and equipment. As of December 31, 2009, our required annual payments relating to these contractual obligations were as follows:
2010

Notes payable
Operating lease payments
Pension payments
Title claim losses
Specialty insurance claim losses
Other benefit payments
Total

$

0.7
135.5
11.8
409.8
35.6
5.2
$ 598.6

2011

$

$

565.7
99.6
11.4
337.9
10.2
3.4
1,028.2

2012

$

0.3
66.2
11.5
266.0
5.1
3.5
$ 352.6

2013
(In millions)

$ 295.2
34.8
11.5
206.9
1.7
3.6
$ 553.7

2014

$

—
20.8
11.6
161.8
—
3.3
$ 197.5

Thereafter

$

$

—
94.3
94.4
1,106.4
—
16.9
1,312.0

Total

$

$

861.9
451.2
152.2
2,488.8
52.6
35.9
4,042.6

As of December 31, 2009, we had title insurance reserves of $2,488.8 million. The amounts and timing of these obligations are estimated and are not set contractually. Nonetheless,
based on historical title insurance claim experience, we anticipate the above payment patterns. While we believe that historical loss payments are a reasonable source for projecting future
claim payments, there is significant inherent uncertainty in this payment pattern estimate because of the potential impact of changes in:
•

future mortgage interest rates, which will affect the number of real estate and refinancing transactions and, therefore, the rate at which title insurance claims will emerge;

•

the legal environment whereby court decisions and reinterpretations of title insurance policy language to broaden coverage could increase total obligations and influence claim
payout patterns;

•

events such as fraud, defalcation, multiple property title defects and individual large loss events that can substantially and unexpectedly cause increases in both the amount and
timing of estimated title insurance loss payments;

•

loss cost trends whereby increases or decreases in inflationary factors (including the value of real estate) will influence the ultimate amount of title insurance loss payments; and

•

claims staffing levels whereby claims may be settled at a different rate based on the future staffing levels of the claims department.

The uncertainty and variation in the timing and amount of claim payments could have a material impact on our cash flows from operations in a particular period.
In addition to our title insurance reserves, at December 31, 2009, we held claim reserves of $52.6 million in our specialty insurance business segment. There is also uncertainty with
respect to the precise payout pattern of these reserves, which we have estimated in the table above based on historical experience.
Capital Stock Transactions. On April 14, 2009, we offered 15,800,000 shares of common stock at an offering price of $19.00 per share, pursuant to an effective registration statement
previously filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission. The underwriters were granted and chose to exercise an option to purchase additional shares equal to 15% of the offering, or
2,370,000 shares, at the offering price. A total of 18,170,000 shares was issued on April 20, 2009, for net proceeds of approximately $331.4 million. The proceeds were used as follows:
$135.0 million to repay borrowings under our $1.1 billion revolving credit facility, $71.5 million to repurchase our public bonds, $50.8 million to repurchase shares of our common stock,
$25.0 million as part of a $57.1 million capital infusion into Lawyers Title and Commonwealth Land Title, and the remainder for general corporate purposes.
On October 25, 2006, our Board of Directors approved a three-year stock repurchase program under which we can repurchase up to 25 million shares of our common stock. On
July 21, 2009, our Board of
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Directors approved a new three-year stock repurchase program under which we can repurchase up to 15 million shares through July 31, 2012. We may make repurchases from time to time in
the open market, in block purchases or in privately negotiated transactions, depending on market conditions and other factors. During 2009, we repurchased a total of 4,320,750 shares of our
common stock for $57.1 million, or an average of $13.21 per share under the plan approved on October 25, 2006. Since the original commencement of the plan adopted in October 2006, and
through September 2009, we repurchased a total of 17,161,120 shares for $286.2 million, or an average of $16.68 per share. This included 1,000,000 shares which we repurchased in 2007
from our Chairman of the Board, William P. Foley, II. In August 2007, Mr. Foley planned to sell 1,000,000 shares of FNF stock on the open market. Because we were actively repurchasing
shares of our stock on the open market at the same time, we agreed to repurchase 1,000,000 shares from Mr. Foley on August 8, 2007, for $22.1 million, or $22.09 per share, the market price
at the time of the repurchase. In October 2009, we began repurchasing shares under the program approved July 21, 2009, and, through December 31, 2009, we had repurchased a total of
1,294,400 shares for $17.9 million, or an average of $13.83 per share. Subsequent to year-end, on January 4, 2010, we purchased 859,866 shares of our common stock for $11.6 million from
the administrator of two of our former subsidiaries employee benefit plans. Because we were actively repurchasing shares of our stock on the open market as part of the stock repurchase
plan, we agreed to purchase the shares at a price of $13.46 per share, the market price at the time of purchase.
Additional Minimum Pension Liability Adjustment. We recorded a net-of-tax charge of $2.8 million to accumulated other comprehensive income in 2009 for the change in our
minimum pension liability.
Equity Security Investments. Our equity security investments are in companies whose values are subject to significant volatility. Should the fair value of these investments fall below
our cost basis and/or the financial condition or prospects of these companies deteriorate, we may determine in a future period that this decline in fair value is other-than-temporary, requiring
that an impairment loss be recognized in the period such a determination is made. During the year ended December 31, 2009, we recorded impairment charges of $6.9 million related to
equity security investments that we determined were other-than-temporarily impaired.
On October 1, 2009, pursuant to an investment agreement between us and FIS dated March 31, 2009 (the “Investment Agreement”), we invested a total of $50.0 million in FIS
common stock in connection with a merger between FIS and Metavante Technologies, Inc. Under the terms of the Investment Agreement, we purchased 3,215,434 shares of FIS’s common
stock at a price of $15.55 per share. We are required to hold this investment for a period of at least 6 months from the date of purchase in accordance with Securities and Exchange
Commission Rule 144. Additionally, we received a transaction fee of $1.5 million from FIS. The fair value of this investment was $75.4 million as of December 31, 2009.
Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements. We do not engage in off-balance sheet activities other than facility and equipment leasing arrangements. On June 29, 2004, Old FNF entered into
an off-balance sheet financing arrangement (commonly referred to as a “synthetic lease”). The owner/lessor in this arrangement acquired land and various real property improvements
associated with new construction of an office building in Jacksonville, Florida that is part of our corporate campus and headquarters. The lease expires on June 28, 2011, with renewal subject
to consent of the lessor and the lenders. The lessor is a third-party limited liability company. The synthetic lease facility provides for amounts up to $75.0 million. As of December 31, 2009,
the full $75 million had been drawn on the facility to finance land costs and related fees and expenses and the outstanding balance was $70.1 million. The lease includes guarantees by us of
up to 86.7% of the outstanding lease balance, and options to purchase the facilities at the outstanding lease balance. The guarantee becomes effective if we decline to purchase the facilities at
the end of the lease and also decline to renew the lease. The lessor financed the acquisition of the facilities through funding provided by third-party financial institutions. We have no
affiliation or relationship with the lessor or any of its employees, directors or affiliates, and our transactions with the lessor are limited to the operating lease agreement and the associated rent
expense that is included in other operating expenses in the Consolidated Statements of Operations. We do not believe the lessor is a variable interest entity, as defined in the FASB’s standard
on consolidation of variable interest entities.
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In conducting our operations, we routinely hold customers’ assets in escrow, pending completion of real estate transactions. Certain of these amounts are maintained in segregated
bank accounts and have not been included in the Consolidated Balance Sheets. As a result of holding these customers’ assets in escrow, we have ongoing programs for realizing economic
benefits during the year through favorable borrowing and vendor arrangements with various banks. There were no investments or loans outstanding as of December 31, 2009 related to these
arrangements.
Recent Accounting Pronouncements
For a description of recent accounting pronouncements, see note R of Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements included elsewhere herein.
Item 7A.

Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosure about Market Risk

In the normal course of business, we are routinely subject to a variety of risks, as described in the Risk Factors section of this Annual Report on Form 10-K and in our other filings
with the Securities and Exchange Commission. For example, we are exposed to the risk that decreased real estate activity, which depends in part on the level of interest rates, may reduce our
title insurance revenues.
The risks related to our business also include certain market risks that may affect our debt and other financial instruments. At present, we face the market risks associated with our
marketable equity securities subject to equity price volatility and with interest rate movements on our outstanding debt and fixed income investments.
We regularly assess these market risks and have established policies and business practices designed to protect against the adverse effects of these exposures.
At December 31, 2009, we had $861.9 million in long-term debt, of which $401.2 million bears interest at a floating rate. Our fixed maturity investments and borrowings are subject
to an element of market risk from changes in interest rates. Increases and decreases in prevailing interest rates generally translate into decreases and increases in fair values of those
instruments. Additionally, fair values of interest rate sensitive instruments may be affected by the creditworthiness of the issuer, prepayment options, relative values of alternative
investments, the liquidity of the instrument and other general market conditions. We manage interest rate risk through a variety of measures. We monitor our interest rate risk and make
investment decisions to manage the perceived risk. However, we do not currently use derivative financial instruments in any material amount to hedge these risks.
Equity price risk is the risk that we will incur economic losses due to adverse changes in equity prices. In the past, our exposure to changes in equity prices primarily resulted from
our holdings of equity securities. At December 31, 2009, we held $92.5 million in marketable equity securities (not including our equity method investments such as Sedgwick, Ceridian, and
Remy, which amounted to $617.1 million at December 31, 2009). The balance of equity securities is primarily composed of an investment in FIS stock of $50.0 million, which we purchased
on October 1, 2009, pursuant to an investment agreement between us and FIS dated March 31, 2009 in connection with a merger between FIS and Metavante Technologies, Inc. We are
required to hold this investment for a period of at least 6 months from the date of purchase in accordance with Securities and Exchange Commission Rule 144. The fair value of the FIS stock
was $75.4 million as of December 31, 2009. The carrying values of investments subject to equity price risks are based on quoted market prices as of the balance sheet date. Market prices are
subject to fluctuation and, consequently, the amount realized in the subsequent sale of an investment may significantly differ from the reported market value. Fluctuation in the market price
of a security may result from perceived changes in the underlying economic characteristics of the investee, the relative price of alternative investments and general market conditions.
Furthermore, amounts realized in the sale of a particular security may be affected by the relative quantity of the security being sold.
For purposes of this Annual Report on Form 10-K, we perform a sensitivity analysis to determine the effects that market risk exposures may have on the fair values of our debt and
other financial instruments.
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The financial instruments that are included in the sensitivity analysis with respect to interest rate risk include fixed maturity investments and notes payable. The financial instruments
that are included in the sensitivity analysis with respect to equity price risk include marketable equity securities. With the exception of our equity method investments, it is not anticipated
that there would be a significant change in the fair value of other long-term investments or short-term investments if there were a change in market conditions, based on the nature and
duration of the financial instruments involved.
To perform the sensitivity analysis, we assess the risk of loss in fair values from the effect of hypothetical changes in interest rates and equity prices on market-sensitive instruments.
The changes in fair values for interest rate risks are determined by estimating the present value of future cash flows using various models, primarily duration modeling. The changes in fair
values for equity price risk are determined by comparing the market price of investments against their reported values as of the balance sheet date.
Information provided by the sensitivity analysis does not necessarily represent the actual changes in fair value that we would incur under normal market conditions because, due to
practical limitations, all variables other than the specific market risk factor are held constant. For example, our reserve for claim losses (representing 54.9% of total liabilities at December 31,
2009) is not included in the hypothetical effects.
We have no market risk sensitive instruments entered into for trading purposes; therefore, all of our market risk sensitive instruments were entered into for purposes other than
trading. The results of the sensitivity analysis at December 31, 2009, and December 31, 2008, are as follows:
Interest Rate Risk
At December 31, 2009, an increase (decrease) in the levels of interest rates of 100 basis points, with all other variables held constant, would result in a (decrease) increase in the fair
value of our fixed maturity securities of $112.5 million as compared with a (decrease) increase of $96.7 million at December 31, 2008.
Additionally, for the year ended December 31, 2009, an increase (decrease) of 100 basis points in the levels of interest rates, with all other variables held constant, would result in an
increase (decrease) in the interest expense on our average outstanding floating rate debt of $4.4 million as compared to an increase (decrease) of $4.3 million for the year ended December 31,
2008.
Equity Price Risk
At December 31, 2009, a 20% increase (decrease) in market prices, with all other variables held constant, would result in an increase (decrease) in the fair value of our equity
securities portfolio of $18.5 million, as compared with an increase (decrease) of $14.3 million at December 31, 2008. At December 31, 2009, a 20% increase (decrease) in the market price of
FIS stock, with all other variables held constant, would result in an increase (decrease) in the fair value of our equity securities portfolio of $14.9 million.
Other
In addition to our equity securities, fixed maturity investments and borrowings, we invested in structured notes during 2009 with a par value of $75.0 million and fair value of
$78.7 million at December 31, 2009. These instruments are subject to market risks including commodity price risks, foreign currency risks and interest rate risks. The fair value of these
instruments represents exit prices obtained from a proprietary valuation model utilized by the trading desk of a broker-dealer. The fair value of the structured notes is subject to various
assumptions utilized in the valuation model, some of which include the level of interest rates, and the underlying value of the relevant indexes, exchange-traded funds, and foreign currencies.
The structured notes are held for general investment purposes and represent less than two percent of our total investment portfolio. In part because of the relatively small size of this
investment, we do not believe that an adverse change in the relevant commodity prices, foreign exchange rates or interest rates on which the value of the notes depends would likely have a
material effect on our financial position, and therefore we have not provided a sensitivity analysis for these items.
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM
The Board of Directors and Stockholders
Fidelity National Financial, Inc.:
We have audited Fidelity National Financial, Inc.’s internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2009, based on criteria established in Internal Control — Integrated
Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission (COSO). Fidelity National Financial, Inc.’s management is responsible for maintaining
effective internal control over financial reporting and for its assessment of the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting, included in the accompanying Management’s Report
on Internal Control over Financial Reporting. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company’s internal control over financial reporting based on our audit.
We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the
audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether effective internal control over financial reporting was maintained in all material respects. Our audit included obtaining an understanding of
internal control over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the
assessed risk. Our audit also included performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our
opinion.
A company’s internal control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of
financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company’s internal control over financial reporting includes those policies and
procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide
reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts
and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding
prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the company’s assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.
Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect misstatements. Also, projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future
periods are subject to the risk that controls may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.
In our opinion, Fidelity National Financial, Inc. maintained, in all material respects, effective internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2009, based on criteria
established in Internal Control — Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission.
We also have audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States), the Consolidated Balance Sheets of Fidelity National
Financial, Inc. and subsidiaries as of December 31, 2009 and 2008, and the related Consolidated Statements of Operations, Comprehensive Earnings, Equity and Cash Flows for each of the
years in the three-year period ended December 31, 2009, and our report dated March 1, 2010 expressed an unqualified opinion on those Consolidated Financial Statements.

/s/ KPMG LLP
March 1, 2010
Jacksonville, Florida
Certified Public Accountants
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM
The Board of Directors and Stockholders
Fidelity National Financial, Inc.:
We have audited the accompanying Consolidated Balance Sheets of Fidelity National Financial, Inc. and subsidiaries as of December 31, 2009 and 2008, and the related Consolidated
Statements of Operations, Comprehensive Earnings, Equity and Cash Flows for each of the years in the three-year period ended December 31, 2009. These Consolidated Financial
Statements are the responsibility of the Company’s management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these Consolidated Financial Statements based on our audits.
We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the
audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts
and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall
financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.
In our opinion, the Consolidated Financial Statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of Fidelity National Financial, Inc. and
subsidiaries as of December 31, 2009 and 2008, and the results of their operations and their cash flows for each of the years in the three-year period ended December 31, 2009, in conformity
with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles.
We also have audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States), Fidelity National Financial, Inc.’s internal control over
financial reporting as of December 31, 2009, based on criteria established in Internal Control — Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the
Treadway Commission (COSO), and our report dated March 1, 2010 expressed an unqualified opinion on the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control over financial reporting.

/s/ KPMG LLP
March 1, 2010
Jacksonville, Florida
Certified Public Accountants
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FIDELITY NATIONAL FINANCIAL, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
December 31,
2009
2008
(In millions, except share
data)
ASSETS
Investments:
Fixed maturities available for sale, at fair value, at December 31, 2009 and 2008, includes pledged fixed maturities of $249.5 and $267.4, respectively, related to secured trust deposits and $25.6 and
$103.6, respectively, related to the securities lending program
Equity securities, at fair value
Investments in unconsolidated affiliates
Other long-term investments
Short-term investments, at December 31, 2009 and 2008, includes $39.2 and $115.2, respectively, of pledged short-term investments related to secured trust deposits
Total investments
Cash and cash equivalents, at December 31, 2009 and 2008, includes pledged cash of $96.8 and $109.6, respectively, related to secured trust deposits and $26.5 and $107.6, respectively, related to the
securities lending program
Trade and notes receivables, net of allowance of $29.5 and $32.6 at December 31, 2009 and 2008, respectively
Goodwill
Prepaid expenses and other assets
Capitalized software, net
Other intangible assets, net
Title plants
Property and equipment, net
Income taxes receivable
Deferred tax assets
Total assets

$

$

3,524.2
92.5
617.1
103.5
348.1
4,685.4
202.1
254.1
1,455.2
332.0
56.0
166.9
407.5
189.8
56.5
128.9
7.934.4

$

$

2,853.8
71.5
644.5
18.3
788.4
4,376.5
315.3
290.7
1,581.7
632.4
85.7
92.5
431.6
307.2
115.4
139.2
8,368.2

LIABILITIES AND EQUITY

Liabilities:
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities, at December 31, 2009 and 2008, includes $26.5 and $107.6, respectively, of security loans related to the securities lending program
Accounts payable to related parties
Deferred revenue
Notes payable
Reserve for claim losses
Secured trust deposits
Total liabilities
Equity:
Common stock, Class A, $0.0001 par value; authorized, 600,000,000 shares as of December 31, 2009 and 2008; issued 249,713,996 shares and 228,391,066 shares at December 31, 2009 and 2008,
respectively
Preferred stock, $0.0001 par value; authorized, 50,000,000 shares; issued and outstanding, none
Additional paid-in capital
Retained earnings (deficit)
Accumulated other comprehensive earnings (loss)
Less treasury stock, 19,496,888 shares and 13,488,288 shares as of December 31, 2009 and 2008, respectively, at cost
Total Fidelity National Financial, Inc. shareholders’ equity
Noncontrolling interests
Total equity
Total liabilities and equity

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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$

$

696.0
6.9
110.0
861.9
2,541.4
373.3
4,589.5
—
—
3,712.1
(102.4)
35.6
(319.4)
3,325.9
19.0
3,344.9
7,934.4

$

$

828.9
10.0
109.0
1,350.8
2,738.6
474.1
5,511.4
—
—
3,325.2
(188.9)
(91.8)
(238.9)
2,805.6
51.2
2,856.8
8,368.2
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FIDELITY NATIONAL FINANCIAL, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS
Year Ended December 31,
2009
2008
2007
(In millions, except share data)
Revenues:
Direct title insurance premiums
Agency title insurance premiums
Escrow, title-related and other fees
Specialty insurance
Interest and investment income
Realized gains and losses, net
Total Revenues
Expenses:
Personnel costs
Other operating expenses
Agent commissions
Depreciation and amortization
Provision for claim losses
Interest expense
Total Expenses
Earnings (loss) from continuing operations before income tax expense (benefit) and equity in (loss) earnings of unconsolidated affiliates
Income tax expense (benefit) on continuing operations
Earnings (loss) from continuing operations before equity in earnings (loss) of unconsolidated affiliates
Equity in (loss) earnings of unconsolidated affiliates
Net earnings (loss) from continuing operations
Net loss from discontinued operations, net of tax
Net earnings (loss)
Less: Net earnings (loss) attributable to noncontrolling interests
Net earnings (loss) attributable to Fidelity National Financial, Inc. common shareholders
Earnings per share
Basic
Net earnings (loss) from continuing operations attributable to Fidelity National Financial, Inc. common shareholders
Net loss from discontinued operations attributable to Fidelity National Financial, Inc. common shareholders
Net earnings (loss) attributable to Fidelity National Financial, Inc. common shareholders
Weighted average shares outstanding, basic basis
Diluted
Net earnings (loss) from continuing operations attributable to Fidelity National Financial, Inc. common shareholders
Net loss from discontinued operations attributable to Fidelity National Financial, Inc. common shareholders
Net earnings (loss) attributable to Fidelity National Financial, Inc. common shareholders
Weighted average shares outstanding, diluted basis
Dividends per share
Amounts attributable to Fidelity National Financial, Inc., common shareholders:
Net earnings (loss) from continuing operations, net of tax, attributable to Fidelity National Financial, Inc. common shareholders
Net loss from discontinued operations, net of tax, attributable to Fidelity National Financial, Inc. common shareholders
Net earnings (loss) attributable to Fidelity National Financial, Inc. common shareholders

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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$

$

1,475.3
2,452.3
1,352.9
366.0
154.5
27.4
5,828.4

$

1,649.8
1,343.5
1,951.7
109.2
392.6
36.7
5,483.5
344.9
106.8
238.1
(11.7)
226.4
(1.9)
224.5
2.2
222.3

$
$

$
$
$
$
$

$

$

1,140.3
1,554.7
1,071.3
373.4
134.0
(22.5)
4,251.2

$

1,322.0
1,179.8
1,218.0
122.1
630.4
58.6
4,530.9
(279.7)
(119.9)
(159.8)
(13.4)
(173.2)
(10.0)
(183.2)
(4.2)
(179.0)

1.00
(0.01)
0.99
224.7

$

0.98
(0.01)
0.97
228.5
0.60

$

224.1
(1.8)
222.3

$

$

$
$

$

$

$

1,601.8
2,198.7
1,076.0
386.4
184.2
18.5
5,465.6

$

1,668.6
1,078.8
1,698.2
127.9
653.9
52.9
5,280.3
185.3
50.3
135.0
0.8
135.8
(6.0)
129.8
—
129.8

(0.83)
(0.02)
(0.85)
210.0

$

(0.83)
(0.02)
(0.85)
210.0
1.05

$

(173.7)
(5.3)
(179.0)

$

$

$
$

$

0.62
(0.02)
0.60
216.6
0.61
(0.02)
0.59
220.0
1.20
133.4
(3.6)
129.8
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FIDELITY NATIONAL FINANCIAL, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE EARNINGS
2009

Net earnings (loss)
Other comprehensive earnings (loss):
Unrealized gain (loss) on investments and other financial instruments, net (excluding investments in unconsolidated affiliates)
Unrealized loss relating to investments in unconsolidated affiliates
Unrealized gain (loss) on foreign currency translation
Reclassification adjustments for (gains) losses included in net earnings
Minimum pension liability adjustment
Other comprehensive earnings (loss)
Comprehensive earnings (loss)
Less: Comprehensive earnings (loss) attributable to noncontrolling interests
Comprehensive earnings (loss) attributable to Fidelity National Financial Inc. common shareholders
See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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Year Ended December 31,
2008
(In millions)

2007

$ 224.5

$ (183.2)

$ 129.8

123.4
(5.0)
11.1
(4.9)
2.8
127.4
351.9
2.2
$ 349.7

(37.6)
(45.1)
(7.6)
33.1
(17.9)
(75.1)
(258.3)
(4.2)
$ (254.1)

44.5
—
2.4
(11.2)
10.7
46.4
176.2
—
$ 176.2
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FIDELITY NATIONAL FINANCIAL, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF EQUITY
Fidelity National Financial, Inc. Common Shareholders
Accumulated
Additional
Retained
Other
Paid-In
Earnings
Comprehensive
Capital
(Deficit)
Earnings (Loss)
(In millions)

Common Stock
Shares
Amount

Balance, December 31, 2006
Exercise of stock options
Treasury Stock repurchased
Tax benefit associated with the exercise of stock options
Issuance of restricted stock
Other comprehensive earnings — unrealized gain on foreign currency
Other comprehensive earnings — unrealized gain on investments and other financial instruments
Other comprehensive earnings — minimum pension liability adjustment
Stock-based compensation
De-consolidation of previous majority-owned subsidiary
Shares withheld for taxes and in treasury
Cash dividends
Subsidiary dividends paid to noncontrolling interests
Net earnings
Balance, December 31, 2007
Acquisition of LandAmerica title insurance subsidiaries
Exercise of stock options
Treasury Stock repurchased
Tax benefit associated with stock-based compensation
Issuance of restricted stock
Other comprehensive earnings — unrealized loss on investments in unconsolidated affiliates
Other comprehensive earnings — unrealized loss on foreign currency
Other comprehensive earnings — unrealized loss on investments and other financial instruments
Other comprehensive earnings — minimum pension liability adjustment
Stock-based compensation
De-consolidation of previous majority-owned subsidiary
Shares withheld for taxes and in treasury
Cash dividends
Subsidiary dividends paid to noncontrolling interests
Net loss
Balance, December 31, 2008
Equity offering
Exercise of stock options
Treasury Stock repurchased
Tax benefit associated with the exercise of stock options
Issuance of restricted stock
Other comprehensive earnings — unrealized gain on investments and other financial instruments (excluding
investments in unconsolidated affiliates)
Other comprehensive earnings — unrealized loss on investments in unconsolidated affiliates
Other comprehensive earnings — unrealized gain on foreign currency
Other comprehensive earnings — minimum pension liability adjustment
Stock-based compensation
De-consolidation of previous majority-owned subsidiary
Shares withheld for taxes and in treasury
Cash dividends
Subsidiary dividends paid to noncontrolling interests
Net earnings
Balance, December 31, 2009

221.5
1.1
—
—
0.5
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
223.1
3.2
0.7
—
—
1.4
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
228.4
18.2
2.1
—
—
1.0
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
249.7

$

$

$

$

—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—

$

$

$

$

3,193.9
8.4
—
4.7
—
—
—
—
29.9
—
—
—
—
—
3,236.9
50.0
5.3
—
0.3
—
—
—
—
—
32.7
—
—
—
—
—
3,325.2
331.4
19.4
—
2.4
—
—
—
—
—
33.7
—
—
—
—
—
3,712.1

$

$

$

$

345.6
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
(262.2)
—
129.8
213.2
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
(223.1)
—
(179.0)
(188.9)
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
(135.8)
—
222.3
(102.4)

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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$

$

$

$

Treasury Stock
Shares
Amount

(63.1)
—
—
—
—
2.4
33.3
10.7
—
—
—
—
—
—
(16.7)
—
—
—
—
—
(45.1)
(7.6)
(4.5)
(17.9)
—
—
—
—
—
—
(91.8)
—
—
—
—
—

—
—
9.7
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
0.3
—
—
—
10.0
—
—
3.2
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
0.3
—
—
—
13.5
—
—
5.6
—
—

$

(2.0)
—
(183.2)
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
(4.1)
—
—
—
$ (189.3)
—
—
(45.9)
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
(3.7)
—
—
—
$ (238.9)
—
—
(74.9)
—
—

118.5
(5.0)
11.1
2.8
—
—
—
—
—
—
35.6

—
—
—
—
—
—
0.4
—
—
—
19.5

—
—
—
—
—
—
(5.6)
—
—
—
$ (319.4)

Noncontrolling
Interests

$

$

$

$

56.0
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
(0.3)
—
—
(2.0)
0.2
53.9
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
6.0
—
—
(3.6)
(5.1)
51.2
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
(31.2)
—
—
(3.2)
2.2
19.0

Total Equity

$

$

$

$

3,530.4
8.4
(183.2)
4.7
—
2.4
33.3
10.7
29.9
(0.3)
(4.1)
(262.2)
(2.0)
130.0
3,298.0
50.0
5.3
(45.9)
0.3
—
(45.1)
(7.6)
(4.5)
(17.9)
32.7
6.0
(3.7)
(223.1)
(3.6)
(184.1)
2,856.8
331.4
19.4
(74.9)
2.4
—
118.5
(5.0)
11.1
2.8
33.7
(31.2)
(5.6)
(135.8)
(3.2)
224.5
3,344.9
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FIDELITY NATIONAL FINANCIAL, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
2009

Cash Flows From Operating Activities:
Net earnings (loss) attributable to Fidelity National Financial, Inc. common shareholders
Adjustments to reconcile net earnings (loss) to net cash provided by operating activities:
Depreciation and amortization
Noncontrolling interest
Equity in loss (earnings) of unconsolidated affiliates
(Gain) loss on sales of investments and other assets, net
Stock-based compensation cost
Tax benefit associated with the exercise of stock options
Transaction fee income
Changes in assets and liabilities, net of effects from acquisitions:
Net decrease (increase) in pledged cash, pledged investments and secured trust deposits
Net decrease in trade receivables
Net decrease (increase) in prepaid expenses and other assets
Net decrease in accounts payable, accrued liabilities, deferred revenue and other
Net (decrease) increase in reserve for claim losses
Net increase (decrease) in income taxes
Net cash provided by operating activities
Cash Flows From Investing Activities:
Proceeds from sales of investment securities available for sale
Proceeds from maturities of investment securities available for sale
Proceeds from sales of assets
Collections of notes receivable
Cash expended as collateral on loaned securities, net
Additions to title plants
Additions to property and equipment
Additions to capitalized software
Additions to notes receivable
Purchases of investment securities available for sale
Purchases of other long-term investments
Net proceeds from (purchases of) short-term investment activities
Distributions from (contributions to) investments in unconsolidated affiliates
Proceeds from the sale of partial interest in Sedgwick CMS
Net proceeds from the sale of FN Capital
Acquisition of businesses, net of cash acquired
Net cash used in investing activities
Cash Flows From Financing Activities:
Equity offering
Borrowings
Debt service payments
Debt issuance costs
Dividends paid
Subsidiary dividends paid to noncontrolling interest shareholders
Exercise of stock options
Tax benefit associated with the exercise of stock options
Purchases of treasury stock
Net cash (used in) provided by financing activities
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents, excluding pledged cash related to secured trust deposits
Cash and cash equivalents, excluding pledged cash related to secured trust deposits, at beginning of year
Cash and cash equivalents, excluding pledged cash related to secured trust deposits, at end of year

$

$

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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Year Ended December 31,
2008
2007
(In millions)

222.3

$ (179.0)

$

129.8

127.6
2.2
11.7
(23.1)
33.7
(2.4)
—

142.8
(4.2)
13.4
22.2
32.7
(0.3)
—

130.1
—
(0.8)
(18.5)
29.9
(4.7)
(12.3)

5.9
48.6
32.3
(80.9)
(135.9)
138.3
380.3

(0.7)
27.6
(65.2)
(115.6)
202.9
(72.0)
4.6

2.4
22.3
(20.2)
(87.8)
199.3
(32.5)
337.0

849.0
341.1
53.8
1.3
(3.1)
(1.9)
(50.8)
(7.1)
(12.1)
(1,838.5)
(75.0)
369.8
3.6
—
49.2
(47.9)
(368.6)

632.6
292.1
3.7
4.2
(3.6)
(6.0)
(84.2)
(17.1)
(1.0)
(570.7)
—
(185.6)
—
53.9
—
(143.2)
(24.9)

4,632.6
466.7
8.1
8.6
(3.1)
(11.5)
(83.9)
(29.3)
(1.0)
(5,168.0)
—
421.0
(509.2)
—
—
(245.8)
(514.8)

331.4
147.0
(398.4)
—
(135.8)
(3.2)
19.4
2.4
(74.9)
(112.1)
(100.4)
205.7
105.3

—
380.4
(263.5)
—
(223.1)
(3.6)
5.3
0.3
(45.9)
(150.1)
(170.4)
376.1
$ 205.7

—
570.5
(29.4)
(0.9)
(262.2)
(2.0)
8.4
4.7
(183.2)
105.9
(71.9)
448.0
376.1

$
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FIDELITY NATIONAL FINANCIAL, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Note A.

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

The following describes the significant accounting policies of Fidelity National Financial, Inc. and its subsidiaries (collectively, “We,” “Us,” “Our,” or “FNF”) which have been
followed in preparing the accompanying Consolidated Financial Statements.
Description of Business
We are a holding company that is a provider, through our subsidiaries, of title insurance, specialty insurance, claims management services, and information services. We are the
nation’s largest title insurance company through our title insurance underwriters — Fidelity National Title, Chicago Title, Commonwealth Land Title, Lawyers Title, Ticor Title, Security
Union Title, and Alamo Title — which collectively issued more title insurance policies in 2008 than any other title company in the United States. We also provide flood insurance, personal
lines insurance and home warranty insurance through our specialty insurance subsidiaries. We are a leading provider of outsourced claims management services to large corporate and public
sector entities through our minority-owned affiliate, Sedgwick CMS Holdings (“Sedgwick”) and a provider of information services in the human resources, retail, and transportation markets
through another minority-owned affiliate, Ceridian Corporation (“Ceridian”).
Prior to October 24, 2006, we were known as Fidelity National Title Group, Inc. (“FNT”) and were a majority-owned subsidiary of another publicly traded company, also called
Fidelity National Financial, Inc. (“Old FNF”). On October 24, 2006, Old FNF transferred certain assets, including its specialty insurance business, its interest in certain claims management
operations, certain timber and real estate holdings, certain smaller operations, cash and certain investment assets, to us in return for the issuance of 45,265,956 shares of our common stock to
Old FNF. Old FNF then distributed to its shareholders all of its shares of our common stock, making FNT a standalone public company (the “2006 Distribution”). On November 9, 2006, Old
FNF was then merged with and into another of its subsidiaries, Fidelity National Information Services, Inc. (“FIS”), after which we changed our name to Fidelity National Financial, Inc. On
November 10, 2006, our common stock began trading on the New York Stock Exchange under the trading symbol “FNF.” As a result of these transactions, our Chairman of the Board is also
executive Chairman of the Board of FIS and other members of our Board of Directors and our management serve in similar capacities at FIS.
We currently have three reporting segments as follows:
•

Fidelity National Title Group. This segment consists of the operation of our title insurance underwriters and related businesses. This segment provides core title insurance and
escrow and other title-related services including collection and trust activities, trustee’s sales guarantees, recordings and reconveyances.

•

Specialty Insurance. This segment consists of certain subsidiaries that issue flood, home warranty, homeowners’, automobile and other personal lines insurance policies.

•

Corporate and Other. This segment consists of the operations of the parent holding company, certain other unallocated corporate overhead expenses, other smaller operations,
and our share in the operations of certain equity method investments, including Sedgwick, Ceridian and Remy International, Inc. (“Remy”).

Principles of Consolidation and Basis of Presentation
The accompanying Consolidated Financial Statements are prepared in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles in the United States and include our accounts as well
as our wholly-owned and majority-owned subsidiaries. All intercompany profits, transactions and balances have been eliminated. Our investments in non-majority-owned partnerships and
affiliates are accounted for using the equity method until such time
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that they become wholly or majority-owned. Earnings attributable to noncontrolling interests are recorded on the Consolidated Statement of Operations relating to majority-owned
subsidiaries with the appropriate noncontrolling interest that represents the portion of equity not related to our ownership interest recorded on the Consolidated Balance Sheets in each period.
Discontinued Operations
On September 25, 2009, we closed on the sale of Fidelity National Capital, Inc. (“FN Capital”), a wholly-owned financing and leasing subsidiary, to Winthrop Resources Corporation.
Accordingly, the sale and results of FN Capital for periods prior to the sale are reflected in the financial statements as discontinued operations for all periods presented. Net proceeds to FNF
from the sale of FN Capital were $49.2 million. We recorded a pre-tax loss on the sale of $3.4 million ($2.2 million after tax). Total revenues from FN Capital included in discontinued
operations were $29.3 million, $32.1 million, and $4.2 million for the years ended December 31, 2009, 2008, and 2007, respectively. Pre-tax (loss) income included in discontinued
operations was $(2.1) million, $3.4 million, and $0.1 million for the years ended December 31, 2009, 2008, and 2007, respectively.
In February 2009, we transferred our ownership interest in FNRES Holdings, Inc. (“FNRES”) to LPS, a related party at the time, in exchange for all of the outstanding shares of
Investment Property Exchange Services, Inc. (“IPEX”), a company that facilitates real estate exchanges under Section 1031 of the Internal Revenue Code. The purchase price of IPEX was
approximately $43 million, which was the fair value of FNF’s 61% holdings in FNRES. The results of operations of FNRES are reflected as discontinued operations in the Consolidated
Statements of Operations. Discontinued operations included revenues from FNRES operations of $3.5 million, $45.8 million, and $53.4 million in the years ending December 31, 2009,
2008, and 2007, respectively. Discontinued operations included pre-tax losses related to FNRES operations of $0.5 million, $19.0 million, and $9.6 million in years ending December 31,
2009, 2008, and 2007, respectively.
Investments
Fixed maturity securities are purchased to support our investment strategies, which are developed based on factors including rate of return, maturity, credit risk, duration, tax
considerations and regulatory requirements. Fixed maturity securities which may be sold prior to maturity to support our investment strategies are carried at fair value and are classified as
available for sale as of the balance sheet dates. Fair values for fixed maturity securities are principally a function of current market conditions and are based on quoted market prices.
Discount or premium is recorded for the difference between the purchase price and the principal amount. The discount or premium is amortized or accreted using the interest method and is
recorded as an adjustment to interest and investment income. The interest method results in the recognition of a constant rate of return on the investment equal to the prevailing rate at the
time of purchase or at the time of subsequent adjustments of book value. Changes in prepayment assumptions are accounted for prospectively.
Equity securities are considered to be available for sale and carried at fair value as of the balance sheet dates. Fair values are based on quoted market prices.
Investments in unconsolidated affiliates are recorded using the equity method of accounting (see note D).
Other long-term investments consist primarily of structured notes, and are carried at fair value as of the balance sheet dates. Fair values are based on exit prices obtained from a
broker-dealer.
Short-term investments, which consist primarily of securities purchased under agreements to resell, commercial paper and money market instruments, which have an original maturity
of one year or less, are carried at amortized cost, which approximates fair value.
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Realized gains and losses on the sale of investments are determined on the basis of the cost of the specific investments sold and are credited or charged to income on a trade date
basis. Unrealized gains or losses on fixed maturity and equity securities which are classified as available for sale, net of applicable deferred income tax expenses (benefits), are excluded from
earnings and credited or charged directly to a separate component of equity. If any unrealized losses on fixed maturity or equity securities are deemed other-than-temporary, such unrealized
losses are recognized as realized losses. Unrealized losses are deemed other-than-temporary if factors exist that cause us to believe that the value will not increase to a level sufficient to
recover our cost basis. Some factors considered in evaluating whether or not a decline in fair value is other-than-temporary include: (i) our need and intent to sell the investment prior to a
period of time sufficient to allow for a recovery in value; (ii) the duration and extent to which the fair value has been less than cost; and (iii) the financial condition and prospects of the
issuer. Such reviews are inherently uncertain and the value of the investment may not fully recover or may decline in future periods resulting in a realized loss.
Cash and Cash Equivalents
Highly liquid instruments purchased as part of cash management with original maturities of three months or less are considered cash equivalents. The carrying amounts reported in
the Consolidated Balance Sheets for these instruments approximate their fair value.
Fair Value of Financial Instruments
The fair values of financial instruments presented in the Consolidated Financial Statements are estimates of the fair values at a specific point in time using available market
information and appropriate valuation methodologies. These estimates are subjective in nature and involve uncertainties and significant judgment in the interpretation of current market data.
Therefore, the fair values presented are not necessarily indicative of amounts we could realize or settle currently. We do not necessarily intend to dispose of or liquidate such instruments
prior to maturity.
Trade and Notes Receivables
The carrying values reported in the Consolidated Balance Sheets for trade and notes receivables approximate their fair value.
Goodwill
Goodwill represents the excess of cost over fair value of identifiable net assets acquired and assumed in a business combination. Goodwill and other intangible assets with indefinite
useful lives are tested for impairment annually or more frequently if circumstances indicate potential impairment, through a comparison of fair value to the carrying amount. In evaluating the
recoverability of goodwill, we perform an annual goodwill impairment test based on an analysis of the discounted future cash flows generated by the underlying assets.
We completed annual goodwill impairment tests in the fourth quarter of each respective year using a September 30 measurement date. Accordingly, no goodwill impairments have
been recorded. For the year ended December 31, 2009, we determined fair values substantially exceeded carrying values.
Capitalized Software
Capitalized software includes software acquired in business acquisitions, purchased software and internally developed capitalized software. Purchased software is recorded at cost and
amortized using the straight-line method over a three-year period and software acquired in a business acquisition is recorded at its
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fair value upon acquisition and amortized using straight-line and accelerated methods over its estimated useful life. After the technological feasibility of software to be developed internally
has been established, or at the beginning of application development, software development costs, which include salaries and related payroll costs and costs of independent contractors
incurred during development, are capitalized. Research and development costs incurred prior to the establishment of technological feasibility, or prior to software development, are expensed
as incurred. For internally developed software, software development costs are amortized on a product by product basis commencing on the date of general release of the products, generally
the greater of (1) the straight-line method over its estimated useful life, which ranges from three to seven years or (2) the ratio of current revenues to total anticipated revenue over estimated
useful life.
At December 31, 2009, capitalized software was $181.9 million, less accumulated amortization of $125.9 million. At December 31, 2008, capitalized software was $190.1 million,
less accumulated amortization of $104.4 million.
Amortization expense relating to computer software was $25.9 million, $27.4 million, and $21.3 million for the years ended December 31, 2009, 2008, and 2007, respectively.
Other Intangible Assets
We have other intangible assets, not including software, which consist primarily of customer relationships and contracts and trademarks which are generally recorded in connection
with acquisitions at their fair value. Intangible assets with estimable lives are amortized over their respective estimated useful lives to their estimated residual values and reviewed for
impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. Customer relationships are amortized over their estimated useful lives
using an accelerated method which takes into consideration expected customer attrition rates over a ten-year period. Contractual relationships are generally amortized over their contractual
life. Trademarks are considered intangible assets with indefinite lives and are reviewed for impairment at least annually.
During 2008, we determined that the carrying value of certain of our intangible assets, software and license fees may not be recoverable and recorded impairment expense of
$8.5 million, relating to the impairment of these assets. This expense amount was included in other operating expenses in the Consolidated Statement of Operations for the year ended
December 31, 2008. We recorded no impairment expense in 2009 or 2007.
Title Plants
Title plants are recorded at the cost incurred to construct or obtain and organize historical title information to the point it can be used to perform title searches. Costs incurred to
maintain, update and operate title plants are expensed as incurred. Title plants are not amortized as they are considered to have an indefinite life if maintained. Sales of title plants are
reported at the amount received net of the adjusted costs of the title plant sold. Sales of title plant copies are reported at the amount received. No cost is allocated to the sale of copies of title
plants unless the carrying value of the title plant is diminished or impaired. Title plants are reviewed for impairment whenever events or circumstances indicate that the carrying amounts may
not be recoverable. We completed annual goodwill impairment tests in the fourth quarter of each respective year and determined no impairments were necessary.
Property and Equipment
Property and equipment are recorded at cost, less depreciation. Depreciation is computed primarily using the straight-line method based on the estimated useful lives of the related
assets: thirty years for buildings and three to seven years for furniture, fixtures and equipment. Leasehold improvements are amortized on a straight-line basis over the lesser of the term of
the applicable lease or the estimated useful lives of such
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assets. Property and equipment are reviewed for impairment whenever events or circumstances indicate that the carrying amounts may not be recoverable.
Reserve for Claim Losses
Our reserve for claim losses includes known claims for title and specialty insurance as well as losses we expect to incur, net of recoupments. Each known claim is reserved based on
our review as to the estimated amount of the claim and the costs required to settle the claim. Reserves for claims which are incurred but not reported are established at the time premium
revenue is recognized based on historical loss experience and other factors, including industry trends, claim loss history, current legal environment, geographic considerations and type of
policy written. For specialty insurance, reserve for claims incurred but not reported are estimated based on historical loss experience.
The reserve for claim losses also includes reserves for losses arising from the escrow, closing and disbursement functions due to fraud or operational error.
If a loss is related to a policy issued by an independent agent, we may proceed against the independent agent pursuant to the terms of the agency agreement. In any event, we may
proceed against third parties who are responsible for any loss under the title insurance policy under rights of subrogation.
Secured Trust Deposits
In the state of Illinois, a trust company is permitted to commingle and invest customers’ assets with its own assets, pending completion of real estate transactions. Accordingly, our
Consolidated Balance Sheets reflect a secured trust deposit liability of $373.3 million and $474.1 million at December 31, 2009 and 2008, respectively, representing customers’ assets held by
us and corresponding assets including cash and investments pledged as security for those trust balances.
Income Taxes
We recognize deferred tax assets and liabilities for temporary differences between the financial reporting basis and the tax basis of our assets and liabilities and expected benefits of
utilizing net operating loss and credit carryforwards. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured using enacted tax rates expected to apply to taxable income in the years in which those
temporary differences are expected to be recovered or settled. The impact on deferred taxes of changes in tax rates and laws, if any, is applied to the years during which temporary differences
are expected to be settled and reflected in the financial statements in the period enacted.
Reinsurance
In a limited number of situations, we limit our maximum loss exposure by reinsuring certain risks with other insurers. We also earn a small amount of additional income, which is
reflected in our direct premiums, by assuming reinsurance for certain risks of other insurers. We cede a portion of certain policy and other liabilities under agent fidelity, excess of loss and
case-by-case reinsurance agreements. Reinsurance agreements provide that in the event of a loss (including costs, attorneys’ fees and expenses) exceeding the retained amounts, the reinsurer
is liable for the excess amount assumed. However, the ceding company remains primarily liable in the event the reinsurer does not meet its contractual obligations.
Revenue Recognition
Fidelity National Title Group. Direct title insurance premiums and escrow and other title-related fees are recognized as revenue at the time of closing of the related transaction as the
earnings process is considered complete, whereas premium revenues from agency operations and agency commissions include an accrual based on estimates of the volume of transactions
that have closed in a particular period for which premiums
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have not yet been reported to us. The accrual for agency premiums is necessary because of the lag between the closing of these transactions and the reporting of these policies to us by the
agent. During 2008, we re-evaluated and refined the method used to estimate this accrual, which resulted in a reduction in revenue from agency title insurance premiums of $138.5 million
compared to the revenues that would have been accrued under our prior method. The impact of this adjustment was a decrease of $11.8 million in pre-tax earnings and $7.6 million in net
income, or approximately $0.04 per share, compared to the amounts that would have been recorded under our prior method. We believe that this adjustment is properly reflected as a change
in accounting estimate in 2008.
Specialty Insurance. Revenues from home warranty and personal lines insurance policies are recognized over the life of the policy, which is one year. The unrecognized portion is
recorded as deferred revenue. Revenues and commissions related to the sale of flood insurance are recognized when the policy is reported.
Earnings Per Share
Basic earnings per share is computed by dividing net earnings available to common stockholders by the weighted average number of common shares outstanding during the period. In
periods when earnings are positive, diluted earnings per share is calculated by dividing net earnings available to common stockholders by the sum of the weighted average number of
common shares outstanding and the impact of assumed conversions of potentially dilutive securities. For periods when we recognize a net loss, diluted earnings per share is equal to basic
earnings per share as the impact of assumed conversions of potentially dilutive securities is considered to be anti-dilutive. We have granted certain options, warrants and restricted stock
which have been treated as common share equivalents for purposes of calculating diluted earnings per share for periods in which positive earnings have been reported.
The following table presents the computation of basic and diluted earnings per share:
2009

Basic and diluted net earnings (loss) from continuing operations attributable to FNF common shareholders
Basic and diluted net loss from discontinued operations attributable to FNF common shareholders
Basic and diluted net earnings (loss) attributable to FNF common shareholders

$
$

Weighted average shares outstanding during the period, basic basis
Plus: Common stock equivalent shares assumed from conversion of options
Weighted average shares outstanding during the period, diluted basis

Year Ended December 31,
2008
(In millions, except per share data)

224.1
(1.8)
222.3

$
$

224.7
3.8
228.5

Basic net earnings (loss) per share from continuing operations attributable to FNF common shareholders
Basic net loss from discontinued operations attributable to FNF common shareholders
Basic earnings (loss) per share attributable to FNF common shareholders
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$
$

1.00
(0.01)
0.99

(173.7)
(5.3)
(179.0)

2007

$
$

210.0
—
210.0
$
$

(0.83)
(0.02)
(0.85)

133.4
(3.6)
129.8
216.6
3.4
220.0

$
$

0.62
(0.02)
0.60
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2009

Diluted net earnings (loss) per share from continuing operations attributable to FNF common shareholders
Diluted net loss from discontinued operations attributable to FNF common shareholders
Diluted earnings (loss) per share attributable to FNF common shareholders

$
$

Year Ended December 31,
2008
(In millions, except per share data)

0.98
(0.01)
0.97

$
$

(0.83)
(0.02)
(0.85)

2007

$
$

0.61
(0.02)
0.59

For the years ended December 31, 2009, 2008, and 2007, options to purchase 10.2 million shares, 23.2 million shares and 5.4 million shares, respectively, of our common stock were
excluded from the computation of diluted earnings per share because they were anti-dilutive.
Transactions with Related Parties
We have historically conducted business with FIS and its subsidiaries. On July 2, 2008, FIS completed the spin-off of its lender processing services segment into a separate publicly
traded company, Lender Processing Services, Inc. (“LPS”). As part of the spin-off of LPS, a number of the agreements that were previously between FNF and FIS were amended and
renegotiated to reflect the revised relationships between FNF and FIS and the new relationships between FNF and LPS. Effective March 15, 2009, William P. Foley, II, retired from his
position as an officer and director of LPS. Prior to March 15, 2009, Mr. Foley was the Chairman of the Board of LPS. Also at that time, Daniel D. (Ron) Lane and Cary H. Thompson, retired
from the LPS Board of Directors. As a result, as of March 15, 2009, LPS is no longer a related party and activity between FNF and LPS subsequent to that date is not included in our
disclosures of transactions with related parties.
Agreements with FIS
A summary of the agreements that were in effect with FIS through December 31, 2009, is as follows:
•

Technology (“IT”), data processing services and software development services from FIS. These agreements govern IT support services and software development provided to us
by FIS, primarily consisting of infrastructure support and data center management. Subject to certain early termination provisions (including the payment of minimum monthly
service and termination fees), the agreement expires on or about June 30, 2013 with an option to renew for one or two additional years.

•

Administrative corporate support and cost-sharing services to and from FIS. We have provided certain administrative corporate support services such as general management,
corporate aviation and other administrative support services to FIS. On a lesser scale, FIS has provided similar support services to us. The pricing of these administrative services
is at cost. The administrative corporate services agreements expire in July 2010, subject to extension in certain circumstances or early termination if the services are no longer
required by the party receiving the services or upon mutual agreement of the parties.

•

Real estate management, real estate lease and equipment lease agreements. Included in our revenues are amounts received related to leases of certain equipment to FIS and the
sublease of certain office space, furniture and furnishings to FIS. A majority of the leases of equipment to FIS were between FN Capital and FIS and the related receipts are no
longer revenue to us subsequent to the sale of FN Capital on September 25, 2009.
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On August 31, 2007, we completed the acquisition of Property Insight, LLC (“Property Insight”), a former FIS subsidiary, from FIS for $95 million in cash. Property Insight is a
leading provider of title plant services to us, as well as various national and regional underwriters. Property Insight primarily manages, maintains and updates the title plants that we own.
Additionally, Property Insight manages our title plant construction. Prior to August 31, 2007, the title plant assets of several of our title insurance subsidiaries were managed or maintained by
Property Insight, as a subsidiary of FIS. The underlying title plant information and software were owned by each of our title insurance underwriters, but Property Insight managed and
updated the information in return for either (i) a cash management fee or (ii) the right to sell that information to title insurers, including title insurance underwriters that we owned and other
third party customers. In most cases, Property Insight was responsible for keeping the title plant assets current and fully functioning, for which we paid a fee to Property Insight based on our
use of, or access to, the title plant. In addition, each applicable title insurance underwriter we owned in turn received a royalty on sales of access to its title plant assets.
Our payments to FIS for management and maintenance of title plant assets by Property Insight were $14.0 million for the period from January 1 through August 31, 2007. Our
revenues from title plant royalties were $3.7 million for the period from January 1 through August 31, 2007.
Through August 31, 2007, we paid amounts to Property Insight for capitalized software development and for title plant construction. These amounts included capitalized software
development costs of $5.4 million for the period from January 1 through August 31, 2007, and amounts paid for capitalized title plant construction costs of $10.3 million for the period from
January 1 through August 31, 2007.
A detail of related party items included in revenues and expenses for the periods presented are as follows:
2009

Year Ended December 31,
2008
(In millions)

2007

Rental revenue

$ 15.8

$ 25.5

$

Data processing costs
Corporate services and cost-sharing
Interest expense
Total expenses

47.4
(2.1)
0.1
$ 45.4

42.6
4.1
0.3
$ 47.0

46.8
5.1
0.1
$ 52.0

—

We believe the amounts we earned or were charged under each of the foregoing arrangements are fair and reasonable. The information technology infrastructure support and data
center management services provided to us are priced within the range of prices that FIS offers to its unaffiliated third party customers for the same types of services. However, the amounts
FNF earned or was charged under these arrangements were not negotiated at arm’s-length, and may not represent the terms that we might have obtained from an unrelated third party.
Amounts due to FIS were as follows:
December 31,
2009

December 31,
2008
(In millions)

Note payable to FIS
Due to FIS

$—
6.9

$6.2
6.9

On October 1, 2009, pursuant to an investment agreement between us and FIS dated March 31, 2009 (the “Investment Agreement”), we invested a total of $50.0 million in FIS
common stock in connection with a merger between FIS and Metavante Technologies, Inc. Under the terms of the Investment Agreement, we purchased 3,215,434 shares of FIS’s common
stock at a price of $15.55 per share. We are required to hold this
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investment for a period of at least 6 months from the date of purchase in accordance with Securities and Exchange Commission Rule 144. Additionally, we received a transaction fee of
$1.5 million from FIS. The fair value of this investment of $75.4 million is recorded in equity securities as of December 31, 2009. Changes in fair value of the FIS stock are recorded as other
comprehensive earnings.
Agreements with LPS
As noted above, prior to March 15, 2009, LPS was a related party to us. Agreements with LPS for title agency and other services were in effect at that time. As a result of related
party transactions, as of December 31, 2008, we owed $3.1 million to LPS. A detail of related party revenues and expenses between FNF and LPS are as follows and include results of
transactions prior to July 2, 2008, when LPS was a subsidiary of FIS. For the years ended December 31, 2008 and 2007, we recorded agency title premiums of $212.3 million and
$149.4 million, respectively, and $84.2 million for the period from January 1 through March 15, 2009. We recorded agency title commissions of $187.9 million and $132.2 million for the
years ended December 31, 2008 and 2007, respectively, and $73.8 million for the period from January 1 through March 15, 2009. We recorded other revenue of $8.4 million and $0.5 million
for the years ended December 31, 2008 and 2007, respectively, and $4.9 million for the period from January 1 through March 15, 2009. Other operating expenses relating to agreements with
LPS were $66.5 million and $69.3 million for the years ended December 31, 2008 and 2007, respectively, and $18.9 million for the period from January 1 through March 15, 2009.
Other Related Party Agreements
In August 2007, FNF’s Chairman of the Board, William P. Foley, II, planned to sell 1,000,000 shares of FNF stock on the open market. Because we were actively purchasing shares of
treasury stock on the open market at the same time, we agreed to purchase 1,000,000 shares from Mr. Foley on August 8, 2007, for $22.1 million, or $22.09 per share, the market price at the
time of the purchase.
On December 6, 2007, we sold 1,000 shares of Series B Preferred Stock of Remy to our Chairman of the Board, William P. Foley, II, for a total of $1.0 million, or $1,000 per share.
This per share price was equal to the per share price that we paid to acquire the shares on the same date.
Stock-Based Compensation Plans
We account for stock-based compensation plans using the fair value method. Using the fair value method of accounting, compensation cost is measured based on the fair value of the
award at the grant date and recognized over the service period.
Foreign Currency Translation
The functional currency for our foreign operations is either the U.S. Dollar or the local currency. For foreign operations where the local currency is the functional currency, the
translation of foreign currencies into U.S. Dollars is performed for balance sheet accounts using exchange rates in effect at the balance sheet date and for revenue and expense accounts using
a weighted average exchange rate during the period. The unrealized gains and losses resulting from the translation are included in accumulated other comprehensive earnings in the
Consolidated Statements of Equity and are excluded from net earnings. Gains or losses resulting from foreign currency transactions are included in realized gains and losses and are
insignificant in 2009, 2008, and 2007.
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Management Estimates
The preparation of these Consolidated Financial Statements in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles requires us to make estimates and assumptions that
affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the Consolidated Financial Statements and the reported amounts of
revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates.
Certain Reclassifications
Certain reclassifications have been made in the 2008 and 2007 Consolidated Financial Statements to conform to the classifications used in 2009.
Note B.

Acquisitions

The results of operations and financial position of the entities acquired during any year are included in the Consolidated Financial Statements from and after the date of acquisition.
Based on our valuation, any differences between the fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities and the purchase price paid are recorded as goodwill. The only significant acquisitions
in the three years ended December 31, 2009, were the acquisitions of certain underwriters from LandAmerica Financial Group, Inc. (“LFG”) in 2008 and the acquisition of an equity interest
in Ceridian in 2007.
Significant Acquisitions
Acquisition of Commonwealth Land Title Insurance Company, Lawyers Title Insurance Corporation, and United Capital Title Insurance Company
On December 22, 2008, we completed the acquisition of LandAmerica Financial Group, Inc.’s (“LFG”) two principal title insurance underwriters, Commonwealth Land
Title Insurance Company (“Commonwealth”) and Lawyers Title Insurance Corporation (“Lawyers”), as well as United Capital Title Insurance Company (“United”) (collectively, the “LFG
Underwriters”). The total purchase price for the LFG Underwriters was $258.9 million, net of cash acquired of $5.9 million, and was comprised of $153.9 million paid by two of our title
insurance underwriters, Fidelity National Title Insurance Company and Chicago Title Insurance Company, a $50.0 million subordinated note due in 2013, $50.0 million in FNF common
stock (3,176,620 shares valued at $15.74 per share at the time of closing) and $5 million in transaction costs.
The total purchase price through December 31, 2009, as adjusted for additional consideration paid during 2009 relating to other settlement acquisition related items, was as follows
(in millions):
Cash paid by FNF’s title insurance underwriters, net of cash acquired
Subordinated note payable to LFG (see note I)
FNF common stock (3,176,620 shares valued at $15.74 per share)
Transaction costs

$

$

153.9
50.0
50.0
5.0
258.9

The purchase price has been allocated to the LFG Underwriters’ assets acquired and liabilities assumed based on our best estimates and the results of our third party evaluation of the
fair values of assets and liabilities assumed as of December 22, 2008. Goodwill has been recorded based on the amount that the purchase price exceeds the fair value of the net assets
acquired. We completed our purchase price allocation process during the fourth quarter of 2009.
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The purchase price allocation is as follows (in millions):
Investments
Trade and notes receivable
Title plants
Property and equipment
Deferred tax assets
Other assets
Goodwill
Reserve for claim losses
Other liabilities assumed
Total purchase price

$

920.9
73.9
70.9
16.4
244.6
170.3
116.6
(1,112.7)
(242.0)
258.9

The following table summarizes the other liabilities assumed in the acquisition of the LFG Underwriters (in millions):
Estimated facility closure costs
Estimated employee termination costs
Other merger related costs
Other operating liabilities

$

$

42.4
14.7
5.0
179.9
242.0

Unaudited Pro Forma Results
Selected unaudited pro forma results of operations for the year ended December 31, 2008 and 2007, assuming the acquisition of the LFG Underwriters had occurred as of January 1,
2007, and using actual general and administrative expenses prior to the acquisition are presented for comparative purposes below (in millions):
2008(A)

Total revenues
Net (loss) earnings attributable to FNF common shareholders
Pro forma (loss) earnings per share attributable to FNF common shareholders — basic
Pro forma (loss) earnings per share attributable to FNF common shareholders — diluted

$6,413.6
(413.0)
(1.94)
(1.94)

2007(A)

$8,614.4
82.8
0.38
0.37

(A) The pro forma net earnings for FNF and the LFG Underwriters for 2008 include charges recorded by the LFG Underwriters of $135.1 million for impairments of other intangible assets
and goodwill and charges recorded by FNF of $261.6 million for adverse development of loss reserves. The pro forma net earnings for 2007 include charges recorded by FNF of
$217.2 million for adverse development of loss reserves.
Acquisition of Equity Interest in Ceridian
On November 9, 2007, FNF and Thomas H. Lee Partners, LP (“THL”), along with certain co-investors, completed the acquisition of Ceridian for $36 in cash per share of common
stock, or approximately $5.3 billion. We contributed approximately $527 million of the total $1.6 billion equity funding for the acquisition of Ceridian, resulting in a 33% ownership
percentage by us, which we account for using the equity method of accounting for financial statement purposes. On the closing date, we recorded income of $12.3 million in fees associated
with the syndication of investors in the acquisition of Ceridian. Ceridian is an
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information services company servicing the human resources, transportation, and retail industries. Specifically, Ceridian offers a range of human resources outsourcing solutions and is a
payment processor and issuer of credit, debit, and stored-value cards.
Other Acquisitions
Property Insight, LLC
On August 31, 2007, we completed the acquisition of Property Insight, a former FIS subsidiary, from FIS for $95 million in cash. Property Insight is a leading provider of title plant
services for us, as well as various national and regional underwriters. Property Insight primarily manages, maintains, and updates the title plants that we own. Additionally, Property Insight
manages our title plant construction activities.
ATM Holdings, Inc.
On August 13, 2007, we completed the acquisition of ATM Holdings, Inc. (“ATM”), a provider of nationwide mortgage vendor management services to the loan origination industry,
for $100 million in cash. ATM’s primary subsidiary is a licensed title insurance agency which provides centralized valuation and appraisal services, as well as title and closing services, to
residential mortgage originators, banks and institutional mortgage lenders throughout the United States.
Equity Interest in Remy
We held an investment in Remy’s Senior Subordinated Notes (the “Notes”) with a total fair value of $139.9 million until December 6, 2007, at which time Remy implemented a prepackaged plan of bankruptcy under Chapter 11 of the Bankruptcy Code. Pursuant to the plan of bankruptcy, the Notes were converted into 4,935,065 shares of Remy common stock and
rights to buy 19,909 shares of Remy Series B preferred stock. Upon execution of the plan of bankruptcy, we purchased all 19,909 shares of the preferred stock for $1,000 per share, or a total
of $19.9 million, and then on the same date sold 1,000 of those shares to William P. Foley, II, our Chairman of the Board, for $1,000 per share, or a total of $1.0 million. As of December 31,
2009, we held a 46% ownership interest in Remy, made up of 4,935,065 shares of Remy common stock with a cost basis of $64.3 million and 18,909 shares of Remy Series B preferred stock
with a cost basis of $19.5 million, and we account for this investment using the equity method. As a result of the exchange of the Notes for the shares of common and preferred stock, we
reversed the unrealized gain of $75.0 million that had previously been recorded in accumulated other comprehensive earnings in relation to the Notes.
Note C.

Fair Value Measurements

In September 2006, the FASB issued a standard on fair value measurements which defined fair value, established a framework for measuring fair value, and expanded disclosures
about fair value measurements by establishing a fair value hierarchy based on the quality of inputs used to measure fair value. The standard on fair value measurements does not require any
new fair value measurements, but applies under other accounting pronouncements that require or permit fair value measurements. In accordance with the requirements of the standard on fair
value measurements, we adopted the standard for financial assets and financial liabilities that are re-measured for fair value on a recurring basis as of January 1, 2008. The standard was
adopted for nonfinancial assets and nonfinancial liabilities for which fair value measurements are determined on a non-recurring basis only when there is an indication of potential
impairment as of January 1, 2009, as required by the standard.
The fair value hierarchy established by the standard on fair value measurements includes three levels which are based on the priority of the inputs to the valuation technique. The fair
value hierarchy gives the highest priority to quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities (Level 1) and the lowest priority to unobservable inputs (Level 3). If the inputs
used to measure the financial instruments fall within different levels of the hierarchy, the categorization is based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement of
the instrument. In accordance with the standard on fair value, the financial assets
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and liabilities that are recorded in the Consolidated Balance Sheets are categorized based on the inputs to the valuation techniques as follows:
Level 1. Financial assets and liabilities whose values are based on unadjusted quoted prices for identical assets or liabilities in an active market that we have the ability to
access.
Level 2. Financial assets and liabilities whose values are based on quoted prices in markets that are not active or model inputs that are observable either directly or indirectly
for substantially the full term of the asset or liability.
Level 3. Financial assets and liabilities whose values are based on model inputs that are unobservable.
The following table presents our fair value hierarchy for those assets and liabilities measured at fair value on a recurring basis as of December 31, 2009 and 2008, respectively:
December 31, 2009
Level 2
Level 3
(In millions)

Level 1

Fixed-maturity securities available for sale:
U.S. government and agencies
State and political subdivisions
Corporate debt securities
Foreign government bonds
Mortgage-backed/asset-backed securities
Other fixed-maturity
Equity securities available for sale
Other long-term investments
Total

$

$

—
—
—
—
—
—
92.5
—
92.5

$

$

$

$

—
—
—
—
—
—
71.5
71.5

$

$

—
—
—
—
—
45.2
—
78.7
123.9

$

$

December 31, 2008
Level 2
Level 3
(In millions)

Level 1

Fixed-maturity securities available for sale:
U.S. government and agencies
State and political subdivisions
Corporate debt securities
Foreign government bonds
Mortgage-backed/asset-backed securities
Other fixed-maturity
Equity securities available for sale
Total

409.2
1,339.4
1,379.1
38.8
312.5
—
—
—
3,479.0

Total

$

$

558.7
1,049.1
875.0
43.5
293.2
2.3
—
2,821.8

$

$

—
—
—
—
—
32.0
—
32.0

409.2
1,339.4
1,379.1
38.8
312.5
45.2
92.5
78.7
3,695.4
Total

$

$

558.7
1,049.1
875.0
43.5
293.2
34.3
71.5
2,925.3

Our Level 2 fair value measures for fixed-maturities available for sale are provided by third-party pricing services. We utilize one firm for our taxable bond portfolio and another for
our municipal bond portfolio. These pricing services are leading global providers of financial market data, analytics and related services to financial institutions. We only rely on one price for
each instrument to determine the carrying amount of the assets on our balance sheet. The inputs utilized in these pricing methodologies include observable measures such as benchmark
yields, reported trades, broker dealer quotes, issuer spreads, two sided markets, benchmark securities, bids, offers and reference data including market research publications.
Our Level 3 investments consist of auction rate securities which were included in the assets of the LFG Underwriters that were acquired on December 22, 2008, and structured notes
that were purchased in the third quarter of 2009. The auction rate securities are classified in other fixed-maturity investments and had a par
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value of $69.7 million and fair value of $45.2 million at December 31, 2009 and a par value of $88.8 million and fair value of $32.0 million at December 31, 2008. These securities represent
less than one percent of our total investment portfolio. There is no active market for the auction rate securities and they are valued using models with significant non-observable inputs. Fair
values for these securities are provided by a third-party pricing service using a proprietary valuation model which considers factors such as time to maturity, interest rates, credit-worthiness
of the issuer, trading characteristics, and available market data for similar securities. We believe the valuation of the auction rate securities to be reasonable and to represent an exit price as of
December 31, 2009. The structured notes had a par value of $75.0 million and fair value of $78.7 million at December 31, 2009. The structured notes are held for general investment
purposes and represent less than two percent of our total investment portfolio. The structured notes are classified as other long-term investments and are measured in their entirety at fair
value with changes in fair value recognized in earnings. The fair value of these instruments represents exit prices obtained from a broker-dealer. These exit prices are the product of a
proprietary valuation model utilized by the trading desk of the broker-dealer and contain assumptions relating to volatility, the level of interest rates, and the underlying value of the indexes,
exchange-traded funds, and foreign currencies. We believe the valuations of the structured notes to be reasonable and to represent an exit price for the securities as of December 31, 2009.
The following table presents the changes in our investments that are classified as Level 3 for the year ended December 31, 2009 (in millions).
Balance, January 1, 2009
Purchases
Proceeds received upon call/sales
Realized gain
Unrealized gains included in other comprehensive earnings
Balance, December 31, 2009

$

$

32.0
75.0
(13.7)
12.1
18.5
123.9

The carrying amounts of accounts receivable and notes receivable approximate fair value due to their short-term nature. The fair value of our notes payable is included in Note I.
Additional information regarding the fair value of our investment portfolio is included in note D.
Note D.

Investments

The carrying amounts and fair values of our fixed maturity securities at December 31, 2009 and 2008 are as follows:
Carrying
Value

Fixed maturity investments (available for sale):
U.S. government and agencies
States and political subdivisions
Corporate debt securities
Foreign government bonds
Mortgage-backed/asset-backed securities
Other

$

$

86

409.2
1,339.4
1,379.1
38.8
312.5
45.2
3,524.2

Amortized
Cost

$

$

397.5
1,294.2
1,300.4
37.6
298.5
26.4
3,354.6

December 31, 2009
Unrealized
Gains
(Dollars in millions)

$

$

14.4
46.6
84.0
1.3
14.4
18.8
179.5

Unrealized
Losses

$

$

(2.7)
(1.4)
(5.3)
(0.1)
(0.4)
—
(9.9)

Fair
Value

$

$

409.2
1,339.4
1,379.1
38.8
312.5
45.2
3,524.2
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Carrying
Value

Fixed maturity investments (available for sale):
U.S. government and agencies
States and political subdivisions
Corporate debt securities
Foreign government bonds
Mortgage-backed/asset-backed securities
Other

$

$

558.7
1,049.1
875.0
43.5
293.2
34.3
2,853.8

December 31, 2008
Unrealized
Gains
(Dollars in millions)

Amortized
Cost

$

$

526.4
1,029.5
910.5
41.6
292.5
33.7
2,834.2

$

$

32.5
24.6
8.4
1.9
1.2
0.7
69.3

Unrealized
Losses

$

(0.2)
(5.0)
(43.9)
—
(0.5)
(0.1)
(49.7)

$

Fair
Value

$

$

558.7
1,049.1
875.0
43.5
293.2
34.3
2,853.8

The majority of our mortgage-backed and asset-backed securities were acquired as a result of the acquisition of the LFG Underwriters on December 22, 2008. At December 31, 2009
all of our mortgage-backed and asset-backed securities are rated AAA. The mortgage-backed and asset-backed securities are made up of $177.9 million of agency mortgage-backed
securities, $79.6 million of collateralized mortgage obligations, $15.2 million of commercial mortgage-backed securities, and $39.8 million in asset-backed securities.
The change in unrealized gains (losses) on fixed maturities for the years ended December 31, 2009, 2008, and 2007 was $150.0 million, $(1.3) million, and $46.1 million,
respectively.
The following table presents certain information regarding contractual maturities of our fixed maturity securities at December 31, 2009:
December 31, 2009
% of
Fair
Total
Value
(Dollars in millions)

% of
Total

7.5%
49.0
28.1
6.5
8.9
100.0%

$

$

250.9
1,645.4
942.6
217.2
298.5
3,354.6

$

254.1
1,739.2
974.1
244.3
312.5
3,524.2

7.2%
49.4
27.6
6.9
8.9
100.0%

$

575.6

17.2%

$

593.8

16.8%

Amortized
Cost

Maturity

One year or less
After one year through five years
After five years through ten years
After ten years
Mortgage-backed/asset-backed securities

$

Subject to call

Fixed maturity securities valued at approximately $185.9 million and $194.3 million were on deposit with various governmental authorities at December 31, 2009 and 2008,
respectively, as required by law.
Expected maturities may differ from contractual maturities because certain borrowers have the right to call or prepay obligations with or without call or prepayment penalties.
Equity securities at December 31, 2009 and 2008 consisted of investments at a cost basis of $64.6 million and $79.8 million, respectively, and fair value of $92.5 million and
$71.5 million, respectively. The carrying value of our investment in equity securities is fair value. The balance of equity securities is primarily composed of an investment in FIS stock, which
we purchased on October 1, 2009 for $50.0 million, pursuant to an investment agreement between us and FIS dated March 31, 2009 in connection with a merger between FIS and Metavante
Technologies, Inc. We are required to hold this investment for a period of at least 6 months
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from the date of purchase in accordance with Securities and Exchange Commission Rule 144. The fair value of the FIS stock was $75.4 million as of December 31, 2009. As of
December 31, 2009, gross unrealized gains and gross unrealized losses on equity securities were $28.4 million and $0.5 million, respectively. As of December 31, 2008, gross unrealized
gains and gross unrealized losses on equity securities were $2.2 million and $10.5 million, respectively. The change in unrealized gains (losses) on equity securities for the years ended
December 31, 2009, 2008 and 2007 was $36.2 million, $(5.5) million, and $6.5 million, respectively. There were no significant investments in banks, trust and insurance companies at
December 31, 2009 or 2008.
Interest and investment income consists of the following:
2009

Cash and cash equivalents
Fixed maturity securities
Equity securities
Short-term investments
Other
Total

$

$

2.2
143.9
3.4
3.4
1.6
154.5

Year Ended December 31,
2008
(Dollars in millions)

$

$

11.4
102.3
2.6
11.2
6.5
134.0

2007

$

$

36.2
119.7
4.2
17.2
6.9
184.2

We lend fixed maturity and equity securities to financial institutions in short-term security lending transactions. Our security lending policy requires that the cash received as
collateral be 102% or more of the fair value of the loaned securities. At December 31, 2009 and 2008, we had security loans outstanding with fair values of $25.6 million and $103.6 million,
respectively. Securities loaned under such transactions may be sold or re-pledged by the transferee. We were liable for cash collateral under our control of $26.5 million and $107.6 million at
December 31, 2009 and 2008, respectively, which has been included in cash and cash equivalents and in accounts payable and accrued liabilities.
Net realized gains (losses) related to investments were $22.8 million, $(49.4) million, and $18.5 million for the years ended December 31, 2009, 2008 and 2007, respectively. Net
realized gains related to other assets were $4.6 million, $26.9 million, and less than $0.1 million for the years ended December 31, 2009, 2008, and 2007, respectively.
During the years ended December 31, 2009, 2008 and 2007, gross realized gains on sales of fixed maturity securities considered available for sale were $38.1 million, $13.1 million,
and $11.0 million, respectively; gross realized losses were $2.8 million, $9.8 million, and $2.0 million, respectively. Gross proceeds from the sale and maturity of fixed maturity securities
considered available for sale amounted to $789.0 million, $1,231.9 million, and $4,480.1 million during the years ended December 31, 2009, 2008 and 2007, respectively.
During the years ended December 31, 2009, 2008 and 2007, gross realized gains on sales of equity securities considered available for sale were $5.3 million, $5.9 million, and
$34.2 million, respectively; gross realized losses were $21.5 million, $4.9 million, and $28.8 million, respectively. Gross proceeds from the sale of equity securities amounted to
$60.0 million, $79.4 million, and $807.3 million during the years ended December 31, 2009, 2008 and 2007, respectively.
Included in our other long-term investments are fixed-maturity structured notes purchased in the third quarter of 2009. The structured notes are carried at fair value (see note C) and
changes in the fair value of these structured notes are recorded as realized gains and losses in the Statement of Operations. The carrying value of the structured notes was $78.7 million as of
December 31, 2009 and we recorded a net gain of $3.7 million related to the structured notes in the year ended December 31, 2009.
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Net unrealized losses on investment securities and the fair value of the related securities, aggregated by investment category and length of time that individual securities have been in
a continuous unrealized loss position at December 31, 2009 and 2008 were as follows (in millions):
2009
Less than 12 Months
Fair
Unrealized
Value
Losses

U.S. government and agencies
States and political subdivisions
Corporate debt securities
Foreign government bonds
Mortgage-backed/asset-backed securities
Equity securities
Total temporarily impaired securities

$ 58.5
100.0
147.7
1.9
32.8
—
$ 340.9

$

$

(0.7)
(1.1)
(3.3)
(0.1)
(0.3)
—
(5.5)

12 Months or Longer
Fair
Unrealized
Value
Losses

$ 33.9
8.0
42.8
—
1.1
5.6
$ 91.4

$

$

(2.0)
(0.3)
(2.0)
—
(0.1)
(0.5)
(4.9)

Fair
Value

$ 92.4
108.0
190.5
1.9
33.9
5.6
$ 432.3

Total
Unrealized
Losses

$

$

(2.7)
(1.4)
(5.3)
(0.1)
(0.4)
(0.5)
(10.4)

2008
Less than 12 Months
Fair
Unrealized
Value
Losses

U.S. government and agencies
States and political subdivisions
Corporate debt securities
Foreign government bonds
Mortgage-backed/asset-backed securities
Equity securities
Other
Total temporarily impaired securities

$ 37.9
116.4
451.6
2.0
42.6
22.3
2.2
$ 675.0

$

$

(0.2)
(3.8)
(26.0)
(0.1)
(0.5)
(10.4)
(0.1)
(41.1)

12 Months or Longer
Fair
Unrealized
Value
Losses

$

—
10.8
90.0
—
—
—
—
$ 100.8

$

$

—
(1.2)
(17.9)
—
—
—
—
(19.1)

Fair
Value

$ 37.9
127.2
541.6
2.0
42.6
22.3
2.2
$ 775.8

Total
Unrealized
Losses

$

$

(0.2)
(5.0)
(43.9)
(0.1)
(0.5)
(10.4)
(0.1)
(60.2)

A substantial portion of our unrealized losses relate to debt securities. These unrealized losses were primarily caused by widening credit spreads that we consider to be temporary
rather than changes in credit quality. Because we expect to recover the entire amortized cost basis of these debt securities, we do not intend to sell these securities and it is not more likely
than not that we will be required to sell the debt securities before recovery of the cost basis, we do not consider these investments to be other-than-temporarily impaired at December 31,
2009. The unrealized losses relating to equity securities were caused by market changes that we consider to be temporary and are not concentrated in a particular sector or an individual
security. We have evaluated the near term prospects of the issuers in relation to the severity and duration of the impairment. Based on that evaluation and our ability to hold these securities
for a reasonable time sufficient for a forecasted recovery of fair value, we do not consider these securities other-than-temporarily impaired at December 31, 2009. It is reasonably possible
that declines in fair value below cost not considered other-than-temporary in the current period could be considered to be other-than-temporary in a future period and earnings would be
reduced to the extent of the impairment.
During 2009, 2008 and 2007, we incurred impairment charges relating to investments that were determined to be other-than-temporarily impaired, which resulted in charges of
$6.9 million, $59.0 million, and $3.1 million. Impairment charges in 2009 related to equity securities that were deemed
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other-than-temporarily impaired. The impairment charges in 2008 included $25.4 million related to fixed maturity securities, $30.1 million related to equity securities, and $3.5 million
related to other investments that were deemed other-than-temporarily impaired. The impairment charges relating to the fixed maturity securities primarily related to our conclusion that the
credit risk relating to the holdings was high and thus the assets are likely other-than-temporarily impaired. The impairment charges relating to the equity securities were based on the duration
and severity of the unrealized loss and our inability to reasonably predict the time to recover if the investment continued to be held.
In April 2009, the FASB updated their guidance on recognition of other-than-temporary impairments on investments, specifically on debt and equity securities for which changes in
fair value are not regularly recognized in earnings. In accordance with the updated guidance, we determined that a total of $1.3 million in other-than-temporary impairments on fixed maturity
securities had previously been recognized in relation to investments held at April 1, 2009, all of which were related to credit losses. We further concluded that no cumulative effect
adjustment was necessary as a result of implementing the updated guidance as all of the securities for which an other-than-temporary impairment had previously been recognized were sold
within three months of the updated guidance. As of December 31, 2009, we held no investments for which an other-than-temporary impairment had been previously recognized.
Investments in unconsolidated affiliates are recorded using the equity method of accounting and, as of December 31, 2009 and 2008, consisted of (in millions):
Ownership

Ceridian
Sedgwick
Remy
Other
Total

33%
32%(b)
46%(a)
various

2009

$

$

386.8
121.0
69.1
40.2
617.1

2008

$

$

453.1
115.6
61.8
14.0
644.5

(a)

During 2009, Remy issued additional common stock, resulting in dilution of our ownership percentage to 46% from 47% in 2008.

(b)

During 2008, we sold 20% of our interest in Sedgwick (reducing our interest in Sedgwick from 40% to 32%) for proceeds of $53.9 million, resulting in a gain of $24.8 million.

During the years ended December 31, 2009, 2008, and 2007, we recorded an aggregate of $(11.7) million, $(13.4) million, and $0.8 million, respectively, in equity in (losses) earnings
of unconsolidated affiliates. In addition, we record our share of the other comprehensive income (loss) of unconsolidated affiliates. As of December 31, 2009, included within the statement
of equity, we had recorded accumulated other comprehensive losses of $61.1 million, $14.9 million, and $3.3 million related to our investments in Ceridian, Remy, and Sedgwick,
respectively.
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Summarized financial information for Ceridian is presented below for the time period subsequent to November 9, 2007, the date of acquisition. We account for our equity in Ceridian
on a three-month lag. Accordingly, our net earnings for the year ended December 31, 2009, includes our equity in Ceridian’s earnings for the period from September 30, 2008 through
September 30, 2009 and our net earnings for the year ended December 31, 2008, includes our equity in Ceridian’s earnings for the period from November 10, 2007 through September 30,
2008 and there is no equity in income of Ceridian included in our 2007 results of operations.
September 30, 2009
(In millions)

Total current assets
Goodwill and other intangible assets, net
Other assets
Total assets

$

Current liabilities
Long-term obligations, less current portion
Other long-term liabilities
Total liabilities
Equity
Total liabilities and equity

$

$

$

Total revenues
Loss before income taxes
Net loss
Note E.

September 30, 2008
(In millions)

978.5
4,683.4
3,461.9
9,123.8

$

695.0
3,485.2
3,755.0
7,935.2
1,188.6
9,123.8

$

1,300.0
4,755.5
3,397.9
9,453.4

$

986.3
3,516.5
3,557.7
8,060.5
1,392.9
9,453.4

$

Period from
September 30, 2008,
through
September 30, 2009
(In millions)

Period from
November 10, 2007,
through
September 30, 2008
(In millions)

$1,474.5
(159.7)
(106.2)

$1,417.7
(108.4)
(73.0)

Property and Equipment

Property and equipment consists of the following:
Year Ended December 31,
2009
2008
(Dollars in millions)

Land
Buildings
Leasehold improvements
Furniture, fixtures and equipment

$

Accumulated depreciation and amortization
$

88.8
35.8
79.7
460.2
664.5
(474.7)
189.8

$

$

Depreciation expense on property and equipment was $53.0 million, $65.6 million, and $76.9 million for the years ended December 31, 2009, 2008, and 2007, respectively.
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39.5
82.0
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Note F.

Goodwill
Goodwill consists of the following:
Fidelity National
Title Group

Balance, December 31, 2007
Goodwill acquired during the year
Balance, December 31, 2008
Goodwill acquired during the year
Adjustments to prior year acquisitions
Sale of assets related to discontinued operations
Balance, December 31, 2009
Note G.

$
$

$

1,246.3
238.0
1,484.3
31.1
(114.2)
—
1,401.2

Specialty
Insurance
(Dollars in millions)

$
$

$

28.7
—
28.7
—
—
—
28.7

Corporate
and Other

$

Total

69.6
(0.9)
68.7
—
(0.2)
(43.2)
25.3

$

$

$

1,344.6
237.1
1,581.7
31.1
(114.4)
(43.2)
1,455.2

$

$

Other Intangible Assets

Other intangible assets consist of the following:
December 31,
2009
2008
(Dollars in millions)

Customer relationships and contracts
Other

$

Accumulated amortization
$

271.0
48.9
319.9
(153.0)
166.9

$

204.4
25.6
230.0
(137.5)
92.5

$

Amortization expense for amortizable intangible assets, which consist primarily of customer relationships, was $25.3 million, $22.0 million, and $23.7 million for the years ended
December 31, 2009, 2008, and 2007, respectively. Other represents non-amortizable intangible assets such as trademarks and licenses. Estimated amortization expense for the next five years
for assets owned at December 31, 2009, is $22.6 million in 2010, $18.6 million in 2011, $15.1 million in 2012, $13.1 million in 2013 and $10.6 million in 2014.
Note H.

Accounts Payable and Accrued Liabilities

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities consist of the following:
December 31,
2009
2008
(Dollars in millions)

Accrued benefits
Salaries and incentives
Security loans
Accrued rent
Trade accounts payable
Accrued recording fees and transfer taxes
Accrued premium taxes
Other accrued liabilities

$

$
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213.1
125.9
26.5
60.0
54.8
30.5
26.9
158.3
696.0

$

$

235.8
100.4
107.6
78.6
56.5
27.1
8.9
214.0
828.9
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Note I.

Notes Payable
Notes payable consists of the following:
December 31,
2009
2008
(Dollars in millions)

Unsecured notes net of discount, interest payable semi-annually at 5.25%, due March 2013
Unsecured notes, net of discount, interest payable semi-annually at 7.30%, due August 2011
Syndicated credit agreement, unsecured, interest payable monthly at LIBOR plus 0.475% (0.73% at December 31, 2009), unused portion of $700 million
at December 31, 2009, due October 2011
Bank promissory notes, nonrecourse, secured, interest payable monthly at various fixed rates (3.7%-10.67%), various maturities
Subordinated note payable to LandAmerica Financial Group, Inc., interest payable annually at 2.36%, due December 2013
Other

$

$

245.2
165.5
400.0
—
50.0
1.2
861.9

$

$

249.2
241.1
585.0
197.5
50.0
28.0
1,350.8

At December 31, 2009, the estimated fair value of our outstanding notes payable was approximately $849.1 million or $12.7 million lower than its carrying value. The carrying value
of our notes payable was approximately $1,279.0 million or $71.8 million lower than its estimated fair value at December 31, 2008. The fair values of our unsecured notes payable are based
on established market prices for the securities on December 31, 2009 and 2008. The fair value of our syndicated credit agreement and our fixed rate notes payable is estimated using
discounted cash flow analyses based on current market interest rates and comparison of interest rates being paid to our current incremental borrowing rates for similar types of borrowing
arrangements.
On December 22, 2008, in connection with the acquisition of the LFG Underwriters, we entered into a $50 million subordinated note payable to LFG, due December 2013. This note
bears interest at 2.36%, payable annually. Subsequent to year end, on March 1, 2010, we paid approximately $49 million to the LFG Liquidation Trust in full satisfaction of this obligation.
Effective October 24, 2006, we entered into a credit agreement (the “Credit Agreement”) with Bank of America, N.A. as Administrative Agent and Swing Line Lender, and other
financial institutions party thereto. Effective October 11, 2007, we exercised an option to increase the amount of the credit facility by an additional $300 million. The Credit Agreement
provides for a $1.1 billion unsecured revolving credit facility, including the additional $300 million, maturing on the fifth anniversary of the closing date. Amounts under the revolving credit
facility may be borrowed, repaid and reborrowed thereunder from time to time until the maturity of the revolving credit facility. Voluntary prepayment of the revolving credit facility under
the Credit Agreement is permitted at any time without fee upon proper notice and subject to a minimum dollar requirement. Revolving loans under the credit facility bear interest at a variable
rate based on either (i) the higher of (a) a rate per annum equal to one-half of one percent in excess of the Federal Reserve’s Federal Funds rate, or (b) Bank of America’s “prime rate” or
(ii) a rate per annum equal to LIBOR plus a margin of between 0.23%-0.675%, depending on our then current senior unsecured long-term debt rating from the rating agencies. In addition,
we pay a commitment fee between 0.07%-0.175% on the entire facility, also depending on our senior unsecured long-term debt rating.
The Credit Agreement contains affirmative, negative and financial covenants customary for financings of this type, including, among other things, limits on the creation of liens, sales
of assets, the incurrence of
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indebtedness, restricted payments, transactions with affiliates, and certain amendments. The Credit Agreement requires us to maintain certain financial ratios and levels of capitalization. The
Credit Agreement prohibits us from paying dividends to our stockholders if an event of default has occurred and is continuing or would result therefrom. The Credit Agreement includes
customary events of default for facilities of this type (with customary grace periods, as applicable). These events of default include a cross-default provision that, subject to limited
exceptions, permits the lenders to declare the Credit Agreement in default if: (i) (A) we fail to make any payment after the applicable grace period under any indebtedness with a principal
amount (including undrawn committed amounts) in excess of 3% of our net worth, as defined in the Credit Agreement, or (B) we fail to perform any other term under any such indebtedness,
or any other event occurs, as a result of which the holders thereof may cause it to become due and payable prior to its maturity; or (ii) certain termination events occur under significant
interest rate, equity or other swap contracts. The Credit Agreement provides that, upon the occurrence of an event of default, the interest rate on all outstanding obligations will be increased
and payments of all outstanding loans may be accelerated and/or the lenders’ commitments may be terminated. In addition, upon the occurrence of certain insolvency or bankruptcy related
events of default, all amounts payable under the Credit Agreement shall automatically become immediately due and payable, and the lenders’ commitments will automatically terminate. At
December 31, 2009, we were in compliance with all of the covenants under the Credit Agreement.
On August 20, 2001, Old FNF completed a public offering of $250.0 million aggregate principal amount of 7.30% notes due August 15, 2011. The notes were priced at 99.597% of
par to yield 7.358% annual interest. As such, we recorded a discount of $1.0 million, which is netted against the $250.0 million aggregate principal amount of notes. The discount is
amortized to interest expense over 10 years, the term of the notes. We received net proceeds of $247.0 million, after expenses, which were used to pay down a portion of the amount
outstanding under a prior credit agreement. Interest is payable semiannually.
On March 11, 2003, Old FNF issued $250.0 million aggregate principal amount of 5.25% notes due March 2013, which are unsecured. The notes were priced at 99.247% of par to
yield 5.433% annual interest. As such, we recorded a discount of $1.9 million, which was netted against the $250.0 million aggregate principal amount of notes. The discount was amortized
to interest expense based on the 10-year term of the notes. We received net proceeds of approximately $246.2 million, after expenses, which were used to pay a portion of the
$1,069.6 million purchase price for FIS. Interest is payable semiannually.
On January 17, 2006, $241.3 million aggregate principal amount of the Old FNF 7.30% notes due 2011 and the entire $250.0 million aggregate principal amount of the Old FNF
5.25% notes due 2013 were exchanged for FNF notes having identical terms. The remaining principal amount of $8.7 million of the Old FNF 7.30% notes has been redeemed and cancelled.
These notes contain customary covenants and events of default for investment grade public debt. The events of default include a cross-default provision that allows the trustee or at least 25%
of the noteholders to accelerate the notes if we fail to make a payment on debt in an aggregate amount in excess of $20 million or as a result of a default thereunder the maturity of any debt
in an aggregate principal amount in excess of $20 million is accelerated and in either case we fail to cure the nonpayment or acceleration or repay the debt within 10 days after notice from
the trustee or the noteholders.
On April 14, 2009, we received $331 million in net proceeds from our offering of a total of 18,170,000 shares of our common stock. The proceeds were partially used to repay
$135 million in borrowings under our $1.1 billion revolving credit facility, bringing the total repayment to $185 million since December 31, 2008. In addition, we used the proceeds to
purchase $67.8 million in par value of our 7.30% notes due in 2011 for an aggregate purchase price of $68.7 million, including accrued interest of $1.2 million, and $3.0 million in par value
of our 5.25% notes due in 2013 for an aggregate purchase price of $2.8 million. In the third and fourth quarters of 2009, one of our underwriters purchased $7.8 million in par value of our
7.30% notes for a total purchase price of $8.0 million.
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As discussed in note A, on September 25, 2009, we closed on the sale of our subsidiary, FN Capital. The bank promissory notes which totaled $197.5 million as of December 31,
2008, were obligations of FN Capital which is no longer our subsidiary.
Principal maturities of notes payable at December 31, 2009, are as follows (in millions):
2010
2011
2012
2013
$
Note J.

0.7
565.7
0.3
295.2
861.9

Income Taxes
Income tax expense (benefit) on continuing operations consists of the following:
Year Ended December 31,
2008
(In millions)

2009

Current
Deferred

$
$

12.7
94.1
106.8

$

(45.1)
(74.8)
(119.9)

$

2007

$ 60.1
(9.8)
$ 50.3

Total income tax expense (benefit) on continuing operations for the years ended December 31 was allocated as follows (in millions):
2009

Net earnings (loss)
Other comprehensive earnings (loss):
Unrealized gains (losses) on investments and other financial instruments
Unrealized gain on foreign currency translation
Reclassification adjustment for realized (gains) losses included in net earnings
Minimum pension liability adjustment
Total income tax (benefit) expense allocated to other comprehensive income
Additional paid-in capital (exercise of stock options)
Total income taxes

$

106.8

$

42.5
2.7
(2.8)
1.6
44.0
(2.4)
148.4

2008

2007

$

(119.9)

$ 50.3

$

(20.7)
0.3
18.1
(10.4)
(12.7)
(0.3)
(132.9)

25.7
1.5
(6.5)
6.2
26.9
(4.7)
$ 72.5

A reconciliation of the federal statutory rate to our effective tax rate is as follows:
2009

Federal statutory rate
Federal benefit of state taxes
Deductible dividends paid to FNF 401(k) plan
Tax exempt interest income
Release of uncertain tax positions
State income taxes
Non-deductible expenses

35.0%
(0.9)
(0.4)
(3.6)
(2.5)
2.7
0.7
31.0%
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Year Ended December 31,
2008

35.0%
(0.9)
0.7
4.3
—
2.6
1.2
42.9%

2007

35.0%
(0.9)
(1.8)
(11.6)
—
2.7
3.8
27.2%
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The significant components of deferred tax assets and liabilities at December 31, 2009 and 2008 consist of the following:
December 31,
2009

2008
(In millions)

Deferred Tax Assets:
Insurance reserve discounting
Employee benefit accruals
Other investments
Net operating loss carryforwards
Accrued liabilities
Capital loss carryforwards
Rent abatement
Pension
State income taxes
Investment securities
Amortization of goodwill and intangible assets
Other
Total
Less: valuation allowance
Total deferred tax assets
Deferred Tax Liabilities:
Title plant
Amortization of goodwill and intangible assets
Investment securities
Depreciation
Bad debts
Lease accounting
Other
Total deferred tax liabilities
Net deferred tax asset

$

$

80.8
57.7
41.8
40.3
32.5
30.6
24.5
14.1
2.7
—
—
7.0
332.0
(4.1)
327.9
(65.9)
(64.2)
(43.0)
(18.1)
(6.5)
(1.3)
—
(199.0)
128.9

$

$

131.9
54.8
8.9
142.8
14.6
—
15.3
14.7
0.3
39.1
8.8
—
431.2
(132.6)
298.6
(70.9)
—
—
(28.0)
(7.4)
(32.4)
(20.7)
(159.4)
139.2

Our net deferred tax asset balance was $128.9 million as of December 31, 2009, which represents a $10.3 million decrease from December 31, 2008. The significant changes in the
deferred taxes are as follows: The insurance reserve discounting decreased by $51.1 million due to actual title losses paid and deducted during the year. Net operating losses decreased by
$102.5 million partially due to the sale of the FNRES investment with a net operating loss of $10.2 million. The remaining decrease of $92.3 million was due to the finalization of the preacquisition tax return in 2009 for the LFG Underwriters which generated the actual net operating loss available for carryover. Investment securities changed from a deferred tax asset of
$39.1 million to a deferred tax liability of $43.0 million largely due to unrealized gains established through Other Comprehensive Income. Amortization of goodwill and intangible assets
changed from a net deferred tax asset of $8.8 million to a net deferred tax liability of $64.2 million primarily due to additional purchase accounting adjustments relating to the LFG
Underwriters.
At December 31, 2009, we have net operating loss carryforwards on a pretax basis of $115.1 million which are available to offset future federal taxable income through 2027. Capital
loss carryforwards of $83.5 million on a pretax basis are available to offset capital gain income through 2014. We expect to produce sufficient capital gain income to fully utilize these capital
losses.
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The valuation allowance for deferred tax assets as of December 31, 2009 and 2008 was $4.1 million and $132.6 million, respectively. The valuation allowance as of December 31,
2008 was applied against the net operating loss attributable to the LFG Underwriters in the amount of $132.6 million. During 2009, it was determined that the deferred tax asset related to the
net operating losses acquired with the LFG Underwriters would be fully utilized. However, a new valuation allowance of $4.1 million was established to offset certain other deferred tax
assets that may not be realized. The net decrease of the valuation allowance in the amount of $128.5 million was reflected as a decrease to goodwill under generally accepted accounting
principles on business combinations. We believe that, based on our historical pattern of taxable income, we will produce sufficient income in the future to realize our remaining deferred tax
assets.
Tax benefits of $2.4 million, $0.3 million, and $4.7 million associated with the exercise of employee stock options and the vesting of restricted stock grants were allocated to equity
for the years ended December 31, 2009, 2008, and 2007, respectively.
As of December 31, 2009 and 2008, we had approximately $1.4 million and $5.8 million (including interest of $0.5 million and $0.6 million), respectively, of total gross
unrecognized tax benefits that, if recognized, would favorably affect our income tax rate. These amounts are reported on a gross basis and do not reflect a federal tax benefit on state income
taxes. We record interest and penalties related to income taxes as a component of income tax expense. The decrease of unrecognized tax benefits was due to a prior year tax position that was
effectively settled with the taxing authority in 2009.
The Internal Revenue Service (“IRS”) has selected us to participate in the Compliance Assurance Program that is a real-time audit. During 2009, the IRS completed its examination of
our consolidated tax return for the tax year ended December 31, 2008, which resulted in no additional tax. We are currently under audit by the Internal Revenue Service for the 2009 and
2010 tax years.
Note K.

Summary of Reserve for Claim Losses

A summary of the reserve for claim losses for title and specialty insurance follows:
Year Ended December 31,
2008
(In millions)

2009

Beginning balance
Reserves assumed/transferred(1)
Claim loss provision related to:
Current year
Prior years
Total claim loss provision
Claims paid, net of recoupments related to:
Current year
Prior years
Total claims paid, net of recoupments
Ending balance

$

Ending balance of claim loss reserves for title insurance only

2,738.6
(3.1)

$

423.0
(93.6)
329.4

Provision for title insurance claim losses as a percentage of title insurance premiums only

1,419.9
1,115.8

$

1,220.6
—

377.9
252.5
630.4

450.7
203.2
653.9

$

(101.2)
(353.4)
(454.6)
1,419.9

$

1,322.6

$

(109.6)
(413.9)
(523.5)
2,541.4

$

(119.4)
(308.1)
(427.5)
2,738.6

$

2,488.8

$

2,679.0

5.1%

2007

18.2%

13.2%

(1) In 2008, we assumed an estimated $1,115.8 million in additional reserves for claim losses with the acquisition of the LFG Underwriters. During 2009 we completed our evaluation of
the fair value of this claims
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reserve as of the acquisition date and adjusted the balance by $3.1 million to reflect our best estimate and the results of third party evaluations of the fair value of the liability.
We continually update loss reserve estimates as new information becomes known, new loss patterns emerge, or as other contributing factors are considered and incorporated into the
analysis of reserve for claim losses. A substantial portion of our reserve for claim losses is attributable to title insurance operations.
During the year ended December 31, 2009, we released excess title reserves of $74.4 million in addition to recording an average 7.25% provision for claims losses. The release of
excess reserves was due to analysis of the reserve position in light of consistently lower claim payments since 2008. During the year ended December 31, 2008, we recorded a charge to the
provision for title claim losses of $261.6 million resulting from adverse claim loss development on prior policy years. During the year ended December 31, 2007, we recorded charges to the
provision for title claims losses of $217.2 million, resulting from adverse claim loss development on prior policy years. These charges were in addition to the provision for title insurance
claim losses of 8.5% and 7.5%, for 2008 and 2007, respectively. Because reported and paid claims continued to exceed expected claims in these years, we modified our actuarial model in
2008 to more heavily weight the three most recent full years’ data on loss experience and to incorporate that data into the assumptions and factors that determine ultimate expected loss
experience for all prior calendar years. In response to the unfavorable prior year development, as well as to address higher expected costs for policies issued in 2005, 2006 and 2007, the title
loss provision amounts as a percentage of title premiums increased in 2008 and 2007. In response to the favorable development on prior year claims, the title loss provision amount as a
percentage of title premiums decreased in 2009.
Estimating future title loss payments is difficult because of the complex nature of title claims, the long periods of time over which claims are paid, significantly varying dollar
amounts of individual claims and other factors. Due to the uncertainty inherent in the process and to the judgment used by management the ultimate liability may be greater or less than our
current reserves.
Beginning in 2007, we began making payments on a group of related claims alleging negligence and fraud related to issuing title insurance policies and closing escrow transactions.
We believed that we had the ability to recoup all of these payments, subject to a $10 million retention, from various insurance policies. Through December 31, 2007, we had paid
approximately $51.9 million in claims, had received cash recoupment from insurance carriers of approximately $15.5 million and had an insurance recoverable of $31.4 million included in
the Consolidated Balance Sheet. Through March 31, 2008, we had paid an additional $79.3 million in claims, had received an additional $27.5 million in cash recoupment from insurance
carriers and had an insurance recoverable of $78.2 million included in the Consolidated Balance Sheet. During the remainder of 2008 and through the third quarter of 2009 there were
approximately $8.2 million in claims payments and approximately $3.2 million in insurance recoveries resulting in an $83.2 million insurance recoverable included in the Consolidated
Balance Sheet at that time. During September and October 2009, there were developments, including two court rulings, relating to coverages under certain insurance policies that caused us
to reevaluate our position on maintaining a recorded insurance recoverable. The fact that we received an adverse ruling in our case against the insurer on our Comprehensive General
Liability policy together with a reevaluation of our position by new legal counsel, caused us to reverse $63.2 million of the receivable, recorded as a charge to the provision for claim losses,
during the quarter ended September 30, 2009. We also received a favorable summary judgment relating to an insurance providers’ duty to defend the Company under our Miscellaneous
Professional Liability policy. In light of these developments, we did not believe it appropriate to carry more than the anticipated $20 million recovery for compensatory damages on the
Miscellaneous Professional Liability policy as a receivable as of September 30, 2009. During the quarter ended December 31, 2009, the Company paid an additional $8.8 million in respect
of these claims and received payments of $11.8 million relating to the Miscellaneous Professional Liability Policy and continued to negotiate with the carrier who had been found to act in
bad faith under the terms of that policy. As of
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December 31, 2009, we carried an $8.2 million receivable related to these coverages. Subsequent to December 31, 2009, we reached a settlement agreement with the same carrier for an
additional $16.2 million, representing the remaining $8.2 million receivable and $8 million in compensatory damages. The $16.2 million settlement amount was received in February 2010.
Note L.

Commitments and Contingencies

In the ordinary course of business, we are involved in various pending and threatened litigation matters related to our operations, some of which include claims for punitive or
exemplary damages. This customary litigation includes but is not limited to a wide variety of cases arising out of or related to title and escrow claims, for which we make provisions through
our loss reserves. We believe that no actions, other than those listed below, depart from customary litigation incidental to our business. As background to the disclosure below, please note the
following:
•

These matters raise difficult and complicated factual and legal issues and are subject to many uncertainties and complexities, including but not limited to the underlying facts of
each matter, novel legal issues, variations between jurisdictions in which matters are being litigated, differences in applicable laws and judicial interpretations, the length of time
before many of these matters might be resolved by settlement or through litigation and, in some cases, the timing of their resolutions relative to other similar cases brought against
other companies, the fact that many of these matters are putative class actions in which a class has not been certified and in which the purported class may not be clearly defined,
the fact that many of these matters involve multi-state class actions in which the applicable law for the claims at issue is in dispute and therefore unclear, and the current
challenging legal environment faced by large corporations and insurance companies.

•

In these matters, plaintiffs seek a variety of remedies including equitable relief in the form of injunctive and other remedies and monetary relief in the form of compensatory
damages. In most cases, the monetary damages sought include punitive or treble damages. Often more specific information beyond the type of relief sought is not available
because plaintiffs have not requested more specific relief in their court pleadings. In addition, the dollar amount of damages sought is frequently not stated with specificity. In
those cases where plaintiffs have made a statement with regard to monetary damages, they often specify damages either just above or below a jurisdictional limit regardless of the
facts of the case. These limits represent either the jurisdictional threshold for bringing a case in federal court or the maximum they can seek without risking removal from state
court to federal court. In our experience, monetary demands in plaintiffs’ court pleadings bear little relation to the ultimate loss, if any, that we may experience. None of the cases
described below includes a statement as to the dollar amount of damages demanded. Instead, each of the cases includes a demand in an amount to be proved at trial.

•

For the reasons specified above, it is not possible to make meaningful estimates of the amount or range of loss that could result from these matters at this time. We review these
matters on an ongoing basis when making accrual and disclosure decisions. When assessing reasonably possible and probable outcomes, management bases its decision on its
assessment of the ultimate outcome following all appeals.

•

We intend to vigorously defend each of these matters. In the opinion of our management, while some of these matters may be material to our operating results for any particular
period if an unfavorable outcome results, none will have a material adverse effect on our overall financial condition.

There are class actions pending against several title insurance companies, including Security Union Title Insurance Company, Fidelity National Title Insurance Company, Chicago
Title Insurance Company, Ticor Title Insurance Company of Florida, Commonwealth Land Title Insurance Company, Lawyers Title Insurance Corporation, and Ticor Title Insurance
Company, alleging improper premiums were charged for title insurance.
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These cases allege that the named defendant companies failed to provide notice of premium discounts to consumers refinancing their mortgages, and/or failed to give discounts in refinancing
transactions in violation of the filed rates.
In February 2008, thirteen putative class actions were commenced against several title insurance companies, including Fidelity National Title Insurance Company, Chicago
Title Insurance Company, Security Union Title Insurance Company, Alamo Title Insurance Company, Ticor Title Insurance Company of Florida, Commonwealth Land Title Insurance
Company, LandAmerica New Jersey Title Insurance Company (now Continental Title Insurance Company), Lawyers Title Insurance Corporation, Transnation Title Insurance Company
(which has merged into Lawyers Title Insurance Corporation), and Ticor Title Insurance Company (collectively, the “Fidelity Affiliates”). The complaints also name Fidelity National
Financial, Inc. (together with the Fidelity Affiliates, the “Fidelity Defendants”) as a defendant based on its ownership of the Fidelity Affiliates. The complaints, which are brought on behalf
of a putative class of consumers who purchased title insurance in New York, allege that the defendants conspired to inflate rates for title insurance through the Title Insurance Rate Service
Association, Inc. (“TIRSA”), a New York State-approved rate service organization which is also named as a defendant. Each of the complaints asserts a cause of action under the Sherman
Act and several of the complaints include claims under the Real Estate Settlement Procedures Act as well as New York State statutory and common law claims. The complaints seek
monetary damages, including treble damages, as well as injunctive relief. Subsequently, similar complaints were filed in many federal courts. There are numerous complaints pending
alleging that the Fidelity Defendants conspired with their competitors to unlawfully inflate rates for title insurance in every major market in the United States. A motion was filed before the
Multidistrict Litigation Panel to consolidate and/or coordinate these actions in the United States District Court in the Southern District of New York. However, that motion was denied. Where
there are multiple cases in one state they have been consolidated before one district court judge in each state and scheduled for the filing of consolidated complaints and motion practice. In
2009, the complaints filed in Texas and New York were dismissed with prejudice, but the plaintiffs have appealed. On February 11, 2010, the Second Circuit Court of Appeals in a summary
opinion affirmed the dismissal of the complaint in so far as it alleged antitrust violations. A count of the complaint alleging RESPA violations remains, however we believe it is meritless and
will be dismissed on motion. The complaints in Arkansas and Washington were dismissed with leave to amend, but the plaintiffs have not amended. The complaint in California was
dismissed with leave to amend, the plaintiffs have amended, and the companies have moved to dismiss the amended complaint and the court denied the motion. The case will proceed on a
state consumer protection cause of action. The complaint in Delaware was dismissed, but the plaintiffs were permitted to amend to state a claim for injunctive relief. The plaintiffs amended,
and the defendants have moved to dismiss the amended complaint. The damage claims in the Pennsylvania cases were dismissed, but the plaintiffs were permitted to pursue injunctive relief.
The plaintiffs were permitted limited discovery and a schedule for summary judgment briefing after the first of the year has been set. The magistrate has recommended that the Ohio
complaint be dismissed. On December 17, 2009 the District Court Judge heard motions on the recommendation, and permitted the filing of additional briefs on January 25, 2010. On
February 2, 2010, the District Court judge recused himself, and the matter has been transferred to a new judge. In New Jersey, the Company’s motion to dismiss the amended complaint
remains under submission. In West Virginia, the case has been placed on the inactive list pending the resolution of the LandAmerica bankruptcy. The complaints filed in Florida and
Massachusetts were all voluntarily dismissed.
On September 24, 2007 a third party complaint was filed in the In Re Ameriquest Mortgage Lending Practices Litigation in the United States District Court for the Northern District
of Illinois by Ameriquest Mortgage Company (“Ameriquest”) and Argent Mortgage Company (“Argent”) against numerous title insurers and agents (the “Title Insurer Defendants”),
including Chicago Title Company, Fidelity National Title Company, Fidelity National Title Insurance Company, American Pioneer Title Insurance Company (now known as Ticor
Title Insurance Company of Florida), Chicago Title of Michigan, Fidelity National Title Insurance
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Company of New York, Transnation Title Insurance Company (now known as Lawyers Title Insurance Corporation), Commonwealth Land Title Insurance Company, Commonwealth Land
Title Company, Lawyers Title Insurance Corporation, Chicago Title Insurance Company, Alamo Title Company, and Ticor Title Insurance Company (collectively, the “FNF Affiliates”). The
third party complaint alleges that Ameriquest and Argent have been sued by a class of borrowers (and by numerous persons who have preemptively opted out of any class that may be
certified) alleging that the two lenders violated the Truth in Lending Act (“TILA”) by failing to comply with the notice of right to cancel provisions and making misrepresentations in lending
to the borrowers, who now seek money damages. Ameriquest and Argent each alleges that the FNF Affiliates contracted and warranted to close these loans in conformity with the lender’s
instructions which correctly followed the requirements of TILA and contained no misrepresentations; therefore, if Ameriquest and Argent are liable to the class or to the opt-out plaintiffs,
then the FNF Affiliates are liable to them for failing to close the lending transactions as agreed. Ameriquest and Argent seek to recover the cost of resolving the class action and other cases
against them including their attorney’s fees and costs in the action. The Title Insurer Defendants organized to form a defense group and, as requested by the court, are exploring the
possibility of filing a single collective response. The Seventh Circuit, in which circuit these matters are pending, ruled in a separate case that TILA violations as alleged in these complaints
could not be the subject of a class action seeking rescission, though the plaintiffs in the case against Ameriquest and Argent have not yet sought class certification and so the court in their
case has not yet ruled on the applicability of the Court of Appeals’ decision (which, in any event, would not affect the cases of individual plaintiffs). Ameriquest filed its fifth amended third
party complaint against the defendants, and the Title Insurer Defendants moved to dismiss. On January 19, 2010 the court granted the motion as to the negligence claims, but denied the
motion as to the contract claims and negligent misrepresentation claims. The Title Insurer Defendants will answer the Fifth Amended complaint.
There are class actions pending against Fidelity National Financial, Inc., Fidelity National Title Group and several title insurance companies, including Fidelity National
Title Insurance Company, Chicago Title Insurance Company, Lawyers Title Insurance Corporation, Transnation Title Insurance Company (which has merged into Lawyers Title Insurance
Corporation), United Title Company, Inc., and Ticor Title Insurance Company, alleging overcharges for government recording fees. These cases allege that the named defendant companies
charged fees in excess of the fees charged by government entities in closing transactions and charged for documents releasing encumbrances that were never recorded by us. These suits seek
various remedies including compensatory damages, prejudgment interest, punitive damages and attorney’s fees. One case filed in Missouri (Hartis) in the summer of 2008 but removed to the
Federal District Court in Missouri, seeks to certify a national class against Chicago Title Insurance Company. Although the Federal District Court in Kansas refused to certify a national class
previously filed by the same plaintiff’s attorneys, this suit seeks to overcome that Court’s objections to certification. In September 2009, we filed a motion to deny class certification. And,
although similar cases filed in Indiana were decertified by the appellate court and trial court, the Missouri courts have refused to decertify a case now pending, which has been assigned to a
judge and set for trial on March 1, 2010. On January 26, 2009, a recording fee class action was filed in New Jersey. On January 30, 2009, the court granted the named defendants’ motion for
summary judgment in the recording fee class action in the Federal District Court in Texas, which alleged recording fee overcharges in five states. The plaintiff has appealed this decision and
oral argument was heard in the Fifth Circuit Court of Appeals on November 2, 2009. On January 15, 2010, the Fifth Circuit Court of Appeals affirmed the Federal District Court’s decision to
grant the named defendants’ motion for summary judgment.
There are class actions pending against Fidelity National Title Company, Fidelity National Title Company of Washington, Inc., and Chicago Title Insurance Company, alleging that
the named defendants in each case charged unnecessary reconveyance fees (Cornelius, Bushbeck) without performing any separate service for those fees which was not already included as a
service for the “escrow fee.” Additionally, Cornelius alleges that the named defendants wrongfully earned interest or other benefits on escrowed funds from the time funds
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were deposited into escrow until any disbursement checks cleared the account. Motions for class certification were filed in both of these cases, and we then moved for summary judgment in
both cases and to continue the briefing of the class certification motions until the summary judgment motions were determined. Both courts granted the motions to continue class certification
briefing until the summary judgment motions were determined and those motions are now fully briefed and submitted.
A class action has been filed in state court in Hawaii against Fidelity National Title and Escrow of Hawaii, Inc. alleging the Company wrongfully released funds from escrow thereby
engaging in unfair or deceptive trade practices in violation of state statute. The suit seeks damages, treble damages, prejudgment interest, attorney’s fees and costs. We answered the
complaint and are investigating the allegations informally and through discovery.
A class action filed in District Court in Nevada has been amended to allege a cause of action for breach of fiduciary duty in handling escrows against Commonwealth Land
Title Insurance Company and Fidelity National Title Agency of Nevada, Inc. The complaint seeks compensatory and punitive damages and attorney’s fees. We are investigating the
allegations and have moved for a more definite statement of the allegations against us, which was opposed by plaintiffs and is now fully briefed and submitted.
On December 3, 2007, a former title officer in California filed a putative class action suit against Lawyers Title Company, and LandAmerica Financial Group, Inc (collectively, the
“Defendants”). The lawsuits were later amended to include Commonwealth Land Title Company and Commonwealth Land Title Insurance Company as defendants in the Superior Court of
California for Los Angeles County. A similar putative class action was filed against the Defendants by former escrow officers in California, in the same court on December 12, 2007. The
plaintiffs’ complaints in both lawsuits allege failure to pay overtime and other related violations of the California Labor Code, as well as unfair business practices under the California
Business and Professions Code § 17200 on behalf of all current and former California title and escrow officers. The underlying basis for both lawsuits is an alleged misclassification of title
and escrow officers as “exempt” employees for purposes of the California Labor Code, which resulted in a failure to pay overtime and provide for required meal and rest breaks. Although
such employees were reclassified as “non-exempt” beginning on January 1, 2006, the complaints allege similar violations of the California Labor Code even after that date for alleged
“off-the-clock” work. The plaintiffs’ complaints in both cases demand an unspecified amount of back wages, statutory penalties, declaratory and injunctive relief, punitive damages, interest,
and attorneys’ fees and costs. The plaintiffs have yet to file a motion for class certification, as the parties have agreed to mediation. A mediation date has not yet been set. Should further
litigation prove necessary following the mediation, the Defendants believe that they have meritorious defenses both to class certification and to liability.
The Georgia Insurance Commissioner and the Company are engaged in discussions regarding market conduct matters involving rates, closing protection letters and the licensing of
agents. Closing protection letters are standardized indemnity agreements given to individually named lenders and specify conditions under, and the extent to which, a title insurer will accept
liability for the acts or omissions of its agents connected with the closing of insured real estate transactions. These discussions are in the early stage and we do not know the impact the
outcome thereof will have on the Company, if any.
Various governmental entities are studying the title insurance product, market, pricing, business practices, and potential regulatory and legislative changes. We receive inquiries and
requests for information from state insurance departments, attorneys general and other regulatory agencies from time to time about various matters relating to our business. Sometimes these
take the form of civil investigative subpoenas or market conduct examinations. We attempt to cooperate with all such inquiries. From time to time, we are assessed fines for violations of
regulations or other matters or enter into settlements with such authorities which require us to pay money or take other actions.
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In conducting our operations, we routinely hold customers’ assets in escrow, pending completion of real estate transactions. Certain of these amounts are maintained in segregated
bank accounts and have not been included in the accompanying Consolidated Balance Sheets. We have a contingent liability relating to proper disposition of these balances for our
customers, which amounted to $4.2 billion at December 31, 2009. As a result of holding these customers’ assets in escrow, we have ongoing programs for realizing economic benefits during
the year through favorable borrowing and vendor arrangements with various banks. There were no investments or loans outstanding as of December 31, 2009 and 2008 related to these
arrangements.
Future minimum operating lease payments are as follows (dollars in millions):
2010
2011
2012
2013
2014
Thereafter
Total future minimum operating lease payments

$ 135.5
99.6
66.2
34.8
20.8
94.3
$ 451.2

Rent expense incurred under operating leases during the years ended December 31, 2009, 2008 and 2007 was $153.1 million, $138.0 million, and $163.9 million, respectively. Rent
expense in 2009, 2008, and 2007 includes abandoned lease charges related to office closures of $5.3 million, $23.4 million, and $13.0 million, respectively.
We are party to an off-balance sheet financing arrangement (commonly referred to as a “synthetic lease”). The owner/lessor in this arrangement acquired land and various real
property improvements associated with new construction of an office building in Jacksonville, Florida, that are part of FNF’s corporate campus and headquarters. The lease expires on
June 28, 2011, with renewal subject to consent of the lessor and the lenders. The lessor is a third-party limited liability company. The synthetic lease facility provides for amounts up to
$75.0 million. As of December 31, 2009, the full $75.0 million had been drawn on the facility to finance land costs and related fees and expenses and the outstanding balance was
$70.1 million. The lease includes guarantees by us of up to 86.7% of the outstanding lease balance, and options to purchase the facilities at the outstanding lease balance. The guarantee
becomes effective if we decline to purchase the facilities at the end of the lease and also decline to renew the lease. The lessor financed the acquisition of the facilities through funding
provided by third-party financial institutions. We have no affiliation or relationship with the lessor or any of its employees, directors or affiliates, and transactions with the lessor are limited
to the operating lease agreements and the associated rent expense that have been included in other operating expenses in the Consolidated Statements of Operations. We do not believe the
lessor is a variable interest entity, as defined in the FASB standard on consolidation of variable interest entities.
Note M.

Regulation and Equity

Our insurance subsidiaries, including title insurers, property and casualty insurers, underwritten title companies and insurance agencies, are subject to extensive regulation under
applicable state laws. Each of the insurance underwriters is subject to a holding company act in its state of domicile which regulates, among other matters, the ability to pay dividends and
enter into transactions with affiliates. The laws of most states in which we transact business establish supervisory agencies with broad administrative powers relating to issuing and revoking
licenses to transact business, regulating trade practices, licensing agents, approving policy forms, accounting practices, financial practices, establishing reserve and capital and surplus as
regards policyholders (“capital and surplus”) requirements, defining suitable investments for reserves and capital and surplus and approving rate schedules.
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Since we are governed by both state and federal governments and the applicable insurance laws and regulations are constantly subject to change, it is not possible to predict the
potential effects on our insurance operations, particularly the Fidelity National Title Group segment, of any laws or regulations that may become more restrictive in the future or if new
restrictive laws will be enacted.
Pursuant to statutory accounting requirements of the various states in which our insurers are domiciled, these insurers must defer a portion of premiums earned as an unearned
premium reserve for the protection of policyholders and must maintain qualified assets in an amount equal to the statutory requirements. The level of unearned premium reserve required to
be maintained at any time is determined by statutory formula based upon either the age, number of policies and dollar amount of policy liabilities underwritten, or the age and dollar amount
of statutory premiums written. As of December 31, 2009, the combined statutory unearned premium reserve required and reported for our title insurers was $1,978.3 million. In addition to
statutory unearned premium reserves, each of our insurers maintains reserves for known claims and surplus funds for policyholder protection and business operations.
Each of our insurance subsidiaries is regulated by the insurance regulatory authority in its respective state of domicile, as well as that of each state in which it is licensed. The
insurance commissioners of their respective states of domicile are the primary regulators of our title insurance subsidiaries. Each of the insurers is subject to periodic regulatory financial
examination by regulatory authorities, and certain of these examinations are currently ongoing.
Our insurance subsidiaries are subject to regulations that restrict their ability to pay dividends or make other distributions of cash or property to their immediate parent company
without prior approval from the Department of Insurance of their respective states of domicile. As of December 31, 2009, $2,435.3 million of our net assets are restricted from dividend
payments without prior approval from the Departments of Insurance. During 2010, our title insurers can pay or make distributions to us of approximately $289.4 million, without prior
approval.
The combined statutory capital and surplus of our title insurers was $860.9 million and $634.9 million as of December 31, 2009 and 2008, respectively. The combined statutory net
earnings of our title insurance subsidiaries were $270.4 million, $(170.5), and $204.8 million for the years ended December 31, 2009, 2008, and 2007, respectively. Combined statutory net
earnings for 2009 and 2008 includes the activity of the LFG Underwriters.
As a condition to continued authority to underwrite policies in the states in which our insurers conduct their business, the insurers are required to pay certain fees and file information
regarding their officers, directors and financial condition. In addition, our escrow and trust business is subject to regulation by various state banking authorities.
Pursuant to statutory requirements of the various states in which our insurers are domiciled, such insurers must maintain certain levels of minimum capital and surplus. Each of our
insurers has complied with the minimum statutory requirements as of December 31, 2009.
Our underwritten title companies are also subject to certain regulation by insurance regulatory or banking authorities, primarily relating to minimum net worth. Minimum net worth
requirements for each underwritten title company are as follows: $7.5 million for Fidelity National Title Company, $2.5 million for Fidelity National Title Company of California,
$3.0 million for Chicago Title Company, and $0.4 million for Ticor Title Company of California, Commonwealth Land Title Company, and Lawyers Title Company. These underwritten title
companies are in compliance with all of their respective minimum net worth requirements at December 31, 2009.
On April 14, 2009, we offered 15,800,000 shares of our common stock at an offering price of $19.00 per share, pursuant to an effective registration statement previously filed with the
Securities and Exchange
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Commission. The underwriters were granted and chose to exercise an option to purchase additional shares equal to 15% of the offering, or 2,370,000 shares, at the offering price. A total of
18,170,000 shares were issued on April 20, 2009, for net proceeds of approximately $331.4 million. The proceeds were used as follows: $135.0 million to repay borrowings under our
$1.1 billion revolving credit facility, $71.5 million to repurchase our public bonds, $50.8 million to repurchase shares of our common stock, $25.0 million as part of a $57.1 million capital
infusion into Lawyers Title and Commonwealth Land Title, and the remainder for general corporate purposes.
On October 25, 2006, the Board of Directors approved a three-year stock repurchase program under which we can repurchase up to 25 million shares of our common stock. On
July 21, 2009, the Board of Directors approved a new three-year stock repurchase program under which we can repurchase up to 15 million shares through July 31, 2012. We may make
repurchases from time to time in the open market, in block purchases or in privately negotiated transactions, depending on market conditions and other factors. Since the original
commencement of the plan adopted in October 2006, and through September 2009, we repurchased a total of 17,161,120 shares for $286.2 million, or an average of $16.68 per share. This
includes 4,320,750 shares repurchased in 2009 for $57.1 million, or an average of $13.21 per share and 3,165,470 repurchases in 2008 for $46.0 million, or $14.53 per share and
9,675,000 shares repurchased in 2007 for a total of $183.1 million, or $18.93 per share. In October 2009, we began repurchasing shares under the program approved July 21, 2009, and,
through December 31, 2009, we repurchased a total of 1,294,400 shares for $17.9 million, or an average of $13.83 per share. Subsequent to year-end, on January 4, 2010, we purchased
859,866 shares of our common stock for $11.6 million from the administrator of two of our former subsidiaries employee benefit plans. Because we were actively repurchasing shares of our
stock on the open market as part of the stock repurchase plan, we agreed to purchase the shares at a price of $13.46 per share, the market price at the time of purchase.
Note N.

Employee Benefit Plans

Stock Purchase Plan
During the three-year period ended December 31, 2009, our eligible employees could voluntarily participate in employee stock purchase plans (“ESPPs”) sponsored by us and our
subsidiaries. Pursuant to the ESPPs, employees may contribute an amount between 3% and 15% of their base salary and certain commissions. We contribute varying amounts as specified in
the ESPPs.
We contributed $11.4 million, $15.2 million, and $17.2 million to the ESPPs in the years ended December 31, 2009, 2008, and 2007, respectively, in accordance with the employer’s
matching contribution.
401(k) Profit Sharing Plan
During the three-year period ended December 31, 2009, we have offered our employees the opportunity to participate in 401(k) profit sharing plans (the “401(k) Plans”), qualified
voluntary contributory savings plans which are available to substantially all of our employees. Eligible employees may contribute up to 40% of their pretax annual compensation, up to the
amount allowed pursuant to the Internal Revenue Code. During the year ended December 31, 2007, we matched 50% of each dollar of employee contribution up to six percent of the
employee’s total compensation. There was no employer match for the years ended December 31, 2009 and 2008. Our contributions to the 401(k) Plans for the year ended December 31, 2007
was $22.8 million.
Stock Option Plans
In connection with the 2005 distribution of FNT stock by Old FNF, we established the FNT 2005 Omnibus Incentive Plan (the “Omnibus Plan”) authorizing the issuance of up to
8 million shares of common
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stock, subject to the terms of the Omnibus Plan. On October 23, 2006, the stockholders of FNT approved an amendment to increase the number of shares available for issuance under the
Omnibus Plan by 15.5 million shares. The increase was in part to provide capacity for options and restricted stock to be issued to replace Old FNF options and restricted stock. The Omnibus
Plan provides for the grant of stock options, stock appreciation rights, restricted stock, restricted stock units and performance shares, performance units, other cash and stock-based awards
and dividend equivalents. As of December 31, 2009, there were 1,968,540 shares of restricted stock and 23,238,646 stock options outstanding under this plan. Awards granted are determined
and approved by the Compensation Committee of the Board of Directors. Options vest over a 3 to 4 year period, and the exercise price for options granted equals the market price of the
underlying stock on the grant date. A grant of 1.5 million shares made to the Executive Chairman in 2009 contains time based and market based criteria for vesting purposes.
Following the closing of the 2006 Distribution on October 24, 2006, former Old FNF options and restricted stock held by our employees were converted in an intrinsic value swap to
options and restricted stock as noted above. Options and restricted stock held by FIS employees were converted into FIS options and restricted stock.
Stock option transactions under the Omnibus Plan for 2007, 2008, and 2009 are as follows:
Options

Balance, December 31, 2006
Granted
Exercised
Cancelled
Balance, December 31, 2007
Granted
Exercised
Cancelled
Balance, December 31, 2008
Granted
Exercised
Cancelled
Balance, December 31, 2009

14,141,410
5,257,997
(1,087,946)
(302,627)
18,008,834
6,162,942
(775,092)
(177,401)
23,219,283
2,533,250
(2,118,631)
(395,256)
23,238,646
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Weighted Average
Exercise Price

$14.55
13.64
7.73
21.66
$14.57
7.09
6.93
17.70
$12.82
15.30
9.17
14.89
$13.39

Exercisable

7,406,280

9,904,089

11,971,263

14,119,807
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Restricted stock transactions under the Omnibus Plan in 2007, 2008, and 2009 are as follows:
Weighted Average
Grant Date
Fair Value

Shares

Balance, December 31, 2006
Granted
Cancelled
Vested
Balance, December 31, 2007
Granted
Cancelled
Vested
Balance, December 31, 2008
Granted
Cancelled
Vested
Balance, December 31, 2009

2,596,649
510,503
(34,289)
(996,811)
2,076,052
1,370,358
(28,973)
(1,165,137)
2,252,300
1,044,000
(23,833)
(1,303,927)
1,968,540

$21.38
13.87
17.54
20.07
16.82
11.46
16.98
19.54
12.71
14.06
17.61
17.32
13.09

The following table summarizes information related to stock options outstanding and exercisable as of December 31, 2009:
Options Outstanding

Range of
Exercise Prices

$0.00 — $7.09
$7.10 — $13.64
$13.65 — $14.06
$14.07 — $16.16
$16.17 — $20.60
$20.61 — $21.90
$21.91 — $23.44

Number of
Options

7,126,232
7,051,369
1,033,250
1,500,000
2,691,335
1,970,793
1,865,667
23,238,646

Weighted
Average
Remaining
Contractual
Life

6.00
4.93
6.94
7.05
3.25
5.81
6.97
5.53

Weighted
Average
Exercise
Price

$

$

6.62
13.10
14.06
16.16
17.08
21.89
23.42
13.39

Intrinsic
Value
(In millions)

$

$

48.8
2.5
—
—
—
—
—
51.3

Number of
Options

3,108,297
4,493,715
—
—
2,688,835
1,970,793
1,858,167
14,119,807

Options Exercisable
Weighted
Average
Weighted
Remaining
Average
Contractual
Exercise
Life
Price

4.94
4.47
—
—
3.25
5.81
6.97
4.84

$

$

6.01
12.79
—
—
17.07
21.89
23.43
14.78

Intrinsic
Value
(In millions)

$

$

23.2
3.0
—
—
—
—
—
26.2

We account for stock-based compensation plans in accordance with the FASB standard on share-based payments, which requires that compensation cost relating to share-based
payments be recognized in the consolidated financial statements based on the fair value of each award. Using the fair value method of accounting, compensation cost is measured based on
the fair value of the award at the grant date and recognized over the service period. Net earnings reflects stock-based compensation expense amounts of $33.7 million, $32.7 million, and
$29.9 million, for the years ended December 31, 2009, 2008, and 2007, respectively, which are included in personnel costs in the reported financial results of each period.
The risk free interest rates used in the calculation of compensation cost are the rates that correspond to the weighted average expected life of an option. The volatility was estimated
based on the historical volatility of FNF’s stock price over a term equal to the weighted average expected life of the options. For options granted in the years ended December 31, 2009, 2008,
and 2007, we used risk free interest rates of 2.5%, 2.5%, and 3.8%, respectively, volatility factors for the expected market price of the common stock of 53%, 40%, and 29%, respectively,
expected dividend yields of 3.9%, 4.0%, and 5.0%, respectively, and weighted average expected lives of 4.8 years, 5.0 years, and 4.4 years, respectively. The weighted average fair value of
each
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option granted in the years ended December 31, 2009, 2008, and 2007, were $5.32, $1.87, and $2.36, respectively.
At December 31, 2009, the total unrecognized compensation cost related to non-vested stock option grants and restricted stock grants is $48.1 million, which is expected to be
recognized in pre-tax income over a weighted average period of 1.63 years.
Pension Plans
In connection with the Chicago Title merger, we assumed Chicago Title’s noncontributory defined contribution plan and noncontributory defined benefit pension plan (the “Pension
Plan”).
The Pension Plan covers certain Chicago Title employees. The benefits are based on years of service and the employee’s average monthly compensation in the highest 60 consecutive
calendar months during the 120 months ending at retirement or termination. Effective December 31, 2000, the Pension Plan was frozen and there will be no future credit given for years of
service or changes in salary.
The following table sets forth the funded status of the Pension Plan and amounts reflected in the Consolidated Balance Sheets as of December 31, 2009, 2008 and 2007:
2009

Change in Benefit Obligation:
Net benefit obligation at beginning of year
Effects of change in actuarial assumptions
Interest cost
Actuarial loss
Gross benefits paid
Net benefit obligation at end of year

$

$

Change in Pension Plan Assets:
Fair value of plan assets at beginning of year
Actual return on plan assets
Employer contributions
Gross benefits paid
Fair value of plan assets at end of year

$

$

Funded status at end of year
Unrecognized net actuarial loss
Net amount recognized at end of year

$
$

2008
(Dollars in millions)

145.0
8.8
8.8
1.2
(11.6)
152.2

$

108.1
22.3
5.8
(11.6)
124.6

$

(27.6)
74.5
46.9

$

$

$

$

149.6
(1.8)
9.0
0.8
(12.6)
145.0

$

142.5
(25.6)
3.8
(12.6)
108.1

$

(36.9)
83.5
46.6

$

The accumulated benefit obligation (ABO) is the same as the projected benefit obligation (PBO) due to the pension plan being frozen as of December 31, 2000.
Pursuant to the FASB standard on employers’ accounting for defined benefit pension and other post retirement plans, the measurement date is December 31.
The net pension liability included in accounts payable and accrued liabilities as of December 31, 2009 and 2008 is $27.6 million and $36.9 million, respectively.
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2007

$

$

$

158.3
(7.3)
8.9
2.7
(13.0)
149.6
127.0
11.4
17.1
(13.0)
142.5
(7.1)
53.8
46.7
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The components of net periodic expense included in the results of operations for 2009, 2008, and 2007 are as follows:
2009

Service cost
Interest cost
Expected return on assets
Amortization of actuarial loss
Total net expense

2008
(Dollars in millions)

$ —
8.8
(9.9)
6.7
$ 5.6

$

$

—
9.0
(11.6)
6.4
3.8

2007

$

$

—
8.9
(10.6)
8.5
6.8

The net gain or loss recognized in other comprehensive income is shown below, on both a before tax and net of tax basis. There is no impact in other comprehensive income related to
a net transition asset or obligation or net prior service cost or credit.
Before Tax
Net of Tax
(Dollars in millions)

Year ended December 31, 2009:
Accumulated other comprehensive income at January 1
Amounts recognized in current fiscal year:
Net loss/gain
Total
Unrecognized amounts arising in current fiscal year:
Net loss/gain
Total
Accumulated other comprehensive income at December 31

$

Amounts expected to be recognized in the following year:
Net loss/gain
Total
Year ended December 31, 2008:
Accumulated other comprehensive income at January 1
Amounts recognized in current fiscal year:
Net loss/gain
Total
Unrecognized amounts arising in current fiscal year:
Net loss/gain
Total
Accumulated other comprehensive income at December 31
Amounts expected to be recognized in the following year:
Net loss/gain
Total

$

49.4

(6.7)
(6.7)

(4.2)
(4.2)

(2.3)
(2.3)
74.5

(1.5)
(1.5)
43.7

$

(7.8)
(7.8)

$

(4.9)
(4.9)

$

53.8

$

30.6

$

109

83.5

(6.4)
(6.4)

(4.0)
(4.0)

36.1
36.1
83.5

22.8
22.8
49.4

(6.4)
(6.4)

$

(4.0)
(4.0)
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Pension Assumptions
Weighted-average assumptions used to determine benefit obligations at December 31 are as follows:
Discount rate
Rate of compensation increase

2009

2008

5.61%
N/A(a)

6.25%
N/A(a)

Weighted-average assumptions used to determine net expense for years ended December 31 are as follows:
Discount rate
Expected return on plan assets
Rate of compensation increase
(a)

2009

2008

2007

6.25%
7.5%
N/A(a)

6.25%
8.5%
N/A(a)

5.75%
8.5%
N/A(a)

Rate of compensation increase is not applicable due to the pension being frozen at December 31, 2000.

The discount rate used was determined by discounting projections of future benefit payments using annual spot rates from the Citigroup Pension Discount Curve. The discounted cash
flows were then used to determine the effective discount rate.
Pension Plan Assets
The expected long term rate of return on plan assets was 7.5% and 8.5% for the years ended December 31, 2009 and 2008, respectively, derived using the plan’s asset mix, historical
returns by asset category, expectations for future capital market performance, and the fund’s past experience. Both the plan’s investment policy and the expected long-term rate of return
assumption are reviewed periodically. Our strategy is to focus on a one to three-year investment horizon, targeting equity securities at 65% of total assets. The remainder of the portfolio is
invested in fixed income securities and cash equivalents in a liability driven investment strategy that intends to match the duration of the fixed income investments to the duration of the
plan’s liabilities. We do not hold any investments in our own equity securities within the pension plan assets.
The fair value of our pension plan assets at December 31, 2009, by asset category is as follows (in millions):

Equity securities
Fixed income securities
Insurance annuities
Non-interest bearing cash
Other
Total

Total

Quoted Prices
in Active Markets
(Level 1)

Significant
Observable Inputs
(Level 2)

Significant
Unobservable Inputs
(Level 3)

69.4
45.8
6.5
0.4
2.5
124.6

—
—
—
0.4
—
0.4

69.4
45.8
—
—
—
115.2

—
—
6.5
—
2.5
9.0
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The change in the fair value of our pension plan assets which use significant unobservable inputs (Level 3) are as follows (in millions):
Balance at December 31, 2008
Additions due to contributions or transfers during the period due to benefit payments, expenses, taxes, risk charges, and transfers out
Investment earnings for the period
Net purchases
Balance at December 31, 2009

8.5
(0.8)
0.5
0.8
9.0

Pension Plan Cash Flows
Plan Contributions
Our funding policy is to contribute annually at least the minimum required contribution under the Employee Retirement Income Security Act (ERISA). Contributions are intended to
provide not only for benefits accrued to date, but also for those expected to be earned in the future. In 2009, 2008 and 2007, we made contributions of $5.8 million, $3.8 million, and
$17.1 million, respectively.
Plan Benefit Payments
A detail of actual and expected benefit payments is as follows (in millions):
Actual Benefit Payments:
2008
2009
Expected Future Payments:
2010
2011
2012
2013
2014
2015-2019

$12.7
11.6
$11.8
11.4
11.5
11.5
11.6
56.0

Postretirement and Other Nonqualified Employee Benefit Plans
We assumed certain health care and life insurance benefits for retired Chicago Title employees in connection with the Chicago Title merger. Beginning on January 1, 2001, these
benefits were offered to all employees who met specific eligibility requirements. Additionally, in connection with the acquisition of the LFG Underwriters, we assumed certain of the LFG
Underwriters nonqualified benefit plans, which provide various postretirement benefits to certain executives and retirees. The costs of these benefit plans are accrued during the periods the
employees render service. We are both self-insured and fully insured for postretirement health care and life insurance benefit plans, and the plans are not funded. The health care plans
provide for insurance benefits after retirement and are generally contributory, with contributions adjusted annually. Postretirement life insurance benefits are primarily contributory, with
coverage amounts declining with increases in a retiree’s age. The aggregate benefit obligation for these plans was $35.9 million, $22.6 million, and $17.3 million at December 31, 2009,
2008, and 2007, respectively. The costs included in the results of operations relating to these plans were $1.7 million, $1.5 million, and $1.5 million for the years ending December 31, 2009,
2008, and 2007, respectively.
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Note O.

Supplementary Cash Flow Information

The following supplemental cash flow information is provided with respect to interest and tax payments, as well as certain non-cash investing and financing activities.
2009

Cash paid (received) during the year:
Interest
Income taxes
Non-cash investing and financing activities:
Liabilities assumed in connection with acquisitions:
Fair value of assets acquired
Less: Total purchase price
Liabilities assumed
Note P.

Year Ended December 31,
2008
(Dollars in millions)

$ 51.3
(2.5)

$

$ 77.4
47.9
$ 29.5

$
$

64.4
(37.4)
1,645.4
243.2
1,402.2

2007

$

53.9
86.9

$

416.4
245.8
170.6

$

Financial Instruments with Off-Balance Sheet Risk and Concentration of Risk

In the normal course of business we and certain of our subsidiaries enter into off-balance sheet credit arrangements associated with certain aspects of the title insurance business and
other activities.
We generate a significant amount of title insurance premiums in California, Texas, Florida, and New York. Title insurance premiums as a percentage of the total title insurance
premiums written from those four states are detailed as follows:
California
Texas
Florida
New York

2009

2008

2007

17.6%
10.3%
5.7%
6.9%

17.6%
12.5%
7.7%
7.4%

16.5%
12.6%
10.8%
8.0%

Financial instruments that potentially subject us to concentrations of credit risk consist primarily of cash equivalents, short-term investments, and trade receivables.
We place cash equivalents and short-term investments with high credit quality financial institutions and, by policy, limit the amount of credit exposure with any one financial
institution. Investments in commercial paper of industrial firms and financial institutions are rated investment grade by nationally recognized rating agencies.
Concentrations of credit risk with respect to trade receivables are limited because a large number of geographically diverse customers make up our customer base, thus spreading the
trade receivables credit risk. We control credit risk through monitoring procedures.
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Note Q.

Segment Information

Summarized financial information concerning our reportable segments is shown in the following table.
As of and for the year ended December 31, 2009:
Fidelity National
Title Group

Title premiums
Other revenues
Revenues from external customers
Interest and investment income, including realized gains and losses
Total revenues
Depreciation and amortization
Interest expense
Earnings (loss) from continuing operations, before income taxes and equity in loss of
unconsolidated affiliates
Income tax expense (benefit)
Earnings (loss) from continuing operations, before equity in earnings of unconsolidated affiliates
Equity in (loss) earnings of unconsolidated affiliates
Earnings (loss) from continuing operations

$

Assets
Goodwill

$

113

$

$

$

Specialty
Insurance
(In millions)

3,927.6
1,300.6
5,228.2
165.4
5,393.6
100.5
0.8

$

370.0
114.7
255.3
3.8
259.1

$

6,325.4
1,401.2

$

$

$

Corporate
and Other

—
366.0
366.0
14.2
380.2
5.1
—

$

43.6
14.5
29.1
—
29.1

$

456.2
28.7

$

$

$

Total

—
52.3
52.3
2.3
54.6
3.6
35.9

$

(68.7)
(22.4)
(46.3)
(15.5)
(61.8)

$

1,152.8
25.3

$

$
$

3,927.6
1,718.9
5,646.5
181.9
5,828.4
109.2
36.7
344.9
106.8
238.1
(11.7)
226.4
7,934.4
1,455.2
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As of and for the year ended December 31, 2008:
Fidelity National
Title Group

Title premiums
Other revenues
Revenues from external customers
Interest and investment income, including realized gains and losses
Total revenues
Depreciation and amortization
Interest expense
Loss (earnings) from continuing operations, before income taxes and equity in earnings (loss) of
unconsolidated affiliates
Income tax (benefit) expense
(Loss) earnings from continuing operations, before equity in earnings (loss) of unconsolidated
affiliates
Equity in earnings (loss) of unconsolidated affiliates
(Loss) earnings from continuing operations

$

Assets
Goodwill

$

$

$

$

2,695.0
1,034.3
3,729.3
87.3
3,816.6
115.0
5.7
(231.0)
(98.2)
(132.8)
1.1
(131.7)
6,766.2
1,484.3

Specialty
Insurance
(In millions)

$

$

$

$
$

Corporate
and Other

—
373.4
373.4
9.9
383.3
4.9
0.5

$

35.0
11.7

$

23.3
—
23.3
422.6
28.7

$

$
$

Total

—
37.0
37.0
14.3
51.3
2.2
52.4

$

(83.7)
(33.4)

$

(50.3)
(14.5)
(64.8)
1,179.4
68.7

$

$
$

2,695.0
1,444.7
4,139.7
111.5
4,251.2
122.1
58.6
(279.7)
(119.9)
(159.8)
(13.4)
(173.2)
8,368.2
1,581.7

As of and for the year ended December 31, 2007:
Fidelity National
Title Group

Title premiums
Other revenues
Revenues from external customers
Interest and investment income, including realized gains and losses
Total revenues
Depreciation and amortization
Interest expense
Earnings (loss) from continuing operations, before income taxes and equity in loss of
unconsolidated affiliates
Income tax expense (benefit)
Earnings (loss) from continuing operations, before equity in earnings of unconsolidated affiliates
Equity in earnings of unconsolidated affiliates
Earnings (loss) from continuing operations

$

Assets
Goodwill

$
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$

$

$

Specialty
Insurance
(In millions)

3,800.5
1,034.5
4,835.0
170.0
5,005.0
120.2
14.6

$

183.5
49.3
134.2
2.5
136.7

$

5,953.6
1,246.3

$

$

$

Corporate
and Other

—
386.4
386.4
16.2
402.6
6.0
1.5

$

53.0
19.2
33.8
—
33.8

$

461.5
28.7

$

$

$

Total

—
41.5
41.5
16.5
58.0
1.7
36.8

$

(51.2)
(18.2)
(33.0)
(1.7)
(34.7)

$

1,172.8
69.6

$

$
$

3,800.5
1,462.4
5,262.9
202.7
5,465.6
127.9
52.9
185.3
50.3
135.0
0.8
135.8
7,587.9
1,344.6
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (continued)
The activities of the reportable segments include the following:
Fidelity National Title Group
This segment consists of the operations of our title insurance underwriters and related businesses. This segment provides core title insurance and escrow and other title related
services including collection and trust activities, trustee’s sales guarantees, recordings and reconveyances.
Specialty Insurance
This segment consists of certain subsidiaries that issue flood, home warranty, homeowners’, automobile, and other personal lines insurance policies.
Corporate and Other
The corporate and other segment consists of the operations of the parent holding company, certain other unallocated corporate overhead expenses, other smaller operations, and our
share in the operations of certain equity method investments, including Sedgwick, Ceridian and Remy. During the year ended December 31, 2008, we recorded a $4.0 million impairment
charge to an intangible asset in the corporate and other segment.
Note R.

Recent Accounting Pronouncements

In January 2010, the FASB updated ASC Topic 820, to require additional disclosures about fair value measurements regarding transfers between fair value categories as well as
purchases, sales, issuances and settlements related to fair value measurements of financial instruments with non-observable inputs. This update is effective for interim and annual periods
beginning after December 15, 2009 except for disclosures about purchases, sales, issuances and settlements of financial instruments with non-observable inputs, which are effective for years
beginning after December 15, 2010. The additional disclosures required by this update will be included in the note on fair value measurements upon adoption. We do not expect this update to
have a material impact on our financial condition or results of operations.
In August 2009, the FASB updated ASC Topic 820, clarifying the methodology used to determine the fair value of a liability. This update is effective for annual reporting periods
beginning after August 2009, and for interim periods during the first annual reporting period. We do not expect this update to have a material impact on our financial condition or results of
operations.
In June 2009, the FASB changed the hierarchy of U.S. generally accepted accounting principles (“GAAP”) such that the newly released FASB Accounting Standards Codification
(“Codification”) will replace other sources of authoritative GAAP with the exception of rules and interpretive releases of the Securities and Exchange Commission, which will continue to be
authoritative. The new codification is effective for financial statements issued for interim and annual periods ending after September 15, 2009 and is not intended to significantly change
GAAP. We have adopted the new hierarchy and references to old GAAP authoritative literature have been removed or translated into the new codification references.
In June 2009, the FASB updated ASC Topic 810, changing the methodology used to determine whether or not an entity is a primary beneficiary with respect to a variable interest
entity and introducing a requirement to reassess on an ongoing basis whether an entity is the primary beneficiary of a variable interest entity. This update is effective for annual reporting
periods beginning after November 15, 2009, and for interim periods during the first annual reporting period. We do not expect this update to have a material impact on our financial condition
or results of operations.
In May 2009, the FASB updated ASC Topic 855, setting (1) the period after the balance sheet date during which management should evaluate events or transactions for potential
recognition or disclosure in the
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financial statements, (2) the circumstances under which an entity should recognize in its financial statements events or transactions occurring after the balance sheet date, and (3) the related
disclosures that an entity should make. This update is effective for interim or annual periods ending after June 15, 2009. We have implemented this update with no impact to our financial
condition or results of operations in the periods presented. We have concluded that there were no material subsequent events, other than those disclosed elsewhere in these footnotes, through
the date that the financial statements were issued.
In April 2009, the FASB issued an update to ASC Topic 320 regarding the recognition and presentation of other-than-temporary impairments. This update modifies the requirements
for recognizing other-than-temporary impairment related to debt securities classified as available-for-sale and held-to-maturity and changes the impairment model for such securities. It also
modifies the presentation of other-than-temporary impairment losses and expands and increases the frequency of related disclosures for debt and equity securities. This update is effective for
interim and annual periods ending after June 15, 2009. We have implemented this update with no material impact on our financial position or results of operations. The additional disclosures
required by this update are set forth in note D.
In April 2009, the FASB issued an update to ASC Topic 820 addressing the determination of fair value when the volume and level of activity for an asset or liability have significantly
decreased and identification of transactions that are not orderly. This update is effective for interim and annual reporting periods ending after June 15, 2009. We have implemented this update
with no material impact on our financial position or results of operations.
In April 2009, the FASB issued an update to ASC Topic 825 to require summarized disclosures about fair value of financial instruments for interim reporting periods of publicly
traded companies. This update is effective for interim reporting periods ending after June 15, 2009. We have adopted this update by including additional disclosures in the note on fair value
in our interim consolidated financial statements.
In December 2008, the FASB issued an update to ASC Topic 715, requiring additional disclosures about plan assets, including investment strategies, major categories of plan assets,
concentrations of risks within plan assets, inputs and valuation techniques used to measure fair value of plan assets, and the effect of fair value measurements using significant unobservable
inputs on changes in plan assets for the period. This update is effective for fiscal years ending after December 15, 2009. We have implemented this update by including additional disclosures
in note N.
In November 2008, the FASB updated ASC Topic 323 to clarify the accounting for certain transactions and impairment considerations involving equity method investments. This
update was effective for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2008. We have adopted this update with no material effects on our financial condition or results of operations.
In October 2008, the FASB issued an update to Topic 820 to clarify the application of the previous standard on fair value measurements as it applies in an inactive market. This
update was effective immediately upon issuance and applies to financial statements that were not yet issued at that time. We have adopted this standard with no material effect on our
financial position or results of operations.
In June 2008, the FASB issued an update to ASC Topic 260, requiring unvested share-based payment awards that contain nonforfeitable rights to dividends or dividend equivalents to
be treated as participating securities, which means that they would be included in the earnings allocation in computing earnings per share under a two-class method described in ASC Topic
260. This update is effective for interim and annual periods beginning after December 15, 2008. We have adopted this update with no material effects on our financial condition or results of
operations.
In April 2008, the FASB issued an update to ASC Topic 350 which amends the factors that should be considered in developing renewal or extension assumptions used to determine
the useful life of a recognized
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intangible asset. This update applies to intangible assets that are acquired individually or with a group of other assets acquired in business combinations and asset acquisitions and requires
expanded disclosure related to the determination of intangible asset useful lives. This update is effective for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2008. We have adopted this update
with no material effects on our financial condition or results of operations.
In December 2007, the FASB issued an update to ASC Topic 810, requiring noncontrolling interests (formerly known as minority interests) to be presented as a component of equity
on the balance sheet. This update also requires that the amount of net income attributable to the parent and to the noncontrolling interests be clearly identified and presented on the face of the
consolidated statement of income. This update eliminates the need to apply purchase accounting when a parent company acquires a noncontrolling ownership interest in a subsidiary and
requires that, upon deconsolidation of a subsidiary, a parent company recognize a gain or loss in net income after which any retained noncontrolling interest will be reported at fair value.
This update requires expanded disclosures in the consolidated financial statements that identify and distinguish between the interests of the parent’s owners and the interest of the
noncontrolling owners of subsidiaries. This update is effective for periods beginning on or after December 15, 2008 and will be applied prospectively except for the presentation and
disclosure requirements, which will be applied retrospectively for all periods presented. We have implemented this update effective January 1, 2009, with no material effect on our financial
position or results of operations except for the changes in presentation as noted above.
In December 2007, the FASB issued an update to ASC Topic 805, requiring an acquirer in a business combination to recognize the assets acquired, the liabilities assumed, and any
noncontrolling interest in the acquiree at their fair values at the acquisition date, with limited exceptions. The costs of the acquisition and any related restructuring costs will be recognized
separately. Assets and liabilities arising from contingencies in a business combination are to be recognized at their fair value at the acquisition date and adjusted prospectively as new
information becomes available. When the fair value of assets acquired exceeds the fair value of consideration transferred plus any noncontrolling interest in the acquiree, the excess will be
recognized as a gain. Under this guidance, all business combinations are accounted for by applying the acquisition method, including combinations among mutual entities and combinations
by contract alone. This update was effective for periods beginning on or after December 15, 2008. We have adopted this update and have applied it to business combinations occurring
subsequent to December 31, 2008.
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Item 9.

Changes in and Disagreements with Accountants on Accounting and Financial Disclosure
None.

Item 9A.

Controls and Procedures

As of the end of the year covered by this report, we carried out an evaluation, under the supervision and with the participation of our principal executive officer and principal financial
officer, of the effectiveness of the design and operation of our disclosure controls and procedures; as such term is defined in Rule 13a-15(e) under the Exchange Act. Based on this
evaluation, our principal executive officer and principal financial officer concluded that our disclosure controls and procedures are effective to ensure that information required to be
disclosed by the Company in the reports that we file or submit under the Act is: (a) recorded, processed, summarized and reported, within the time periods specified in the Commission’s
rules and forms; and (b) accumulated and communicated to management, including our principal executive and principal financial officers, as appropriate to allow timely decisions regarding
required disclosure.
There were no changes in our internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the quarter ended December 31, 2009 that have materially affected, or are reasonably
likely to materially affect, our internal control over financial reporting.
MANAGEMENT’S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING
Management is responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate internal control over financial reporting, as such term is defined in Exchange Act Rule 13a-15(f). Under the
supervision and with the participation of our management, including our principal executive officer and principal financial officer, we conducted an evaluation of the effectiveness of our
internal control over financial reporting. Management has adopted the framework in Internal Control-Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the
Treadway Commission (COSO). Based on our evaluation under this framework, our management concluded that our internal control over financial reporting was effective as of
December 31, 2009. The effectiveness of our internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2009 has been audited by KPMG LLP, an independent registered public accounting
firm, as stated in their report which is included herein.
Item 9B.

Other Information

Effective as of February 4, 2010, the Company entered into amendments (the “Amendments”) to the employment agreements (the “Employment Agreements”) with each of William
P. Foley, II, Alan L. Stinson, Raymond R. Quirk, Anthony J. Park, and Brent B. Bickett. Each of the Amendments amends the respective Employment Agreement to provide that, if any
payments or benefits to be paid to the officer pursuant to the terms of the Employment Agreement would be subject to the excise tax imposed by Section 4999 of the Internal Revenue Code,
then the officer may elect for such payments to be reduced to one dollar less than the amount that would constitute a “parachute payment” under Section 280G of the Internal Revenue Code
(the “Scaled Back Amount”). If the officer does not elect to have such payments reduced to the Scaled Back Amount, the officer is responsible for payment of any excise tax resulting from
such payments and shall not be entitled to a gross-up payment under the Employment Agreement.
The Amendment to Mr. Foley’s Employment Agreement also (i) reduces his annual incentive bonus target from 250% of his annual base salary to 200% of his annual base salary, and
(ii) eliminates the obligation of the Company to make severance payments to Mr. Foley in the event he terminates his employment following a change in control without good reason.
The Amendment to Mr. Stinson’s Employment Agreement also (i) reduces his annual base salary from $648,000 per year to $600,000 per year, and (ii) reduces his incentive bonus
target from 150% of his annual base salary to 125% of his annual base salary.
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The foregoing description of the Amendments is qualified in its entirety by reference to the Amendments, copies of which are filed as exhibits hereto and incorporated herein by
reference.
PART III
Items 10-14.
Within 120 days after the close of our fiscal year, we intend to file with the Securities and Exchange Commission a definitive proxy statement pursuant to Regulation 14A of the
Securities Exchange Act of 1934 as amended, which will include the matters required by these items.
PART IV
Item 15.

Exhibits, Financial Statement Schedules and Reports on Form 8-K

(a) (1) Financial Statements. The following is a list of the Consolidated Financial Statements of Fidelity National Financial, Inc. and its subsidiaries included in Item 8 of Part II:
Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm on Effectiveness of Internal Control over Financial Reporting
Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm on Financial Statements
Consolidated Balance Sheets as of December 31, 2009 and 2008
Consolidated Statements of Operations for the years ended December 31, 2009, 2008 and 2007
Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Earnings for the years ended December 31, 2009, 2008 and 2007
Consolidated Statements of Equity for the years ended December 31, 2009, 2008 and 2007
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the years ended December 31, 2009, 2008 and 2007
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

66
67
68
69
70
71
72
73

(a) (2) Financial Statement Schedules. The following is a list of financial statement schedules filed as part of this annual report on Form 10-K:
Schedule II: Fidelity National Financial, Inc. (Parent Company Financial Statements)
Schedule V: Valuation and Qualifying Accounts

124
129

All other schedules are omitted because they are not applicable or not required, or because the required information is included in the Consolidated Financial Statements or notes
thereto.
(a) (3) The following exhibits are incorporated by reference or are set forth on pages to this Form 10-K:
Exhibit
Number

2.1
3.1
3.2
4.1

Description

Securities Exchange and Distribution Agreement between Old FNF and the Registrant, dated as of June 25, 2006, as amended and restated as of September 18, 2006
(incorporated by reference to Annex A to the Registrant’s Schedule 14C filed on September 19, 2006 (the “Information Statement”))
Form of Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporation of the Registrant (incorporated by reference to Annex C to the Information Statement)
Amended and Restated Bylaws of the Registrant, as adopted on September 26, 2005 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.2 to the Registrant’s Quarterly Report on
Form 10-Q for the quarter ended September 30, 2005)
Indenture between the Registrant and The Bank of New York Trust Company, N.A., dated December 8, 2005, relating to the 7.30% and 5.25% notes referred to below
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1 to the Registrant’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2005)
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Exhibit
Number

4.2
4.3
4.4
4.5
4.6
4.7
10.1
10.2
10.3
10.4
10.5
10.6
10.7
10.8
10.9
10.10
10.11

Description

First Supplemental Indenture between the Registrant and the Bank of New York Trust Company, N.A., dated as of January 6, 2006 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1
to the Registrant’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed on January 24, 2006)
Form of Subordinated Indenture between the Registrant and the Bank of New York Trust Company, N.A. (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.2(A) to the Registrant’s
Registration Statement on Form S-3 filed on November 14, 2007)
Form of 7.30% note due August 15, 2011 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.6 to the Registrant’s Registration Statement on Form S-4 filed on October 28, 2005)
Form of 5.25% note due March 15, 2013 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.7 to the Registrant’s Registration Statement on Form S-4 filed on October 28, 2005)
Form of 2.36% Subordinated Promissory Note due 2013 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 99.2 to the Registrant’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed on December 24,
2008)
Form of the Registrant’s Common Stock Certificate (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.5 to the Registrant’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended
December 31, 2006 (the “2006 Annual Report”))
Credit Agreement among the Registrant, Bank of America, N.A., and certain agents and other lenders party thereto, dated as of September 12, 2006 (incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Registrant’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed on October 30, 2006)
Stock Purchase Agreement, dated as of November 25, 2008, as amended and restated as of December 12, 2008, as further amended and restated as of December 21, 2008,
among Fidelity National Title Insurance Company, Chicago Title Insurance Company, and LandAmerica Financial Group, Inc. (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to
the Registrant’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed on December 24, 2008.)
Amended and Restated Fidelity National Financial, Inc. 2005 Omnibus Incentive Plan, effective as of September 26, 2005 (incorporated by reference to Annex A to the
Registrant’s Schedule 14A filed on April 15, 2008).(1)
Fidelity National Title Group, Inc. Employee Stock Purchase Plan, effective as of September 26, 2005 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.50 to the Registrant’s
Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended September 30, 2005).(1)
Form of Notice of Restricted Stock Grant and Restricted Stock Award Agreement under Amended and Restated Fidelity National Financial, Inc. 2005 Omnibus Incentive
Plan (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.5 to the Registrant’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2008).(1)
Form of Notice of Restricted Stock Grant and Restricted Stock Award Agreement under Amended and Restated Fidelity National Financial, Inc. 2005 Omnibus Incentive
Plan for November 2009 awards.(1)
Form of Notice of Stock Option Grant and Stock Option Award Agreement under Amended and Restated Fidelity National Financial, Inc. 2005 Omnibus Incentive Plan
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.6 to the Registrant’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2008).(1)
Fidelity Sedgwick Holdings, Inc. 2006 Stock Incentive Plan (the “FSH Plan”), effective as of January 31, 2006 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 99.3 to Old FNF’s
Current Report on Form 8-K filed on February 6, 2006).(1)
Form of Stock Option Agreement under the FSH Plan (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 99.4 to Old FNF’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed on February 6, 2006).(1)
Tax Disaffiliation Agreement by and among Old FNF, the Registrant and FIS, dated as of October 23, 2006 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 99.1 to Old FNF’s
Form 8-K, filed on October 27, 2006)
Cross-Indemnity Agreement by and between the Registrant and FIS, dated as of October 23, 2006 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 99.2 to FIS’s Form 8-K, filed on
October 27, 2006)
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Exhibit
Number

10.12
10.13
10.14
10.15
10.16
10.17
10.18
10.19
10.20
10.21
10.22
10.23
10.24
10.25
10.26
21.1
23.1
31.1
31.2
32.1
32.2

Description

Amended and Restated Employment Agreement between the Registrant and Anthony J. Park, effective as of October 10, 2008(1) (incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 10.11 to Registrant’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2008)
Amendment effective February 4, 2010 to Amended and Restated Employment Agreement between the Registrant and Anthony J. Park, effective as of October 10, 2008(1)
Amended and Restated Employment Agreement between the Registrant and Brent B. Bickett, effective as of July 2, 2008(1).
Amendment effective February 4, 2010 to Amended and Restated Employment Agreement between the Registrant and Brent B. Bickett, effective as of July 2, 2008(1)
Amended and Restated Employment Agreement between the Registrant and William P. Foley, II, effective as of July 2, 2008(1) (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.14
to Registrant’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2008).
Amendment effective February 4, 2010 to Amended and Restated Employment Agreement between the Registrant and William P. Foley, II, effective as of July 2, 2008(1).
Amended and Restated Employment Agreement between the Registrant and Alan L. Stinson, effective as of January 1, 2009(1) (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.15
to Registrant’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2008).
Amendment effective February 4, 2010 to Amended and Restated Employment Agreement between the Registrant and Alan L. Stinson, effective as of January 1, 2009(1).
Amended and Restated Employment Agreement between the Registrant and Raymond R. Quirk, effective as of October 10, 2008(1) (incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 10.16 to Registrant’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2008)
Amendment effective February 4, 2010 to Amended and Restated Employment Agreement between the Registrant and Raymond R. Quirk, effective as of October 10,
2008(1)
Amended and Restated Employment Agreement between the Registrant and Michael L. Gravelle, effective as of January 1, 2010(1)
Amended and Restated Employment Agreement between the Registrant and Peter T. Sadowski, effective as of July 23, 2008(1).
Amendment effective February 4, 2010 to Amended and Restated Employment Agreement between the Registrant and Peter T. Sadowski, effective as of July 23, 2008
Fidelity National Title Group, Inc. Annual Incentive Plan (incorporated by reference to Annex E to the Information Statement).(1)
Fidelity National Financial, Inc. Deferred Compensation Plan, as amended and restated, effective January 1, 2009 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.18 to the
Registrant’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2008).(1)
Subsidiaries of the Registrant
Consent of KPMG LLP, Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm
Certification of Chief Executive Officer pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002
Certification of Chief Financial Officer pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002
Certification by Chief Executive Officer of Periodic Financial Reports pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, 18 U.S.C. Section 1350
Certification by Chief Financial Officer of Periodic Financial Reports pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, 18 U.S.C. Section 1350

(1) A management or compensatory plan or arrangement required to be filed as an exhibit to this report pursuant to Item 15(c) of Form 10-K
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SIGNATURES
Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the Registrant has duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned,
thereunto duly authorized.

FIDELITY NATIONAL FINANCIAL, INC.

By:

/s/ ALAN L. STINSON
Alan L. Stinson
Chief Executive Officer

Date: March 1, 2010
Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this report has been signed below by the following persons on behalf of the Registrant and in the capacities and
on the dates indicated.
Signature

Title

Date

/s/ ALAN L. STINSON
Alan L. Stinson

Chief Executive Officer
(Principal Executive Officer)

March 1, 2010

/s/ ANTHONY J. PARK
Anthony J. Park

Chief Financial Officer
(Principal Financial and
Accounting Officer)

March 1, 2010

/s/ WILLIAM P. FOLEY, II
William P. Foley, II

Director and Executive Chairman of the Board

March 1, 2010

/s/ DOUGLAS K. AMMERMAN
Douglas K. Ammerman

Director

March 1, 2010

/s/ WILLIE D. DAVIS
Willie D. Davis

Director

March 1, 2010

/s/ THOMAS M. HAGERTY
Thomas M. Hagerty

Director

March 1, 2010

/s/ DANIEL D. (RON) LANE
Daniel D. (Ron) Lane

Director

March 1, 2010

/s/ GENERAL WILLIAM LYON
General William Lyon

Director

March 1, 2010

/s/ RICHARD N. MASSEY
Richard N. Massey

Director

March 1, 2010

/s/ PETER O. SHEA, JR.
Peter O. Shea, Jr.

Director

March 1, 2010
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Signature

Title

Date

/s/ CARY H. THOMPSON
Cary H. Thompson

Director

March 1, 2010

/s/ FRANK P. WILLEY
Frank P. Willey

Director

March 1, 2010
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM
The Board of Directors and Stockholders
Fidelity National Financial, Inc.:
Under date of March 1, 2010, we reported on the Consolidated Balance Sheets of Fidelity National Financial, Inc. and subsidiaries as of December 31, 2009 and 2008, and the related
Consolidated Statements of Operations, Comprehensive Earnings, Equity and Cash Flows for each of the years in the three-year period ended December 31, 2009, as contained in the Annual
Report on Form 10-K for the year 2009. In connection with our audits of the aforementioned Consolidated Financial Statements, we also audited the related financial statement schedules as
listed under Item 15(a)(2). These financial statement schedules are the responsibility of the Company’s management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statement
schedules based on our audits.
In our opinion, such financial statement schedules, when considered in relation to the basic Consolidated Financial Statements taken as a whole, present fairly, in all material respects,
the information set forth therein.

/s/ KPMG LLP
March 1, 2010
Jacksonville, Florida
Certified Public Accountants
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SCHEDULE II
FIDELITY NATIONAL FINANCIAL, INC.
(Parent Company)
BALANCE SHEETS
December 31,
2009

2008
(In millions,
except share data)

ASSETS
Cash
Investment securities available for sale, at fair value
Investment in unconsolidated affiliates
Notes receivable, net
Income taxes receivable
Deferred tax assets
Investments in and amounts due from subsidiaries
Property and equipment, net
Prepaid expenses and other assets
Other intangibles, net
Total assets

$

$

—
65.8
507.8
0.2
56.5
128.9
3,455.7
9.5
6.1
5.8
4,236.3

$

30.7
860.7
891.4

$

$

—
96.2
569.1
0.2
115.4
139.2
3,067.9
11.8
11.9
4.4
4,016.1

LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
Liabilities:
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities
Notes payable

$

Equity:
Common stock, Class A, $0.0001 par value; authorized 600,000,000 shares at December 31, 2009 and 2008; issued 249,713,996 shares and
228,391,066 shares at December 31, 2009 and 2008, respectively
Preferred stock, $0.0001 par value; authorized 50,000,000 shares, issued and outstanding, none
Additional paid-in capital
Retained deficit
Accumulated other comprehensive earnings (loss)
Less treasury stock, 19,496,888 shares and 13,488,288 shares at December 31, 2009 and December 31, 2008, respectively, at cost
Total equity of Fidelity National Financial, Inc. common shareholders
Noncontrolling interests
Total equity
Total liabilities and equity
See Notes to Financial Statements —
See Accompanying Report of Registered Independent Public Accounting Firm
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$

—
—
3,712.1
(102.4)
35.6
(319.4)
3,325.9
19.0
3,344.9
4,236.3

$

34.0
1,125.3
1,159.3
—
—
3,325.2
(188.9)
(91.8)
(238.9)
2,805.6
51.2
2,856.8
4,016.1
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SCHEDULE II
FIDELITY NATIONAL FINANCIAL, INC.
(Parent Company)
STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS AND RETAINED EARNINGS
2009

Revenues:
Other fees and revenue
Interest and investment income (loss)
Total revenues (loss)
Expenses:
Personnel expenses
Other operating expenses
Interest expense
Total expenses
Loss before income tax benefit and equity in earnings (loss) of subsidiaries
Income tax benefit
Loss before equity in earnings (loss) of subsidiaries
Equity in earnings (loss) of subsidiaries
Earnings (loss) before earnings (loss) attributable to noncontrolling interest
Earnings (loss) attributable to noncontrolling interest
Net earnings (loss) attributable to Fidelity National Financial, Inc. common shareholders

$

Basic earnings (loss) per share

Year Ended December 31,
2008
2007
(In millions, except per share data)

4.6
(7.2)
(2.6)

$

19.9
12.2
38.6
70.7
(73.3)
(22.7)
(50.6)
275.1
224.5
2.2
222.3

$

0.99

Weighted average shares outstanding, basic basis

$

$

Weighted average shares outstanding, diluted basis

0.97

$

$

$

$ (188.9)
(135.8)
222.3
$ (102.4)

See Notes to Financial Statements —
See Accompanying Report of Registered Independent Public Accounting Firm
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(0.85)
210.0

$

228.5

Retained earnings (deficit), beginning of year
Dividends declared
Net earnings (loss) attributable to Fidelity National Financial, Inc. common shareholders
Retained earnings (deficit), end of year

$

14.9
20.3
54.1
89.3
(71.0)
(30.2)
(40.8)
(142.4)
(183.2)
(4.2)
$ (179.0)

224.7

Diluted earnings (loss) per share

3.6
14.7
18.3

(0.85)

213.2
(223.1)
(179.0)
$ (188.9)

20.8
12.7
38.1
71.6
(52.0)
(13.8)
(38.2)
168.0
129.8
—
129.8
0.60
216.6

$

210.0
$

12.9
6.7
19.6

0.59
220.0

$

345.6
(262.2)
129.8
$ 213.2
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FIDELITY NATIONAL FINANCIAL, INC.
(Parent Company)
STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
2009

Cash Flows From Operating Activities:
Net earnings (loss) attributable to Fidelity National Financial, Inc. common shareholders
Adjustments to reconcile net earnings (losses) to net cash used in operating activities:
Amortization of debt issuance costs
Noncontrolling interest
Equity in (earnings) losses of subsidiaries
Losses (Gains) on sales of investments and other assets
Stock-based compensation cost
Tax benefit associated with the exercise of stock options
Transaction fee income
Net increase (decrease) in income taxes
Net decrease (increase) in prepaid expenses and other assets
Net (decrease) increase in accounts payable and accrued liabilities
Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities
Cash Flows From Investing Activities:
Proceeds from sales of investments
Purchases of investments
Net proceeds (purchases) from short-term investing activities
Sales (Purchases) of property and equipment
Collections of notes receivable
Proceeds from the sale of partial interest in Sedgwick CMS
Net additions to investment in subsidiaries
Net cash (used in) provided by investing activities
Cash Flows From Financing Activities:
Borrowings
Equity offering
Debt service payments
Debt cost additions
Dividends paid
Purchases of treasury stock
Exercise of stock options
Tax benefit associated with the exercise of stock options
Net (payments) borrowings and dividends from subsidiaries
Net cash (used in) provided by financing activities
Net change in cash and cash equivalents
Cash at beginning of year
Cash at end of year

$

222.3
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$ (179.0)

2007

$

129.8

2.6
2.2
(275.1)
4.8
33.7
(2.4)
—
138.3
7.0
(8.9)
124.5

1.5
(4.2)
142.4
2.5
32.7
(0.3)
—
(72.0)
(9.8)
(34.4)
(120.6)

1.6
—
(168.0)
(1.7)
29.9
(4.7)
(12.3)
(32.5)
7.3
2.2
(48.4)

1.9
—
50.3
1.4
—
—
57.5
111.1

26.0
(12.6)
(89.8)
(1.5)
0.2
53.9
—
(23.8)

372.8
(241.8)
—
(10.6)
1.3
—
(498.2)
(376.5)

170.0
—
(120.0)
—
(223.0)
(45.9)
5.3
0.3
357.7
144.4
—
—
$
—

535.0
—
—
(0.9)
(262.2)
(183.2)
8.4
4.7
323.1
424.9
—
—
$
—

—
331.4
(264.9)
—
(135.8)
(74.9)
19.4
2.4
(113.2)
(235.6)
—
—
$
—

See Notes to Financial Statements —
See Accompanying Report of Registered Independent Public Accounting Firm

Year Ended December 31,
2008
(In millions)
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FIDELITY NATIONAL FINANCIAL, INC.
(Parent Company)
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A.

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Fidelity National Financial, Inc. transacts substantially all of its business through its subsidiaries. The Parent Company Financial Statements should be read in connection with the
aforementioned Consolidated Financial Statements and Notes thereto included elsewhere herein. Certain reclassifications have been made in the 2008 presentation to conform to the
classifications used in 2009.
B.

Notes Payable
Notes payable consist of the following:
December 31,
2009
2008
(Dollars in millions)

Unsecured notes, net of discount, interest payable semi-annually at 5.25%, due March 2013
Unsecured notes, net of discount, interest payable semi-annually at 7.30%, due August 2011
Syndicated credit agreement, unsecured, interest due monthly at LIBOR plus 0.475% (0.73% at December 31, 2009), unused portion $700.0 million at
December 31, 2009
Subordinated note payable to LandAmerica Financial Group, Inc., interest payable annually at 2.36%, due December 2013

$

$
C.

245.2
165.5

249.2
241.1

400.0
50.0
860.7

585.0
50.0
1,125.3

$

Supplemental Cash Flow Information

Cash paid (received) during the year:
Interest paid
Income taxes received

2009

Year Ended December 31,
2008
(Dollars in millions)

$40.6
(2.5)

$ 50.3
(37.4)

2007

$37.7
86.9

On December 22, 2008 we, along with two of our subsidiaries, Chicago Title Insurance Company and Fidelity National Title Insurance Company (“FNTIC’’), completed the
acquisition of certain title insurance subsidiaries from LandAmerica Financial Group, Inc. (“LFG”). The purchase price of one of these subsidiaries, Lawyers Title Insurance Corporation
(“Lawyers”), included a $50 million subordinated note from us due in 2013 (see note B), and $50 million of our common stock (3,176,620 shares valued at $15.74 per share at the time of
closing). Immediately subsequent to the acquisition, we contributed our ownership interest in Lawyers to FNTIC.
D.

Cash Dividends Received

We have received cash dividends from subsidiaries and affiliates of $0.2 billion, $0.2 billion, and $0.4 billion during the years ended December 31, 2009, 2008, and 2007,
respectively.
See Accompanying Report of Registered Independent Public Accounting Firm
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SCHEDULE V
FIDELITY NATIONAL FINANCIAL, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
VALUATION AND QUALIFYING ACCOUNTS
Years Ended December 31, 2009, 2008 and 2007
Column C
Additions

Column A
Description

Column B
Balance at
Beginning of
Period

Charge to
Costs and
Expenses

Year ended December 31, 2009:
Reserve for claim losses
Allowance on trade and notes receivables

$2,738.6
32.6

$329.4
5.7

Year ended December 31, 2008:
Reserve for claim losses
Allowance on trade and notes receivables

$1,419.9
13.1

Year ended December 31, 2007:
Reserve for claim losses
Allowance on trade and notes receivables

$1,220.6
12.7

Other
(Described)
(Dollars in millions)

$630.4
9.9
$653.9
4.0

$

(3.1)(3)
(0.7)(2)
1.3(3)

Column D
Deduction
(Described)

$523.5(1)
9.4(2)

$2,541.4
29.5

$1,115.8(3)
0.3(2)
15.3(3)

$427.5(1)
6.0(2)

$

$454.6(1)
4.2(2)

—
0.6(2)

Column E
Balance at
End of
Period

$2,738.6
32.6
$1,419.9
13.1

(1) Represents payments of claim losses, net of recoupments.
(2) Represents uncollectible accounts written-off, change in reserve due to reevaluation of specific items and change in reserve due to purchases and sales of certain assets.
(3) Represents reserves assumed in the acquisition of certain title insurance underwriters from LandAmerica Financial Group, Inc. on December 22, 2008 and related purchase accounting
adjustments recorded in the year ended December 31, 2009 (see note B to Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements).
See Accompanying Report of Registered Independent Public Accounting Firm
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EXHIBIT INDEX
Exhibit
Number

2.1
3.1
3.2
4.1
4.2
4.3
4.4
4.5
4.6
4.7
10.1
10.2
10.3
10.4
10.5
10.6
10.7
10.8
10.9

Description

Securities Exchange and Distribution Agreement between Old FNF and the Registrant, dated as of June 25, 2006, as amended and restated as of September 18, 2006
(incorporated by reference to Annex A to the Registrant’s Schedule 14C filed on September 19, 2006 (the “Information Statement”))
Form of Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporation of the Registrant (incorporated by reference to Annex C to the Information Statement)
Amended and Restated Bylaws of the Registrant, as adopted on September 26, 2005 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.2 to the Registrant’s Quarterly Report on
Form 10-Q for the quarter ended September 30, 2005)
Indenture between the Registrant and The Bank of New York Trust Company, N.A., dated December 8, 2005, relating to the 7.30% and 5.25% notes referred to below
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1 to the Registrant’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2005)
First Supplemental Indenture between the Registrant and the Bank of New York Trust Company, N.A., dated as of January 6, 2006 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1
to the Registrant’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed on January 24, 2006)
Form of Subordinated Indenture between the Registrant and the Bank of New York Trust Company, N.A. (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.2(A) to the Registrant’s
Registration Statement on Form S-3 filed on November 14, 2007)
Form of 7.30% note due August 15, 2011 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.6 to the Registrant’s Registration Statement on Form S-4 filed on October 28, 2005)
Form of 5.25% note due March 15, 2013 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.7 to the Registrant’s Registration Statement on Form S-4 filed on October 28, 2005)
Form of 2.36% Subordinated Promissory Note due 2013 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 99.2 to the Registrant’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed on December 24,
2008)
Form of the Registrant’s Common Stock Certificate (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.5 to the Registrant’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended
December 31, 2006 (the “2006 Annual Report”))
Credit Agreement among the Registrant, Bank of America, N.A., and certain agents and other lenders party thereto, dated as of September 12, 2006 (incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Registrant’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed on October 30, 2006)
Stock Purchase Agreement, dated as of November 25, 2008, as amended and restated as of December 12, 2008, as further amended and restated as of December 21, 2008,
among Fidelity National Title Insurance Company, Chicago Title Insurance Company, and LandAmerica Financial Group, Inc. (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to
the Registrant’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed on December 24, 2008.)
Amended and Restated Fidelity National Financial, Inc. 2005 Omnibus Incentive Plan, effective as of September 26, 2005 (incorporated by reference to Annex A to the
Registrant’s Schedule 14A filed on April 15, 2008).(1)
Fidelity National Title Group, Inc. Employee Stock Purchase Plan, effective as of September 26, 2005 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.50 to the Registrant’s
Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended September 30, 2005).(1)
Form of Notice of Restricted Stock Grant and Restricted Stock Award Agreement under Amended and Restated Fidelity National Financial, Inc. 2005 Omnibus Incentive
Plan (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.5 to the Registrant’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2008).(1)
Form of Notice of Restricted Stock Grant and Restricted Stock Award Agreement under Amended and Restated Fidelity National Financial, Inc. 2005 Omnibus Incentive
Plan for November 2009 awards.(1)
Form of Notice of Stock Option Grant and Stock Option Award Agreement under Amended and Restated Fidelity National Financial, Inc. 2005 Omnibus Incentive Plan
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.6 to the Registrant’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2008).(1)
Fidelity Sedgwick Holdings, Inc. 2006 Stock Incentive Plan (the “FSH Plan”), effective as of January 31, 2006 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 99.3 to Old FNF’s
Current Report on Form 8-K filed on February 6, 2006).(1)
Form of Stock Option Agreement under the FSH Plan (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 99.4 to Old FNF’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed on February 6, 2006).(1)
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Exhibit
Number

10.10
10.11
10.12
10.13
10.14
10.15
10.16
10.17
10.18
10.19
10.20
10.21
10.22
10.23
10.24
10.25
10.26
21.1
23.1
31.1
31.2
32.1
32.2

Description

Tax Disaffiliation Agreement by and among Old FNF, the Registrant and FIS, dated as of October 23, 2006 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 99.1 to Old FNF’s
Form 8-K, filed on October 27, 2006)
Cross-Indemnity Agreement by and between the Registrant and FIS, dated as of October 23, 2006 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 99.2 to FIS’s Form 8-K, filed on
October 27, 2006)
Amended and Restated Employment Agreement between the Registrant and Anthony J. Park, effective as of October 10, 2008(1) (incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 10.11 to Registrant’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2008)
Amendment effective February 4, 2010 to Amended and Restated Employment Agreement between the Registrant and Anthony J. Park, effective as of October 10, 2008(1)
Amended and Restated Employment Agreement between the Registrant and Brent B. Bickett, effective as of July 2, 2008(1).
Amendment effective February 4, 2010 to Amended and Restated Employment Agreement between the Registrant and Brent B. Bickett, effective as of July 2, 2008(1)
Amended and Restated Employment Agreement between the Registrant and William P. Foley, II, effective as of July 2, 2008(1) (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.14
to Registrant’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2008).
Amendment effective February 4, 2010 to Amended and Restated Employment Agreement between the Registrant and William P. Foley, II, effective as of July 2, 2008(1).
Amended and Restated Employment Agreement between the Registrant and Alan L. Stinson, effective as of January 1, 2009(1) (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.15
to Registrant’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2008).
Amendment effective February 4, 2010 to Amended and Restated Employment Agreement between the Registrant and Alan L. Stinson, effective as of January 1, 2009(1) .
Amended and Restated Employment Agreement between the Registrant and Raymond R. Quirk, effective as of October 10, 2008(1) (incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 10.16 to Registrant’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2008)
Amendment effective February 4, 2010 to Amended and Restated Employment Agreement between the Registrant and Raymond R. Quirk, effective as of October 10,
2008(1)
Amended and Restated Employment Agreement between the Registrant and Michael L. Gravelle, effective as of January 1, 2010(1)
Amended and Restated Employment Agreement between the Registrant and Peter T. Sadowski, effective as of July 23, 2008(1).
Amendment effective February 4, 2010 to Amended and Restated Employment Agreement between the Registrant and Peter T. Sadowski, effective as of July 23, 2008
Fidelity National Title Group, Inc. Annual Incentive Plan (incorporated by reference to Annex E to the Information Statement).(1)
Fidelity National Financial, Inc. Deferred Compensation Plan, as amended and restated, effective January 1, 2009 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.18 to the
Registrant’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2008).(1)
Subsidiaries of the Registrant
Consent of KPMG LLP, Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm
Certification of Chief Executive Officer pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002
Certification of Chief Financial Officer pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002
Certification by Chief Executive Officer of Periodic Financial Reports pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, 18 U.S.C. Section 1350
Certification by Chief Financial Officer of Periodic Financial Reports pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, 18 U.S.C. Section 1350

(1) A management or compensatory plan or arrangement required to be filed as an exhibit to this report pursuant to Item 15(c) of Form 10-K
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Exhibit 10.6

FIDELITY NATIONAL FINANCIAL, INC.
AMENDED AND RESTATED
2005 OMNIBUS INCENTIVE PLAN
Notice of Restricted Stock Grant
You (the “Grantee”) have been granted the following award of restricted Class A Common Stock (the “Restricted Stock”) of Fidelity National Financial, Inc. (the “Company”), par value $0.0001 per share (the
“Shares”), pursuant to the Fidelity National Financial, Inc. Amended and Restated 2005 Omnibus Incentive Plan (the “Plan”) and the terms set forth in the attached Restricted Stock Award Agreement:
Name of Grantee:
Number of Shares of Restricted Stock Granted:
Effective Date of Grant:
Vesting:

November 23, 2009
Subject to the terms of the Plan and the Restricted Stock Award Agreement
attached hereto, the Period of Restriction shall lapse, and the Shares shall vest
and become free of the forfeiture provisions contained in the Restricted Stock
Award Agreement, with respect to one third of the shares on each anniversary of
the Effective Date of Grant.

By your signature and the signature of the Company’s representative below, you and the Company agree and acknowledge that the Restricted Stock is granted under and governed by the terms and conditions of the Plan
and the attached Restricted Stock Award Agreement, which are incorporated herein by reference, and that you have been provided with a copy of the Plan and Restricted Stock Award Agreement.
Grantee:

Fidelity National Financial, Inc.
By:

(Name)
Date:
Address:

FIDELITY NATIONAL FINANCIAL, INC.
AMENDED AND RESTATED
2005 OMNIBUS INCENTIVE PLAN
Restricted Stock Award Agreement
SECTION 1. GRANT OF RESTRICTED STOCK
(a) Restricted Stock. On the terms and conditions set forth in the Notice of Restricted Stock Grant, which is incorporated by reference, and this Restricted Stock Award Agreement (the “Agreement”), the Company
grants to the Grantee on the Effective Date of Grant the Shares of Restricted Stock set forth in the Notice of Restricted Stock Grant.
(b) Plan and Defined Terms. The Restricted Stock is granted pursuant to the Plan. All terms, provisions, and conditions applicable to the Restricted Stock set forth in the Plan and not set forth herein are hereby
incorporated by reference herein. To the extent any provision hereof is inconsistent with a provision of the Plan, the provisions of the Plan will govern. All capitalized terms that are used in the Notice of Restricted Stock
Grant or this Agreement and not otherwise defined therein or herein shall have the meanings ascribed to them in the Plan.
SECTION 2. FORFEITURE AND TRANSFER RESTRICTIONS
(a) Forfeiture Restrictions. If the Grantee’s employment or service as a Director or Consultant, as the case may be, is terminated for any reason other than (i) death, (ii) Disability (as defined below) or
(iii) termination by the Company and its Subsidiaries without Cause (as defined below), the Grantee shall, for no consideration, forfeit to the Company the Shares of Restricted Stock to the extent such Shares are subject
to a Period of Restriction at the time of such termination. If the Grantee’s employment or service as a Director or Consultant, as the case may be, terminates due to the Grantee’s death or Disability, or is terminated by
the Company and its Subsidiaries without Cause, while Shares of Restricted Stock are subject to a Period of Restriction, the Period of Restriction with respect to such Shares shall lapse, and the Shares shall vest and
become free of the forfeiture and transfer restrictions described in this Section 2, on the date of the Grantee’s termination of employment or service.
(i) The term “Cause” shall have the meaning ascribed to such term in the Grantee’s employment agreement with the Company or any Subsidiary. If the Grantee’s employment agreement does not define the term
“Cause,” or if the Grantee has not entered into an employment agreement with the Company or any Subsidiary, the term “Cause” shall mean (A) the willful engaging by the Grantee in misconduct that is demonstrably
injurious to the Company or any Subsidiary (monetarily or otherwise), as determined by the Company in its sole discretion, (B) the Grantee’s conviction of, or pleading guilty or nolo contendere to, a felony involving
moral turpitude, or (C) the Grantee’s violation of any confidentiality, non-solicitation, or non-competition covenant to which the Grantee is subject.
(ii) The term “Disability” shall have the meaning ascribed to such term in the Grantee’s employment agreement with the Company or any Subsidiary. If the Grantee’s employment agreement does not define the
term “Disability,” or if the Grantee has not entered into an employment agreement with the Company or any Subsidiary, the term “Disability” shall mean the Grantee’s entitlement to long-term disability benefits
pursuant to the long-term disability plan maintained by the Company or in which the Company’s employees participate.
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(b) Transfer Restrictions. During the Period of Restriction, the Restricted Stock may not be sold, assigned, pledged, exchanged, hypothecated or otherwise transferred, encumbered or disposed of to the extent such
Shares are subject to a Period of Restriction.
(c) Lapse of Restrictions. The Period of Restriction shall lapse as to the Restricted Stock in accordance with the Notice of Restricted Stock Grant. Subject to the terms of the Plan and Sections 2(d) and 4(b) hereof,
upon lapse of the Period of Restriction, the Grantee shall own the Shares that are subject to this Agreement free of all restrictions otherwise imposed by this Agreement.
(d) Holding Requirement Following Period of Restriction. If and when the Grantee is an Officer (as defined in Rule 16a-1(f) of the Exchange Act) or holds the title of President — Eastern Operations, President
— Western Operations, President — Agency Operations, or Chief Legal Officer of Fidelity National Financial, Inc. during the six month period following the date the Shares vested, the Grantee may not sell, assign,
pledge, exchange, hypothecate or otherwise transfer, encumber or dispose of fifty percent (50%) of any vested Shares of Restricted Stock during such six month period; provided, however, that this Section 2(d) shall not
prohibit the Grantee from exchanging or otherwise disposing of Shares in connection with a Change in Control or other transaction in which Shares held by other Company shareholders are required to be exchanged or
otherwise disposed.
SECTION 3. STOCK CERTIFICATES
As soon as practicable following the grant of Restricted Stock, the Shares of Restricted Stock shall be registered in the Grantee’s name in a restricted book-entry account at the Company’s transfer agent. Grantee shall
have no dividend rights but will have all other rights of a holder of Shares, including the right to vote (or to execute proxies for voting) such Shares. Unless otherwise determined by the Committee, if all or part of a
dividend in respect of the Restricted Stock is paid in cash or Shares or any other security issued by the Company, such cash or Shares or other securities shall be held by the Company subject to the same restrictions as
the Shares of Restricted Stock in respect of which the dividend was paid and shall be paid or distributed within thirty (30) days of vesting of such Shares of Restricted Stock.
SECTION 4. MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS
(a) Acknowledgements. The Grantee hereby acknowledges that he or she has read and understands the terms of the Plan and this Agreement, and agrees to be bound by their respective terms and conditions. The
Grantee acknowledges that there may be tax consequences upon the vesting or transfer of the Restricted Stock and that the Grantee should consult an independent tax advisor.
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(b) Tax Withholding. Pursuant to Article 20 of the Plan, the Committee shall have the power and right to deduct or withhold, or require the Grantee to remit to the Company, an amount sufficient to satisfy any
federal, state and local taxes (including the Grantee’s FICA taxes) required by law to be withheld with respect to this Award. The Committee may condition the delivery of Shares upon the Grantee’s satisfaction of such
withholding obligations. The Grantee may elect to satisfy all or part of such withholding requirement by tendering previously-owned Shares or by having the Company withhold Shares having a Fair Market Value equal
to the minimum statutory withholding (based on minimum statutory withholding rates for federal, state and local tax purposes, as applicable, including the Grantee’s FICA taxes) that could be imposed on the
transaction, and, to the extent the Committee so permits, amounts in excess of the minimum statutory withholding to the extent it would not result in additional accounting expense. Such election shall be irrevocable,
made in writing and signed by the Grantee, and shall be subject to any restrictions or limitations that the Committee, in its sole discretion, deems appropriate.
(c) Ratification of Actions. By accepting this Agreement, the Grantee and each person claiming under or through the Grantee shall be conclusively deemed to have indicated the Grantee’s acceptance and ratification
of, and consent to, any action taken under the Plan or this Agreement and Notice of Restricted Stock Grant by the Company, the Board or the Committee.
(d) Notice. Any notice required by the terms of this Agreement shall be given in writing and shall be deemed effective upon personal delivery or upon deposit with the United States Postal Service, by registered or
certified mail, with postage and fees prepaid. Notice shall be addressed to the Company at its principal executive office and to the Grantee at the address that he or she most recently provided in writing to the Company.
(e) Choice of Law. This Agreement and the Notice of Restricted Stock Grant shall be governed by, and construed in accordance with, the laws of Florida, without regard to any conflicts of law or choice of law rule
or principle that might otherwise cause the Plan, this Agreement or the Notice of Restricted Stock Grant to be governed by or construed in accordance with the substantive law of another jurisdiction.
(f) Arbitration. Subject to Article 3 of the Plan, any dispute or claim arising out of or relating to the Plan, this Agreement or the Notice of Restricted Stock Grant shall be settled by binding arbitration before a single
arbitrator in Jacksonville, Florida and in accordance with the Commercial Arbitration Rules of the American Arbitration Association. The arbitrator shall decide any issues submitted in accordance with the provisions
and commercial purposes of the Plan, this Agreement and the Notice of Restricted Stock Grant, provided that all substantive questions of law shall be determined in accordance with the state and Federal laws applicable
in Florida, without regard to internal principles relating to conflict of laws.
(g) Modification or Amendment. This Agreement may only be modified or amended by written agreement executed by the parties hereto; provided, however, that the adjustments permitted pursuant to Section 4.3
of the Plan may be made without such written agreement.
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(h) Severability. In the event any provision of this Agreement shall be held illegal or invalid for any reason, the illegality or invalidity shall not affect the remaining provisions of this Agreement, and this Agreement
shall be construed and enforced as if such illegal or invalid provision had not been included.
(i) References to Plan. All references to the Plan (or to a Section or Article of the Plan) shall be deemed references to the Plan (or the Section or Article) as may be amended from time to time.
(j) Section 409A Compliance. To the extent applicable, it is intended that the Plan and this Agreement comply with the requirements of Code Section 409A and any related regulations or other guidance promulgated
with respect to such Section by the U.S. Department of the Treasury or the Internal Revenue Service and the Plan and the Award Agreement shall be interpreted accordingly.
-5-

Exhibit 10.13
AMENDMENT TO
AMENDED AND RESTATED EMPLOYMENT AGREEMENT
THIS AMENDMENT (the “Amendment”) is effective as of February 4, 2010 and amends the October 10, 2008 Amended and Restated Employment Agreement (the “Agreement”) by and between FIDELITY
NATIONAL FINANCIAL, INC., a Delaware corporation (the “Company”), and ANTHONY J. PARK (the “Employee”) as follows:
1. Excise Taxes. Section 9 of the Agreement is replaced in its entirety with the following:
“Excise Taxes. If any payments or benefits paid or provided or to be paid or provided to the Employee or for Employee’s benefit pursuant to the terms of this Agreement or otherwise in connection with, or arising
out of, employment with the Company or its subsidiaries or the termination thereof (a “Payment” and, collectively, the “Payments”) would be subject to the excise tax imposed by Section 4999 of the Code (the
“Excise Tax”), then Employee may elect for such Payments to be reduced to one dollar less than the amount that would constitute a “parachute payment” under Section 280G of the Code (the “Scaled Back
Amount”). Any such election must be in writing and delivered to the Company within thirty (30) days after the Date of Termination. If Employee does not elect to have Payments reduced to the Scaled Back
Amount, Employee shall be responsible for payment of any Excise Tax resulting from the Payments and Employee shall not be entitled to a gross-up payment under this Agreement or any other for such Excise Tax.
If the Payments are to be reduced, they shall be reduced in the following order of priority: (i) first from cash compensation, (ii) next from equity compensation, then (iii) pro-rata among all remaining Payments and
benefits. To the extent there is a question as to which Payments within any of the foregoing categories are to be reduced first, the Payments that will produce the greatest present value reduction in the Payments with
the least reduction in economic value provided to Employee shall be reduced first.”
2. Definitions and Conflicts. All terms not specifically defined in this Amendment shall have the same meaning as in the Agreement. In the event of a conflict between the terms of this Amendment and the
Agreement, this Amendment shall control.
IN WITNESS WHEREOF the parties have executed this Amendment to be effective as of the date first set forth above.
FIDELITY NATIONAL FINANCIAL, INC.
By: /s/ Michael L. Gravelle
Its: Executive Vice President, General Counsel and
Corporate Secretary
ANTHONY J. PARK
/s/ Anthony J. Park

Exhibit 10.14
AMENDED AND RESTATED
EMPLOYMENT AGREEMENT
THIS AMENDED AND RESTATED EMPLOYMENT AGREEMENT (the “Agreement”) is effective as of July 2, 2008 (the “Effective Date”), by and between FIDELITY NATIONAL FINANCIAL, INC., a
Delaware corporation (the “Company”), and BRENT B. BICKETT (the “Employee”). In consideration of the mutual covenants and agreements set forth herein, the parties agree as follows:
1. Purpose. This Agreement amends and restates, in its entirety, the obligations of the parties under the agreement between the Company and the Employee, dated as of October 24, 2006 (the “Prior Agreement”). The
purpose of this Agreement is to recognize the Employee’s significant contributions to the overall financial performance and success of the Company and to provide a single, integrated document which shall provide the
basis for the Employee’s continued employment by the Company.
2. Employment and Duties. Subject to the terms and conditions of this Agreement, the Company employs the Employee to serve in an executive capacity as Executive Vice President, Corporate Finance. The
Employee accepts such employment and agrees to undertake and discharge the duties, functions and responsibilities commensurate with the aforesaid position and such other duties and responsibilities as may be
prescribed from time to time by the Chief Executive Officer (the “CEO”) or the Board of Directors of the Company (the “Board”). Except as expressly provided in Subsection 13(c), the Employee shall devote
substantially all of his business time, attention and effort to the performance of his duties hereunder and shall not engage in any business, profession or occupation, for compensation or otherwise without the express
written consent of the CEO, other than personal, personal investment, charitable, or civic activities or other matters that do not conflict with the Employee’s duties.
3. Term. The term of this Agreement shall commence on the Effective Date and shall continue for a period of three (3) years ending on the third anniversary of the Effective Date or, if later, ending on the last day of
any extension made pursuant to the next sentence, subject to prior termination as set forth in Section 8 (such term, including any extensions pursuant to the next sentence, the “Employment Term”). The Employment
Term shall be extended automatically for one (1) additional year on the first anniversary of the Effective Date and for an additional year each anniversary thereafter unless and until either party gives written notice to the
other not to extend the Employment Term before such extension would be effectuated. Notwithstanding any termination of the Employment Term or the Employee’s employment, the Employee and the Company agree
that Sections 8 through 10 shall remain in effect until all parties’ obligations and benefits are satisfied thereunder.
4. Salary. During the Employment Term, the Company shall pay the Employee an annual base salary, before deducting all applicable withholdings, of no less than $168,500 per year, payable at the time and in the
manner dictated by the Company’s standard payroll policies. Such minimum annual base salary may be periodically reviewed and increased (but not decreased without the Employee’s express written consent) at the
discretion of the Board or the Compensation Committee of the Board (the “Committee”) to reflect, among other matters, cost

of living increases and performance results (such annual base salary, including any increases pursuant to this Section 4, the “Annual Base Salary”).
5. Other Compensation and Fringe Benefits. In addition to any executive bonus, pension, deferred compensation and long-term incentive plans which the Company or an affiliate of the Company may from time to
time make available to the Employee, the Employee shall be entitled to the following during the Employment Term:
(a)

the standard Company benefits enjoyed by the Company’s other top executives as a group;

(b)

medical and other insurance coverage (for the Employee and any covered dependents) provided by the Company to its other top executives as a group;

(c)

supplemental disability insurance sufficient to provide two-thirds of the Employee’s pre-disability Annual Base Salary;

(d)

an annual incentive bonus opportunity under the Company’s annual incentive plan (“Annual Bonus Plan”) for each calendar year included in the Employment Term, with such opportunity to be earned
based upon attainment of performance objectives established by the Committee (“Annual Bonus”). The Employee’s target Annual Bonus under the Annual Bonus Plan shall be no less than 150% of the
Employee’s Annual Base Salary (collectively, the target and maximum are referred to as the “Annual Bonus Opportunity”). The Employee’s Annual Bonus Opportunity may be periodically reviewed and
increased (but not decreased without the Employee’s express written consent) at the discretion of the Committee. The Annual Bonus shall be paid no later than the March 15th first following the calendar
year to which the Annual Bonus relates. Unless provided otherwise herein or the Board determines otherwise, no Annual Bonus shall be paid to the Employee unless the Employee is employed by the
Company, or an affiliate thereof, on the Annual Bonus payment date; and

(e)

participation in the Company’s equity incentive plans.

6. Vacation. For and during each calendar year within the Employment Term, the Employee shall be entitled to reasonable paid vacation periods consistent with the Employee’s position and in accordance with the
Company’s standard policies, or as the Board may approve. In addition, the Employee shall be entitled to such holidays consistent with the Company’s standard policies or as the Board or the Committee may approve.
7. Expense Reimbursement. In addition to the compensation and benefits provided herein, the Company shall, upon receipt of appropriate documentation, reimburse the Employee each month for his reasonable
travel, lodging, entertainment, promotion and other ordinary and necessary business expenses to the extent such reimbursement is permitted under the Company’s expense reimbursement policy.
8. Termination of Employment. The Company or the Employee may terminate the Employee’s employment at any time and for any reason in accordance with Subsection 8(a)
2

below. The Employment Term shall be deemed to have ended on the last day of the Employee’s employment. The Employment Term shall terminate automatically upon the Employee’s death.
(a)

Notice of Termination. Any purported termination of the Employee’s employment (other than by reason of death) shall be communicated by written Notice of Termination (as defined herein) from one party
to the other in accordance with the notice provisions contained in Section 25. For purposes of this Agreement, a “Notice of Termination” shall mean a notice that indicates the Date of Termination (as that
term is defined in Subsection 8(b)) and, with respect to a termination due to Disability (as that term is defined in Subsection 8(e)), Cause (as that term is defined in Subsection 8(d)), or Good Reason (as that
term is defined in Subsection 8(f)), sets forth in reasonable detail the facts and circumstances that are alleged to provide a basis for such termination. A Notice of Termination from the Company shall
specify whether the termination is with or without Cause or due to the Employee’s Disability. A Notice of Termination from the Employee shall specify whether the termination is with or without Good
Reason.

(b)

Date of Termination. For purposes of this Agreement, “Date of Termination” shall mean the date specified in the Notice of Termination (but in no event shall such date be earlier than the thirtieth (30th) day
following the date the Notice of Termination is given) or the date of the Employee’s death.

(c)

No Waiver. The failure to set forth any fact or circumstance in a Notice of Termination, which fact or circumstance was not known to the party giving the Notice of Termination when the notice was given,
shall not constitute a waiver of the right to assert such fact or circumstance in an attempt to enforce any right under or provision of this Agreement.

(d)

Cause. For purposes of this Agreement, a termination for “Cause” means a termination by the Company based upon the Employee’s: (i) persistent failure to perform duties consistent with a commercially
reasonable standard of care (other than due to a physical or mental impairment or due to an action or inaction directed by the Company that would otherwise constitute Good Reason); (ii) willful neglect of
duties (other than due to a physical or mental impairment or due to an action or inaction directed by the Company that would otherwise constitute Good Reason); (iii) conviction of, or pleading nolo
contendere to, criminal or other illegal activities involving dishonesty; (iv) material breach of this Agreement; or (v) failure to materially cooperate with or impeding an investigation authorized by the
Board. The Employee’s termination for Cause shall be effective when and if a resolution is duly adopted by an affirmative vote of at least 3/4 of the Board (less the Employee), stating that, in the good faith
opinion of the Board, the Employee is guilty of the conduct described in the Notice of Termination and such conduct constitutes Cause under this Agreement; provided, however, that the Employee shall
have been given reasonable opportunity (A) to cure any act or omission that constitutes Cause if capable of cure and (B), together with counsel, during the thirty (30) day period following
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the receipt by the Employee of the Notice of Termination and prior to the adoption of the Board’s resolution, to be heard by the Board.
(e)

Disability. For purposes of this Agreement, a termination based upon “Disability” means a termination by the Company based upon the Employee’s entitlement to long-term disability benefits under the
Company’s long-term disability plan or policy, as the case may be, as in effect on the Date of Termination.

(f)

Good Reason. For purposes of this Agreement, a termination for “Good Reason” means a termination by the Employee during the Employment Term based upon the occurrence (without the Employee’s
express written consent) of any of the following:
(i)

a material diminution in the Employee’s position or title, or the assignment of duties to the Employee that are materially inconsistent with the Employee’s position or title;

(ii)

a material diminution in the Employee’s Annual Base Salary or Annual Bonus Opportunity;

(iii)

within six (6) months immediately preceding or within two (2) years immediately following a Change in Control: (A) a material adverse change in the Employee’s status, authority or responsibility
(e.g., the Company has determined that a change in the department or functional group over which the Employee has managerial authority would constitute such a material adverse change); (B) a
material adverse change in the position to whom the Employee reports (including any requirement that the Employee report to a corporate officer or employee instead of reporting directly to the CEO)
or to the Employee’s service relationship (or the conditions under which the Employee performs his duties) as a result of such reporting structure change, or a material diminution in the authority, duties
or responsibilities of the position to whom the Employee reports; (C) a material diminution in the budget over which the Employee has managing authority; or (D) a material change in the geographic
location of the Employee’s principal place of employment (e.g., the Company has determined that a relocation of more than thirty-five (35) miles would constitute such a material change); or

(iv)

a material breach by the Company of any of its obligations under this Agreement.

Notwithstanding the foregoing, the Employee being placed on a paid leave for up to sixty (60) days pending a determination of whether there is a basis to terminate the Employee for Cause shall not constitute
Good Reason. The Employee’s continued employment shall not constitute consent to, or a waiver of rights with respect to, any act or failure to act constituting Good Reason hereunder; provided, however, that
no such event described above shall constitute Good Reason unless:
4

(1) the Employee gives Notice of Termination to the Company specifying the condition or event relied upon for such termination either: (x) within ninety (90) days of the initial existence of such event; or (y) in
the case of an event predating a Change in Control, within ninety (90) days of the Change in Control; and (2) the Company fails to cure the condition or event constituting Good Reason within thirty (30) days
following receipt of the Employee’s Notice of Termination.
9. Obligations of the Company Upon Termination.
(a)

Termination by the Company for a Reason Other than Cause, Death or Disability and Termination by the Employee for Good Reason. If the Employee’s employment is terminated by: (1) the Company for
any reason other than Cause, Death or Disability; or (2) the Employee for Good Reason:
(i)

the Company shall pay the Employee the following (collectively, the “Accrued Obligations”): (A) within five (5) business days after the Date of Termination, any earned but unpaid Annual Base Salary;
(B) within a reasonable time following submission of all applicable documentation, any expense reimbursement payments owed to the Employee for expenses incurred prior to the Date of Termination;
and (C) no later than March 15th of the year in which the Date of Termination occurs, any earned but unpaid Annual Bonus payments relating to the prior calendar year;

(ii)

the Company shall pay the Employee no later than March 15th of the calendar year following the year in which the Date of Termination occurs, a prorated Annual Bonus based upon the actual Annual
Bonus that would have been earned by the Employee for the year in which the Date of Termination occurs (based upon the target Annual Bonus Opportunity in the year in which the Date of
Termination occurred, or the prior year if no target Annual Bonus Opportunity has yet been determined, and the actual satisfaction of the applicable performance measures, but ignoring any requirement
under the Annual Bonus plan that the Employee must be employed on the payment date) multiplied by the percentage of the calendar year completed before the Date of Termination;

(iii)

the Company shall pay the Employee, no later than the sixty-fifth (65th) calendar day after the Date of Termination, a lump-sum payment equal to 200% of the sum of: (A) the Employee’s Annual Base
Salary in effect immediately prior to the Date of Termination (disregarding any reduction in Annual Base Salary to which the Employee did not expressly consent in writing); and (B) the highest Annual
Bonus paid to the Employee by the Company within the three (3) years preceding his termination of employment or, if higher, the target Annual Bonus Opportunity in the year in which the Date of
Termination occurs;

(iv)

all stock option, restricted stock and other equity-based incentive awards granted by the Company that were outstanding but not vested as of the
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Date of Termination shall become immediately vested and/or payable, as the case may be, unless the equity incentive awards are based upon satisfaction of performance criteria (not based solely on the
passage of time); in which case, they will only vest pursuant to their express terms; and
(v)

the Company shall provide the Employee with certain continued welfare benefits as follows:
(A)

Any life insurance coverage provided by the Company shall terminate at the same time as life insurance coverage would normally terminate for any other employee that terminates employment
with the Company, and the Employee shall have the right to convert that life insurance coverage to an individual policy under the regular rules of the Company’s group policy. In addition, if the
Employee is covered under or receives life insurance coverage provided by the Company on the Date of Termination, then within thirty (30) business days after the Date of Termination, the
Company shall pay the Employee a lump sum cash payment equal to thirty-six (36) monthly life insurance premiums based on the monthly premiums that would be due assuming that the
Employee had converted his Company life insurance coverage that was in effect on the Notice of Termination into an individual policy.

(B)

As long as the Employee pays the full monthly premiums for COBRA coverage, the Company shall provide the Employee and, as applicable, the Employee’s eligible dependents with
continued medical and dental coverage, on the same basis as provided to the Company’s active executives and their dependents until the earlier of: (i) three (3) years after the Date of
Termination; or (ii) the date the Employee is first eligible for medical and dental coverage (without pre-existing condition limitations) with a subsequent employer. In addition, within thirty
(30) business days after the Date of Termination, the Company shall pay the Employee a lump sum cash payment equal to thirty-six (36) monthly medical and dental COBRA premiums based
on the level of coverage in effect for the Employee (e.g., employee only or family coverage) on the Date of Termination.

(b)

Termination by the Company for Cause and by the Employee without Good Reason. If the Employee’s employment is terminated (i) by the Company for Cause or (ii) by the Employee without Good
Reason, the Company’s only obligation under this Agreement shall be payment of any Accrued Obligations.

(c)

Termination due to Death or Disability. If the Employee’s employment is terminated due to death or Disability, the Company shall pay the Employee (or to
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the Employee’s estate or personal representative in the case of death), within thirty (30) business days after the Date of Termination: (i) any Accrued Obligations, plus (ii) a prorated Annual Bonus based
upon the target Annual Bonus opportunity in the year in which the Date of Termination occurred (or the prior year if no target Annual Bonus Opportunity has yet been determined) multiplied by the
percentage of the calendar year completed before the Date of Termination.
(d)

Definition of Change in Control. For purposes of this Agreement, the term “Change in Control” shall mean that the conditions set forth in any one of the following subsections shall have been satisfied:
(i)

the acquisition, directly or indirectly, by any “person” (within the meaning of Section 3(a)(9) of the Securities and Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (the “Exchange Act”) and used in Sections 13(d)
and 14(d) thereof) of “beneficial ownership” (within the meaning of Rule 13d-3 of the Exchange Act) of securities of the Company possessing more than fifty percent (50%) of the total combined
voting power of all outstanding securities of the Company;

(ii)

a merger or consolidation in which the Company is not the surviving entity, except for a transaction in which the holders of the outstanding voting securities of the Company immediately prior to such
merger or consolidation hold, in the aggregate, securities possessing more than fifty percent (50%) of the total combined voting power of all outstanding voting securities of the surviving entity
immediately after such merger or consolidation;

(iii)

a reverse merger in which the Company is the surviving entity but in which securities possessing more than fifty percent (50%) of the total combined voting power of all outstanding voting securities of
the Company are transferred to or acquired by a person or persons different from the persons holding those securities immediately prior to such merger;

(iv)

during any period of two (2) consecutive years during the Employment Term or any extensions thereof, individuals, who, at the beginning of such period, constitute the Board, cease for any reason to
constitute at least a majority thereof, unless the election of each director who was not a director at the beginning of such period has been approved in advance by directors representing at least two-thirds
of the directors then in office who were directors at the beginning of the period;

(v)

the sale, transfer or other disposition (in one transaction or a series of related transactions) of assets of the Company that have a total fair market value equal to or more than one-third of the total fair
market value of all of the assets of the Company immediately prior to such sale, transfer or other disposition, other than a sale, transfer or other disposition to an entity (A)
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which immediately following such sale, transfer or other disposition owns, directly or indirectly, at least fifty percent (50%) of the Company’s outstanding voting securities or (B) fifty percent (50%) or
more of whose outstanding voting securities is immediately following such sale, transfer or other disposition owned, directly or indirectly, by the Company. For purposes of the foregoing clause, the
sale of stock of a subsidiary of the Company (or the assets of such subsidiary) shall be treated as a sale of assets of the Company; or
(vi)
(e)

the approval by the stockholders of a plan or proposal for the liquidation or dissolution of the Company.
Six-Month Delay. To the extent the Employee is a “specified employee,” as defined in Section 409A(a)(2)(B)(i) of the Code and the regulations and other guidance promulgated thereunder and any
elections made by the Company in accordance therewith, notwithstanding the timing of payment provided in any other Section of this Agreement, no payment, distribution or benefit under this Agreement
that constitutes a distribution of deferred compensation (within the meaning of Treasury Regulation Section 1.409A-1(b)) upon separation from service (within the meaning of Treasury
Regulation Section 1.409A-1(h)), after taking into account all available exemptions, that would otherwise be payable during the six (6) month period after separation from service, will be made during such
six (6) month period, and any such payment, distribution or benefit will instead be paid on the first business day after such six (6) month period.

10. Excise Tax Gross-up Payments.
(a)

If any payments or benefits paid or provided or to be paid or provided to the Employee or for his benefit pursuant to the terms of this Agreement or otherwise in connection with, or arising out of, his
employment with the Company or its subsidiaries or the termination thereof (a “Payment” and, collectively, the “Payments”) would be subject to the excise tax (the “Excise Tax”) imposed by Section 4999
of the Code, then, except as otherwise provided in this Subsection 10(a), the Employee will be entitled to receive an additional payment (a “Gross-Up Payment”) in an amount such that, after payment by
the Employee of all income taxes, all employment taxes and any Excise Tax imposed upon the Gross-Up Payment (including any related interest and penalties), the Employee retains an amount of the
Gross-Up Payment equal to the Excise Tax (including any related interest and penalties) imposed upon the Payments. Notwithstanding the foregoing, if the amount of the Payments does not exceed by more
than three percent (3%) the amount that would be payable to the Employee if the Payments were reduced to one dollar less than what would constitute a “parachute payment” under Section 280G of the
Code (the “Scaled Back Amount”), then the Payments shall be reduced, in a manner determined by the Employee, to the Scaled Back Amount, and the Employee shall not be entitled to any Gross-Up
Payment.
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(b)

An initial determination of (i) whether a Gross-Up Payment is required pursuant to this Agreement, and, if applicable, the amount of such Gross-Up Payment or (ii) whether the Payments must be reduced
to the Scaled Back Amount and, if so, the amount of such reduction, will be made at the Company’s expense by an accounting firm selected by the Company. The accounting firm will provide its
determination, together with detailed supporting calculations and documentation, to the Company and the Employee within ten (10) business days after the date of termination of the Employee’s
employment, or such other time as may be reasonably requested by the Company or the Employee. If the accounting firm determines that no Excise Tax is payable by the Employee with respect to a
Payment or Payments, it will furnish the Employee with an opinion to that effect. If a Gross-Up Payment becomes payable, such Gross-Up Payment will be paid by the Company to the Employee within
thirty (30) business days of the receipt of the accounting firm’s determination. If a reduction in Payments is required, such reduction shall be effectuated within thirty (30) business days of the receipt of the
accounting firm’s determination. Within ten (10) business days after the accounting firm delivers its determination to the Employee, the Employee will have the right to dispute the determination. The
existence of a dispute will not in any way affect the Employee’s right to receive a Gross-Up Payment in accordance with the determination. If there is no dispute, the determination will be binding, final, and
conclusive upon the Company and the Employee. If there is a dispute, the Company and the Employee will together select a second accounting firm, which will review the determination and the
Employee’s basis for the dispute and then will render its own determination, which will be binding, final, and conclusive on the Company and on the Employee for purposes of determining whether a GrossUp Payment is required pursuant to this Subsection 10(b) or whether a reduction to the Scaled Back Amount is required, as the case may be. If as a result of any dispute pursuant to this Subsection 10(b) a
Gross-Up Payment is made or additional Gross-Up Payments are made, such Gross-Up Payment(s) will be paid by the Company to the Employee within thirty (30) business days of the receipt of the second
accounting firm’s determination. The Company will bear all costs associated with the second accounting firm’s determination, unless such determination does not result in additional Gross-Up Payments to
the Employee or unless such determination does not mitigate the reduction in Payments required to arrive at the Scaled Back Amount, in which case all such costs will be borne by the Employee.

(c)

For purposes of determining the amount of the Gross-Up Payment and, if applicable, the Scaled Back Amount, the Employee will be deemed to pay federal income taxes at the highest marginal rate of
federal income taxation in the calendar year in which the Gross-Up Payment is to be made or the Scaled Back Amount is determined, as the case may be, and applicable state and local income taxes at the
highest marginal rate of taxation in the state and locality of the Employee’s residence on the date of termination of the Employee’s employment, net of the maximum reduction in federal income taxes that
would be obtained from deduction of those state and local taxes.
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(d)

As a result of the uncertainty in the application of Section 4999 of the Code, it is possible that Gross-Up Payments which will not have been made by the Company should have been made, the Employee’s
Payments will be reduced to the Scaled Back Amount when they should not have been or the Employee’s Payments are reduced to a greater extent than they should have been (an “Underpayment”) or
Gross-Up Payments are made by the Company which should not have been made, the Employee’s Payments are not reduced to the Scaled Back Amount when they should have been or they are not reduced
to the extent they should have been (an “Overpayment”). If it is determined that an Underpayment has occurred, the accounting firm shall determine the amount of the Underpayment that has occurred and
any such Underpayment (together with interest at the rate provided in Section 1274(b)(2)(B) of the Code) shall be promptly paid by the Company to or for the benefit of the Employee. If it is determined
that an Overpayment has occurred, the accounting firm shall determine the amount of the Overpayment that has occurred and any such Overpayment (together with interest at the rate provided in
Section 1274(b)(2) of the Code) shall be promptly paid by the Employee (to the extent he has received a refund if the applicable Excise Tax has been paid to the Internal Revenue Service) to or for the
benefit of the Company; provided, however, that if the Company determines that such repayment obligation would be or result in an unlawful extension of credit under Section 13(k) of the Exchange Act,
repayment shall not be required. The Employee shall cooperate, to the extent his expenses are reimbursed by the Company, with any reasonable requests by the Company in connection with any contest or
disputes with the Internal Revenue Service in connection with the Excise Tax.

(e)

The Employee shall notify the Company in writing of any claim by the Internal Revenue Service that, if successful, would require a payment resulting in an Underpayment. Such notification shall be given
as soon as practicable but no later than ten (10) business days after the Employee is informed in writing of such claim and shall apprise the Company of the nature of such claim and the date on which such
claim is requested to be paid. The Employee shall not pay such claim prior to the expiration of the thirty (30) day period following the date on which he gives such notice to the Company (or such shorter
period ending on the date that any payment of taxes with respect to such claim is due). If the Company notifies the Employee in writing prior to the expiration of such period that it desires to contest such
claim, the Employee shall:
(i)

give the Company any information reasonably requested by the Company relating to such claim,

(ii)

take such action in connection with contesting such claim as the Company shall reasonably request in writing from time to time, including, without limitation, accepting legal representation with respect
to such claim by an attorney reasonably selected by the Company,

(iii)

cooperate with the Company in good faith in order to effectively contest such claim, and
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(iv)

permit the Company to participate in any proceeding relating to such claim;
provided, however, that the Company shall bear and pay directly all costs and expenses (including additional interest and penalties) incurred in connection with such contest and shall indemnify and hold
the Employee harmless, on an after-tax basis, for any Excise Tax or income tax (including related interest and penalties) imposed as a result of such representation and payment of costs and expenses.
Without limitation on the foregoing provisions of this Subsection 10(e), the Company shall control all proceedings taken in connection with such contest and, at its sole option, may pursue or forgo any and
all administrative appeals, proceedings, hearings and conferences with the taxing authority in respect of such claim and may, at its sole option, either direct the Employee to pay the tax claimed and sue for a
refund or contest the claim in any permissible manner, and the Employee agrees to prosecute such contest to a determination before any administrative tribunal, in a court of initial jurisdiction and in one or
more appellate courts, as the Company shall determine; provided, however, that if the Company directs the Employee to pay such claim and sue for a refund, the Company shall advance the amount of such
payment to the Employee, on an interest-free basis and shall indemnify and hold the Employee harmless, on an after-tax basis, from any Excise Tax or income tax (including related interest or penalties)
imposed with respect to such advance or with respect to any imputed income with respect to such advance. The Company’s control of the contest shall be limited to issues that may impact Gross-Up
Payments or reduction in Payments under this Section 10, and the Employee shall be entitled to settle or contest, as the case may be, any other issue raised by the Internal Revenue Service or any other
taxing authority.

(f)

If, after the receipt by the Employee of an amount advanced by the Company pursuant to Subsection 10(e), the Employee becomes entitled to receive any refund with respect to such claim, the Employee
shall (subject to the Company’s complying with the requirements of Subsection 10(e)) promptly pay to the Company the amount of such refund (together with any interest paid or credited thereon after
taxes applicable thereto). If, after the receipt by the Employee of an amount advanced by the Company pursuant to Subsection 10(e), a determination is made that the Employee shall not be entitled to any
refund with respect to such claim and the Company does not notify the Employee in writing of its intent to contest such denial of refund prior to the expiration of thirty (30) days after such determination,
then such advance shall be forgiven and shall not be required to be repaid.

(g)

Any payment under this Section 10 must be made by the Company no later than the end of the Employee’s tax year following the Employee’s tax year in which the Employee remits the related tax
payments.

11. Non-Delegation of the Employee’s Rights. The obligations, rights and benefits of the Employee hereunder are personal and may not be delegated, assigned or transferred in any
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manner whatsoever, nor are such obligations, rights or benefits subject to involuntary alienation, assignment or transfer.
12. Confidential Information. The Employee acknowledges that he will occupy a position of trust and confidence and will have access to and learn substantial information about the Company and its affiliates and
their operations that is confidential or not generally known in the industry including, without limitation, information that relates to purchasing, sales, customers, marketing, and the financial positions and financing
arrangements of the Company and its affiliates. The Employee agrees that all such information is proprietary or confidential, or constitutes trade secrets and is the sole property of the Company and/or its affiliates, as the
case may be. The Employee will keep confidential, and will not reproduce, copy or disclose to any other person or firm, any such information or any documents or information relating to the Company’s or its affiliates’
methods, processes, customers, accounts, analyses, systems, charts, programs, procedures, correspondence or records, or any other documents used or owned by the Company or any of its affiliates, nor will the
Employee advise, discuss with or in any way assist any other person, firm or entity in obtaining or learning about any of the items described in this Section 12. Accordingly, the Employee agrees that during the
Employment Term and at all times thereafter he will not disclose, or permit or encourage anyone else to disclose, any such information, nor will he utilize any such information, either alone or with others, outside the
scope of his duties and responsibilities with the Company and its affiliates.
13. Non-Competition.
(a)

During Employment Term. The Employee agrees that, during the Employment Term, he will devote such business time, attention and energies reasonably necessary to the diligent and faithful performance
of the services to the Company and its affiliates, and he will not engage in any way whatsoever, directly or indirectly, in any business that is a direct competitor with the Company’s or its affiliates’ principal
business, nor solicit customers, suppliers or employees of the Company or affiliates on behalf of, or in any other manner work for or assist any business which is a direct competitor with the Company’s or
its affiliates’ principal business. In addition, during the Employment Term, the Employee will undertake no planning for or organization of any business activity competitive with the work he performs as an
employee of the Company, and the Employee will not combine or conspire with any other employee of the Company or any other person for the purpose of organizing any such competitive business
activity.

(b)

After Employment Term. The parties acknowledge that the Employee will acquire substantial knowledge and information concerning the business of the Company and its affiliates as a result of his
employment. The parties further acknowledge that the scope of business in which the Company and its affiliates are engaged as of the Effective Date is national and very competitive and one in which few
companies can successfully compete. Competition by the Employee in that business after the Employment Term would severely injure the Company and its affiliates. Accordingly, for a period of one
(1) year after the Employee’s employment terminates for any reason whatsoever, except as otherwise stated herein below, the Employee agrees: (i) not to become an employee, consultant,
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advisor, principal, partner or substantial shareholder of any firm or business that directly competes with the Company or its affiliates in their principal products and markets; and (ii), on behalf of any such
competitive firm or business, not to solicit any person or business that was at the time of such termination and remains a customer or prospective customer, a supplier or prospective supplier, or an employee
of the Company or an affiliate. Notwithstanding any of the foregoing provisions to the contrary, the Employee shall not be subject to the restrictions set forth in this Subsection 13(b) if: (A) the Employee’s
employment is terminated by the Company without Cause; (B) the Employee terminates employment for Good Reason; or (C) the Employee’s employment is terminated as a result of the Company’s
unwillingness to extend the Employment Term.
(c)

Exclusion. Working, directly or indirectly, for any of the following entities shall not be considered competitive to the Company or its affiliates for the purpose of this Section 13: (i) Fidelity National
Information Services, Inc., its affiliates or their successors; (ii) Lender Processing Services, Inc., its affiliates or their successors; or (iii) the Company, its affiliates or their successors if this Agreement is
assumed by a third party as contemplated in Section 21.

14. Return of Company Documents. Upon termination of the Employment Term, the Employee shall return immediately to the Company all records and documents of or pertaining to the Company or its affiliates
and shall not make or retain any copy or extract of any such record or document, or any other property of the Company or its affiliates.
15. Improvements and Inventions. Any and all improvements or inventions that the Employee may make or participate in during the Employment Term, unless wholly unrelated to the business of the Company and
its affiliates and not produced within the scope of the Employee’s employment hereunder, shall be the sole and exclusive property of the Company. The Employee shall, whenever requested by the Company, execute
and deliver any and all documents that the Company deems appropriate in order to apply for and obtain patents or copyrights in improvements or inventions or in order to assign and/or convey to the Company the sole
and exclusive right, title and interest in and to such improvements, inventions, patents, copyrights or applications.
16. Actions. The parties agree and acknowledge that the rights conveyed by this Agreement are of a unique and special nature and that the Company will not have an adequate remedy at law in the event of a failure
by the Employee to abide by its terms and conditions, nor will money damages adequately compensate for such injury. Therefore, it is agreed between and hereby acknowledged by the parties that, in the event of a
breach by the Employee of any of the obligations of this Agreement, the Company shall have the right, among other rights, to damages sustained thereby and to obtain an injunction or decree of specific performance
from any court of competent jurisdiction to restrain or compel the Employee to perform as agreed herein. The Employee hereby acknowledges that obligations under Sections and Subsections 12, 13(b), 14, 15, 16, 17
and 18 shall survive the termination of employment and be binding by their terms at all times subsequent to the termination of employment for the periods specified therein. Nothing herein shall in any way limit or
exclude any other right granted by law or equity to the Company.
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17. Release. Notwithstanding any provision herein to the contrary, the Company may require that, prior to payment of any amount or provision of any benefit under Section 9 or payment of any Gross-Up Payment
pursuant to Section 10 of this Agreement (other than due to the Employee’s death), the Employee shall have executed a complete release of the Company and its affiliates and related parties in such form as is reasonably
required by the Company, and any waiting periods contained in such release shall have expired; provided, however, that such release relates only to the Employee’s employment relationship with the Company. With
respect to any release required to receive payments owed pursuant to Section 9, the Company must provide the Employee with the form of release no later than seven (7) days after the Date of Termination and the
release must be signed by the Employee and returned to the Company, unchanged, effective and irrevocable, no later than sixty (60) days after the Date of Termination.
18. No Mitigation. The Company agrees that, if the Employee’s employment hereunder is terminated during the Employment Term, the Employee is not required to seek other employment or to attempt in any way to
reduce any amounts payable to the Employee by the Company hereunder. Further, the amount of any payment or benefit provided for hereunder (other than pursuant to Subsection 9(a)(v) hereof) shall not be reduced by
any compensation earned by the Employee as the result of employment by another employer, by retirement benefits or otherwise.
19. Entire Agreement and Amendment. This Agreement embodies the entire agreement and understanding of the parties hereto in respect of the subject matter of this Agreement, and supersedes and replaces all prior
agreements, understandings and commitments with respect to such subject matter. This Agreement may be amended only by a written document signed by both parties to this Agreement.
20. Governing Law. This Agreement shall be governed by, and construed in accordance with, the laws of the State of Florida, excluding any conflicts or choice of law rule or principle that might otherwise refer
construction or interpretation of this Agreement to the substantive law of another jurisdiction. Any litigation pertaining to this Agreement shall be adjudicated in courts located in Duval County, Florida.
21. Successors. This Agreement may not be assigned by the Employee. In addition to any obligations imposed by law upon any successor to the Company, the Company will require any successor (whether direct or
indirect, by purchase, merger, consolidation or otherwise) to all or substantially all of the stock, business and/or assets of the Company, to expressly assume and agree to perform this Agreement in the same manner and
to the same extent that the Company would be required to perform it if no such succession had taken place. Failure of the Company to obtain such assumption by a successor shall be a material breach of this Agreement.
The Employee agrees and consents to any such assumption by a successor of the Company, as well as any assignment of this Agreement by the Company for that purpose. As used in this Agreement, “Company” shall
mean the Company as herein before defined as well as any such successor that expressly assumes this Agreement or otherwise becomes bound by all of its terms and provisions by operation of law. This Agreement shall
be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the parties and their permitted successors or assigns.
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22. Counterparts. This Agreement may be executed in counterparts, each of which shall be deemed an original, but all of which together shall constitute one and the same instrument.
23. Attorneys’ Fees. If any party finds it necessary to employ legal counsel or to bring an action at law or other proceedings against the other party to interpret or enforce any of the terms hereof, the party prevailing
in any such action or other proceeding shall be promptly paid by the other party its reasonable legal fees, court costs, litigation expenses, all as determined by the court and not a jury, and such payment shall be made by
the non-prevailing party no later than the end of the Employee’s tax year following the Employee’s tax year in which the payment amount becomes known and payable; provided, however, that on or after a Change in
Control, and following the Employee’s termination of employment with the Company, if any party finds it necessary to employ legal counsel or to bring an action at law or other proceedings against the other party to
interpret or enforce any of the terms hereof, the Company shall pay (on an ongoing basis) to the Employee to the fullest extent permitted by law, all legal fees, court costs and litigation expenses reasonably incurred by
the Employee or others on his behalf (such amounts collectively referred to as the “Reimbursed Amounts”); provided, further, that the Employee shall reimburse the Company for the Reimbursed Amounts if it is
determined that a majority of the Employee’s claims or defenses were frivolous or without merit. Requests for payment of Reimbursed Amounts, together with all documents required by the Company to substantiate
them, must be submitted to the Company no later than ninety (90) days after the expense was incurred. The Reimbursed Amounts shall be paid by the Company within ninety (90) days after receiving the request and all
substantiating documents requested from the Employee. The payment of Reimbursed Amounts during the Employee’s tax year will not impact the Reimbursed Amounts for any other taxable year. The rights under this
Section 23 shall survive the termination of employment and this Agreement until the expiration of the applicable statute of limitations.
24. Severability. If any section, subsection or provision hereof is found for any reason whatsoever to be invalid or inoperative, that section, subsection or provision shall be deemed severable and shall not affect the
force and validity of any other provision of this Agreement. If any covenant herein is determined by a court to be overly broad thereby making the covenant unenforceable, the parties agree and it is their desire that such
court shall substitute a reasonable judicially enforceable limitation in place of the offensive part of the covenant and that as so modified the covenant shall be as fully enforceable as if set forth herein by the parties
themselves in the modified form. The covenants of the Employee in this Agreement shall each be construed as an agreement independent of any other provision in this Agreement, and the existence of any claim or
cause of action of the Employee against the Company, whether predicated on this Agreement or otherwise, shall not constitute a defense to the enforcement by the Company of the covenants in this Agreement.
25. Notices. Any notice, request, or instruction to be given hereunder shall be in writing and shall be deemed given when personally delivered or three (3) days after being sent by United States Certified Mail,
postage prepaid, with Return Receipt Requested, to the parties at their respective addresses set forth below:
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To the Company:
Fidelity National Financial, Inc.
601 Riverside Avenue
Jacksonville, FL 32204
Attention: General Counsel
To the Employee:
Brent B. Bickett
c/o Fidelity National Financial, Inc.
601 Riverside Avenue
Jacksonville, FL 32204
26. Waiver of Breach. The waiver by any party of any provisions of this Agreement shall not operate or be construed as a waiver of any prior or subsequent breach by the other party.
27. Tax Withholding. The Company or an affiliate may deduct from all compensation and benefits payable under this Agreement any taxes or withholdings the Company is required to deduct pursuant to state, federal
or local laws.
28. Code Section 409A. To the extent applicable, it is intended that this Agreement and any payment made hereunder shall comply with the requirements of Section 409A of the Code, and any related regulations or
other guidance promulgated with respect to such Section by the U.S. Department of the Treasury or the Internal Revenue Service (“Code Section 409A”). Any provision that would cause the Agreement or any payment
hereof to fail to satisfy Code Section 409A shall have no force or effect until amended to comply with Code Section 409A, which amendment may be retroactive to the extent permitted by Code Section 409A. In
addition, the direct payment or reimbursement of expenses permitted under this Agreement or otherwise shall be made no later than the last day of the Employee’s taxable year following the taxable year in which such
expense was incurred.
IN WITNESS WHEREOF the parties have executed this Agreement to be effective as of the date first set forth above.
FIDELITY NATIONAL FINANCIAL, INC.
By: /s/ Alan L. Stinson
Its: Chief Executive Officer
BRENT B. BICKETT
/s/ Brent B. Bickett
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Exhibit 10.15
AMENDMENT TO
AMENDED AND RESTATED EMPLOYMENT AGREEMENT
THIS AMENDMENT (the “Amendment”) is effective as of February 4, 2010 and amends the July 2, 2008 Amended and Restated Employment Agreement (the “Agreement”) by and between FIDELITY
NATIONAL FINANCIAL, INC., a Delaware corporation (the “Company”), and BRENT B. BICKETT (the “Employee”) as follows:
1. Excise Taxes. Section 10 of the Agreement is replaced in its entirety with the following:
“Excise Taxes. If any payments or benefits paid or provided or to be paid or provided to the Employee or for Employee’s benefit pursuant to the terms of this Agreement or otherwise in connection with, or arising
out of, employment with the Company or its subsidiaries or the termination thereof (a “Payment” and, collectively, the “Payments”) would be subject to the excise tax imposed by Section 4999 of the Code (the
“Excise Tax”), then Employee may elect for such Payments to be reduced to one dollar less than the amount that would constitute a “parachute payment” under Section 280G of the Code (the “Scaled Back
Amount”). Any such election must be in writing and delivered to the Company within thirty (30) days after the Date of Termination. If Employee does not elect to have Payments reduced to the Scaled Back
Amount, Employee shall be responsible for payment of any Excise Tax resulting from the Payments and Employee shall not be entitled to a gross-up payment under this Agreement or any other for such Excise Tax.
If the Payments are to be reduced, they shall be reduced in the following order of priority: (i) first from cash compensation, (ii) next from equity compensation, then (iii) pro-rata among all remaining Payments and
benefits. To the extent there is a question as to which Payments within any of the foregoing categories are to be reduced first, the Payments that will produce the greatest present value reduction in the Payments with
the least reduction in economic value provided to Employee shall be reduced first.”
2. Definitions and Conflicts. All terms not specifically defined in this Amendment shall have the same meaning as in the Agreement. In the event of a conflict between the terms of this Amendment and the
Agreement, this Amendment shall control.
IN WITNESS WHEREOF the parties have executed this Amendment to be effective as of the date first set forth above.
FIDELITY NATIONAL FINANCIAL, INC.
By: /s/ Michael L. Gravelle
Its: Executive Vice President, General Counsel and
Corporate Secretary
BRENT B. BICKETT
/S/ Brent B. Bickett
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Exhibit 10.17
AMENDMENT TO
AMENDED AND RESTATED EMPLOYMENT AGREEMENT
THIS AMENDMENT (the “Amendment”) is effective as of February 4, 2010 and amends the July 2, 2008 Amended and Restated Employment Agreement (the “Agreement”) by and between FIDELITY
NATIONAL FINANCIAL, INC., a Delaware corporation (the “Company”), and WILLIAM P. FOLEY, II (the “Employee”) as follows:
1. Other Compensation and Fringe Benefits. Section 5(d) of the Agreement is replaced in its entirety with the following:
“Other Compensation and Fringe Benefits. In addition to any executive bonus, pension, deferred compensation and long-term incentive plans which the Company or an affiliate of the Company may from time to
time make available to the Employee, the Employee shall be entitled to the following during the Employment Term:
(d) an annual incentive bonus opportunity under the Company’s annual incentive plan (“Annual Bonus Plan”) for each calendar year included in the Employment Term, with such opportunity to be earned based
upon attainment of performance objectives established by the Committee (“Annual Bonus”). The Employee’s target Annual Bonus under the Annual Bonus Plan shall be no less than 200% of the Employee’s
Annual Base Salary (collectively, the target and maximum are referred to as the “Annual Bonus Opportunity”). The Employee’s Annual Bonus Opportunity may be periodically reviewed and increased (but not
decreased without the Employee’s express written consent) at the discretion of the Committee. The Annual Bonus shall be paid no later than the March 15th first following the calendar year to which the Annual
Bonus relates; and”
2. Obligations of the Company Upon Termination. The preamble of Section 9(a), but not subsections (i) — (v) of Section 9(a), of the Agreement is replaced in its entirety with the following:
“Termination by the Company for a Reason Other than Cause, Death or Disability or Termination by the Employee for Good Reason. If the Employee’s employment is terminated by : (1) the Company for any
reason other than Cause, Death or Disability; or (2) the Employee for Good Reason:”
3. Excise Taxes. Section 10 of the Agreement is replaced in its entirety with the following:
“Excise Taxes. If any payments or benefits paid or provided or to be paid or provided to the Employee or for Employee’s benefit pursuant to the terms of this Agreement or otherwise in connection with, or arising
out of, employment with the Company or its subsidiaries or the termination thereof (a “Payment” and, collectively, the “Payments”) would be subject to the excise tax imposed by Section 4999 of the Code (the
“Excise Tax”), then Employee may elect for such Payments to be reduced to one dollar less than the amount that would constitute a “parachute payment” under Section 280G of the Code (the “Scaled Back
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Amount”). Any such election must be in writing and delivered to the Company within thirty (30) days after the Date of Termination. If Employee does not elect to have Payments reduced to the Scaled Back
Amount, Employee shall be responsible for payment of any Excise Tax resulting from the Payments and Employee shall not be entitled to a gross-up payment under this Agreement or any other for such Excise Tax.
If the Payments are to be reduced, they shall be reduced in the following order of priority: (i) first from cash compensation, (ii) next from equity compensation, then (iii) pro-rata among all remaining Payments and
benefits. To the extent there is a question as to which Payments within any of the foregoing categories are to be reduced first, the Payments that will produce the greatest present value reduction in the Payments with
the least reduction in economic value provided to Employee shall be reduced first.”
4. Definitions and Conflicts. All terms not specifically defined in this Amendment shall have the same meaning as in the Agreement. In the event of a conflict between the terms of this Amendment and the
Agreement, this Amendment shall control.
IN WITNESS WHEREOF the parties have executed this Amendment to be effective as of the date first set forth above.
FIDELITY NATIONAL FINANCIAL, INC.
By: /s/ Michael L. Gravelle
Its: Executive Vice President, General Counsel and
Corporate Secretary
WILLIAM P. FOLEY, II
/s/ William P. Foley, II
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Exhibit 10.19
AMENDMENT TO
AMENDED AND RESTATED EMPLOYMENT AGREEMENT
THIS AMENDMENT (the “Amendment”) is effective as of February 4, 2010 and amends the January 1, 2009 Amended and Restated Employment Agreement (the “Agreement”) by and between FIDELITY
NATIONAL FINANCIAL, INC., a Delaware corporation (the “Company”), and ALAN L. STINSON (the “Employee”) as follows:
1. Salary. The first two sentences of Section 4 of the Agreement is replaced in its entirety with the following:
“Salary. The Company shall pay Employee an annual base salary, before deducting all applicable withholdings, of no less than $600,000 per year, payable at the time and in the manner dictated by the Company’s
standard payroll policies.”
2. Other Compensation and Fringe Benefits. Section 5(d) of the Agreement is replaced in its entirety with the following:
“Other Compensation and Fringe Benefits. In addition to any executive bonus, pension, deferred compensation and long-term incentive plans which the Company or an affiliate of the Company may from time to
time make available to the Employee, the Employee shall be entitled to the following during the Employment Term:
(d) an annual incentive bonus opportunity under the Company’s annual incentive plan (“Annual Bonus Plan”) for each calendar year included in the Employment Term, with such opportunity to be earned based
upon attainment of performance objectives established by the Committee (“Annual Bonus”). The Employee’s target Annual Bonus under the Annual Bonus Plan shall be no less than 125% of the Employee’s
Annual Base Salary (collectively, the target and maximum are referred to as the “Annual Bonus Opportunity”). The Employee’s Annual Bonus Opportunity may be periodically reviewed and increased (but not
decreased without the Employee’s express written consent) at the discretion of the Committee. The Annual Bonus shall be paid no later than the March 15th first following the calendar year to which the Annual
Bonus relates; and”
3. Excise Taxes. Section 10 of the Agreement is replaced in its entirety with the following:
“Excise Taxes. If any payments or benefits paid or provided or to be paid or provided to the Employee or for Employee’s benefit pursuant to the terms of this Agreement or otherwise in connection with, or arising
out of, employment with the Company or its subsidiaries or the termination thereof (a “Payment” and, collectively, the “Payments”) would be subject to the excise tax imposed by Section 4999 of the Code (the
“Excise Tax”), then Employee may elect for such Payments to be reduced to one dollar less than the amount that would constitute a “parachute payment” under Section 280G of the Code (the “Scaled Back
Amount”). Any such election must be in writing and delivered to the Company within thirty (30) days after the Date of Termination. If Employee does not elect
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to have Payments reduced to the Scaled Back Amount, Employee shall be responsible for payment of any Excise Tax resulting from the Payments and Employee shall not be entitled to a gross-up payment under
this Agreement or any other for such Excise Tax. If the Payments are to be reduced, they shall be reduced in the following order of priority: (i) first from cash compensation, (ii) next from equity compensation, then
(iii) pro-rata among all remaining Payments and benefits. To the extent there is a question as to which Payments within any of the foregoing categories are to be reduced first, the Payments that will produce the
greatest present value reduction in the Payments with the least reduction in economic value provided to Employee shall be reduced first.”
4. Definitions and Conflicts. All terms not specifically defined in this Amendment shall have the same meaning as in the Agreement. In the event of a conflict between the terms of this Amendment and the
Agreement, this Amendment shall control.
IN WITNESS WHEREOF the parties have executed this Amendment to be effective as of the date first set forth above.
FIDELITY NATIONAL FINANCIAL, INC.
By: /s/ Michael L. Gravelle
Its: Executive Vice President, General Counsel and
Corporate Secretary
ALAN L. STINSON
/s/ Alan L. Stinson
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Exhibit 10.21
AMENDMENT TO
AMENDED AND RESTATED EMPLOYMENT AGREEMENT
THIS AMENDMENT (the “Amendment”) is effective as of February 4, 2010 and amends the October 10, 2008 Amended and Restated Employment Agreement (the “Agreement”) by and between FIDELITY
NATIONAL FINANCIAL, INC., a Delaware corporation (the “Company”), and RAYMOND R. QUIRK (the “Employee”) as follows:
1. Excise Taxes. Section 9 of the Agreement is replaced in its entirety with the following:
“Excise Taxes. If any payments or benefits paid or provided or to be paid or provided to the Employee or for Employee’s benefit pursuant to the terms of this Agreement or otherwise in connection with, or arising
out of, employment with the Company or its subsidiaries or the termination thereof (a “Payment” and, collectively, the “Payments”) would be subject to the excise tax imposed by Section 4999 of the Code (the
“Excise Tax”), then Employee may elect for such Payments to be reduced to one dollar less than the amount that would constitute a “parachute payment” under Section 280G of the Code (the “Scaled Back
Amount”). Any such election must be in writing and delivered to the Company within thirty (30) days after the Date of Termination. If Employee does not elect to have Payments reduced to the Scaled Back
Amount, Employee shall be responsible for payment of any Excise Tax resulting from the Payments and Employee shall not be entitled to a gross-up payment under this Agreement or any other for such Excise Tax.
If the Payments are to be reduced, they shall be reduced in the following order of priority: (i) first from cash compensation, (ii) next from equity compensation, then (iii) pro-rata among all remaining Payments and
benefits. To the extent there is a question as to which Payments within any of the foregoing categories are to be reduced first, the Payments that will produce the greatest present value reduction in the Payments with
the least reduction in economic value provided to Employee shall be reduced first.”
2. Definitions and Conflicts. All terms not specifically defined in this Amendment shall have the same meaning as in the Agreement. In the event of a conflict between the terms of this Amendment and the
Agreement, this Amendment shall control.
IN WITNESS WHEREOF the parties have executed this Amendment to be effective as of the date first set forth above.
FIDELITY NATIONAL FINANCIAL, INC.
By: /s/ Michael L. Gravelle
Its: Executive Vice President, General Counsel and
Corporate Secretary
RAYMOND R. QUIRK
/s/ Raymond R. Quirk

Exhibit 10.22
AMENDED AND RESTATED
EMPLOYMENT AGREEMENT
THIS AMENDED AND RESTATED EMPLOYMENT AGREEMENT (the “Agreement”) is effective as of January 1, 2010 (the “Effective Date”), by and between FIDELITY NATIONAL FINANCIAL, INC., a
Delaware corporation (the “Company”), and MICHAEL L. GRAVELLE (the “Employee”). In consideration of the mutual covenants and agreements set forth herein, the parties agree as follows:
1. Purpose. This Agreement amends and restates, in its entirety, the obligations of the parties under the agreement between the Company and the Employee, dated as of October 24, 2006, as amended by that certain
Amended and Restated Employment Agreement dated as of July 2, 2008 (the “Prior Agreement”). The purpose of this Agreement is to recognize the Employee’s significant contributions to the overall financial
performance and success of the Company and to provide a single, integrated document which shall provide the basis for the Employee’s continued employment by the Company.
2. Employment and Duties. Subject to the terms and conditions of this Agreement, the Company agrees to continue to employ the Employee to serve in an executive capacity as Executive Vice President, General
Counsel and Corporate Secretary. The Employee accepts such continued employment and agrees to undertake and discharge the duties, functions and responsibilities commensurate with the aforesaid position and such
other duties, functions and responsibilities as may be prescribed from time to time by the Chief Executive Officer (the “CEO”) or the Chairman of the Board of Directors of the Company. Except as expressly provided
in Subsection 13(c), the Employee shall devote approximately half of his business time, attention and effort to the performance of his duties hereunder and, except has described below, shall not engage in any business,
profession or occupation, for compensation or otherwise without the express written consent of the CEO, other than personal, personal investment, charitable, or civic activities or other matters that do not conflict with
the Employee’s duties. The Company acknowledges and agrees that Employee is now and may continue to serve as an officer of Fidelity National Information Services, Inc. and other non-competitor companies.
3. Term. The term of this Agreement shall commence on the Effective Date and shall continue for a period of three (3) years ending on the third anniversary of the Effective Date or, if later, ending on the last day of
any extension made pursuant to the next sentence, subject to prior termination as set forth in Section 8 (such term, including any extensions pursuant to the next sentence (the “Employment Term”). The Employment
Term shall be extended automatically for one (1) additional year on the first anniversary of the Effective Date and for an additional year each anniversary thereafter unless and until either party gives written notice to the
other not to extend the Employment Term before such extension would be effectuated. Notwithstanding any termination of the Employment Term or the Employee’s employment, the Employee and the Company agree
that Sections 8 through 28 shall remain in effect until all parties’ obligations and benefits are satisfied thereunder.
4. Salary. During the Employment Term, the Company shall pay the Employee a base salary at an annual rate, before deducting all applicable withholdings, of no less than

$230,000 per year, payable at the time and in the manner dictated by the Company’s standard payroll policies. Such minimum annual base salary may be periodically reviewed and increased (but not decreased without
the Employee’s express written consent) at the discretion of the Compensation Committee of the Board of Directors (the “Committee”) to reflect, among other matters, cost of living increases and performance results
(such annual base salary, including any increases pursuant to this Section 4, the “Annual Base Salary”).
5. Other Compensation and Fringe Benefits. In addition to any executive bonus, pension, deferred compensation and long-term incentive plans which the Company or an affiliate of the Company may from time to
time make available to the Employee, the Employee shall be entitled to the following during the Employment Term:
(a)

the standard Company benefits enjoyed by provided by Company to executives with the same corporate title (i.e., Executive Vice President);

(b)

medical and other insurance coverage (for the Employee and any covered dependents) provided by the Company;

(c)

eligibility to elect and purchase supplemental disability insurance sufficient to provide two-thirds of the Employee’s pre-disability Annual Base Salary;

(d)

an annual incentive bonus opportunity under the Company’s annual incentive plan (“Annual Bonus Plan”) for each calendar year included in the Employment Term, with such opportunity to be earned
based upon attainment of performance objectives established by the Committee (“Annual Bonus”). The Employee’s target Annual Bonus under the Annual Bonus Plan shall be no less than 100% of the
Employee’s Annual Base Salary, with a maximum of up to 200% of the Employee’s Annual Base Salary (collectively, the target and maximum are referred to as the “Annual Bonus Opportunity”). The
Employee’s Annual Bonus Opportunity may be periodically reviewed and increased (but not decreased without the Employee’s express written consent) at the discretion of the Committee. The Annual
Bonus shall be paid no later than the March 15th first following the calendar year to which the Annual Bonus relates. Unless provided otherwise herein or the Committee determines otherwise, no Annual
Bonus shall be paid to the Employee unless the Employee is employed by the Company, or an affiliate thereof, on the Annual Bonus payment date; and

(e)

participation in the Company’s equity incentive plans and all other benefits and incentive opportunities customarily provided by Company to executives with the same corporate title (i.e., Executive Vice
President).

6. Vacation. For and during each calendar year within the Employment Term, the Employee shall be entitled to reasonable paid vacation periods consistent with the Employee’s position and in accordance with the
Company’s standard policies, or as the Committee may approve. In addition, the Employee shall be entitled to such holidays consistent with the Company’s standard policies or as the Board of Directors (the “Board”) or
the Committee may approve.
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7. Expense Reimbursement. In addition to the compensation and benefits provided herein, the Company shall, upon receipt of appropriate documentation, reimburse the Employee each month for his reasonable
travel, lodging, entertainment, promotion and other ordinary and necessary business expenses to the extent such reimbursement is permitted under the Company’s expense reimbursement policy.
8. Termination of Employment. The Company or the Employee may terminate the Employee’s employment at any time and for any reason in accordance with Subsection 8(a) below. The Employment Term shall be
deemed to have ended on the last day of the Employee’s employment. The Employment Term shall terminate automatically upon the Employee’s death.
(a)

Notice of Termination. Any purported termination of the Employee’s employment (other than by reason of death) shall be communicated by written Notice of Termination (as defined herein) from one party
to the other in accordance with the notice provisions contained in Section 25. For purposes of this Agreement, a “Notice of Termination” shall mean a notice that indicates the Date of Termination (as that
term is defined in Subsection 8(b)) and, with respect to a termination due to Disability (as that term is defined in Subsection 8(e)), Cause (as that term is defined in Subsection 8(d)), or Good Reason (as that
term is defined in Subsection 8(f)), sets forth in reasonable detail the facts and circumstances that are alleged to provide a basis for such termination. A Notice of Termination from the Company shall
specify whether the termination is with or without Cause or due to the Employee’s Disability. A Notice of Termination from the Employee shall specify whether the termination is with or without Good
Reason.

(b)

Date of Termination. For purposes of this Agreement, “Date of Termination” shall mean the date specified in the Notice of Termination (but in no event shall such date be earlier than the thirtieth (30th) day
following the date the Notice of Termination is given) or the date of the Employee’s death. Notwithstanding the foregoing, in no event shall the Date of Termination occur until the Employee experiences a
“separation of service” within the meaning of Code Section 409A (as defined in Section 28 of the Agreement), and notwithstanding anything contained herein to the contrary, the date on which such
separation from service takes place shall be the “Date of Termination,” and all references herein to a “termination of employment” (or words of similar meaning) shall mean a “separation of service” within
the meaning of Code Section 409A.

(c)

No Waiver. The failure to set forth any fact or circumstance in a Notice of Termination, which fact or circumstance was not known to the party giving the Notice of Termination when the notice was given,
shall not constitute a waiver of the right to assert such fact or circumstance in an attempt to enforce any right under or provision of this Agreement.

(d)

Cause. For purposes of this Agreement, a termination for “Cause” means a termination of the Employee’s employment by the Company based upon the Employee’s: (i) persistent failure to perform duties
consistent with a commercially
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reasonable standard of care (other than due to a physical or mental impairment or due to an action or inaction directed by the Company that would otherwise constitute Good Reason); (ii) willful neglect of
duties (other than due to a physical or mental impairment or due to an action or inaction directed by the Company that would otherwise constitute Good Reason); (iii) conviction of, or pleading nolo
contendere to, criminal or other illegal activities involving dishonesty or moral turpitude; (iv) material breach of this Agreement; (v) material breach of the Company’s business policies, accounting
practices or standards of ethics; or (vi) failure to materially cooperate with or impeding an investigation authorized by the Board. Provided, however, that the Employee shall have been given a thirty
(30) day period following the receipt by the Employee of the Notice of Termination to cure any act or omission that constitutes Cause, if capable of cure, prior to termination.
(e)

Disability. For purposes of this Agreement, a termination based upon “Disability” means a termination by the Company based upon the Employee’s entitlement to long-term disability benefits under the
Company’s long-term disability plan or policy, as the case may be, as in effect on the Date of Termination; provided, however, that if the Employee is not a participant in the Company’s long-term disability
plan or policy on the Date of Termination, he shall still be considered terminated based upon Disability if he would have been entitled to benefits under the Company’s long-term disability plan or policy
had he been a participant on his Date of Termination.

(f)

Good Reason. For purposes of this Agreement, a termination for “Good Reason” means a termination by Employee based upon the occurrence (without Employee’s express written consent) of any of the
following:
(i)

a material adverse change in Employee’s position or title, or a material diminution in Employee’s managerial authority, duties or responsibilities or the conditions under which such duties or
responsibilities are performed (e.g., a material reduction in the number or scope of department(s), functional group(s) or personnel over which Employee has managerial authority);

(ii)

a material adverse change in the position to whom Employee reports (e.g., CEO and Chairman), or a material diminution in the managerial authority, duties or responsibilities of the person in that
position;

(iii)

a material change in the geographic location of Employee’s principal working location (currently, 601 Riverside Avenue, Jacksonville, Florida), which Company has determined to be a relocation
of more than thirty-five (35) miles;

(iv)

a material diminution in Employee’s Annual Base Salary or Annual Bonus Opportunity; or
4

(v)
(g)

a material breach by Company of any of its obligations under this Agreement.

Notwithstanding the foregoing, Employee being placed on a paid leave for up to sixty (60) days pending a determination of whether there is a basis to terminate Employee for Cause shall not constitute
Good Reason. Employee’s continued employment shall not constitute consent to, or a waiver of rights with respect to, any act or failure to act constituting Good Reason hereunder; provided, however, that
no such event described above shall constitute Good Reason unless: (1) Employee gives Notice of Termination to Company specifying the condition or event relied upon for such termination within ninety
(90) days of the initial existence of such event and (2) Company fails to cure the condition or event constituting Good Reason within thirty (30) days following receipt of Employee’s Notice of Termination.

9. Obligations of the Company Upon Termination.
(a)

Termination by the Company for a Reason Other than Cause, Death or Disability and Termination by the Employee for Good Reason. If the Employee’s employment is terminated by: (1) the Company for
any reason other than Cause, Death or Disability; or (2) the Employee for Good Reason:
(i)

the Company shall pay the Employee the following (collectively, the “Accrued Obligations”): (A) within five (5) business days after the Date of Termination, any earned but unpaid Annual Base
Salary; (B) within a reasonable time following submission of all applicable documentation, any expense reimbursement payments owed to the Employee for expenses incurred prior to the Date of
Termination; and (C) no later than March 15th of the year in which the Date of Termination occurs, any earned but unpaid Annual Bonus payments relating to the calendar year prior to the year in
which the Date of Termination occurs;

(ii)

the Company shall pay the Employee no later than March 15th of the calendar year following the year in which the Date of Termination occurs, a prorated Annual Bonus based upon the actual
Annual Bonus that would have been earned by the Employee for the year in which the Date of Termination occurs (based upon the target Annual Bonus Opportunity in the year in which the Date of
Termination occurred, or the prior year if no target Annual Bonus Opportunity has yet been determined, and the actual satisfaction of the applicable performance measures, but ignoring any
requirement under the Annual Bonus plan that the Employee must be employed on the payment date) multiplied by the percentage of the calendar year completed before the Date of Termination;

(iii)

the Company shall pay the Employee, no later than the sixty-fifth (65th) calendar day after the Date of Termination, a lump-sum payment equal to 200% of the sum of: (A) the Employee’s Annual
Base Salary in effect
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immediately prior to the Date of Termination (disregarding any reduction in Annual Base Salary to which the Employee did not expressly consent in writing); and (B) the highest Annual Bonus
paid to the Employee by the Company within the three (3) years preceding his termination of employment or, if higher, the target Annual Bonus Opportunity in the year in which the Date of
Termination occurs;
(iv)

all stock option, restricted stock and other equity-based incentive awards granted by the Company that were outstanding but not vested as of the Date of Termination shall become immediately
vested and/or payable, as the case may be, unless the equity incentive awards are based upon satisfaction of performance criteria (not based solely on the passage of time); in which case, they will
only vest pursuant to their express terms, provided, however, that any such equity awards that are vested pursuant to this provision and that constitute a non-qualified deferred compensation
arrangement within the meaning of Code Section 409A shall be paid or settled on the earliest date coinciding with or following the Date of Termination that does not result in a violation of or
penalties under Section 409A; and

(v)

the Company shall provide the Employee with certain continued welfare benefits as follows:
(a)

Any life insurance coverage provided by the Company shall terminate at the same time as life insurance coverage would normally terminate for any other employee that terminates
employment with the Company, and the Employee shall have the right to convert that life insurance coverage to an individual policy under the regular rules of the Company’s group policy.
In addition, if the Employee is covered under or receives life insurance coverage provided by the Company on the Date of Termination, then within sixty-five (65) days after the Date of
Termination, the Company shall pay the Employee a lump sum cash payment equal to thirty-six (36) monthly life insurance premiums based on the monthly premiums that would be due
assuming that the Employee had converted his Company life insurance coverage that was in effect on the Notice of Termination into an individual policy.

(b)

As long as the Employee pays the full monthly premiums for COBRA coverage, the Company shall provide the Employee and, as applicable, the Employee’s eligible dependents with
continued medical and dental coverage, on the same basis as provided to the Company’s active executives and their dependents until the earlier of: (i) three (3) years after the Date of
Termination; or (ii) the date the Employee is first eligible for medical and dental coverage (without pre-existing condition limitations) with a subsequent employer. In addition, within sixtyfive (65) days after the Date
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of Termination, the Company shall pay the Employee a lump sum cash payment equal to thirty-six (36) monthly medical and dental COBRA premiums based on the level of coverage in
effect for the Employee (e.g., employee only or family coverage) on the Date of Termination.
(b)

Termination by the Company for Cause and by the Employee without Good Reason. If the Employee’s employment is terminated (i) by the Company for Cause or (ii) by the Employee without Good
Reason, the Company’s only obligation under this Agreement shall be payment of any Accrued Obligations.

(c)

Termination due to Death or Disability. If the Employee’s employment is terminated due to death or Disability, the Company shall pay the Employee (or to the Employee’s estate or personal representative
in the case of death), within sixty-five (65) days after the Date of Termination: (i) any Accrued Obligations. In addition, the Company shall pay to Employee (or to the Employee’s estate or personal
representative in the case of death) no later than sixty-five (65) calendar days after the Date of Termination a prorated Annual Bonus based upon the target Annual Bonus opportunity in the year in which the
Date of Termination occurred (or the prior year if no target Annual Bonus Opportunity has yet been determined) multiplied by the percentage of the calendar year completed before the Date of Termination,
plus (ii) the unpaid portion of the Annual Base Salary for the remainder of the Employment Term.

(d)

Six-Month Delay. To the extent the Employee is a “specified employee,” as defined in Section 409A(a)(2)(B)(i) of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended (the “Code”) and the regulations and
other guidance promulgated thereunder and any elections made by the Company in accordance therewith, notwithstanding the timing of payment provided in any other Section of this Agreement, no
payment, distribution or benefit under this Agreement that constitutes a distribution of deferred compensation (within the meaning of Treasury Regulation Section 1.409A-1(b)) upon separation from service
(within the meaning of Treasury Regulation Section 1.409A-1(h)), after taking into account all available exemptions, that would otherwise be payable, distributable or settled during the six (6) month period
after separation from service, will be made during such six (6) month period, and any such payment, distribution or benefit will instead be paid on the first business day after such six (6) month period,
provided, however, that if the Employee dies following the Date of Termination and prior to the payment, distribution, settlement or provision of any payments, distributions or benefits delayed on account
of Code Section 409A, such payments, distributions or benefits shall be paid or provided to the personal representative of the Employee’s estate within 30 days after the date of Employee’s death.

10. Excise Taxes. If any payments or benefits paid or provided or to be paid or provided to the Employee or for Employee’s benefit pursuant to the terms of this Agreement or otherwise in connection with, or arising
out of, his employment with the Company or its
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subsidiaries or the termination thereof (a “Payment” and, collectively, the “Payments”) would be subject to the excise tax imposed by Section 4999 of the Code (the “Excise Tax”), then, Employee may elect for such
Payments to be reduced to one dollar less than the amount that would constitute a “parachute payment” under Section 280G of the Code (the “Scaled Back Amount”). Any such election must be in writing and delivered
to the Company within thirty (30) days after the Date of Termination. If Employee does not elect to have Payments reduced to the Scaled Back Amount, Employee shall be responsible for payment of any Excise Tax
resulting from the Payments and Employee shall not be entitled to a gross-up payment under this Agreement or any other for such Excise Tax. If the Payments are to be reduced, they shall be reduced in the following
order of priority: (i) first from cash compensation, (ii) next from equity compensation, then (iii) pro-rata among all remaining Payments and benefits. To the extent there is a question as to which Payments within any of
the foregoing categories are to be reduced first, the Payments that will produce the greatest present value reduction in the Payments with the least reduction in economic value provided to Employee shall be reduced
first. Notwithstanding the order of priority of reduction set forth above, the Employee may include in the Employee’s election for a Scaled Back Amount a change to the order of such Payment reduction. The Company
shall follow such revised reduction order, if and only if, the Company, in its sole judgment, determines such change does not violate the provisions of Code Section 409A.
11. Non-Delegation of the Employee’s Rights. The obligations, rights and benefits of the Employee hereunder are personal and may not be delegated, assigned or transferred in any manner whatsoever, nor are such
obligations, rights or benefits subject to involuntary alienation, assignment or transfer.
12. Confidential Information. The Employee acknowledges that he will occupy a position of trust and confidence and will have access to and learn substantial information about the Company and its affiliates and
their operations that is confidential or not generally known in the industry including, without limitation, information that relates to purchasing, sales, customers, marketing, and the financial positions and financing
arrangements of the Company and its affiliates. The Employee agrees that all such information is proprietary or confidential, or constitutes trade secrets and is the sole property of the Company and/or its affiliates, as the
case may be. The Employee will keep confidential, and will not reproduce, copy or disclose to any other person or firm, any such information or any documents or information relating to the Company’s or its affiliates’
methods, processes, customers, accounts, analyses, systems, charts, programs, procedures, correspondence or records, or any other documents used or owned by the Company or any of its affiliates, nor will the
Employee advise, discuss with or in any way assist any other person, firm or entity in obtaining or learning about any of the items described in this Section 12. Accordingly, the Employee agrees that during the
Employment Term and at all times thereafter he will not disclose, or permit or encourage anyone else to disclose, any such information, nor will he utilize any such information, either alone or with others, outside the
scope of his duties and responsibilities with the Company and its affiliates.
13. Non-Competition.
(a)

During Employment Term. The Employee agrees that, during the Employment Term, he will devote such business time, attention and energies reasonably necessary to the diligent and faithful performance
of the services to the Company
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and its affiliates, and he will not engage in any way whatsoever, directly or indirectly, in any business that is a direct competitor with the Company’s or its affiliates’ principal business, nor solicit customers,
suppliers or employees of the Company or affiliates on behalf of, or in any other manner work for or assist any business which is a direct competitor with the Company’s or its affiliates’ principal business.
In addition, during the Employment Term, the Employee will undertake no planning for or organization of any business activity competitive with the work he performs as an employee of the Company, and
the Employee will not combine or conspire with any other employee of the Company or any other person for the purpose of organizing any such competitive business activity.
(b)

After Employment Term. The parties acknowledge that the Employee will acquire substantial knowledge and information concerning the business of the Company and its affiliates as a result of his
employment. The parties further acknowledge that the scope of business in which the Company and its affiliates are engaged as of the Effective Date is national and very competitive and one in which few
companies can successfully compete. Competition by the Employee in that business after the Employment Term would severely injure the Company and its affiliates. Accordingly, for a period of one
(1) year after the Employee’s employment terminates for any reason whatsoever, except as otherwise stated herein below, the Employee agrees: (i) not to become an employee, consultant, advisor, principal,
partner or substantial shareholder of any firm or business that directly competes with the Company or its affiliates in their principal products and markets; and (ii), on behalf of any such competitive firm or
business, not to solicit any person or business that was at the time of such termination and remains a customer or prospective customer, a supplier or prospective supplier, or an employee of the Company or
an affiliate. Notwithstanding any of the foregoing provisions to the contrary, the Employee shall not be subject to the restrictions set forth in this Subsection 13(b) if the Employee’s employment is
terminated by the Company without Cause.

(c)

Exclusion. Working, directly or indirectly, for any of the following entities shall not be considered competitive to the Company or its affiliates for the purpose of this Section 13: (i) Fidelity National
Information Services, Inc., its affiliates or their successors; or (ii) the Company, its affiliates or their successors if this Agreement is assumed by a third party as contemplated in Section 21.

14. Return of Company Documents. Upon termination of the Employment Term, the Employee shall return immediately to the Company all records and documents of or pertaining to the Company or its affiliates
and shall not make or retain any copy or extract of any such record or document, or any other property of the Company or its affiliates.
15. Improvements and Inventions. Any and all improvements or inventions that the Employee may make or participate in during the Employment Term, unless wholly unrelated to the business of the Company and
its affiliates and not produced within the scope of the Employee’s employment hereunder, shall be the sole and exclusive property of the Company. The Employee shall, whenever requested by the Company, execute
and deliver any and all
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documents that the Company deems appropriate in order to apply for and obtain patents or copyrights in improvements or inventions or in order to assign and/or convey to the Company the sole and exclusive right, title
and interest in and to such improvements, inventions, patents, copyrights or applications.
16. Actions. The parties agree and acknowledge that the rights conveyed by this Agreement are of a unique and special nature and that the Company will not have an adequate remedy at law in the event of a failure
by the Employee to abide by its terms and conditions, nor will money damages adequately compensate for such injury. Therefore, it is agreed between and hereby acknowledged by the parties that, in the event of a
breach by the Employee of any of the obligations of this Agreement, the Company shall have the right, among other rights, to damages sustained thereby and to obtain an injunction or decree of specific performance
from any court of competent jurisdiction to restrain or compel the Employee to perform as agreed herein. Nothing herein shall in any way limit or exclude any other right granted by law or equity to the Company.
17. Release. Notwithstanding any provision herein to the contrary, the Company may require that, prior to payment of any amount or provision of any benefit under Section 9 (other than due to the Employee’s
death), the Employee shall have executed a complete release of the Company and its affiliates and related parties in such form as is reasonably required by the Company, and any waiting periods contained in such
release shall have expired; provided, however, that such release shall not apply to the Employee’s rights under the benefit plans and programs of the Company and its affiliates, which rights shall be determined in
accordance with the terms of such plans and programs. With respect to any release required to receive payments owed pursuant to Section 9, the Company must provide the Employee with the form of release no later
than seven (7) days after the Date of Termination and the release must be signed by the Employee and returned to the Company, unchanged, effective and irrevocable, no later than sixty (60) days after the Date of
Termination.
18. No Mitigation. The Company agrees that, if the Employee’s employment hereunder is terminated during the Employment Term, the Employee is not required to seek other employment or to attempt in any way to
reduce any amounts payable to the Employee by the Company hereunder. Further, the amount of any payment or benefit provided for hereunder (other than pursuant to Subsection 9(a)(v) hereof) shall not be reduced by
any compensation earned by the Employee as the result of employment by another employer, by retirement benefits or otherwise.
19. Entire Agreement and Amendment. This Agreement embodies the entire agreement and understanding of the parties hereto in respect of the subject matter of this Agreement, and supersedes and replaces all prior
agreements, understandings and commitments with respect to such subject matter, including without limitation the Prior Agreement. This Agreement may be amended only by a written document signed by both parties
to this Agreement.
20. Governing Law. This Agreement shall be governed by, and construed in accordance with, the laws of the State of Florida, excluding any conflicts or choice of law rule or principle that might otherwise refer
construction or interpretation of this Agreement to the
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substantive law of another jurisdiction. Any litigation pertaining to this Agreement shall be adjudicated in courts located in Duval County, Florida.
21. Successors. This Agreement may not be assigned by the Employee. In addition to any obligations imposed by law upon any successor to the Company, the Company will require any successor (whether direct or
indirect, by purchase, merger, consolidation or otherwise) to all or substantially all of the stock, business and/or assets of the Company, to expressly assume and agree to perform this Agreement in the same manner and
to the same extent that the Company would be required to perform it if no such succession had taken place. Failure of the Company to obtain such assumption by a successor shall be a material breach of this Agreement.
The Employee agrees and consents to any such assumption by a successor of the Company, as well as any assignment of this Agreement by the Company for that purpose. As used in this Agreement, “Company” shall
mean the Company as herein before defined as well as any such successor that expressly assumes this Agreement or otherwise becomes bound by all of its terms and provisions by operation of law. This Agreement shall
be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the parties and their permitted successors or assigns.
22. Counterparts. This Agreement may be executed in counterparts, each of which shall be deemed an original, but all of which together shall constitute one and the same instrument.
23. Attorneys’ Fees. If any party finds it necessary to employ legal counsel or to bring an action at law or other proceedings against the other party to interpret or enforce any of the terms hereof, the party prevailing
in any such action or other proceeding shall be promptly paid by the other party its reasonable legal fees, court costs, litigation expenses, all as determined by the court and not a jury, and such payment shall be made by
the non-prevailing party no later than the end of the Employee’s tax year following the Employee’s tax year in which the payment amount becomes known and payable; provided, however, that following the
Employee’s termination of employment with the Company, if any party finds it necessary to employ legal counsel or to bring an action at law or other proceedings against the other party to interpret or enforce any of the
terms hereof, the Company shall pay (on an ongoing basis) to the Employee to the fullest extent permitted by law, all legal fees, court costs and litigation expenses reasonably incurred by the Employee or others on his
behalf (such amounts collectively referred to as the “Reimbursed Amounts”); provided, further, that the Employee shall reimburse the Company for the Reimbursed Amounts if it is determined that a majority of the
Employee’s claims or defenses were frivolous or without merit. Requests for payment of Reimbursed Amounts, together with all documents required by the Company to substantiate them, must be submitted to the
Company no later than ninety (90) days after the expense was incurred. The Reimbursed Amounts shall be paid by the Company within ninety (90) days after receiving the request and all substantiating documents
requested from the Employee. The payment of Reimbursed Amounts during the Employee’s tax year will not impact the Reimbursed Amounts for any other taxable year. The rights under this Section 23 shall survive
the termination of employment and this Agreement until the expiration of the applicable statute of limitations.
24. Severability. If any section, subsection or provision hereof is found for any reason whatsoever to be invalid or inoperative, that section, subsection or provision shall be deemed severable and shall not affect the
force and validity of any other provision of this
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Agreement. If any covenant herein is determined by a court to be overly broad thereby making the covenant unenforceable, the parties agree and it is their desire that such court shall substitute a reasonable judicially
enforceable limitation in place of the offensive part of the covenant and that as so modified the covenant shall be as fully enforceable as if set forth herein by the parties themselves in the modified form. The covenants
of the Employee in this Agreement shall each be construed as an agreement independent of any other provision in this Agreement, and the existence of any claim or cause of action of the Employee against the
Company, whether predicated on this Agreement or otherwise, shall not constitute a defense to the enforcement by the Company of the covenants in this Agreement.
25. Notices. Any notice, request, or instruction to be given hereunder shall be in writing and shall be deemed given when personally delivered or three (3) days after being sent by United States Certified Mail,
postage prepaid, with Return Receipt Requested, to the parties at their respective addresses set forth below:
To the Company:
Fidelity National Financial, Inc.
601 Riverside Avenue
Jacksonville, FL 32204
Attention: Chief Executive Officer
To the Employee:
Michael L. Gravelle
601 Riverside Ave
Jacksonville, FL 32204
26. Waiver of Breach. The waiver by any party of any provisions of this Agreement shall not operate or be construed as a waiver of any prior or subsequent breach by the other party.
27. Tax Withholding. The Company or an affiliate may deduct from all compensation and benefits payable under this Agreement any taxes or withholdings the Company is required to deduct pursuant to state, federal
or local laws.
28. Code Section 409A. To the extent applicable, it is intended that this Agreement and any payment made hereunder shall comply with the requirements of Section 409A of the Code, or an exemption or exclusion
therefrom and any related regulations or other guidance promulgated with respect to such Section by the U.S. Department of the Treasury or the Internal Revenue Service (“Code Section 409A”), provided that for the
avoidance of doubt, this provision shall not be construed to require a gross-up payment in respect of any taxes, interest or penalties imposed on the Employee as a result of Code Section 409A. Any provision that would
cause the Agreement or any payment hereof to fail to satisfy Code Section 409A shall have no force or effect until amended in the least restrictive manner necessary to comply with Code Section 409A, which
amendment may be retroactive to the extent permitted by Code Section 409A. Each payment under this Agreement shall be treated as a separate payment for purposes of Code Section 409A.
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In no event may Employee, directly or indirectly, designate the calendar year of any payment to be made under this Agreement. All reimbursements and in-kind benefits provided under this Agreement shall be made or
provided in accordance with the requirements of Code Section 409A, including, without limitation, that (i) in no event shall reimbursements by the Company under this Agreement be made later than the end of the
calendar year next following the calendar year in which the applicable fees and expenses were incurred; (ii) the amount of in-kind benefits that the Company is obligated to pay or provide in any given calendar year
shall not affect the in-kind benefits that the Company is obligated to pay or provide in any other calendar year; (iii) the Employee’s right to have the Company pay or provide such reimbursements and in-kind benefits
may not be liquidated or exchanged for any other benefit; and (iv) in no event shall the Company’s obligations to make such reimbursements or to provide such in-kind benefits apply later than the Employee’s
remaining lifetime. The Employee acknowledges that he has been advised to consult with an attorney and any other advisors of Employee’s choice prior to executing this Agreement, and the Employee further
acknowledges that, in entering into this Agreement, he has not relied upon any representation or statement made by any agent or representative of Company or its affiliates that is not expressly set forth in this
Agreement, including, without limitation, any representation with respect to the consequences or characterization (including for purpose of tax withholding and reporting) of the payment of any compensation or benefits
hereunder under Section 409A of the Code and any similar sections of state tax law.
IN WITNESS WHEREOF the parties have executed this Agreement to be effective as of the date first set forth above.
FIDELITY NATIONAL FINANCIAL, INC.
By: /s/ William P. Foley, II
Its: Executive Chairman of the Board

MICHAEL L. GRAVELLE
/s/ Michael L. Gravelle
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Exhibit 10.23
AMENDED AND RESTATED
EMPLOYMENT AGREEMENT
THIS AMENDED AND RESTATED EMPLOYMENT AGREEMENT (the “Agreement”) is effective as of July 23, 2008 (the “Effective Date”), by and between FIDELITY NATIONAL FINANCIAL, INC., a
Delaware corporation (the “Company”), and PETER T. SADOWSKI (the “Employee”). In consideration of the mutual covenants and agreements set forth herein, the parties agree as follows:
1. Purpose. This Agreement amends and restates, in its entirety, the obligations of the parties under the agreement between the Company and the Employee, dated as of October 24, 2006 (the “Prior Agreement”). The
purpose of this Agreement is to recognize the Employee’s significant contributions to the overall financial performance and success of the Company and to provide a single, integrated document which shall provide the
basis for the Employee’s continued employment by the Company.
2. Employment and Duties. Subject to the terms and conditions of this Agreement, the Company employs the Employee to serve in an executive capacity as Executive Vice President, Chief Legal Officer. The
Employee accepts such employment and agrees to undertake and discharge the duties, functions and responsibilities commensurate with the aforesaid position and such other duties and responsibilities as may be
prescribed from time to time by the Chief Executive Officer (“CEO”) or the Board of Directors of the Company (the “Board”). Except as expressly provided in Subsection 13(c), the Employee shall devote substantially
all of his business time, attention and effort to the performance of his duties hereunder and shall not engage in any business, profession or occupation, for compensation or otherwise without the express written consent
of the CEO, other than personal, personal investment, charitable, or civic activities or other matters that do not conflict with the Employee’s duties.
3. Term. The term of this Agreement shall commence on the Effective Date and shall continue for a period of three (3) years ending on the third anniversary of the Effective Date or, if later, ending on the last day of
any extension made pursuant to the next sentence, subject to prior termination as set forth in Section 8 (such term, including any extensions pursuant to the next sentence, the “Employment Term”). The Employment
Term shall be extended automatically for one (1) additional year on the first anniversary of the Effective Date and for an additional year each anniversary thereafter unless and until either party gives written notice to the
other not to extend the Employment Term before such extension would be effectuated. Notwithstanding any termination of the Employment Term or the Employee’s employment, the Employee and the Company agree
that Sections 8 through 10 shall remain in effect until all parties’ obligations and benefits are satisfied thereunder.
4. Salary. During the Employment Term, the Company shall pay the Employee an annual base salary, before deducting all applicable withholdings, of no less than $460,000 per year, payable at the time and in the
manner dictated by the Company’s standard payroll policies. Such minimum annual base salary may be periodically reviewed and increased (but not decreased without the Employee’s express written consent) at the
discretion of the Board or the Compensation Committee of the Board (the “Committee”) to reflect, among other matters, cost

of living increases and performance results (such annual base salary, including any increases pursuant to this Section 4, the “Annual Base Salary”).
5. Other Compensation and Fringe Benefits. In addition to any executive bonus, pension, deferred compensation and long-term incentive plans which the Company or an affiliate of the Company may from time to
time make available to the Employee, the Employee shall be entitled to the following during the Employment Term:
(a)

the standard Company benefits enjoyed by the Company’s other top executives as a group;

(b)

payment by the Company of the Employee’s Rock Creek Cattle Company annual dues;

(c)

medical and other insurance coverage (for the Employee and any covered dependents) provided by the Company to its other top executives as a group;

(d)

supplemental disability insurance sufficient to provide two-thirds of the Employee’s pre-disability Annual Base Salary;

(e)

an annual incentive bonus opportunity under the Company’s annual incentive plan (“Annual Bonus Plan”) for each calendar year included in the Employment Term, with such opportunity to be earned
based upon attainment of performance objectives established by the Committee (“Annual Bonus”). The Employee’s target Annual Bonus under the Annual Bonus Plan shall be no less than 150% of the
Employee’s Annual Base Salary (collectively, the target and maximum are referred to as the “Annual Bonus Opportunity”). The Employee’s Annual Bonus Opportunity may be periodically reviewed and
increased (but not decreased without the Employee’s express written consent) at the discretion of the Committee. The Annual Bonus shall be paid no later than the March 15th first following the calendar
year to which the Annual Bonus relates. Unless provided otherwise herein or the Board determines otherwise, no Annual Bonus shall be paid to the Employee unless the Employee is employed by the
Company, or an affiliate thereof, on the Annual Bonus payment date; and

(f)

participation in the Company’s equity incentive plans.

6. Vacation. For and during each calendar year within the Employment Term, the Employee shall be entitled to reasonable paid vacation periods consistent with the Employee’s position and in accordance with the
Company’s standard policies, or as the Board may approve. In addition, the Employee shall be entitled to such holidays consistent with the Company’s standard policies or as the Board or the Committee may approve.
7. Expense Reimbursement. In addition to the compensation and benefits provided herein, the Company shall, upon receipt of appropriate documentation, reimburse the Employee each month for his reasonable
travel, lodging, entertainment, promotion and other ordinary and necessary business expenses to the extent such reimbursement is permitted under the Company’s expense reimbursement policy.
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8. Termination of Employment. The Company or the Employee may terminate the Employee’s employment at any time and for any reason in accordance with Subsection 8(a) below. The Employment Term shall be
deemed to have ended on the last day of the Employee’s employment. The Employment Term shall terminate automatically upon the Employee’s death.
(a)

Notice of Termination. Any purported termination of the Employee’s employment (other than by reason of death) shall be communicated by written Notice of Termination (as defined herein) from one party
to the other in accordance with the notice provisions contained in Section 25. For purposes of this Agreement, a “Notice of Termination” shall mean a notice that indicates the Date of Termination (as that
term is defined in Subsection 8(b)) and, with respect to a termination due to Disability (as that term is defined in Subsection 8(e)), Cause (as that term is defined in Subsection 8(d)), or Good Reason (as that
term is defined in Subsection 8(f)), sets forth in reasonable detail the facts and circumstances that are alleged to provide a basis for such termination. A Notice of Termination from the Company shall
specify whether the termination is with or without Cause or due to the Employee’s Disability. A Notice of Termination from the Employee shall specify whether the termination is with or without Good
Reason.

(b)

Date of Termination. For purposes of this Agreement, “Date of Termination” shall mean the date specified in the Notice of Termination (but in no event shall such date be earlier than the thirtieth (30th) day
following the date the Notice of Termination is given) or the date of the Employee’s death.

(c)

No Waiver. The failure to set forth any fact or circumstance in a Notice of Termination, which fact or circumstance was not known to the party giving the Notice of Termination when the notice was given,
shall not constitute a waiver of the right to assert such fact or circumstance in an attempt to enforce any right under or provision of this Agreement.

(d)

Cause. For purposes of this Agreement, a termination for “Cause” means a termination by the Company based upon the Employee’s: (i) persistent failure to perform duties consistent with a commercially
reasonable standard of care (other than due to a physical or mental impairment or due to an action or inaction directed by the Company that would otherwise constitute Good Reason); (ii) willful neglect of
duties (other than due to a physical or mental impairment or due to an action or inaction directed by the Company that would otherwise constitute Good Reason); (iii) conviction of, or pleading nolo
contendere to, criminal or other illegal activities involving dishonesty; (iv) material breach of this Agreement; or (v) failure to materially cooperate with or impeding an investigation authorized by the
Board. The Employee’s termination for Cause shall be effective when and if a resolution is duly adopted by an affirmative vote of at least 3/4 of the Board (less the Employee), stating that, in the good faith
opinion of the Board, the Employee is guilty of the conduct described in the Notice of Termination and such conduct constitutes Cause under this Agreement; provided, however, that the Employee shall
have been given reasonable
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opportunity (A) to cure any act or omission that constitutes Cause if capable of cure and (B), together with counsel, during the thirty (30) day period following the receipt by the Employee of the Notice of
Termination and prior to the adoption of the Board’s resolution, to be heard by the Board.
(e)

Disability. For purposes of this Agreement, a termination based upon “Disability” means a termination by the Company based upon the Employee’s entitlement to long-term disability benefits under the
Company’s long-term disability plan or policy, as the case may be, as in effect on the Date of Termination.

(f)

Good Reason. For purposes of this Agreement, a termination for “Good Reason” means a termination by the Employee during the Employment Term based upon the occurrence (without the Employee’s
express written consent) of any of the following:
(i)

a material diminution in the Employee’s position or title, or the assignment of duties to the Employee that are materially inconsistent with the Employee’s position or title;

(ii)

a material diminution in the Employee’s Annual Base Salary or Annual Bonus Opportunity;

(iii)

within six (6) months immediately preceding or within two (2) years immediately following a Change in Control: (A) a material adverse change in the Employee’s status, authority or responsibility
(e.g., the Company has determined that a change in the department or functional group over which the Employee has managerial authority would constitute such a material adverse change); (B) a
material adverse change in the position to whom the Employee reports (including any requirement that the Employee report to a corporate officer or employee instead of reporting directly to the CEO)
or to the Employee’s service relationship (or the conditions under which the Employee performs his duties) as a result of such reporting structure change, or a material diminution in the authority, duties
or responsibilities of the position to whom the Employee reports; (C) a material diminution in the budget over which the Employee has managing authority; or (D) a material change in the geographic
location of the Employee’s principal place of employment (e.g., the Company has determined that a relocation of more than thirty-five (35) miles would constitute such a material change); or

(iv)

a material breach by the Company of any of its obligations under this Agreement.

Notwithstanding the foregoing, the Employee being placed on a paid leave for up to sixty (60) days pending a determination of whether there is a basis to terminate the Employee for Cause shall not constitute
Good Reason. The Employee’s continued employment shall not constitute consent to, or a waiver of rights with
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respect to, any act or failure to act constituting Good Reason hereunder; provided, however, that no such event described above shall constitute Good Reason unless: (1) the Employee gives Notice of
Termination to the Company specifying the condition or event relied upon for such termination either: (x) within ninety (90) days of the initial existence of such event; or (y) in the case of an event predating a
Change in Control, within ninety (90) days of the Change in Control; and (2) the Company fails to cure the condition or event constituting Good Reason within thirty (30) days following receipt of the
Employee’s Notice of Termination.
9. Obligations of the Company Upon Termination.
(a)

Termination by the Company for a Reason Other than Cause, Death or Disability and Termination by the Employee for Good Reason. If the Employee’s employment is terminated by: (1) the Company for
any reason other than Cause, Death or Disability; or (2) the Employee for Good Reason:
(i)

the Company shall pay the Employee the following (collectively, the “Accrued Obligations”): (A) within five (5) business days after the Date of Termination, any earned but unpaid Annual Base Salary;
(B) within a reasonable time following submission of all applicable documentation, any expense reimbursement payments owed to the Employee for expenses incurred prior to the Date of Termination;
and (C) no later than March 15th of the year in which the Date of Termination occurs, any earned but unpaid Annual Bonus payments relating to the prior calendar year;

(ii)

the Company shall pay the Employee no later than March 15th of the calendar year following the year in which the Date of Termination occurs, a prorated Annual Bonus based upon the actual Annual
Bonus that would have been earned by the Employee for the year in which the Date of Termination occurs (based upon the target Annual Bonus Opportunity in the year in which the Date of
Termination occurred, or the prior year if no target Annual Bonus Opportunity has yet been determined, and the actual satisfaction of the applicable performance measures, but ignoring any requirement
under the Annual Bonus plan that the Employee must be employed on the payment date) multiplied by the percentage of the calendar year completed before the Date of Termination;

(iii)

the Company shall pay the Employee, no later than the sixty-fifth (65th) calendar day after the Date of Termination, a lump-sum payment equal to 200% of the sum of: (A) the Employee’s Annual Base
Salary in effect immediately prior to the Date of Termination (disregarding any reduction in Annual Base Salary to which the Employee did not expressly consent in writing); and (B) the highest Annual
Bonus paid to the Employee by the Company within the three (3) years preceding his termination of employment or, if higher, the target Annual Bonus Opportunity in the year in which the Date of
Termination occurs;
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(b)

(iv)

all stock option, restricted stock and other equity-based incentive awards granted by the Company that were outstanding but not vested as of the Date of Termination shall become immediately vested
and/or payable, as the case may be, unless the equity incentive awards are based upon satisfaction of performance criteria (not based solely on the passage of time), none of which exist as of the
Effective Date; in which case, they will only vest pursuant to their express terms; and

(v)

the Company shall provide the Employee with certain continued welfare benefits as follows:
(A)

Any life insurance coverage provided by the Company shall terminate at the same time as life insurance coverage would normally terminate for any other employee that terminates employment
with the Company, and the Employee shall have the right to convert that life insurance coverage to an individual policy under the regular rules of the Company’s group policy. In addition, if the
Employee is covered under or receives life insurance coverage provided by the Company on the Date of Termination, then within thirty (30) business days after the Date of Termination, the
Company shall pay the Employee a lump sum cash payment equal to thirty-six (36) monthly life insurance premiums based on the monthly premiums that would be due assuming that the
Employee had converted his Company life insurance coverage that was in effect on the Notice of Termination into an individual policy.

(B)

As long as the Employee pays the full monthly premiums for COBRA coverage, the Company shall provide the Employee and, as applicable, the Employee’s eligible dependents with
continued medical and dental coverage, on the same basis as provided to the Company’s active executives and their dependents until the earlier of: (i) three (3) years after the Date of
Termination; or (ii) the date the Employee is first eligible for medical and dental coverage (without pre-existing condition limitations) with a subsequent employer. In addition, within thirty
(30) business days after the Date of Termination, the Company shall pay the Employee a lump sum cash payment equal to thirty-six (36) monthly medical and dental COBRA premiums based
on the level of coverage in effect for the Employee (e.g., employee only or family coverage) on the Date of Termination.

Termination by the Company for Cause and by the Employee without Good Reason. If the Employee’s employment is terminated (i) by the Company for Cause or (ii) by the Employee without Good
Reason, the Company’s only obligation under this Agreement shall be payment of any Accrued Obligations.
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(c)

Termination due to Death or Disability. If the Employee’s employment is terminated due to death or Disability, the Company shall pay the Employee (or to the Employee’s estate or personal representative
in the case of death), within thirty (30) business days after the Date of Termination: (i) any Accrued Obligations, plus (ii) a prorated Annual Bonus based upon the target Annual Bonus opportunity in the
year in which the Date of Termination occurred (or the prior year if no target Annual Bonus Opportunity has yet been determined) multiplied by the percentage of the calendar year completed before the
Date of Termination.

(d)

Definition of Change in Control. For purposes of this Agreement, the term “Change in Control” shall mean that the conditions set forth in any one of the following subsections shall have been satisfied:
(i)

the acquisition, directly or indirectly, by any “person” (within the meaning of Section 3(a)(9) of the Securities and Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (the “Exchange Act”) and used in Sections 13(d)
and 14(d) thereof) of “beneficial ownership” (within the meaning of Rule 13d-3 of the Exchange Act) of securities of the Company possessing more than fifty percent (50%) of the total combined
voting power of all outstanding securities of the Company;

(ii)

a merger or consolidation in which the Company is not the surviving entity, except for a transaction in which the holders of the outstanding voting securities of the Company immediately prior to such
merger or consolidation hold, in the aggregate, securities possessing more than fifty percent (50%) of the total combined voting power of all outstanding voting securities of the surviving entity
immediately after such merger or consolidation;

(iii)

a reverse merger in which the Company is the surviving entity but in which securities possessing more than fifty percent (50%) of the total combined voting power of all outstanding voting securities of
the Company are transferred to or acquired by a person or persons different from the persons holding those securities immediately prior to such merger;

(iv)

during any period of two (2) consecutive years during the Employment Term or any extensions thereof, individuals, who, at the beginning of such period, constitute the Board, cease for any reason to
constitute at least a majority thereof, unless the election of each director who was not a director at the beginning of such period has been approved in advance by directors representing at least two-thirds
of the directors then in office who were directors at the beginning of the period;

(v)

the sale, transfer or other disposition (in one transaction or a series of related transactions) of assets of the Company that have a total fair market value equal to or more than one-third of the total fair
market value of all of
7

the assets of the Company immediately prior to such sale, transfer or other disposition, other than a sale, transfer or other disposition to an entity (A) which immediately following such sale, transfer or
other disposition owns, directly or indirectly, at least fifty percent (50%) of the Company’s outstanding voting securities or (B) fifty percent (50%) or more of whose outstanding voting securities is
immediately following such sale, transfer or other disposition owned, directly or indirectly, by the Company. For purposes of the foregoing clause, the sale of stock of a subsidiary of the Company (or
the assets of such subsidiary) shall be treated as a sale of assets of the Company; or
(vi)
(e)

the approval by the stockholders of a plan or proposal for the liquidation or dissolution of the Company.
Six-Month Delay. To the extent the Employee is a “specified employee,” as defined in Section 409A(a)(2)(B)(i) of the Code and the regulations and other guidance promulgated thereunder and any
elections made by the Company in accordance therewith, notwithstanding the timing of payment provided in any other Section of this Agreement, no payment, distribution or benefit under this Agreement
that constitutes a distribution of deferred compensation (within the meaning of Treasury Regulation Section 1.409A-1(b)) upon separation from service (within the meaning of Treasury
Regulation Section 1.409A-1(h)), after taking into account all available exemptions, that would otherwise be payable during the six (6) month period after separation from service, will be made during such
six (6) month period, and any such payment, distribution or benefit will instead be paid on the first business day after such six (6) month period.

10. Excise Tax Gross-up Payments.
(a)

If any payments or benefits paid or provided or to be paid or provided to the Employee or for his benefit pursuant to the terms of this Agreement or otherwise in connection with, or arising out of, his
employment with the Company or its subsidiaries or the termination thereof (a “Payment” and, collectively, the “Payments”) would be subject to the excise tax (the “Excise Tax”) imposed by Section 4999
of the Code, then, except as otherwise provided in this Subsection 10(a), the Employee will be entitled to receive an additional payment (a “Gross-Up Payment”) in an amount such that, after payment by
the Employee of all income taxes, all employment taxes and any Excise Tax imposed upon the Gross-Up Payment (including any related interest and penalties), the Employee retains an amount of the
Gross-Up Payment equal to the Excise Tax (including any related interest and penalties) imposed upon the Payments. Notwithstanding the foregoing, if the amount of the Payments does not exceed by more
than three percent (3%) the amount that would be payable to the Employee if the Payments were reduced to one dollar less than what would constitute a “parachute payment” under Section 280G of the
Code (the “Scaled Back Amount”), then the Payments shall be reduced, in a manner determined by the Employee, to the Scaled Back Amount, and the Employee shall not be entitled to any Gross-Up
Payment.
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(b)

An initial determination of (i) whether a Gross-Up Payment is required pursuant to this Agreement, and, if applicable, the amount of such Gross-Up Payment or (ii) whether the Payments must be reduced
to the Scaled Back Amount and, if so, the amount of such reduction, will be made at the Company’s expense by an accounting firm selected by the Company. The accounting firm will provide its
determination, together with detailed supporting calculations and documentation, to the Company and the Employee within ten (10) business days after the date of termination of the Employee’s
employment, or such other time as may be reasonably requested by the Company or the Employee. If the accounting firm determines that no Excise Tax is payable by the Employee with respect to a
Payment or Payments, it will furnish the Employee with an opinion to that effect. If a Gross-Up Payment becomes payable, such Gross-Up Payment will be paid by the Company to the Employee within
thirty (30) business days of the receipt of the accounting firm’s determination. If a reduction in Payments is required, such reduction shall be effectuated within thirty (30) business days of the receipt of the
accounting firm’s determination. Within ten (10) business days after the accounting firm delivers its determination to the Employee, the Employee will have the right to dispute the determination. The
existence of a dispute will not in any way affect the Employee’s right to receive a Gross-Up Payment in accordance with the determination. If there is no dispute, the determination will be binding, final, and
conclusive upon the Company and the Employee. If there is a dispute, the Company and the Employee will together select a second accounting firm, which will review the determination and the
Employee’s basis for the dispute and then will render its own determination, which will be binding, final, and conclusive on the Company and on the Employee for purposes of determining whether a GrossUp Payment is required pursuant to this Subsection 10(b) or whether a reduction to the Scaled Back Amount is required, as the case may be. If as a result of any dispute pursuant to this Subsection 10(b) a
Gross-Up Payment is made or additional Gross-Up Payments are made, such Gross-Up Payment(s) will be paid by the Company to the Employee within thirty (30) business days of the receipt of the second
accounting firm’s determination. The Company will bear all costs associated with the second accounting firm’s determination, unless such determination does not result in additional Gross-Up Payments to
the Employee or unless such determination does not mitigate the reduction in Payments required to arrive at the Scaled Back Amount, in which case all such costs will be borne by the Employee.

(c)

For purposes of determining the amount of the Gross-Up Payment and, if applicable, the Scaled Back Amount, the Employee will be deemed to pay federal income taxes at the highest marginal rate of
federal income taxation in the calendar year in which the Gross-Up Payment is to be made or the Scaled Back Amount is determined, as the case may be, and applicable state and local income taxes at the
highest marginal rate of taxation in the state and locality of the Employee’s residence on the date of termination of the Employee’s employment, net of the maximum reduction in federal income taxes that
would be obtained from deduction of those state and local taxes.
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(d)

As a result of the uncertainty in the application of Section 4999 of the Code, it is possible that Gross-Up Payments which will not have been made by the Company should have been made, the Employee’s
Payments will be reduced to the Scaled Back Amount when they should not have been or the Employee’s Payments are reduced to a greater extent than they should have been (an “Underpayment”) or
Gross-Up Payments are made by the Company which should not have been made, the Employee’s Payments are not reduced to the Scaled Back Amount when they should have been or they are not reduced
to the extent they should have been (an “Overpayment”). If it is determined that an Underpayment has occurred, the accounting firm shall determine the amount of the Underpayment that has occurred and
any such Underpayment (together with interest at the rate provided in Section 1274(b)(2)(B) of the Code) shall be promptly paid by the Company to or for the benefit of the Employee. If it is determined
that an Overpayment has occurred, the accounting firm shall determine the amount of the Overpayment that has occurred and any such Overpayment (together with interest at the rate provided in
Section 1274(b)(2) of the Code) shall be promptly paid by the Employee (to the extent he has received a refund if the applicable Excise Tax has been paid to the Internal Revenue Service) to or for the
benefit of the Company; provided, however, that if the Company determines that such repayment obligation would be or result in an unlawful extension of credit under Section 13(k) of the Exchange Act,
repayment shall not be required. The Employee shall cooperate, to the extent his expenses are reimbursed by the Company, with any reasonable requests by the Company in connection with any contest or
disputes with the Internal Revenue Service in connection with the Excise Tax.

(e)

The Employee shall notify the Company in writing of any claim by the Internal Revenue Service that, if successful, would require a payment resulting in an Underpayment. Such notification shall be given
as soon as practicable but no later than ten (10) business days after the Employee is informed in writing of such claim and shall apprise the Company of the nature of such claim and the date on which such
claim is requested to be paid. The Employee shall not pay such claim prior to the expiration of the thirty (30) day period following the date on which he gives such notice to the Company (or such shorter
period ending on the date that any payment of taxes with respect to such claim is due). If the Company notifies the Employee in writing prior to the expiration of such period that it desires to contest such
claim, the Employee shall:
(i)

give the Company any information reasonably requested by the Company relating to such claim,

(ii)

take such action in connection with contesting such claim as the Company shall reasonably request in writing from time to time, including, without limitation, accepting legal representation with respect
to such claim by an attorney reasonably selected by the Company,

(iii)

cooperate with the Company in good faith in order to effectively contest such claim, and
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(iv)

permit the Company to participate in any proceeding relating to such claim;
provided, however, that the Company shall bear and pay directly all costs and expenses (including additional interest and penalties) incurred in connection with such contest and shall indemnify and hold
the Employee harmless, on an after-tax basis, for any Excise Tax or income tax (including related interest and penalties) imposed as a result of such representation and payment of costs and expenses.
Without limitation on the foregoing provisions of this Subsection 10(e), the Company shall control all proceedings taken in connection with such contest and, at its sole option, may pursue or forgo any and
all administrative appeals, proceedings, hearings and conferences with the taxing authority in respect of such claim and may, at its sole option, either direct the Employee to pay the tax claimed and sue for a
refund or contest the claim in any permissible manner, and the Employee agrees to prosecute such contest to a determination before any administrative tribunal, in a court of initial jurisdiction and in one or
more appellate courts, as the Company shall determine; provided, however, that if the Company directs the Employee to pay such claim and sue for a refund, the Company shall advance the amount of such
payment to the Employee, on an interest-free basis and shall indemnify and hold the Employee harmless, on an after-tax basis, from any Excise Tax or income tax (including related interest or penalties)
imposed with respect to such advance or with respect to any imputed income with respect to such advance. The Company’s control of the contest shall be limited to issues that may impact Gross-Up
Payments or reduction in Payments under this Section 10, and the Employee shall be entitled to settle or contest, as the case may be, any other issue raised by the Internal Revenue Service or any other
taxing authority.

(f)

If, after the receipt by the Employee of an amount advanced by the Company pursuant to Subsection 10(e), the Employee becomes entitled to receive any refund with respect to such claim, the Employee
shall (subject to the Company’s complying with the requirements of Subsection 10(e)) promptly pay to the Company the amount of such refund (together with any interest paid or credited thereon after
taxes applicable thereto). If, after the receipt by the Employee of an amount advanced by the Company pursuant to Subsection 10(e), a determination is made that the Employee shall not be entitled to any
refund with respect to such claim and the Company does not notify the Employee in writing of its intent to contest such denial of refund prior to the expiration of thirty (30) days after such determination,
then such advance shall be forgiven and shall not be required to be repaid.

(g)

Any payment under this Section 10 must be made by the Company no later than the end of the Employee’s tax year following the Employee’s tax year in which the Employee remits the related tax
payments.

11. Non-Delegation of the Employee’s Rights. The obligations, rights and benefits of the Employee hereunder are personal and may not be delegated, assigned or transferred in any
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manner whatsoever, nor are such obligations, rights or benefits subject to involuntary alienation, assignment or transfer.
12. Confidential Information. The Employee acknowledges that he will occupy a position of trust and confidence and will have access to and learn substantial information about the Company and its affiliates and
their operations that is confidential or not generally known in the industry including, without limitation, information that relates to purchasing, sales, customers, marketing, and the financial positions and financing
arrangements of the Company and its affiliates. The Employee agrees that all such information is proprietary or confidential, or constitutes trade secrets and is the sole property of the Company and/or its affiliates, as the
case may be. The Employee will keep confidential, and will not reproduce, copy or disclose to any other person or firm, any such information or any documents or information relating to the Company’s or its affiliates’
methods, processes, customers, accounts, analyses, systems, charts, programs, procedures, correspondence or records, or any other documents used or owned by the Company or any of its affiliates, nor will the
Employee advise, discuss with or in any way assist any other person, firm or entity in obtaining or learning about any of the items described in this Section 12. Accordingly, the Employee agrees that during the
Employment Term and at all times thereafter he will not disclose, or permit or encourage anyone else to disclose, any such information, nor will he utilize any such information, either alone or with others, outside the
scope of his duties and responsibilities with the Company and its affiliates.
13. Non-Competition.
(a)

During Employment Term. The Employee agrees that, during the Employment Term, he will devote such business time, attention and energies reasonably necessary to the diligent and faithful performance
of the services to the Company and its affiliates, and he will not engage in any way whatsoever, directly or indirectly, in any business that is a direct competitor with the Company’s or its affiliates’ principal
business, nor solicit customers, suppliers or employees of the Company or affiliates on behalf of, or in any other manner work for or assist any business which is a direct competitor with the Company’s or
its affiliates’ principal business. In addition, during the Employment Term, the Employee will undertake no planning for or organization of any business activity competitive with the work he performs as an
employee of the Company, and the Employee will not combine or conspire with any other employee of the Company or any other person for the purpose of organizing any such competitive business
activity.

(b)

After Employment Term. The parties acknowledge that the Employee will acquire substantial knowledge and information concerning the business of the Company and its affiliates as a result of his
employment. The parties further acknowledge that the scope of business in which the Company and its affiliates are engaged as of the Effective Date is national and very competitive and one in which few
companies can successfully compete. Competition by the Employee in that business after the Employment Term would severely injure the Company and its affiliates. Accordingly, for a period of one
(1) year after the Employee’s employment terminates for any reason whatsoever, except as otherwise stated herein below, the Employee agrees: (i) not to become an employee, consultant,
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advisor, principal, partner or substantial shareholder of any firm or business that directly competes with the Company or its affiliates in their principal products and markets; and (ii), on behalf of any such
competitive firm or business, not to solicit any person or business that was at the time of such termination and remains a customer or prospective customer, a supplier or prospective supplier, or an employee
of the Company or an affiliate; provided, however, that services provided by the Employee as a partner, member or employee of a firm authorized to enter into the practice of law in any state shall not be
considered to be a violation of this Section 13. Notwithstanding any of the foregoing provisions to the contrary, the Employee shall not be subject to the restrictions set forth in this Subsection 13(b) if:
(A) the Employee’s employment is terminated by the Company without Cause; (B) the Employee terminates employment for Good Reason; or (C) the Employee’s employment is terminated as a result of
the Company’s unwillingness to extend the Employment Term.
(c)

Exclusion. Working, directly or indirectly, for any of the following entities shall not be considered competitive to the Company or its affiliates for the purpose of this Section 13: (i) Fidelity National
Information Services, Inc., its affiliates or their successors; (ii) Lender Processing Services, Inc., its affiliates or their successors; or (iii) the Company, its affiliates or their successors if this Agreement is
assumed by a third party as contemplated in Section 21.

14. Return of Company Documents. Upon termination of the Employment Term, the Employee shall return immediately to the Company all records and documents of or pertaining to the Company or its affiliates
and shall not make or retain any copy or extract of any such record or document, or any other property of the Company or its affiliates.
15. Improvements and Inventions. Any and all improvements or inventions that the Employee may make or participate in during the Employment Term, unless wholly unrelated to the business of the Company and
its affiliates and not produced within the scope of the Employee’s employment hereunder, shall be the sole and exclusive property of the Company. The Employee shall, whenever requested by the Company, execute
and deliver any and all documents that the Company deems appropriate in order to apply for and obtain patents or copyrights in improvements or inventions or in order to assign and/or convey to the Company the sole
and exclusive right, title and interest in and to such improvements, inventions, patents, copyrights or applications.
16. Actions. The parties agree and acknowledge that the rights conveyed by this Agreement are of a unique and special nature and that the Company will not have an adequate remedy at law in the event of a failure
by the Employee to abide by its terms and conditions, nor will money damages adequately compensate for such injury. Therefore, it is agreed between and hereby acknowledged by the parties that, in the event of a
breach by the Employee of any of the obligations of this Agreement, the Company shall have the right, among other rights, to damages sustained thereby and to obtain an injunction or decree of specific performance
from any court of competent jurisdiction to restrain or compel the Employee to perform as agreed herein. The Employee hereby acknowledges that obligations under Sections and Subsections 12, 13(b), 14, 15, 16, 17
and 18 shall survive the termination of employment and be binding by their terms at
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all times subsequent to the termination of employment for the periods specified therein. Nothing herein shall in any way limit or exclude any other right granted by law or equity to the Company.
17. Release. Notwithstanding any provision herein to the contrary, the Company may require that, prior to payment of any amount or provision of any benefit under Section 9 or payment of any Gross-Up Payment
pursuant to Section 10 of this Agreement (other than due to the Employee’s death), the Employee shall have executed a complete release of the Company and its affiliates and related parties in such form as is reasonably
required by the Company, and any waiting periods contained in such release shall have expired; provided, however, that such release relates only to the Employee’s employment relationship with the Company. With
respect to any release required to receive payments owed pursuant to Section 9, the Company must provide the Employee with the form of release no later than seven (7) days after the Date of Termination and the
release must be signed by the Employee and returned to the Company, unchanged, effective and irrevocable, no later than sixty (60) days after the Date of Termination.
18. No Mitigation. The Company agrees that, if the Employee’s employment hereunder is terminated during the Employment Term, the Employee is not required to seek other employment or to attempt in any way to
reduce any amounts payable to the Employee by the Company hereunder. Further, the amount of any payment or benefit provided for hereunder (other than pursuant to Subsection 9(a)(v) hereof) shall not be reduced by
any compensation earned by the Employee as the result of employment by another employer, by retirement benefits or otherwise.
19. Entire Agreement and Amendment. This Agreement embodies the entire agreement and understanding of the parties hereto in respect of the subject matter of this Agreement, and supersedes and replaces all prior
agreements, understandings and commitments with respect to such subject matter. This Agreement may be amended only by a written document signed by both parties to this Agreement.
20. Governing Law. This Agreement shall be governed by, and construed in accordance with, the laws of the State of Florida, excluding any conflicts or choice of law rule or principle that might otherwise refer
construction or interpretation of this Agreement to the substantive law of another jurisdiction. Any litigation pertaining to this Agreement shall be adjudicated in courts located in Duval County, Florida.
21. Successors. This Agreement may not be assigned by the Employee. In addition to any obligations imposed by law upon any successor to the Company, the Company will require any successor (whether direct or
indirect, by purchase, merger, consolidation or otherwise) to all or substantially all of the stock, business and/or assets of the Company, to expressly assume and agree to perform this Agreement in the same manner and
to the same extent that the Company would be required to perform it if no such succession had taken place. Failure of the Company to obtain such assumption by a successor shall be a material breach of this Agreement.
The Employee agrees and consents to any such assumption by a successor of the Company, as well as any assignment of this Agreement by the Company for that purpose. As used in this Agreement, “Company” shall
mean the Company as herein before defined as well as any such successor that expressly assumes this Agreement or otherwise becomes bound by all of
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its terms and provisions by operation of law. This Agreement shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the parties and their permitted successors or assigns.
22. Counterparts. This Agreement may be executed in counterparts, each of which shall be deemed an original, but all of which together shall constitute one and the same instrument.
23. Attorneys’ Fees. If any party finds it necessary to employ legal counsel or to bring an action at law or other proceedings against the other party to interpret or enforce any of the terms hereof, the party prevailing
in any such action or other proceeding shall be promptly paid by the other party its reasonable legal fees, court costs, litigation expenses, all as determined by the court and not a jury, and such payment shall be made by
the non-prevailing party no later than the end of the Employee’s tax year following the Employee’s tax year in which the payment amount becomes known and payable; provided, however, that on or after a Change in
Control, and following the Employee’s termination of employment with the Company, if any party finds it necessary to employ legal counsel or to bring an action at law or other proceedings against the other party to
interpret or enforce any of the terms hereof, the Company shall pay (on an ongoing basis) to the Employee to the fullest extent permitted by law, all legal fees, court costs and litigation expenses reasonably incurred by
the Employee or others on his behalf (such amounts collectively referred to as the “Reimbursed Amounts”); provided, further, that the Employee shall reimburse the Company for the Reimbursed Amounts if it is
determined that a majority of the Employee’s claims or defenses were frivolous or without merit. Requests for payment of Reimbursed Amounts, together with all documents required by the Company to substantiate
them, must be submitted to the Company no later than ninety (90) days after the expense was incurred. The Reimbursed Amounts shall be paid by the Company within ninety (90) days after receiving the request and all
substantiating documents requested from the Employee. The payment of Reimbursed Amounts during the Employee’s tax year will not impact the Reimbursed Amounts for any other taxable year. The rights under this
Section 23 shall survive the termination of employment and this Agreement until the expiration of the applicable statute of limitations.
24. Severability. If any section, subsection or provision hereof is found for any reason whatsoever to be invalid or inoperative, that section, subsection or provision shall be deemed severable and shall not affect the
force and validity of any other provision of this Agreement. If any covenant herein is determined by a court to be overly broad thereby making the covenant unenforceable, the parties agree and it is their desire that such
court shall substitute a reasonable judicially enforceable limitation in place of the offensive part of the covenant and that as so modified the covenant shall be as fully enforceable as if set forth herein by the parties
themselves in the modified form. The covenants of the Employee in this Agreement shall each be construed as an agreement independent of any other provision in this Agreement, and the existence of any claim or
cause of action of the Employee against the Company, whether predicated on this Agreement or otherwise, shall not constitute a defense to the enforcement by the Company of the covenants in this Agreement.
25. Notices. Any notice, request, or instruction to be given hereunder shall be in writing and shall be deemed given when personally delivered or three (3) days after being sent
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by United States Certified Mail, postage prepaid, with Return Receipt Requested, to the parties at their respective addresses set forth below:
To the Company:
Fidelity National Financial, Inc.
601 Riverside Avenue
Jacksonville, FL 32204
Attention: General Counsel
To the Employee:
Peter T. Sadowski
c/o Fidelity National Financial, Inc.
601 Riverside Avenue
Jacksonville, FL 32204
26. Waiver of Breach. The waiver by any party of any provisions of this Agreement shall not operate or be construed as a waiver of any prior or subsequent breach by the other party.
27. Tax Withholding. The Company or an affiliate may deduct from all compensation and benefits payable under this Agreement any taxes or withholdings the Company is required to deduct pursuant to state, federal
or local laws.
28. Code Section 409A. To the extent applicable, it is intended that this Agreement and any payment made hereunder shall comply with the requirements of Section 409A of the Code, and any related regulations or
other guidance promulgated with respect to such Section by the U.S. Department of the Treasury or the Internal Revenue Service (“Code Section 409A”). Any provision that would cause the Agreement or any payment
hereof to fail to satisfy Code Section 409A shall have no force or effect until amended to comply with Code Section 409A, which amendment may be retroactive to the extent permitted by Code Section 409A. In
addition, the direct payment or reimbursement of expenses permitted under this Agreement or otherwise shall be made no later than the last day of the Employee’s taxable year following the taxable year in which such
expense was incurred.
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF the parties have executed this Agreement to be effective as of the date first set forth above.
FIDELITY NATIONAL FINANCIAL, INC.
By: /s/ Alan L. Stinson
Its: Chief Executive Officer
PETER T. SADOWSKI
/s/ Peter T. Sadowski
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Exhibit 10.24
AMENDMENT TO
AMENDED AND RESTATED EMPLOYMENT AGREEMENT
THIS AMENDMENT (the “Amendment”) is effective as of February 4, 2010 and amends the July 23, 2008 Amended and Restated Employment Agreement (the “Agreement”) by and between FIDELITY
NATIONAL FINANCIAL, INC., a Delaware corporation (the “Company”), and PETER T. SADOWSKI (the “Employee”) as follows:
1. Excise Taxes. Section 10 of the Agreement is replaced in its entirety with the following:
“Excise Taxes. If any payments or benefits paid or provided or to be paid or provided to the Employee or for Employee’s benefit pursuant to the terms of this Agreement or otherwise in connection with, or arising
out of, employment with the Company or its subsidiaries or the termination thereof (a “Payment” and, collectively, the “Payments”) would be subject to the excise tax imposed by Section 4999 of the Code (the
“Excise Tax”), then Employee may elect for such Payments to be reduced to one dollar less than the amount that would constitute a “parachute payment” under Section 280G of the Code (the “Scaled Back
Amount”). Any such election must be in writing and delivered to the Company within thirty (30) days after the Date of Termination. If Employee does not elect to have Payments reduced to the Scaled Back
Amount, Employee shall be responsible for payment of any Excise Tax resulting from the Payments and Employee shall not be entitled to a gross-up payment under this Agreement or any other for such Excise Tax.
If the Payments are to be reduced, they shall be reduced in the following order of priority: (i) first from cash compensation, (ii) next from equity compensation, then (iii) pro-rata among all remaining Payments and
benefits. To the extent there is a question as to which Payments within any of the foregoing categories are to be reduced first, the Payments that will produce the greatest present value reduction in the Payments with
the least reduction in economic value provided to Employee shall be reduced first.”
2. Definitions and Conflicts. All terms not specifically defined in this Amendment shall have the same meaning as in the Agreement. In the event of a conflict between the terms of this Amendment and the
Agreement, this Amendment shall control.
IN WITNESS WHEREOF the parties have executed this Amendment to be effective as of the date first set forth above.
FIDELITY NATIONAL FINANCIAL, INC.
By: /s/ Michael L. Gravelle
Its: Executive Vice President, General Counsel and
Corporate Secretary
PETER T. SADOWSKI
/s/ Peter T. Sadowski
-1-

EXHIBIT 21.1
FIDELITY NATIONAL FINANCIAL, INC.
List of Subsidiaries
12/31/2009
Nine Significant Subsidiaries
COMPANY

Chicago Title and Trust Company
Chicago Title Insurance Company
Fidelity National Title Group, Inc.
Fidelity National Title Insurance Company
Lawyers Title Insurance Corporation
National Alliance Marketing Group, Inc.
Rocky Mountain Support Services, Inc.
Commonwealth Land Title Insurance Company
Fidelity National Title Company

INCORPORATION

Illinois
Nebraska
Delaware
California
Nebraska
California
Arizona
Nebraska
California

Exhibit 23.1
Consent of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm
The Board of Directors
Fidelity National Financial, Inc.:
We consent to the incorporation by reference in the Registration Statements (Nos. 333-157643, 333-132843, 333-138254, 333-129886, and 333-129016) on Form S-8 and Registration Statements (Nos. 333-157123,
333-147391) on Form S-3 of Fidelity National Financial, Inc. of our reports dated March 1, 2010, with respect to the Consolidated Balance Sheets of Fidelity National Financial, Inc. as of December 31, 2009 and 2008,
and the related Consolidated Statements of Operations, Comprehensive Earnings, Equity and Cash Flows for each of the years in the three-year period ended December 31, 2009, and all related financial statement
schedules, and the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2009, which reports appear in the December 31, 2009 annual report on Form 10-K of Fidelity National Financial, Inc.
/s/ KPMG LLP
March 1, 2010
Jacksonville, Florida
Certified Public Accountants

Exhibit 31.1
CERTIFICATIONS
I, Alan L. Stinson, certify that:
1. I have reviewed this annual report on Form 10-K of Fidelity National Financial, Inc.;
2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such
statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report;
3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all material respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the
registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report;
4. The registrant’s other certifying officer and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over
financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant and have:
a)

designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our supervision, to ensure that material information relating to the registrant,
including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities, particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared;

b)

designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be designed under our supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability
of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles;

c)

evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end
of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and

d)

disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the case of
an annual report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting; and

5. The registrant’s other certifying officer and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of registrant’s board of
directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions):
a)

all significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record,
process, summarize and report financial information; and

b)

any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting.

Date: March 1, 2010
By: /s/ Alan L. Stinson
Alan L. Stinson
Chief Executive Officer

Exhibit 31.2
CERTIFICATIONS
I, Anthony J. Park, certify that:
1. I have reviewed this annual report on Form 10-K of Fidelity National Financial, Inc.;
2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such
statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report;
3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all material respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the
registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report;
4. The registrant’s other certifying officer and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over
financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant and have:
a)

designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our supervision, to ensure that material information relating to the registrant,
including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities, particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared;

b)

designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be designed under our supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability
of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles;

c)

evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end
of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and

d)

disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the case of
an annual report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting; and

5. The registrant’s other certifying officer and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of registrant’s board of
directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions):
a)

all significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record,
process, summarize and report financial information; and

b)

any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting.

Date: March 1, 2010
By: /s/ Anthony J. Park
Anthony J. Park
Chief Financial Officer

Exhibit 32.1
CERTIFICATION OF PERIODIC FINANCIAL REPORTS PURSUANT TO 18 U.S.C. §1350
The undersigned hereby certifies that he is the duly appointed and acting Chief Executive Officer of Fidelity National Financial, Inc., a Delaware corporation (the “Company”), and hereby further certifies as follows.
1. The periodic report containing financial statements to which this certificate is an exhibit fully complies with the requirements of Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934.
2. The information contained in the periodic report to which this certificate is an exhibit fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and results of operations of the Company.
In witness whereof, the undersigned has executed and delivered this certificate as of the date set forth opposite his signature below.
Date: March 1, 2010
/s/ Alan L. Stinson
Alan L. Stinson
Chief Executive Officer

Exhibit 32.2
CERTIFICATION OF PERIODIC FINANCIAL REPORTS PURSUANT TO 18 U.S.C. §1350
The undersigned hereby certifies that he is the duly appointed and acting Chief Financial Officer of Fidelity National Financial, Inc., a Delaware corporation (the “Company”), and hereby further certifies as follows.
1. The periodic report containing financial statements to which this certificate is an exhibit fully complies with the requirements of Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934.
2. The information contained in the periodic report to which this certificate is an exhibit fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and results of operations of the Company.
In witness whereof, the undersigned has executed and delivered this certificate as of the date set forth opposite his signature below.
Date: March 1, 2010
/s/ Anthony J. Park
Anthony J. Park
Chief Financial Officer

